
CITY OF NEWARK 

CITY COUNCIL 

_3_7 _10_1 N
_

e
_
wa

_
rk

_
B
_

ou
_

lev
_

a
_

rd
_

, N
_

ew
_
a
_
rk,
_

C
_

A _94_5B_o_-37_ 9_6 •_s_10_ -s_7s_-4_2s_s _• E_-m_a_n:_c
..:.
ity_.c1e_,k

..;
@

c...
ne
_w_ar_k.o...:

rg;..._-I City Administration Building 

AGENDA Thursday, February 25, 2016 

A. ROLL CALL

B. MINUTES

7:30 p.m. 
City Council Chambers 

B.1 Approval of Minutes of the special City Council meeting of February 4, 
2016, the special City Council meeting of February 11, 2016, and the 
regular City Council meeting of February 11, 2016. (MOTION) 

C. PRESENTATIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS

D. WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS

E.1 Hearing to consider Gateway Station West, a 589-unit residential project 
within the Dumbarton Transit Oriented Development Specific Plan area 
located along Willow Street at the western edge of the City. The City 
Council will consider: (1) by resolution, adopting a Supplemental 
Environmental Impact Report to the Environmental Impact Report (State 
Clearinghouse No. 2010042012) for the Dumbarton Transit Oriented 
Development; (2) by introduction of an ordinance, approving a rezoning 
for an approximately 41-acre area (APNs: 537-852-9, 537-852-10 and 537-
852-11) from MT-1 (High Technology Park District) to MDR-FBC (Medium
Density Residential - Form Based Codes) and HDR-FBC (High Density
Residential - Form Based Codes); (3) by resolution, approving a planned
unit development and a conditional use permit; (4) by resolution,
approving, Vesting Tentative Map 8099, to construct approximately 589
residential units; (5) by motion, approving an Architectural and Site Plan
Review; and (6) by resolution, authorizing the Mayor to sign a
Community Financing Agreement with Dumbarton Area 2, LLC - from
Assistant City Manager Grindall.

(RESOLUTIONS- 4)(1NTRODUCTION OF ORDINANCE)(MOTION-1) 



City Council Agenda - Page 2 February 25, 2016 

F. CITY MANAGER REPORTS 

(It is recommended that Items F.1 through F.5 be acted on 
simultaneously unless separate discussion and/or action is requested by 
a Council Member or a member of the audience.) 

CONSENT 

F.1 Acceptance of contract with New Image Landscape Company for Park 
and Landscape Maintenance Services Project 1007C - from Maintenance 
Supervisor Hornbeck. (RESOLUTION) 

F.2 Authorization for the Mayor to sign an agreement with Joel Nelson 
Productions, Inc., for the 2016 Music at the Grove Program - from 
Recreation and Community Services Director Zehnder. (RESOLUTION) 

F.3 Acceptance of work with G. Bortolotto & Company, Inc. for 2015 Asphalt 
Concrete Street Overlay Program, Project 1093 - from Associate Civil 
Engineer Tran. (RESOLUTION) 

F.4 Initiation of the 2016 Weed Abatement Program and setting April 14, 2016 
for a public hearing - from Deputy Fire Marshal Guier/ Maintenance 
Supervisor Hornbeck. (RESOLUTION) 

F.5 Authorization for the Mayor to sign an Amendment to extend the Auditing 
Services Agreement with Badawi & Associates - from Administrative 
Services Director Woodstock. (RESOLUTION) 

NONCONSENT 

F.6 Status Report on emergency expenditure for replacement of heater for 
Lazy River at Silliman Activity and Family Aquatic Center - from 
Maintenance Supervisor Connolly. (INFORMATIONAL) 

G. CITY ATTORNEY REPORTS 

H. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 



City Council Agenda - Page 3 February 25, 2016 

I. CITY COUNCIL MATTERS 

J. CITY COUNCIL ACTING AS THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

K. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

L. APPROPRIATIONS 

Approval of Audited Demands for the City Council meeting of February 
25, 2016. (MOTION) 

M. CLOSED SESSION 

N. ADJOURNMENT 

Pursuant to Government Code 54957.5: Supplemental materials distributed less than 72 hours before this 
meeting, to a majority of the City Council, will be made available for public inspection at this meeting and 
at the City Clerk's Office located at 37101 Newark Boulevard, 5"' Floor, during normal business hours. 
Materials prepared by City staff and distributed during the meeting arc available for public inspection at 
the n1eeting or after the meeting if prepared by so1ne other person. Docun1ents related to closed session 
items or arc exen1pt fro1n disclosure will not be made available for public inspection. 

For those persons requiring hearing assistance, please make your request to the City Clerk two days prior 
to the 1neeting. 



CITY OF NEWARK 

CITY COUNCIL 
37101 Newark Boulevard, Newark, CA 94560-3796 • 510-578-4266 • E-mail: city.clerk@Newark.org City Administration Building 

7:30 p.m. AGENDA 

CITY COUNCIL: 

Alan L. Nagy, Mayor 

Luis L. Freitas, Vice Mayor 

Sucy Collazo 

Michael K. Hannon 

Mike Bucci 

CITY STAFF: 
John Becker 
City Manager 

Terrence Grinda/1 
Assistant City Manager 

Susie Woodstock 
Administrative Services Director 

Sandy Abe 
Human Resources Director 

Soren Fajeau 
Public Works Director 

Jim Leal 
Police Chief 

David Zehnder 
Recreation and Community 
Services Director 

David J. Benoun 
City Attorney 

Sheila Harrington 
City Clerk 

Thursday, February 25, 2016 City Council Chambers 

Welcome to the Newark City Council meeting. The following information will 
help you understand the City Council Agenda and what occurs during a City 
Council meeting. Your participation in your City government is encouraged, and 
we hope this infonnation will enable you to become more involved. The Order of 
Business for Council meetings is as follows: 

A. ROLL CALL I. COUNCIL MATTERS 
B. MINUTES J, SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
C. PRESENTATIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS TO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
D. WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS K. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
E. PUBLIC HEARINGS L. APPROPRIATIONS 
F. CITY MANAGER REPORTS M. CLOSED SESSION 
G. CITY ATTORNEY REPORTS N. ADJOURNMENT 
H. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

Items listed on the agenda may be approved, disapproved, or continued to a future 
meeting. Many items require an action by motion or the adoption of a resolution 
or an ordinance. When this is required, the words MOTION, RESOLUTION, or 
ORDINANCE appear in parenthesis at the end of the item. If one of these words 
does not appear, the item is an informational item. 

The attached Agenda gives the Backgrou11d!Discussio11 of agenda items. 
Following this section is the word Attachment. Unless "none" follows 
Attachment, there is more documentation which is available for public review at 
the Newark Library, the City Clerk's office or at www.newark.org. Those items 
on the Agenda which are coming from the Planning Commission will also include 
a section entitled Update, which will state what the Planning Commission's action 
was on that particular item. Actio11 indicates what staffs rec01mnendation is and 
what action(s) the Conncil may take. 

Addressing the City Council: You may speak once and submit written 
materials on any listed item at the appropriate time. You may speak once and 
submit written materials on any item not on the agenda during Oral 
Com1111111icatio11s. To address tl1e Council, please seek the recognition of the 
Mayor by raising your hand. Once recognized, come fo1ward to the lectern and 
you may, but you are not required to, state your name and address for the record. 
Public comments are limited to five (5) minutes per speaker, subject to adjustment 
by the Mayor. Matters brought before the Council which require an action may be 
either refelTed to staff or placed on a future Council agenda. 

No question shall be asked of a council member, city staff, or an audience member 
except through the presiding officer. No person shall use vulgar, profane, loud or 
boisterous language that intermpts a meeting. Any person who refuses to carry 
out instructions given by the presiding officer for the purpose of maintaining order 
may be guilty of an infraction and may result in removal from the meeting. 

City Council meetings are cablecast live on governn1ent access channel 26 and streamed at http:1/ne,varkca.pegsteam.com. 
Agendas are posted pursuant to Goveriunent Code Section 54954.2. Supporting materials are available al the Newark Library, in the 

City Clerk's office or at ww,;v.newark.org on the Monday preceding the meeting. For those persons requiring hearing assistance, or other special 
acco1n1nodations, please contact the City Clerk two days prior to the meeting. 



CITY OF NEWARK 

CITY COUNCIL 
_37_10_1_N_ewa_,k_B_o_u1_ev_ar_d,_N_e_wa_rk_, _cA_94_5_6o_-3_7_96_•_5_1_0-_57_B-_4_26_6_•_E-_m_a1_1: _c...;.ity_.c_ler_k@.;;._ne_w_a,_k._or,;;,g _--1 SPECIAL MEETING 

Minutes Thursday, February 4, 2016 
City Administration Building 
5:30 p.m. 
City Council Chambers 

A. ROLL CALL 

At 5:30 p.m. Mayor Nagy called the meeting to order. Council Members Hannon, 
Collazo, Bucci, and Vice Mayor Freitas were noted present. 

B. Study Session to discuss a new Civic Center including a library, police 
facility, and city hall. 

Dawn Merkes, Group 4 Architecture Research + Planning, Inc. presented the Civic 
Center Feasibility Study. They reduced the square footage ( sf) for each of the 
buildings to: City Hall 23,000 sf, Police Facility 24,000 sf, and the library 26,000 sf. 

Ms. Merkes provided an assessment of the existing facilities noting that they were 
functionally inefficient, did not meet current ADA nor life-safety requirements. 

The library has potential to remodel; however, the cost to retrofit the city 
administration facility would cost more than new construction. 

Assistant City Manager Grindall stated that the School Board has had discussions and 
may be interested in pursuing a concurrent project with the City. 

Ms. Merkes stated that based on feedback, the Silliman Center location has been 
removed. She reviewed the remaining Community Center and Civic Center sites. 

Site 1 A at the existing civic center (Newark Boulevard and Thornton Avenue), a new 
police facility and city hall would be located along Newark Boulevard. The existing 
library would remain and would be expanded. There would be unassigned space that 
could be used in the future. The estimated cost was $64,900,000. 

Site 1 B at the existing civic center, a new city hall and a new library would be located 
along Newark Boulevard. A new police facility would be built near the existing 
library. The existing library could be repurposed for another use. There would be 
unassigned space that could be used in the future. The estimated cost was $63,300,000 

Site 2 Community Park Site at Cedar A venue and Newark Boulevard. This location 
would consist of a new Police Facility, City Hall, Library, and daycare (5,000 sf). The 
Community Center would need to be removed. The estimated cost was $65,600,000 



City Council Minutes - Page 2 February 4, 2016 

In response to City Council questions, Ms. Merkes stated that repurposing the library 
would require cunent building code compliance. The civic center options could 
incorporate the Carl Pierce Memorial Tree and the City Hall stained glass. 

Council Member Hannon requested that staff research the cost of maintaining City 
Hall for the last year and the cost of defened maintenance. 

John Bradley stated that he was pleased that community input was taken into 
consideration. He stated that more detail on the economic considerations was needed. 

Daniel Roberts stated his admiration of the stained glass at City Hall. He stated that he 
preferred Sites 1 a and 1 b due to the location. 

Angela Akridge requested that when designing the details, they consider how children 
are going to access the park from the library. Most kids would cut through the parking 
lot for Site lB. 

Harry Knoep stated that he preferred Site lB and new construction brings benefits over 
a retrofit. He questioned how solid the estimates were for the buildings. 

Sara Roberts stated that she was shocked at the proposal to remove the library. She 
asked how long the new library would be used and if the current library would be 
repurposed. 

Assistant City Manager Grindall stated that the new library would be used for 50 years. 

Mayor Nagy stated that they could not determine right now if the cmrent library would 
be repurposed. It might be prudent to sell the land. 

Jack Dane stated that the Newark Unified School District has started the search for a new 
school superintendent. 

Adina Aguirre, Branch Librarian stated that she was excited that the city was looking 
at something to serve the needs and wants of Newark residents. In response to City Council 
questions, she stated that the library is loud, the roof leaks, and there is not enough 
space for programs or new teclmology. 

The City Council concurred to proceed further with the civic center feasibility study. 

The City Council concurred that they preferred Civic Center Site I B. 

The City Council concurred that they preferred to switch the placement of the library 
and the city hall buildings. They would like city hall closer to the street and the plaza 
moved between the buildings and expanded in size. 



City Council Minutes - Page 3 February 4, 2016 

Assistant City Manager stated that the cost model and the phasing plan for the 
preferred location would be refined. 

Council Member Hannon requested that staff research the estimated cost versus the 
final cost for some of the civic projects that were listed in the presentation. 

C. ADJOURNMENT 

At 7:06 p.m., Mayor Nagy adjourned the City Council meeting. 



CITY OF NEWARK 

CITY COUNCIL 
_3_7_10_1_N_ew_a_rk_B_o_u1e_v_a,_d,_N_ew_a_rk_, _cA_94_5_6o_-3_7_96_•_5_10_-5_7_8-_42_6_6_• _E-_m_a1_1: _c1..;.1y_.c1_e,_k@.c.-ne_w_a,_k._or.c..g --1 Sp E CIAL MEETING 

Minutes Thursday, February 11, 2016 
City Administration Building 
5:30 p.m. 
City Council Chambers 

A. ROLL CALL 

B. 

B.1 

Mayor Nagy called the meeting to order at 5 :36 p.m. Present were Council Members 
Hannon, Collazo, Bucci, and Vice Mayor Freitas. 

STUDY SESSION 

Study Session to review the Capital Improvement Plan section of the 
Biennial Budget for 2016-2018. 

Public Works Director Fajeau gave a presentation on the Capital Improvement Plan. 
He noted that the projects are categorized as mandatory, necessary, or desirable 
priority levels. Priority levels will be added to each project description in the CIP. The 
major funding sources are capital funds, gas tax funds, outside grants, and local fees. 

Council Member Bucci asked how often the slit seeder and lawn aerator tractors would 
be used? City Manager Becker stated that they would need to research the question. 

Council Member Bucci questioned the need to replace the three pool heaters at the 
Silliman Center before they failed. City Manager Becker recommended replacing 
them due to age and constant use. 

Council Member Collazo asked about the water issue at the comer of Magnolia Street 
and George Avenue. Public Works Director Fajeau stated that there are significant 
drainage issues which were last estimated to cost $2.5 million to reconstruct. The 
property owners would need to agree to participate in an area improvement district. 

Vice Mayor Freitas highlighted areas that he thought needed signage for public safety. 

Mayor Nagy mentioned sidewalks that he thought need light grinding to smooth out 
for wheelchair users. 

City Manager Becker recommended the following projects for funding: 

Priority 1 
All Ongoing Projects (40 projects) 
Silliman Center Pool Air Handler 
Silliman Center Light Control Board 
Silliman Center Phase 1 HV AC Replacements 



City Council Minutes - Page 2 

Citywide HV AC Replacements 
Silliman Center Pool Heater (3 replacements) 
Citywide Speed Survey 
Email Messaging Archive 

Priority 2 
Citywide Park Master Plan 
Old Town PDASpecific Plan and Development Strategy 
Silliman Center II Automatic Doors 
Lakeshore Park Landscape Restoration 
Police Department Annex Work Station Upgrades 
Large Computer Monitors For Plan Review 
Three New Vehicles For Building and Engineering Staff 
Trailer for Large Riding Mower 
Silliman Center II Variable Frequency Drive Unit 
Slit Seeder Tractor Implement 
Lawn Aerator Tractor Implement 

This results in 58 projects for $6,025,000 in funding.: 

February 11, 2016 

Steve Lawrence Newark Parks Foundation, requested $1 million for a high quality 
skate park and dog park. The Dumbarton Transit Oriented Development Plan calls for 
a small dog park, but that would not meet the needs of all dog owners. He suggested 
funding sources and said the Parks Master Plan should include locations and vision. 

Mayor Nagy stated that the Parks Master Plan was the first step to identify the 
recreational needs of the community. With limited outdoor space in new homes, he 
sees the need for new developments to provide space for dogs. 

Council Member Hannon stated he would like to see Newark's fees reviewed against 
surrounding cities fees. He wondered if the fees should be based on square footage 
instead of a flat fee. He suggested including this in the Parks Master Plan work. 

The City Council concurred that they would like the Park Master Plan project to 
proceed as soon as possible and to be completed within 6 months of funding approval. 

City Manager Becker stated that staff would do their best. 

City Manager Becker stated that in May the Capital Improvement Plan would be 
presented to the Planning Commission and the City Council would hold another study 
session for the Biennial Budget and Capital Improvement Plan. 

C. ADJOURNMENT 

At 7:14 p.m. Mayor Nagy adjourned the City Council meeting. 



CITY OF NEWARK 

CITY COUNCIL 
_3_1_10_1 _Ne_w_a,_k_Bo_u_lev_a_,d;_' N_e_wa_,k_. c_A_94_se_o_-3_79_6_• _s1_0-_s1_s_-4_2e_e_• _E-_m_ail_: _cit.:..y._c1e_,k..;;@;;..n_ew_a_,k_.o,,;:,g_--l City Administration Building 

7:30 p.m. 
City Council Chambers Minutes Thursday, February 11, 2016 

A. ROLL CALL 

B. 

B.1 

Mayor Nagy called the meeting to order at 7:34 p.m. Present were Council Members 
Hannon, Collazo, Bucci, and Vice Mayor Freitas. 

MINUTES 

Approval of Minutes of the special and regular City Council meetings of 
Thursday, January 28, 2016. 

Moved by Council Member Collazo, seconded by Council Member Bucci to approve 
the minutes of the special and regular City Council meetings. The motion passed, 5 
AYES. 

C. PRESENTATIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS 

C.1 Proclaiming February Teen Dating Violence Awareness and Prevention 
Month. 

Mayor Nagy presented the proclamation to Yasi Safinya-Davies, Psy.D. - Executive 
Director of Safe Alternatives to Violent Environments (SA VE). 

D. WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS 

D.1 Planning Commission referral of a minor conditional use permit, to 
establish a large family day care home at 36632 Port Anchorwood Place. 

City Manager Becker stated that Sonia Landa submitted an application for a minor 
conditional use permit to establish a large family day care home (a facility for up to 14 
children) at 36632 Port Anchorwood Place. 

The Zoning Administrator approved the application and the Planning Commission 
did not review this "review optional" item. 

The City Council concuned with the decision of the Zoning Administrator. 

D.2 Planning Commission referral of a minor conditional use permit, to 
establish a large family day care home at 36353 Shorehaven Place. 



City Council Minutes - Page 2 February 11, 2016 

City Manager Becker stated that Stacy Kelly has submitted an application for a minor 
conditional use permit to establish a large family day care home (a facility for up to 14 
children) at 36353 Shorehaven Place. 

The Zoning Administrator approved the application and the Planning Commission 
did not review this "review optional" item. 

The City Council concuned with the decision of the Zoning Administrator. 

D.3 Planning Commission referral of a minor conditional use permit, to 
establish a large family day care home at 36475 Christine Street. 

City Manager Becker stated that Alicia Reed submitted an application for a minor 
conditional use permit to establish a large family day care home (a facility for up to 14 
children) at 36475 Christine Street. 

The Zoning Administrator approved the application and the Planning Commission 
did not review this "review optional" item. 

The City Council concurred with the decision of the Zoning Administrator. 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

F. CITY MANAGER REPORTS 

Council Member Bucci moved, Council Member Collazo seconded, to approve 
Consent Calendar Items F.l through F.3, that the resolutions be numbered 
consecutively, and that reading of the titles suffice for adoption of the resolutions. 
The motion passed, 5 A YES. 

CONSENT 

F.1 Approval of the allocation of anticipated Community Development Block 
Grant jurisdiction improvement project funds for Fiscal Year 2016-2017. 

MOTION APPROVED 

F.2 Approval to reclassify the Information Systems Manager position to 
Senior Information Systems Manager by amending the Employee 



City Council Minutes - Page 3 February 11, 2016 

Classification Plan, the Compensation and Benefit Plan for City Officials 
and the Management, Supervisory, and Professional Employee Group 
and the 2014-2016 Biennial Budget to add the position and funding for 
the position of Senior Information Systems Manager and to delete the 
position and funding of Information Systems Manager. 

RESOLUTION NO. 10456-10458 

F.3 Amendment of the 2014-2016 Biennial Budget and Capital Improvement 
Plan for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 for General Revisions. 

RESOLUTION NO. 10459 

NONCONSENT 

F.4 Authorization for the Mayor to sign a Contractual Services Agreement 
with RRM Design Group, to complete a Zoning Ordinance update and 
amending the 2014-2016 Biennial Budget. RESOLUTION NO. 10460 

CONTRACT NO. 16007 

Assistant City Manager Grindall proposed a comprehensive "overhaul" of the Zoning 
Ordinance which would result in a more effective document. The existing Zoning 
Ordinance was adopted in 1965 and has been amended numerous times over the years. 
It has not received a comprehensive review since the original adoption. 

Assistant City Manager Grindall recommended the RRM Design Group for a not-to
exceed cost of$197,560. He expected the project to take 8 months to complete. 

Council Member Hannon requested that outside codes referenced in the new Zoning 
Ordinance be incorporated, avoid ambiguity in the wording and use tables where 
appropriate. 

Mayor Nagy requested that businesses be notified in addition to property owners of 
any changes that might impact them. 

Council Member Hannon moved, Vice Mayor Freitas seconded to by resolution, 
authorize the Mayor to sign a Contractual Services Agreement with RRM Design 
Group to complete a Zoning Ordinance Update and amending the 2014-2016 Biennial 
Budget. The motion passed, 5 A YES. 

F.5 Status Report on emergency expenditure for replacement of heater for 
Lazy River at Silliman Activity and Family Aquatic Center. 



City Council Minutes - Page 4 February 11, 2016 

City Manager Becker stated that the heater has been ordered from the manufacturer, 
Lochinvar, and the vendor (Knorr Systems) estimates the installation to occur the week of 
February 15, 2016. 

G. CITY ATTORNEY REPORTS 

H. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

I. CITY COUNCIL MATTERS 

There were no City Council comments. 

J. CITY COUNCIL ACTING AS THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

K. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

Angela Akridge Newark Parks Foundation, stated that a skate park and a dog park will 
provide complete parks that meet the needs of a variety of groups and ages. She stated 
that some residents travel to other cities to use their recreational amenities. 

Mayor Nagy stated that the City Council discussed a Parks Master Plan at the previous 
study session and that funding that will grow in the next two years with new 
development. 

Carol Graham stated that she has used the dog parks in Alameda and Fremont because 
her condominium does not have space for her dogs to run. She noted that one third of 
all households own a dog. She suggested placing a skate and dog park at the Silliman 
Center. 

Beju Siman stated that his son loves to skateboard.. They would like a skate park in 
Newark. He previously lived in Manhattan and the skate park there served as a way to 
connect with others. 

Wendy Koshnevus stated that she cannot let her dog roam their condominium complex 
and there is nowhere in Newark for her dog to run free .. A Newark dog park would be 
a way for people to meet their neighbors and a way for their dogs to get exercise. 

Theresa and her son Milo stated that teenagers need a place to gather. She added that 
there is a safety concern with skating on the street. 



City Council Minutes - Page 5 February 11, 2016 

Aisha Weber with her son Robert stated that skating helps her son. He does not play 
video games inside; he goes out with his friends. Robert stated that skateboarding is 
the best thing he has ever done. 

Nick stated that teenagers need a park for their needs. It also gives young people, not 
interested in sports, a location to build relationships and community. 

Ken Herman stated that he would like the Parks Master Plan to also consider bicyclists. 
The streets are not safe for bicyclists. He thought they would only need to move dirt 
around and that volunteers could help. 

Tony Panatel stated that he had a skate shop in Fremont for 7 years and helped with the 
design of the Fremont skate park. He thought the area near the fire station and the 
Silliman Center would be the ideal location. 

Young woman stated that she would love a dog park in Newark. Dogs are emotional 
caretakers of citizens. Dog parks provide a sense of community. It is easier to strike 
up a conversation at a dog park than a coffee shop. 

Eric Royce stated that he liked the idea of a skate and dog park in Newark. Some 
skatepark venues can be used as competition events. 

Fred Arredondo shared his thoughts on the civic center project and provided a handout 
on High Performance (Green) Commercial Buildings. He stated that deferred 
maintenance was not a reason to replace a building and that the City Council should 
take an arm length perspective when speaking to the consultants. 

Jordan Richter stated that he runs skateboarding camps in the City of Fremont and 
other cities. The camps are mostly full and they bring kids of all different backgrounds 
together. They have fun and develop camaraderie. 

Mayor Nagy thanked the speakers and stated the Park Master Plan was a good start. 

Council Member Bucci encouraged the speakers to participate in the Park Master Plan 
process. 

In response to an audience member, Council Member Hannon stated that the City 
could start a Facebook page for the Park Master Plan. 

L. APPROPRIATIONS 

Approval of Audited Demands for the City Council meeting of February 
11, 2016. MOTION APPROVED 

City Clerk Hanington read the Register of Audited Demands: Check numbers 106839 
to 106937. 



City Council Minutes - Page 6 February 11, 2016 

Council Member Freitas moved, Council Member Collazo seconded, to approve the 
Register of Audited Demands. The motion passed, 5 A YES. 

M. CLOSED SESSION 

M.1 Closed session for conference with Legal Counsel pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9{b), Anticipated Litigation: One case -
from Human Resources Director Abe and City Attorney Benoun. 

At 8:47 p.m. the City Council recessed to a closed session. 

At 8:56 p.m. the City Council convened in closed session. 

At 9:18 p.m. the City Council reconvened in open session with all Council Members 
present. 

N. ADJOURNMENT 

At 9: 18 p.m. Mayor Nagy adjourned the City Council meeting. 



E.1 Hearing to consider Gateway Station West, a 589-unit residential project within the 
Dumbarton Transit Oriented Development Specific Plan area located along Willow 
Street at the western edge of the City. The City Council will consider: (1) by 
resolution, adopting a Supplemental Environmental Impact Report to the 
Environmental Impact Report (State Clearinghouse No. 2010042012) for the 
Dumbarton Transit Oriented Development; (2) by introduction of an ordinance, 
approving a rezoning for an approximately 41-acre area (APNs: 537-852-9, 
537-852-10 and 537-852-11) from MT-1 (High Technology Park District) to 
MDR-FBC (Medium Density Residential - Form Based Codes) and HDR-FBC (High 
Density Residential - Form Based Codes); (3) by resolution, approving a planned 
unit development and a conditional use permit; (4) by resolution, approving, 
Vesting Tentative Map 8099, to construct approximately 589 residential units; (5) 
by motion, approving an Architectural and Site Plan Review; and (6) by resolution, 
authorizing the Mayor to sign a Community Financing Agreement with Dumbarton 
Area 2, LLC - from Assistant City Manager Grindall. 

(RESOLUTIONS- 4)(1NTRODUCTION OF ORDINANCE)(MOTION-1) 

Background/Discussion - In collaboration with the landowners, the City of Newark began a 
planning effort in the Fall of 2007 to explore potential development around the planned Newark 
Dumbarton Rail Station. The Project Area includes approximately 205 acres of land that has 
previously contained various industiial, manufacturing, and chemical processing land uses since 
the early twentieth century. Most of the land is currently vacant. Integral Communities has now 
submitted a proposed Vesting Tentative Map and building plans for 589 residential units to be 
located on approximately 41 acres along Willow Street at the western edge of the City. 

This 589-unit residential project is consistent with the Specific Plan's vision of a vibrant 
pedestrian oriented community. The project will provide impmiant amenities, including a segment 
of bay-side trail that will be eligible for Bay Trail designation and a small, neighborhood dog park. 
The cost of these amenities is to be provided by the developer. Although a total of 15.75 acres of 
wetlands are on-site, the project will only affect a total of 6.1 acres of these wetlands; and the 
applicant will purchase sufficient qualifying wetland mitigation credits for this impact. The 
applicant will also permanently preserve 3.67 acres of wetlands on-site. Additionally, as a separate 
voluntary measure, that is not a part of this project, the applicant has donated 6 acres that includes 
5.98 acre of wetlands to a non-profit conservation organization. 

It is proposed to rezone a portion of the Dumbarton Transit Oriented Development to be consistent 
with the Specific Plan. RZ-14-48 is a rezoning of an approximately 41-acre area that is generally 
located on the west side of Willow Street. The rezoning would be from MT-I (High Technology 
Park District) to MDR-FBC (Medium Density Residential - Form Based Codes) and HDR-FBC 
(High Density Residential - Fann Based Codes) which is consistent with the Specific Plan. 

In addition to providing amenities, the project would also provide significant impact fee revenue 
including: $16,718,800 in Affordable Housing fees; $4,393,940 in Park fees; $1,195,641 in Public 
Safety fees; $1,051,110 in Community Services/Facilities fees; and $380,401 in Transportation 

Report 
City Council Meeting 

Thursday 
February 25, 2016 

E.1 



Impact fees. The project will also pay an Art in Public Places fee of $159,030 and a $1,472,500 
Fiscal Impact fee which is envisioned to support the Central Avenue Railroad Overcrossing 
project. Collectively, the estimated total of impact fee revenue is $25,371,422. The project will 
also pay $4,053,000 in school fees to the Newark Unified School District. 

Connnunity Financing Agreement 
The Dumbarton TOD Specific Plan contains critical elements necessary to implement the Plan. To 
ensure that the City's fiscal health is sustained, developers are required to contribute to the 
provision of public improvements and city services. As such, the applicant has agreed to enter into 
the attached Community Financing Agreement. Under the terms of the agreement, a contribution 
of $2,500 per dwelling unit is required. 

The Architectural and Site Plan Review 
Gateway Station West features six different home types providing a community diverse in scale, 
streetscape and architectural character. Several coordinated styles such as Classic Agrarian, 
Contemporary Agrarian, Farmhouse and Craftsman, are proposed to provide architectural variety 
across the 41-acre site. The homes are designed for flexibility, with ground floor living spaces or 
optional dens or recreation rooms. In addition to the Bay-Side Trail, a one acre park and several 
smaller parks are scattered throughout the community. Landscaped pedestrian paseos between 
buildings and landscaped water bio-treatment and retention areas, which are available for 
recreation when not inundated, are linked with walkways resulting in a walkable community. 

The residential home types are summarized below: 

Single Family Homes 

132 Traditional front-loaded single family detached homes - These three-story detached homes 
feature minimum lot sizes that are 35 feet wide by 50 feet in depth and offer three floor plans 
ranging from 2,299 square feet to 2,541 square feet. These plans offer up to 4 bedrooms and 3.5 
bathrooms and will be available in all three Farmhouse, Craftsman, and Agrarian architectural 
styles. 

119 Rear-loaded single family detached homes - These three-story detached homes feature 
landscaped paseos in the front and have lots that are 35 feet wide by 55 feet in depth. Three floor 
plans are offered, ranging from 2,491 square feet to 2,710 square feet. These plans offer up to 
six bedrooms and 3.5 bathrooms and will be available in the Farmhouse and Craftsman 
architectural styles. 

70 Motor court cluster single family detached homes - These three-story detached homes offer 
four floor plans ranging from 1,541 square feet to 2,159 square feet. These plans offer up to 4 
bedrooms and 3 bathrooms and will be available in the Farmhouse and Craftsman architectural 
styles. 

Town Homes: 

Report 
City Council Meeting 

Thursday 
February 25, 2016 

E.1 



98 "Loft Split" traditional row town homes - These tln·ee-story town homes offer four distinct 
floor plans ranging from 1,486 square feet to 2,089 square feet within 6-plex and 7-plex building 
configurations. These plans offer up to 4 bedrooms and 3.5 bathrooms and will be available in 
the Contemporary Agrarian and Classic Agrarian architectural styles. 

80 "P9 Cluster" motor court style town homes - These three-story town homes offer five distinct 
floor plans ranging from 1,582 square feet to 2,193 square feet and up to 4 bedrooms and 3 
bathrooms designed in a Classic Agrarian style. 

90 "Flats style" town homes - These three-story buildings offer four distinct floor plans ranging 
from 1,445 square feet to 2,193 square feet and up to 3 bedrooms and 3.5 bathrooms. This 
product offers all living space on a single floor or two floors. The buildings are arranged in a 6-
plex designed in the Contemporary Agrarian style. 

The Supplemental Environmental Impact Report (SEIR) 
The draft SEIR for this project was prepared by Helix Environmental Planning and then reviewed 
by City staff. Of the issues analyzed, the only new potentially significant impacts resulting from 
this project would include impacts related to air quality, biological resources, cultural resources, 
geology and soils, hazards and hazardous materials, hydrology/water quality, noise, and 
transportation/traffic, and hazardous materials. The SEIR concludes that all of the project's 
potentially significant impacts would be mitigated to a less than significant level by mitigation 
measures imposed therein, except for discrete impacts involving off-site hazardous materials and 
transportation and traffic. 

Table S-1, Summary of Significant Effects, discusses potentially significant impacts and notes 
mitigation measures that have already been accounted for in the original Dumbarton TOD EIR, as 
well as new, project-specific mitigation measures developed for Gateway Station West. The 
following is a synopsis of the new mitigation measures. 

Air Quality 
Impact: Construction-period project em1ss10ns would exceed the Bay Area Air Quality 
Management District's (BAAQMD) significance threshold for NOx. Mitigation Measure: Prior 
to issuance of any Grading Permit, the Public Works Director and the Building Official shall 
confirm that the Grading Plan, Building Plans, and specifications stipulate that all diesel-powered 
off-road equipment used during the grading phase shall meet Tier 4 final off-road emission 
standards. This mitigation measure reduces all of the project's air quality impacts to a less than 
significant level. 

Biological Resources 
Impact: Potentially significant impacts may occur to habitats regulated by the California 
Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) pursuant to Section 1600 et seq. of the California Fish 
and Game Code. Mitigation Measure: A Streambed Alteration Agreement shall be obtained for 
impacts to habitats regulated by CDFW pursuant to section 1600 et seq. of the California Fish and 
Game Code. 

Impact: In order to adequately implement the on-site open space preserve area, a management 
plan must be developed to monitor the progress of any on-site wetland mitigation and associated 

Report 
City Council Meeting 

Thursday 
February 25, 2016 

E.1 



biological values. Mitigation Measure: The open space area shall be set aside in perpetuity, either 
through deed restrictions or conservation easements. Because the open space area contains waters 
under jurisdiction of the United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) and Regional Water 
Quality Control Board (RWQCB), and potentially suitable habitat for species regulated by the 
CDFW, the plan shall be developed in coordination with these agencies. The mitigation measures 
proposed in the SEIR reduce all of the project's impacts on biological resources to a less than 
significant level. 

Cultural Resources 
Although there are no known culturally significant resources on site and their discovery is 
unlikely, there is always the potential for the existence of buried archaeological materials within 
the project area and associated off-site improvements. If previously unidentified resources are 
discovered dming construction, these impacts could be significant. The mitigation measures 
proposed in the SEIR reduce all of the project's impacts on cultural resources to a less than 
significant level. 

Geology and Soils 
Impact: Potentially significant geologic hazards associated with seismic ground shaking, 
liquefaction and related effects, manufactured slope instability, geologic/soil instability, shallow 
bedrock groundwater, and expansive soils may be associated with the project. Mitigation 
Measure: A site-specific geotechnical investigation shall be conducted by a qualified engineer or 
engineering geologist to verify that the final project plans and/or construction operations 
incorporate applicable regulatory/industry requirements, recommendations contained within the 
project geotechnical investigations, plan review, and field observations/testing. This mitigation 
measure reduces all of the project's impacts on geology and soils to a less than significant level. 

Hazardous Materials 
Impact: Proposed project site development could result in disturbances of soils or demolition of 
structures that could potentially release contaminants, as well as impacting existing groundwater 
monitoring wells (for an off-site remediation effort). Mitigation Measure 1: A qualified 
hazardous materials specialist shall review final project grading and development plans prior to 
approval to verify related conditions and assumptions in the project Phase I and Phase II 
Environmental Site Assessments or to identify modified and/or additional requirements. 
Mitigation Measure 2: After completion of final project grading and development plans, but prior 
to issuance of grading or building permits, a Hazardous Materials Remediation Plan (HMRP) shall 
be prepared by a qualified hazardous materials specialist. Mitigation Measure 3: All project 
dewatering operations, subsurface activities related to on-site remediation ofliquefaction hazards 
and other pertinent activities, shall confirm with application related requirements in the ACWD 
Groundwater Protection Act. These mitigation measures reduce all of the project's impacts 
relating to hazards and hazardous materials to a less than significant level except for impacts 
relating to offsite hazardous materials outside the control of the project applicant. 

Hydrology/Water Quality 
Prior to mitigation, implementation of the proposed project would result in significant potential 
impacts to local groundwater resources associated with the use of subsurface measures to address 
identified liquefaction hazards ( e.g., the installation of subdrains or piles, and implementation of 

Report 
City Council Meeting 

Thursday 
February 25, 2016 

E.1 



efforts such as soil vibrocompaction, grouting and deep mixing), as well as water quality concerns 
related to the discharge of extracted groundwater (if required). Mitigation Measure 1: All project 
dewatering operations, subsurface activities related to on-site remediation of liquefaction hazards 
( e.g., the installation of subdrains or piles, and implementation of efforts such as soil 
vibrocompaction, grouting and deep mixing), and other pertinent activities, shall conform with 
applicable related requirements in the ACWD Groundwater Protection Act (Ordinance No. 2010 
01). Specifically, the project applicant (or a designated representative of the applicant) shall 
provide written verification to the City that all applicable requirements related to dewatering 
operations and subsurface activities (as described) have been implemented to the satisfaction of 
the ACWD. Mitigation Measure 2: All project-related groundwater extraction disposal operations 
shall conform to applicable waste discharge requirements issued by the RWQCB for disposal of 
extracted groundwater (if such waste discharge requirements are issued by the RWQCB). 
Specifically, the project applicant ( or a designated representative of the applicant) shall consult 
with the RWQCB prior to implementing on-site dewatering activities to determine if such waste 
discharge requirements are required, and shall provide written ve1ification to the City that either: 
(1) no waste discharge requirements related to project dewatering are required by the RWQCB; or 
(2) all applicable requirements related to dewatering operations have been implemented to the 
satisfaction of the RWQCB. These mitigation measures reduce all of the project's impacts related 
to hydrology and water quality to a less than significant level. 

Noise 
Impact: Location of ground-mounted heating, ventilation and air conditioning equipment 
(HV AC) within 25 feet of adjacent residential property lines could result in a potentially 
significant direct impact. Additionally, implementation of the proposed project would result in 
cumulative 2035 traffic noise levels along Enterprise Drive between Hickory Street and Willow 
Street contributing to a significant cumulative impact at a representative distance of75 feet from 
the roadway. Mitigation Measure 1: For residences located within 25 feet of ground-mounted 
HV AC equipment, attenuation of exterior HV AC noise levels to 45A weighted decibels equivalent 
sound levels shall be ensured prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy. Mitigation Measure 
2: Prior to the issuance of building permits, the project applicant shall coordinate with the City's 
Public Works Director to change the posted speed limit along Enterprise Drive (between Hickory 
Street and Willow Street) to 25 mph. Mitigation Measure 3: Prior to the approval of building 
permits for residences along Enterprise Drive between Hickory Street and Willow Street, a 
site-specific acoustic analysis shall be conducted to ensure exterior and interior sound levels are 
equal to or less than the applicable allowable limits. These mitigation measures reduce all of the 
project's impacts on noise to a less than significant level. 

Tra11sportatio11/Traffic 
hnpact: The proposed project would increase traffic levels and would have a direct significant 
impact on the level of service at four intersections within the study area for the existing plus 
project condition, and would have a significant impact on the level of service at 10 future 2035 
plus project (cumulative) scenarios. 

The proposed mitigation measures will reduce all of the project's potentially significant impacts 

Report 
City Council Meeting 

Thursday 
February 25, 2016 

E.1 



on transportation and traffic to a less than significant level except for direct impacts at the Cedar 
Boulevard/Thornton Avenue, and cumulative impacts on SR 84 Eastbound Ramps/Thornton 
Avenue, Cherry Street/Thornton Avenue, Newark Boulevard/Thornton Avenue, Cedar 
Boulevard/Thornton Avenue, and Cherry Street/Central Avenue. No feasible mitigation is 
available for these intersections, and therefore the project's impacts to the same will be significant 
and unavoidable. 

The review period for the SEIR ended on September 16, 2015. During the review period, the City 
received four comment letters from public agencies and the general public. Letters were received 
from the California Department of Transportation, the Alameda County Water District, Cargill, 
Inc., and Ashland., Inc. These letters, and the City's full and complete responses to the same, are 
part of the attached Final SEIR. 

The attached Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations document key findings, 
including the City's independent determination that all potential significant impacts other than 
impacts relating to offsite hazardous materials and transportation and traffic can and will be 
mitigated to a less than significant level, and list project benefits that override the significant and 
unavoidable impacts relating to offsite hazardous materials and transportation and traffic 
described in the SEIR, allowing approval of the project despite the existence of these impacts. 

Attachments 

Update - At its meeting of February 2, 2016, the Planning Commission approved Resolutions 
1918, 1919 and 1920 and by motion recommended that the City Council approve TM-14-47, 
Vesting Tentative Map 8099 and by motion approved ASR-14-51, an Architectural and Site Plan 
Review. 

Action - It is recommended that the City Council hold a public hearing and consider whether to: 
( 1) Adopt a resolution certifying a Supplemental Environmental Impact Report for a zoning 
amendment and other entitlements allowing development of a total of 589 single- and multi-family 
residential units (Gateway Station West) on approximately 41 acres (Assessor Parcel No. 
537-0852-009; 537-0852-010; and 537-0852-011) and approximately 13.5 acres of designated 
open space with the Dumbarton Transit Oriented Development Specific Plan; (2) Introduce an 
ordinance amending Title 17 of the Newark Municipal Code being the City of Newark Zoning 
Ordinance by rezoning approximately 41 acres (APN's: 537-852-9; 537-852-10; 537-852-11) 
from MT-I (High-Technology Park Dis!lict) to MDR-FBC (Medium Density Residential-Form 
Based Codes) and HDR-FBC (High Density Residential - Form Based Codes; (3) By resolution, 
approve P-14-49, a planned unit development and U-14-50, a conditional use permit, for a 
589-unit residential project (Gateway Station West) located within the Dumbarton Transit 
Oriented Development Specific Plan area at the western edge of the City of Newark; (4) Adopt a 
resolution approving TM-14-47, Vesting Tentative Map 8099, to construct approximately 589 
residential units; (5) By motion, approve ASR-14-51, an Architectural and Site Plan Review; and 
( 6) By resolution, authorize the Mayor to sign a Community Financing Agreement with 
Dumbarton Area 2, LLC. 

Report 
City Council Meeting 

Thursday 
February 25, 2016 

E.1 



RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
NEWARK CERTIFYING A SUPPLEMENTAL 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT FOR A ZONING 
AMENDMENT AND OTHER ENTITLEMENTS ALLOWING 
DEVELOPMENT OF A TOTAL OF 589 SINGLE- AND MULTI
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL UNITS (GATEWAY STATION WEST) 
ON APPROXIMATELY 41 ACRES (ASSESSOR PARCEL NO. 
537-0852-009; 537-0852-010; AND 537-0852-011) AND 
APPROXIMATELY 13.5 ACRES OF DESIGNATED OPEN 
SPACE WITHIN THE DUMBARTON TRANSIT ORIENTED 
DEVELOPMENT SPECIFIC PLAN 

WHEREAS, the City of Newark caused an Environmental Impact Report (State 
Clearinghouse No. 2010042012) to be prepared to assess the potential environmental impacts of 
the proposed Dumbarton Transit Oriented Development Specific Plan, and 

WHEREAS, the Environmental Impact Report consists of a Draft Environmental Impact 
Report document and a Final Environmental Impact Repmt document as well as the technical 
appendices, and all comments received by the City of Newark regarding the Draft Environmental 
Impact Repo1t during the mandatory public review period and responses to those comments; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing on August 23, 
2011, and recommended that the City Council certify the Environmental hnpact Report (State 
Clearinghouse Number 2010042012) for the Dumbarton Transit Oriented Development Specific 
Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council held a duly noticed public hearing on September 8, 2011, 
and certified the Environmental Impact Repmt (State Clearinghouse Number 2010042012) for the 
Dumbarton Transit Oriented Development Specific Plan after finding it complete and adequate 
pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); and 

WHEREAS, the Gateway Station West Project ("Project"), which is located within the 
Dumbarton Transit Oriented Development Specific Plan, consists of the construction of 321 
single family units and 268 multi-family units on approximately 41 acres (APN No.'s 537-0852-
009; 537-0852-010; and 537-0852-011) and approximately 13.5 acres of designated Open Space; 
and 

WHEREAS, the entitlements requested by the applicant include Vesting Tentative Map 
8099 (TM-14-47), an amendment to Title 17 (Zoning) of the Newark Municipal Code and the 
Official Zoning Map (RZ-14-48), a planned development permit, conditional use permit, and an 
Architectural and Site Plan Review; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the requirements of the CEQA, a Supplemental Environmental 
Impact Report (SEIR) has been prepared for the Project (State Clearinghouse Number 
2014082022), pursuant to Sections 15163 and 15168(c) of the State CEQA Guidelines, to analyze 
and mitigate the Project's potentially significant environmental impacts; and 



WHEREAS, through the SEIR, it has been determined that the Project's potentially 
significant environmental impacts specifically relate to impacts associated with air quality, 
biological resources, cultural resources, geology and soils, hazards and hazardous materials, 
hydrology/water quality, noise, and transportation/traffic; and 

WHEREAS, the City has prepared Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding 
Considerations that address the project's significant impacts and represent the City's independent 
judgment regarding the same. The Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations 
attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and are hereby incorporated herein by reference, and; 

WHEREAS, with the exception of certain impacts involving hazardous materials and 
transportation/traffic, pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines Sections 15091(a)(l) and 15092(b), the 
City finds that these potentially significant impacts can be mitigated to less than significant as 
shown in Table S-1, Summa,y of Sign/ficant Effects, of the SEIR and Section IV(A) of the 
Findings of Fact, and; 

WHEREAS, the City has implemented all feasible mitigation measures for all potentially 
significant impacts, but as stated in Section IV(B) of the Findings of Fact, even after the 
implementation of all feasible mitigation measures, certain impacts involving hazardous materials 
and transportation/traffic will remain significant and unavoidable. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to PRC Section 2108l(b) and State CEQA Guidelines Section 
15093, the City has balanced the benefits of the Project against its significant and unavoidable 
adverse impacts related to hazardous materials and transportation/traffic, and for the specific 
overriding economic, legal, social, technological, and/or other benefits associated with the 
proposed Project stated in the City's Statement of Overriding Considerations (Section V of the 
attached Findings of Fact), the City finds and declares that the Project's benefits outweigh its 
significant and unavoidable impacts. 

WHEREAS, a Notice of Preparation (NOP), was along with copies of the Project files, 
sent to local agencies concerned with the Project and then posted with the Office of the Alameda 
County Clerk on August 6, 2014, and a 45 -day public review period for the SEIR was established 
beginning on August 3, 2015 and copies of the SEIR were transmitted to the State Clearinghouse 
(SCH#2014-08-2022); and 

WHEREAS, four comment letters from public agencies and the general public: the 
California Department of Transpmiation, the Alameda County Water District, Cargill, Inc. and 
Ashland, Inc., have been received; and 

WHEREAS, on February 2, 2016, the Planning Commission of the City of Newark 
conducted a duly noticed public hearing to consider the SEIR for the proposed Project, considered 
all public testimony, written and oral, presented at the public heating, and received and 
considered the w1itten information and recommendation of the staff report for the February 2, 
2016 meeting related to the proposed Project, and; 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Newark recommended that the City 
Council certify the SEIR for Vesting Tentative Map 8099 (TM-14-47), the amendment to Title 17 
(Zoning) of the Newark Municipal Code and the Official Zoning Map (RZ-14-48), and the 

Resolution No. 2 



associated planned development permit, conditional use permit, and Architectural and Site Plan 
Review, and; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council finds and resolves the following: 

I. The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are hereby incorporated into these 
findings by this reference. 

2. The SEIR was released for public review and, with the exception of certain 
impacts involving hazardous materials and transpmiation/traffic, mitigation measures contained 
within the same would avoid the effects or mitigate the effects to a point where clearly no 
significant effect on the environment would occur. 

3. The City Council considered and evaluated all written and oral staff reports and 
comments received from persons who have reviewed the SEIR, the comments submitted on the 
SEIR, the responses to those comments, the public testimony and such other matters as are 
reflected in the record of the public hearing on the Project and the SEIR. 

4. The SEIR, all documents referenced in the same, and the record of proceedings on 
which the Planning Commission's decision is based are located in the Community Development 
Department at City Hall for the City of Newark, located at 37101 Newark Blvd, California, and is 
available for public review. 

5. The City Council hereby makes, adopts, and incorporates herein as its "findings of 
fact" regarding the potential environmental impacts of the Project, the analysis and conclusions 
set fo1ih in the SEIR (including, without limitation, the mitigation measures therein set fmih) and 
in the Findings Of Fact And Statement Of Overriding Considerations Regarding the Supplemental 
Environmental Impact Report for the Gateway Station West Project (SCH #2014082022), 
attached hereto as Exhibit "A". 

6. The City Council finds that for each of the significant impacts which are subject to 
a finding under PRC Section 21081(a)(3), that each of the social, economic, and environmental 
benefits of the Project, independent of the other benefits, as stated in the attached Statement of 
Overriding Considerations (Section V of the Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding 
Considerations), outweigh the potential significant and unavoidable adverse impacts -
specifically, those impacts involving hazards and transportation/traffic identified in Section IV(B) 
of the attached Findings of Fact and - and render acceptable each and every one of the Project's 
significant and unavoidable adverse environmental impacts. 

7. The City Council hereby adopts the Findings Of Fact And Statement Of 
Overriding Considerations attached hereto as Exhibit A pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Sections 
15091 tlu·ough 15093 and 15126.6 

8. A Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program ("MMRP") for the Project has 
been prepared in accordance with Section 21081.6 of CEQA, and the Planning Conm1ission 
recommends that the City Council adopt the MMRP, which is attached to the FSEIR (Volume 1, 
Section E) and incorporated herein by reference. 

Resolution No. 3 



9. Based on the evidence and oral and written testimony presented at public hearings, 
and based on all the information contained in the Community Development Department's files on 
the Project, including, but not limited to, the SEIR, the Findings of Fact and Statement of 
Overriding Considerations, and the City's staff report, the City Council finds that: 

a. The SEIR was prepared in compliance with CEQA and State CEQA 
guidelines; 

b. The City Council has reviewed and considered the information contained in 
the SEIR prior to approving the Project; 

c. The SEIR adequately describes the Project, its environmental impacts, 
reasonable alternatives and appropriate mitigation measures; 

d. The SEIR reflects the independent judgment and analysis of the City. 

10. Based upon all of the evidence presented and the above findings, City Council of 
the City of Newark hereby certifies the Supplemental Environmental Impact Report for the 
Project with Enata and Responses to Comments and adopt the attached (a) Findings of Fact and 
Statement of Overriding Considerations, and (b) the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting 
Program. 

R .. esolution No. 4 



Exhibit A 

GATEWAY STATION WEST 

SUPPLEMENTAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT 
(State Clearinghouse No. 2014082022) 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND 
STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

Prepared By: 
HELIX Environmental Planning, Inc. 

11 Natoma Street, Suite 155 
Folsom, CA 95630 

December 2015 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INTRODUCTION .............................................................................................................. I 

A. Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations ............................... 1 
B. Environmental Review Process .............................................................................. 3 
C. CEQA Finding oflndependent Judgement.. ........................................................... 3 
D. Administrative Record ............................................................................................ 4 
E. Custodian and Location of Records ........................................................................ 4 

II. PROJECT SUMMARY ...................................................................................................... 5 

A. Project Location ...................................................................................................... 5 
B. Project Background ................................................................................................. 5 
C. Project Description .................................................................................................. 5 

III. SUMMARY OF IMPACTS ............................................................................................... 7 

IV. FINDINGS REGARDING IMPACTS ............................................................................... 8 

A. Potential Environmental Impacts that will be Mitigated to Below a Level of 
Significance ............................................................................................................. 8 
I. Air Quality ........................................................................................................ 8 
2. Biological Resources ...................................................................................... 10 
3. Cultural Resources .......................................................................................... 25 
4. Geology ........................................................................................................... 26 
5. Hazards and Hazardous Material .................................................................... 27 
6. Hydrology and Water Quality ......................................................................... 31 
7. Noise ............................................................................................................... 32 
8. Transportation ................................................................................................. 35 

B. Potential Environmental Impacts Determined to be Significant and 
Unavoidable After Mitigation ............................................................................... 38 
I. Hazardous Materials ....................................................................................... 38 
2. Transportation and Traffic .............................................................................. 39 

C. Alternatives to the Proposed Project.. ................................................................... 42 
1. No Project/No Build Alternative .................................................................... 42 
2. No Project/Existing Specific Plan Alternative ................................................ 44 
3. Reduced Project Alternative ........................................................................... 46 
4. Wetland Avoidance Alternative ...................................................................... 48 

V. STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS ............................................... 51 

A. Background ........................................................................................................... 51 
B. Statement of Overriding Considerations ............................................................... 52 
C. Overriding Benefits ............................................................................................... 52 

GATEWAY STATION WESTSE/R 

FINDINGS OF FACT ANO STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

I 

DECEMBER 20] 5 



I. INTRODUCTION 

The following Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations are made for the 
Gateway Station West Project (project) in the City of Newark (City). The environmental effects 
of the project are addressed in the Draft and Final Supplemental Environmental Impact Reports 
(SEIR), State Clearinghouse (SCH) No. 2014082022 dated August and December 2015, 
respectively, which are incorporated by reference herein. 

A. Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations 

The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), Public Resources Code (PRC) Section 
21081, and the State CEQA Guidelines, 14 California Code of Regulations. Section 15091 
( collectively, CEQA) require that a public agency consider the environmental impacts of a 
project before a project is approved and make specific findings. State CEQA Guidelines Section 
15091 provides: 

(a) No public agency shall approve or carry out a project for which an EIR has been certified 
which identifies one or more significant environmental effects of the project unless the 
public agency makes one or more written findings for each of those significant effects, 
accompanied by a brief explanation of the rationale for each finding. The possible 
findings are: 

I. Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the project 
which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect as 
identified in the Final SEIR 

2. Such changes or alterations are within the responsibility and jurisdiction of 
another public agency and not the agency making the finding. Such changes have 
been adopted by such other agency or can or should be adopted by such other 
agency. 

3. Specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including 
provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make 
infeasible the mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final 
PEIR. 

(b) The findings required by subdivision (a) shall be supported by substantial evidence in the 
record. 

(c) The finding in subdivision (a) (2) shall not be made if the agency making the finding has 
concurrent jurisdiction with another agency to deal with identified feasible mitigation 
measures or alternatives. The finding in subsection (a) (3) shall describe the specific 
reasons for rejecting identified mitigation measures and project alternatives. 

(d) When making the findings required in subdivision (a)(l), the agency shall also adopt a 
program for reporting on or monitoring the changes which it has either required in the 
project or made a condition of approval to avoid or substantially lessen significant 

GATEWAY STATION WEST SE/R 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

I 
DECEMBER 2015 



environmental effects. These measures must be fully enforceable through permit 
conditions, agreements, or other measures. 

( e) The public agency shall specify the location and custodian of the documents or other 
materials which constitute the record of the proceedings upon which its decision is based. 

( f) A statement made pursuant to Section 15093 does not substitute for the findings required 
by this section. 

State CEQA Guidelines Section 15093 further provides: 

(a) CEQA requires the decision-making agency to balance, as applicable, the economic, 
legal, social, technological, .or other benefits of a proposed project against its unavoidable 
environmental risks when determining whether to approve the project. If the specific 
economic, legal, social, technological, or other benefits, including region-wide or 
statewide environmental benefits, of a proposal project outweigh the unavoidable adverse 
environmental effects, the adverse environmental effects may be considered 
"acceptable." 

(b) When the lead agency approves a project which will result in the occurrence of 
significant effects which are identified in the Final SEIR but are not avoided or 
substantially lessened, the agency shall state in writing the specific reasons to support its 
action based on the Final SEIR and/or other information in the record. This statement of 
overriding considerations shall be supported by substantial evidence in the record. 

( c) If an agency makes a statement of oveITiding considerations, the statement should be 
included in the record of the project approval and should be mentioned in the notice of 
determination. This statement does not substitute for, and shall be in addition to, findings 
required pursuant to Section 15091. 

As required by CEQA, the City, in adopting these findings, must also adopt a Mitigation 
Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) for the project. The project's MMRP is contained 
in the project's Final SEIR. It is incorporated by reference as a patt of these findings, and it 
meets the requirements of Section 15097 of the State CEQA Guidelines by providing the 
implementation and monitoring of measures intended to mitigate the potentially significant 
effects of the project. 

Whenever these findings specifically refer to and adopt a mitigation measure that will avoid or 
mitigate a potentially significant impact, that specific mitigation measure is hereby made a 
Condition of Approval of the project. 

Having received, reviewed, and considered the Final SEIR, as well as all other information in the 
record of proceedings on this matter, the following Findings of Fact (Findings) are made, and a 
Statement of Overriding Considerations (Statement) is adopted by the City in its capacity as the 
CEQA Lead Agency. These Findings and Statement set forth the environmental basis for cuJTent 
and subsequent discretionary actions to be undertaken by the City and responsible agencies for 
the implementation of the project. 

GATEWAY STATION WEST SEJR 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

2 
DECEMBER 2015 



B. Environmental Review Process 

In accordance with the requirements of CEQA and the State CEQA Guidelines, a Notice of 
Preparation (NOP) of a Draft Supplemental Environmental Impact Report (Draft SEIR) was 
filed with the State Clearinghouse (SCH) Office of Planning and Research (OPR) on August 7, 
2014. The NOP was distributed to public agencies and interested parties for a 45-day public 
review period, which extended from August 8 through September 9, 2014. 

A Notice of Completion (NOC) of the Draft SEIR was filed with the SCH OPR on July 30, 
2015. The Draft S EIR was circulated for a 45-day public review period, which extended from 
August 3 through September 16, 2015. During this public review period, the City received 
written comments on the Draft SEIR. Section 15088 of the State CEQA Guidelines 
requires that the lead agency responsible for the preparation of an EIR evaluate comments on 
environmental issues received from parties who reviewed the Draft SEIR and prepare a written 
response addressing each of the comments. A Final S EIR was prepared for the project, 
which incorporates all of the enviromnental information and analysis prepared for the project, 
including comments on the information and analysis contained in the Draft SEIR and responses 
by the City to those comments. 

Pursuant to Section 15132 of the State CEQA Guidelines, the Final SEIR consists of the 
following: 

a) The Draft SEIR, including all of its appendices. 

b) A list of persons, organizations, and public agencies commenting on the Draft SEIR. 

c) Copies of all letters received by the City during the Draft S EIR public review period 
and responses to significant environmental points concerning the Draft S EIR t h a t 
w e r e raised during the review and consultation process. 

d) Any other information added by the lead agency. 

C. CEQA Finding of Independent Judgement 

The City is the lead agency with respect to all projects occurring within the Dumbarton TOD 
Specific Plan pursuant to the Section 15367 of the State CEQA Guidelines. As noted above, 
Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines requires that the lead agency prepare written 
findings for identified significant impacts, accompanied by a brief explanation for the rationale 
for each finding. The Final SEIR for the project identified potentially significant effects that 
could result from project implementation. However, the City finds that the inclusion of certain 
mitigation measures as pa1t of the project approval will reduce most, but not all, of those 
effects to less than significant levels. Those impacts that are not reduced to less than 
significant levels are overridden due to specific project benefits identified in a Statement of 
Overriding Considerations provided below in Section 7.0. 

In accordance with CEQA and the State CEQA Guidelines, the City adopts these findings as 
part of its approval of the project. Pursuant to Section 21082.l(c) (3) of the Public Resources 

GATEWAY STATION WEST SEIR 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

3 
DECEMBER 2015 



Code, the City also finds that the Final SEIR reflects the City's independent judgment as the 
CEQA lead agency for the project. 

D. Administrative Record 

The record, upon which all findings and determinations related to the approval of the project 
are based, includes the following: 

• The SEIR and all documents referenced in or relied upon by the SEIR. 

• All prior and present information (including written evidence and testimony) provided 
by City staff to the Planning Commission and City Council relating to the SEIR, the 
approvals, and the project. 

• All prior and present information (including written evidence and testimony) presented to 
the Planning Commission and City Council by the project sponsor and consultants. 

• All final applications, letters, testimony, exhibits, and presentations presented by the 
project sponsor and consultants to the City in connection with the project. 

• All final information (including written evidence and testimony) presented at any City 
public hearing or City workshop related to the project and the SEIR. 

• For documentary and information purposes, all City-adopted land use plans and 
ordinances, including without limitation the general plan, specific plans and ordinances, 
together with environmental review documents, findings, mitigation monitoring 
programs and other documentation relevant to planned growth in the area. 

• The MMRP for the project. 

• All other documents composing the record pursuant to Public Resources Code section 
21167.6(e). 

E. Cnstodian and Location of Records 

The documents and other materials which constitute the administrative record for the City's 
actions arc located at the Newark Community Development Depmtment, 37101 Newark 
Boulevard, Newark, CA 94560. The City's Community Development Department is the 
custodian of the administrative record for the project. Copies of these documents, which 
constitute the Record of Proceedings, are and at all relevant times have been and will be 
available upon request at the office of the City's Community Development Depattment. The 
Draft SEIR also was posted on the City's website at: 

http://www.newark.org/departments/planning-and-economic-development/projects-under
review/. 

GATEWAY STATION WESTSE!R 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRJDING CONSIDERATIONS 

4 
DECEMBER 2015 



The contact for these materials is: 

Terrence Grindall, Assistant City Manager 
City of Newark Community Development Depattment 
37101 Newark Boulevard 
Newark, CA 94560 
Phone: (510) 578-4330 
Email: TERRENCE.GRINDALL@newark.org 

This information is provided in compliance with PRC Section 21081.6(a) (2) and Guidelines 
Section 15091 ( e ). 

II. PROJECT SUMMARY 

A. Project Location 

The project site is situated within the Dumbarton TOD Specific Plan area at the western edge of 
the City of Newark (City) in southwestern Alameda County. The project site is located at the 
southwest corner of the intersection of Hickory Street and Enterprise Drive (formerly Wells 
Avenue), and is bounded by vacant industrial land on the north, Hickory Street on the east, the 
Plummer Creek Wetland Mitigation Bank on the south, and solar salt ponds on the west. 
Enterprise Drive terminates near the northeast corner of the property. Off-site improvements 
may take place within pmtions of the adjacent or nearby Hickory Street, Enterprise Drive and 
'A' Avenue right-of-way (ROW) corridors, as well as at a drainage culvert near the southwestern 
corner of the property. 

B. Project Background 

On September 8, 2011, the Newark City Council certified the Final Environmental Impact 
Report (FEIR) and adopted a General Plan Amendment (GPA) for the Dumbarton TOD Specific 
Plan. Because the proposed project falls within the Dumbarton TOD Specific Plan, it is subject 
to the Specific Plan Program EIR, which serves as the foundation document for subsequent 
projects under the program. The project is located within the southwest portion of the Specific 
Plan area; therefore an SEIR containing a project-level analysis was prepared for the project. 

C. Project Description 

The proposed project consists of a residential development consisting of 589 residential units, 
parks, and associated infrastructure. A total of7.55 acres located in the southwest corner of the 
site are proposed for open space. 

The residential development would include 321 single-family homes, 30 townhome structures 
with a total of 188 units, and 8 nine-plex and 2 four-plex structures with a total of 80 units. The 
architectural styles of the single-family homes and townhomes would be Farmhouse, Craftsman 
and Agrarian, consistent with the Dumbarton TOD Specific Plan form-based code. No project 
structures would exceed three stories in height. Project parking associated with these homes 
would include 1,178 off-street covered spots (two per unit for single- and multi-family 

GATEWAY STATION WESTSEJR 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

5 
DECEMBER 2015 



residences) and an additional 271 total on-site street spots, including 12 handicap accessible 
spaces. 

The project site generally would be accessed from Hickmy Street. It also would be accessed via 
the future extension of 'A' A venue between Hickory and Willow streets, as well as from 
Enterprise Drive east of Hickory Street. 'A' Avenue, 'B' Avenue, and 'C' Street would be 
36-foot-wide arterial private roadways providing internal access for the project site. 
Twenty-foot-wide ancillary roadways and driveways would intersect these main roadways, and 
provide internal circulation for the villages. All roadways on the project site would provide the 
dimensions necessary for fire truck access. 

The project would include walkways and sidewalks throughout the site, providing pedestrian 
access between homes and park areas within the site, as well as connecting to off-site areas. In 
addition, a section of trail under the proposed project design is a "candidate for status" as part of 
the San Francisco Bay Trail. The candidate trail would follow portions of the southern and 
western perimeter of the project site, adjacent to the Plummer Creek Wetland Mitigation Bank 
on the south, and abutting the western edge of proposed project residential and park 
development. The candidate trail would eventually provide connectivity to future Specific Plan 
developments off-site to the north (which is planned to include commercial/retail and the transit 
station) and to the east (the Torian Project site). The candidate trail would be 20 feet wide and 
multi-purpose in nature, and include parallel but separate bicycle and pedestrian trails with 
benches and landscaping. Barriers would be constructed along the southern and western edges 
of the candidate trail where they abut proposed project development, and adjacent to the solar 
salt ( concentrator) basins. 

Four parks providing a mix of active and passive recreational areas would provide a total of 
approximately 2.24 acres of park area in the proposed project, and would variously include such 
features as landscaping (including trees), turf areas, outdoor workout equipment/exercise 
stations, tot lot/shaded play area with a mbberized play structure, a barbeque area, swings, picnic 
tables, benches, basketball hoops and a sand volleyball court. Trees planted along the perimeters 
of the parks would provide some screening between the parks and the adjacent homes. An 
additional 5. 78 acres of paseos (walkways) and associated green areas are proposed on 
34 separate parcels throughout the project site. These areas would be landscaped and maintained 
as community use areas. 

A total of 7.55 acres located in the southwest comer of the project site is proposed as permanent 
open space and would be preserved and maintained as native habitat. The area is characterized 
by seasonal wetland, with upland components within and around the perimeter of the wetland. 

Infrastmcture would include drainage, potable water lines and sewer facilities. A Low Impact 
Development (LID) storm drain system comprised ofbio-retention areas, curbs and gutters along 
the roadways, and underground storm drain pipes would be installed as part of the project. The 
existing culvert near the southwestern site boundary would be replaced with a new box culvert 
( along with related facilities such as headwalls and guardrails, and implementing applicable 
recontouring/restoration). The Alameda County Water District (ACWD) would supply potable 
water to the project. Water service to the project site would connect to future water lines in 
Hickory Street, and would be from JO-inch-diameter water lines installed along 'P' Way, 

GATEWAY STATION WESTSE/R 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

6 
DECEMBER 20/ 5 



'A' Avenue, and 'C' Street in accordance with ACWD Standards, and then distributed via 
smaller 8-inch lines throughout the project. 

The ACWD indicated in the adopted Water Supply Assessment (WSA) for the Dumbarton TOD 
Specific Plan PEIR that demand associated with the Specific Plan was consistent with its 
planning assumptions and is included in its forecast and water supply planning (ACWD 2010). 
The Union Sanitary District would provide sewer service to the project. Eight-inch diameter 
sanitary sewer lines would be installed in the main and ancillary roadways throughout the 
project, and wastewater would gravity-flow off site to the east via a proposed sewer line in 'A' 
Avenue; continuing east to connect to an existing 36-inch gravity sewer main in Willow Street, 
to the Newark Pump Station and ultimately to the Alvarado Treatment Plant. Existing access 
and utility ( e.g., electrical, sewer) easements on the project site would remain and are 
incorporated into the project Tentative Map. 

The conceptual landscaping design concentrates plantings along the perimeter of the project site, 
along village roadways and parking areas, and in active and passive park areas. Open space in 
the southwestern corner of the project site would not be planted. The project landscaping plan 
( excluding turf) includes 75 percent California-native, Mediterranean or climate-adapted plants, 
ornamental trees, shrubs, and groundcover. No plants listed as invasive by the California 
Invasive Plant Council (Cal-IPC) would be used, and irrigation practices would be weather
based and include moisture and/or rain sensor shutoff mechanisms. No more than 25 percent of 
the total landscape area would be irrigated turf(not including sport and multiple use fields). 

If the proposed project moves forward before the approved Torian and "SHH" projects within 
the Specific Plan, the project would conshuct off-site improvements along Hickory Street, 
Enterprise Drive and the 'A' A venue extension. Hickory Street would be improved within 
existing right-of-way (ROW) for the northernmost approximately 715 linear feet to include travel 
lanes, curb and gutter, sidewalks and landscaping. An approximately 300-foot long portion of 
'A' A venue extending east from Hickory Street would be constructed as part of the proposed 
project if the project moves forward before Torian. Specific improvements are anticipated to 
include a 56-foot-wide ROW, with two IO-foot-wide travel lanes, two 8-foot-wide parking lanes, 
two 5-foot-wide sidewalks, and two 5-foot-wide landscape corridors; to be confirmed during 
final design. The proposed project could also implement improvements to Enterprise Drive 
within a proposed 90-foot-wide ROW corridor extending approximately 1,100 feet between 
Hickory and Willow streets; including a 12-foot-wide median, 5-foot-wide sidewalk and adjacent 
6-foot-wide landscape corridor along the southern edge of the proposed Enterprise Drive ROW 
(with all of the noted improvements except the proposed 5-foot-wide sidewalk located within the 
existing 80-foot-wide Enterprise Drive ROW). 

III. SUMMARY OF IMPACTS 

The SEIR evaluates potentially significant effects for the following environmental areas of 
potential concern: (1) aesthetics; (2) air quality; (3) biological resources; (4) cultural resources; 
( 5) greenhouse gases; ( 6) hazards and hazardous materials; (7) hydrology and water quality; (8) 
noise; (9) transportation and traffic. The following environmental areas were found to have no 
effect or less than significant impacts in the Specific Plan PEIR, or project specific development 
would not result in significant issues, and were therefore not analyzed further in the Draft SEIR 

GATEWAY S1'A110N WESTSEIR 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CON~WERATIONS 

7 
DECEMBER 2015 



for the proposed project: (1) agriculture and forestry resources; (2) hazards - public and private 
airports; (3) hazards - wildland fires; (4) mineral resources; (5) population and housing; (6) 
public resources; (7) recreation; (8) utilities and service systems. 

Of the nine environmental subject areas evaluated in the SEIR, the City concurs that the 
proposed project would result in less than significant impacts following mitigation for air quality, 
biological resources, cultural resources, geology and soils, hydrology and water quality, and 
noise. Two potentially significant impacts related to hazards and hazardous materials would be 
mitigated to below a level of significance, whereas one impact related to the worst case scenario 
release of hazardous materials from existing off-site facilities would remain significant and not 
fully mitigated. Numerous potentially significant impacts related to transportation and traffic 
would be mitigated to below a level of significance while the level of service at certain 
intersections following project implementation, impacts related to the increased demand for 
public transit, and cumulative impacts at certain intersections and roadway segments would 
remain significant and unmitigated. For those areas in which environmental impacts would 
remain significant and unavoidable, even with the implementation of mitigation measures, 
overriding considerations exist that may make the impacts acceptable. 

IV. FINDINGS REGARDING IMPACTS 

The following discussion of significant impacts identified for the proposed project is organized 
below by finding: 

• Potential environmental impacts that will be mitigated to below a level of 
significance 

• Potential environmental impacts determined to be significant and unavoidable 
after mitigation. 

A. Potential Environmental Impacts that will be Mitigated to Below a Level of 
Significance 

Pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines Sections 1509l(a) (1) and 15092(b), and to the extent 
reflected in the SEIR and the MMRP, the City finds that for each of the following significant 
effects as identified in the Final SEIR, changes or alterations (mitigation measures) have been 
required in, or incorporated into, the project which avoid or substantially lessen each of the 
significant environmental effects as identified in the Final SEIR. The following discussion 
addresses all potentially significant effects for which changes or alterations (mitigation 
measures) have been required in, or incorporated into, the project which avoid or substantially 
lessen each of the significant environmental effects as identified in the Final SEIR. 

1. Air Quality 

Potential Impacts 

Construction of the proposed project could result in potentially significant air quality impacts 
related to daily threshold exceedances of NOx during construction activities. The grading phase 
of construction would result in maximum daily emissions for NOx that would exceed the Bay 

GATEWAY STATION WESTSEJR 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

8 
DECEMBER 2015 



Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) thresholds of significance for NOx, These 
impacts are considered potentially significant. 

While the BAAQMD does not list thresholds of significance for fugitive dust, the project would 
utilize Best Management Practices (BMPs) and would implement measures from the Dumbarton 
TOD PEIR to reduce fugitive dust emissions. 

Mitigation Measures 

Mitigation Measures (MMs) 4.2-la and 4.2-lb from the Dumbarton Specific Plan TOD PEIR are 
relevant to the proposed project and were largely incorporated into project design. One element 
of MM 4.2-la is an action to occur during construction that was not taken into account in the 
modeling assumptions used for assessing project-level emissions; that one element is restated 
below to ensure project compliance with the Specific Plan PEIR. The additional mitigation 
measure identified for air quality in the Specific Plan EIR (MM 4.2-2) is related to potential 
impacts from emissions at the Dumbarton Transit Station. Consistent with MM 4.2-2, a health 
risk analysis was completed for project-proposed residences within 1,000 feet of the future 
station, no additional mitigation is required for that issue. 

MM 4.2-la: Prior to issuance of any Grading Petmit, the Public Works Director and the 
Building Official shall confirm that the Grading Plan, Building Plans, and 
specifications stipulate that, in compliance with the BAAQMD CEQA Air 
Quality Guidelines, the following basic construction mitigation measure shall be 
implemented for the Gateway Station West Project. A publicly visible sign with 
the telephone number and person to contact at the lead agency regarding dust 
complaints shall be posted. This person shall respond and take corrective action 
within 48 hours. The Air District's phone number shall also be visible to ensure 
compliance with applicable regulations. 

Project-Specific Mitigation Measure 

The following mitigation measure is prescribed to address construction-related NOx emissions: 

MMAir-1 

Rationale 

Tier 4 Off-road Construction Equipment. Prior to issuance of any Grading 
Permit, the Public Works Director and the Building Official shall confirm that the 
Grading Plan, Building Plans, and specifications stipulate that all diesel-powered 
off-road equipment used during the grading phase shall meet Tier 4 final off-road 
emissions standards. A copy of each unit's cettified Tier specification shall be 
provided to the City Building Department at the time of mobilization of each 
applicable unit of equipment. 

The project design incorporates several features consistent with mitigation measures required as 
part of the Dumbarton TOD Specific Plan PEIR, and control measures during project 
construction that would be implemented to be consistent with the Dumbarton TOD Specific Plan 
PEIR. Fmther, the project would be required to comply with BAAQMD rules and BMPs to 
reduce emissions. These project design features and measures, emissions of all criteria 

GATE WA l' STATION WEST SEJR 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

9 
DECEMBER 2015 



pollutants (but NOx) related to project construction would be below the BAAQMD significance 
threshold. While there are no significance thresholds for fugitive dust, MM 4.2-la from the 
Specific Plan EIR would reduce potentially significant impacts to air quality to a less than 
significant level by providing a mechanism for corrective action regarding dust complaints 
during construction. Further, the project-specific MM Air-I would address the potential 
exceedances of NOx by requiring that all diesel-powered off-road equipment used during the 
grading phase meet Tier 4 off-road emission standards, with specifications provided to the City 
Building Depaitment. Implementation of MM Air-I would result in NOx being reduced to 49 
pounds per day (below the significance threshold). 

The City finds that, pursuant to Section 1509I(a)(l) of the State CEQA Guidelines, changes 
or alterations have been required in or incorporated into the project, which would mitigate or 
avoid potential impacts from air pollutant emissions during construction activities. The City 
further finds that the change or alteration in the project or the requirement to impose the 
mitigation as a condition of project approval is within the jurisdiction of the City to require, 
and that this mitigation is appropriate and feasible. 

2. Biological Resources 

Potential Impact - Special Status Plants 

Rare plant surveys conducted for the project resulted in negative findings for special status 
plants. Survey results are typically considered valid for two blooming seasons after the surveys 
are conducted. If development of the project site and off-site improvement areas commences 
prior to the end of summer 2017, no further mitigation measures are required for special-status 
plant species. If development of the site does not commence prior to the end of summer 20 I 7, 
rare plant surveys should be re-conducted to verify presence/absence of special-status plant 
species prior to ground disturbance. Impacts to special status plants as a result of ground 
disturbance would be a potentially significant impact. 

Mitigation Measure 

MM BI0-1: The results of rare plant surveys are typically considered valid for two blooming 
seasons after the surveys are conducted. If development of the site commences 
prior to the end of summer of 2017, no further mitigation measure is required for 
special-status plant species. If development of the site does not commence prior 
to the end of summer of 2017, rare plant surveys should be re-conducted to verify 
presence/absence of special-status plant species. 

If special-status plants are found in the project site and/or off-site improvement 
areas, project development plans shall consider avoidance to the extent 
practicable. If avoidance is not practicable while othe1wise obtaining the 
project's objectives, then other suitable measures and mitigation shall be 
implemented as detailed below. A mitigation compliance repmt shall be 
submitted to the City planning staff or staff biologist at least 30 days prior to 
ground disturbance. The compliance report shall detail the avoidance and other 
mitigation measures that have been implemented by the project. The City may 

GATEWAY STATION W!iSTSEJR 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

JO 

DECEMBER 20/ 5 



approve grading/site disturbance in a quicker timeframe than 30 days if 
compliance with the mitigation measures can be verified by the City sooner than 
30 days. 

The following measures shall be implemented if special-status plants are found in 
the project area during subsequent survey(s) prior to site disturbance: 

• Initially the feasibility of avoidance shall be evaluated as noted above. 

• If avoidance is not feasible, a mitigation plan shall be developed in 
consultation with CDFW personnel if it is a state listed (i.e., protected 
pursuant to the CESA) or a CNPS List IB or List 2 plant. If the plant is 
state listed, an incidental take permit (i.e., a 2081 Agreement) shall be 
acquired for the project from CDFW prior to any grading within the project 
area. A copy of the permit shall be provided to the appropriate department 
within the City prior to any grading within the project area. Any conditions 
for the project established by CDFW in the 2081 Agreement shall become 
conditions of the project also enforceable by the City. 

• If the plant is federally listed (i.e., protected pursuant to FESA), the 
project sponsor shall formally notify the USFWS within five days of the 
finding. As required in-practice by the USFWS, an "incidental take" 
permit may be necessary from the USFWS for any proposed impacts on 
any federally listed plants found within the project site. A copy of this 
permit or a letter from the USFWS that otherwise states this agency is 
satisfied with the avoidance and/or mitigation measures shall also be 
provided to the appropriate department at the City prior to the time the 
project site can be graded. 

• If a plant is found on the project site that is a CNPS List lB or 2 species, 
and the species is not otherwise protected pursuant to state or federal 
regulations, prior to construction within the project area, a qualified 
botanist shall collect the seeds, propagules, and top soils, or other part of 
the plant that would ensure successful replanting of the population 
elsewhere. The seeds, propagules, or other plantable portion of all plants 
shall be collected at the appropriate time of the year. Half of the seeds and 
top soils collected shall be appropriately stored in long-term storage at a 
botanic garden or museum (for example, Rancho Santa Ana Botanic 
Garden). The other half of the seeds, propagules, or other plantable 
portion of all plants shall be planted at the appropriate time of year (late
fall months) in an area of the subject property or off-site, protected 
property that will not be impacted by the project (if the project has a 
designated off-site mitigation site for impacts on other special-status 
species, the plants can be seeded on the mitigation site). This area shall be 
fenced with permanent fencing (for example, chain link fencing) to ensure 
protection of the species. The applicant shall hire a qualified biologist to 
conduct annual monitoring surveys of the transplanted plant population for 
a five-year period and shall prepare annual monitoring reports reporting 

GATEWAY STAT/ON WESTSEJR 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

11 
DECEMBER 2015 



Rationale 

the success or failure of the transplanting effort. These reports shall be 
submitted to the City and appropriate resource agency (CDFW and/or 
USFWS) no later than December I st of each monitoring year. 

• If the seeding/transplanting effort fails, the stored seeds and top soils can 
be taken out of long-term storage and sown in another location ( either 
onsite or offsite) deemed suitable by CDFW. This seeding effort shall 
then be monitored for an additional three-year period to ensure 
survivorship of the new population. Annual monitoring reports shall be 
submitted to the City for the three-year period. 

• A CNDDB form shall be filled out and submitted to CDFW for any 
special-status plant species identified within the project site. Any 
mitigation plan developed in consultation with CDFW shall be 
implemented prior to the initiation of grading or issuance of a 
development permit. 

• In lieu of the above-prescribed mitigation, as allowed in writing by the 
City (for CEQA protected species only) and/or CDFW (for CEQA and/or 
state listed species), mitigation requirements may be satisfied via the 
purchase of qualified mitigation credits or the preservation of off-site 
habitat. If the species in question is federally listed, then USFWS would 
also have to agree in writing, typically through issuance of a Biological 
Opinion, that the purchase of qualified mitigation credits or the 
preservation of off-site habitat would constitute satisfactory mitigation. 

The above mitigation measures will reduce potentially significant impacts to special status plants 
by requiring rare plant surveys to verify the presence/absence of special-status plant species if 
development of the project site or off-site improvement areas does not commence prior to the 
end of summer 2017. If special-status plants are found at that time, and the population is unable 
to be avoided, then the appropriate compensatory mitigation and preservation actions would be 
developed in consultation with the appropriate resource agency. The City finds that, pursuant to 
Section 15091(a)(l) of the CEQA Guidelines, changes or alterations have been required in or 
incorporated into the project, which would mitigate or avoid potential impacts to special-status 
plants. The City further finds that the change or alteration in the project or the requirement 
to impose the mitigation as a condition of project approval is within the jurisdiction of the 
City to require, and that this mitigation is appropriate and feasible. 

Potential Impact - Burrowing Owls 

The project could result in significant direct impacts to burrowing owl, if present on the project 
site or off-site improvement areas during construction. The project could result in indirect 
impacts to the species. 

GATEWAY STATION WESTSEIR 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRJDJNG CONSIDERATIONS 

12 
DECEMBER 2015 



Mitigation Measure 

Because the only evidence of bmrnwing owl on the project site and off-site improvement areas 
was signs of potential past use by a solitary winter migrant, no compensatory mitigation is 
triggered; however, additional pre-constmction surveys are wairnnted. If burrowing owl pair(s) 
or resident burrowing owl is observed during any of the pre-constmction surveys, avoidance and 
compensatory mitigation would be required, as described below. The project specific mitigation 
presented below reflects revisions to Specific Plan MM 4.3-3 for consistency with the 2012 
CDFW guidelines for pre-constmction surveys and to address potential impacts to burrowing 
owls in the project site. MM BI0-9 (listed under mitigation measures for impacts to waters of 
the U.S. would address indirect impacts to the owl. 

MM BI0-2: Pre-constmction surveys for western burrowing owl shall be conducted in 
accordance with the CDFW 2012 protocol by a qualified biologist prior to ground 
disturbance (including grading, clearing and gmbbing, bmsh removal, or any 
other ground disturbance) as described below to ensure there are no impacts on 
burrowing owls as a result of the proposed project. 

The initial survey shall be conducted in the 30-day period prior to ground 
disturbance associated with the project, but no less than 14 days prior to the 
initiation of ground disturbance. Western burrowing owl surveys shall be 
conducted from two hours before sunset to one hour after, or one hour before to 
two hours after sunrise. All burrowing owl sightings, occupied burrows, and 
burrows with owl sign (e.g., pellets, excrement, and molt feathers) shall be 
counted and mapped. Surveys shall be conducted by walking all suitable habitat 
on the entire project area and (where possible) in areas within 150 meters 
(approximately 500 feet) of the project impact zone. The 150-meter buffer zone 
is surveyed to identify burrows and owls outside of the project area which may be 
impacted by factors such as noise and vibration (heavy equipment) during project 
constmction. Pedestrian survey transects shall be systematically spaced to allow 
100 percent visual coverage of the ground surface. The distance between transect 
center lines shall be no more than 20 meters (approximately 100 feet) and shall be 
reduced to account for differences in terrain, vegetation density, and ground 
surface visibility. If no suitable burrowing owl habitat is present, no additional 
surveys will be required. If suitable bmrnws are determined to be present on the 
site, a qualified biologist will visit the site an additional three times to investigate 
whether owls are present where they could be affected by the proposed activities. 
The final survey shall be conducted within the 24-hour period prior to the 
initiation of construction. 

If burrowing owl is present during the non-breeding season (generally 
September 1 through January 31), a buffer of50 meters (approximately 160 feet) 
shall be maintained around the occupied bmrnw(s), if practicable. If maintaining 
such a buffer is not feasible, then the buffer must be great enough to avoid injury 
or mortality of individual owls or the owls shall be passively relocated in 
coordination with CDFW. If burrowing owl is detected on the site during the 
breeding season (peak of the breeding season is April 15 through July 15), and 

GATEWAY STATION WESTSE!R 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONS1DERA110NS 

13 
DliCEMBER 20! 5 



Rationale 

appear to be engaged in nesting behavior, a fenced 250-foot buffer shall be 
required between the nest site(s) (i.e., the active burrow(s)) and any earth-moving 
activity or other disturbance in the project area. This 250-foot buffer could be 
decreased to 160 feet once it is determined by a qualified burrowing owl biologist 
that the young have fledged (that is, left the nest). Typically, the young fledge by 
August 31. This date may be earlier than August 31, or later, and would have to 
be determined by a qualified burrowing owl biologist. 

If burrowing owl is found on the project site, a qualified biologist shall delineate 
the extent of burrowing owl habitat on the site and a Mitigation Plan shall be 
prepared in consultation with CDFW for review and approval by the City. The 
Mitigation Plan shall identify the mitigation site and any activities proposed to 
enhance the site, including the construction of artificial burrows and maintenance 
of California ground squirrel populations on the mitigation site. In addition, for 
each pair of burrowing owls found in the construction area, two artificial nesting 
burrows shall be created at the mitigation site. The Plan shall also include a 
description of monitoring and management methods proposed at the mitigation 
site. Monitoring and management of any lands identified for mitigation purposes 
shall be the responsibility of the applicant for at least five years. An annual report 
shall be prepared for submittal to CDFW and the City by December 31 of each 
monitoring year. Contingency measures for any anticipated problems shall be 
identified in the plan. Compensatory mitigation shall consist of providing 
6.5 acres of replacement habitat which shall be protected in perpetuity per pair of 
burrowing owls, or unpaired resident bird. Such a set-aside would offset 
permanent impacts on burrowing owl habitat. The protected lands shall be 
adjacent to occupied burrowing owl habitat if possible, and at a location selected 
in consultation with CDFW. Land identified to offset impacts on burrowing owls 
shall be protected in perpetuity by a suitable property instrument ( e.g., a 
conservation easement or fee title acquisition). 

The above mitigation measures will reduce potentially significant impacts to bmrnwing owls by 
requiring pre-construction surveys to verify the presence/absence of the owl. If burrowing owls 
are found at that time, the appropriate buffer shall be established around the occupied area until 
the habitat is no longer occupied. If, following abandonment of the burrow by the owls, the 
habitat is unable to be avoided by the proposed project, then compensatory mitigation would be 
provided in consultation with CDFW. This mitigation is consistent with the Staff Report on 
Burrowing Owl Mitigation (CDFW 2012) which contains smvey protocol, avoidance and 
compensatory measures deemed acceptable by CDFW. Mitigation measure MM BI0-9 involves 
establishing the open space area in a conservation easement, and implementing an associated 
management plan. It also requires that the Covenants, Conditions & Restrictions of the 
neighborhood prohibit the keeping of outside feline pets or feral cat stations to prevent the 
introduction of human-associated predators on the owl. The management plan would include 
restriction activities, inspection and monitoring requirements. These restrictions and 
requirements would reduce indirect impacts to the owl associated with introducing development 
near suitable habitat. The City finds that, pursuant to Section 1509l(a)(l) of the State CEQA 

GATEWAY STATION WESTSEJR 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

14 
DECEMBER 2015 



Guidelines, changes or alterations have been required in or incorporated into the project, 
which would mitigate or avoid potential impacts to burrowing owls. The City further finds 
that the change or alteration in the project or the requirement to impose the mitigation as a 
condition of project approval is within the jurisdiction of the City to require, and that this 
mitigation is appropriate and feasible. 

Potential Impact - Northern Harrier and Other Nesting Raptors 

The project could result in significant direct impacts to northern harrier and other raptors, if 
using the project site, off-site improvement areas, or adjacent areas for nesting during 
construction. The project could result in indirect impacts to northern harrier and other nesting 
raptors. 

Mitigation Measure 

The following avoidance and minimization measures shall be implemented prior to site 
disturbance to avoid impacts to nesting northern harriers and other raptors on the project area or 
immediately adjacent properties as required by MM 4.3-2 from the Specific Plan PEIR. 

MM BI0-3: In order to avoid impacts to northern harrier or other nesting raptors, a nesting 
survey shall be conducted within the project site prior to commencing with earth
moving or construction work if this work would occur during the raptor nesting 
season (between February 1 and August 31 ). 

The raptor nesting survey shall include examination of all trees on or within 
300 feet of the entire project site, not just trees slated for removal, since ground 
vibrations and noise from earth-moving equipment can disturb nesting birds and 
potentially result in nest abandonment. Areas within 300 feet of the project site 
shall be smveyed on foot if accessible or from within the project site or publicly 
accessible areas by scanning the surrounding land with the aid of binoculars. 
Since northern harriers are ground nesting raptors, the nesting surveys will 
include systematic walking transects of accessible, suitable nesting habitat within 
300 feet of the project site. 

If nesting raptors are identified during the surveys, orange construction fence shall 
be installed to establish a 300-foot radius around the nest unless a qualified 
biologist determines that a lesser distance will adequately protect the nest (refer to 
discussion below for more detail). If the tree or nest is located off the project site, 
then the buffer shall be demarcated per the above where the buffer intersects the 
project site. 

The size of the non-disturbance buffer may be altered if a qualified raptor 
biologist conducts behavioral observations and determines the nesting raptors are 
well acclimated to disturbance. If this occurs, the raptor biologist shall prescribe 
a modified buffer that allows sufficient room to prevent undue 
disturbance/harassment to nesting raptors. If the buffer is reduced, the qualified 
raptor biologist shall remain on site to monitor the raptors' behavior during heavy 

GATEWAY STATION WESTSEJR 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND S1~TEMENTOF0VERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

15 
DECEMBER 2015 



Rationale 

construction in order to ensure that the reduced buffer does not result in take of 
eggs or nestlings. 

No construction or earth-moving activity shall occur within the established buffer 
until it is determined by a qualified raptor biologist that the young have fledged 
(that is, left the nest) and have attained sufficient flight skills to avoid project 
construction zones. This typically occurs by August 31. This date may be earlier 
or later, and shall be dete1mined by a qualified raptor biologist. If a qualified 
biologist is not hired to monitor the nesting raptors then the full 300-foot buffer(s) 
shall be maintained in place from February 1 through the month of August. The 
buffer may be removed and work may proceed as otherwise planned within the 
buffer on September 1. 

The above mitigation measures will reduce potentially significant impacts to nesting northern 
harrier and other raptors by requiring pre-construction surveys to verify the presence/absence of 
nesting raptors, if construction activities commence during the raptor nesting period. If nesting 
raptors are found at that time, the appropriate buffer shall be established around the occupied 
nest, until the nest is no longer occupied. Mitigation measure MM BI0-9 involves establishing 
the open space area in a conservation easement, and implementing an associated management 
plan. It also requires that the Covenants, Conditions & Restrictions of the neighborhood prohibit 
the keeping of outside feline pets or feral cat stations to prevent the introduction of human
associated predators on the owl. The management plan would include restriction activities, 
inspection and monitoring requirements. These restrictions and requirements would reduce 
indirect impacts to nesting raptors associated with introducing development near suitable habitat. 
The City finds that, pursuant to Section 1509l(a)(l) of the State CEQA Guidelines, changes 
or alterations have been required in or incorporated into the project, which would mitigate or 
avoid potential impacts to nesting raptors. The City further finds that the change or alteration 
in the project or the requirement to impose the mitigation as a condition of project approval 
is within the jurisdiction of the City to require, and that this mitigation is appropriate and 
feasible. 

Potential Impact - Saltmarsh Common Yellowthroat and Other Nesting Passerines and 
Migratory Birds 

The project could result in significant direct impacts to saltrnarsh common yellowthroat and 
other nesting passerines and migratory birds, if using the project site, off-site improvement areas, 
or adjacent areas for nesting during construction. Construction and operation of the project 
could also result in indirect impacts to protected birds. 

Mitigation Measure 

The following avoidance and minimization measures shall be implemented prior to site 
disturbance to avoid impacts to saltmarsh common yellowthroat and other nesting passerines and 
migratory birds utilizing the project area or immediately adjacent properties, as required by 
MM 4.3-4 from the Specific Plan PEIR. 

GATEWAY STATION WESTSEJR 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF 0VERRJDING CONSIDERATIONS 

16 
DECEMBER 2015 



MM BI0-4: To avoid impacts on nesting passerines and other migratory birds, a nesting 
survey shall be conducted in the project site and areas within 100 feet of the site 
prior to commencing initial earth-moving or construction work if this work would 
occur during the passerine nesting season (between March 1 and September 1 ). 
Areas within 100 feet of the project site shall be surveyed on foot if accessible or 
from within the project site or publicly accessible areas by scanning the 
surrounding land with the aid of binoculars. 

Rationale 

The nesting surveys shall be completed approximately 15 days prior to 
commencing work. If special-status birds are identified nesting on or near the 
project site, a 100-foot radius around all identified active nests shall be 
demarcated with orange construction fencing to establish a non-disturbance 
buffer. If an active nest is found off site, the intersecting portion of the buffer that 
is on site shall be fenced. No construction or earth-moving activity shall occur 
within this 100-foot staked buffer until it is dete1mined by a qualified biologist 
that the young have fledged (that is, left the nest) and have attained sufficient 
flight skills to avoid project construction zones. 

If common (that is, not special-status) birds, for example, red-winged blackbird, 
are identified nesting on or adjacent to the project site, a non-disturbance buffer of 
75 feet shall be established or as otherwise prescribed by a qualified biologist. 
The buffer shall be demarcated with orange construction fencing. Disturbance 
around an active nest shall be postponed until it is dete1mined by the qualified 
biologist that the young have fledged and have attained sufficient flight skills to 
leave the area. 

Typically, most birds in the region of the project site are expected to complete 
nesting by August 1. However, in the region many species can complete nesting 
by the end of June or in early to mid-July. Regardless, nesting buffers shall be 
maintained until August 1 unless a qualified biologist determines that the young 
have fledged and are independent of their nests at an earlier date. If buffers are 
removed prior to August I, the biologist conducting the nesting surveys shall 
prepare a report that provides details about the nesting outcome and the removal 
of buffers. This report shall be submitted to the City project planner and CDFW 
prior to the time that buffers are removed if the date is before August 1. 

Existing vegetation along the tops of the banks of the north/south drainage ditch 
through the open space area that provides potential nesting habitat for saltmarsh 
common yellowthroat and other nesting passerines, as determined by a qualified 
biologist, shall be protected from removal during site remediation activities. 

The above mitigation measures will reduce potentially significant impacts to nesting saltmarsh 
common yellowthroat and other nesting passerincs by requiring pre-construction surveys to 
verify the presence/absence of nesting raptors, if construction activities commence during the 
raptor nesting period. If nesting saltmarsh common yellowthroat or other nesting passerines are 

GATEWAY STATION WESTSEJR 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATE/L1ENTOF 0VERRJDING CONSIDERATIONS 

17 
DECEMBER 2015 



found at that time, the appropriate buffer shall be established around the occupied nest, until 
August 1, unless otherwise determined by a qualified biologist, and with prior notification to 
CDFW and the City. Mitigation measure MM BI0-9 involves establishing the open space area 
in a conservation easement, and implementing an associated management plan. It also requires 
that the Covenants, Conditions & Restrictions of the neighborhood prohibit the keeping of 
outside feline pets or feral cat stations to prevent the introduction of human-associated predators 
on nesting birds. The management plan would include restriction activities, inspection and 
monitoring requirements. These restrictions and requirements would reduce indirect impacts to 
protected nesting birds associated with introducing development near suitable habitat. The City 
finds that, pursuant to Section 15091(a)(l) of the State CEQA Guidelines, changes or 
alterations have been required in or incorporated into the project, which would mitigate or 
avoid potential impacts to protected nesting birds. The City further finds that the change or 
alteration in the project or the requirement to impose the mitigation as a condition of project 
approval is within the jurisdiction of the City to require, and that this mitigation is 
appropriate and feasible. 

Potential Impact - Waters of the U.S./State 

Impacts to waters of the U.S./State on the project site would result from the placement of fill into 
the seasonal wetlands, drainages, and the un-vegetated ponded depression to facilitate 
construction of the proposed project, as a result of the alteration of project site's drainage 
patterns, and the potential for input of pollutants into wetlands and other waters not directly 
impacted by project construction. All waters of the U.S. in the Hickory Street ROW and 'A' 
Avenue would be permanently impacted. Waters of the U.S. in the Culvert Replacement Site 
would be temporarily impacted from during the culvert replacement, but would be allowed to 
return to the previous habitat following construction. Impacts to waters of the U.S. would be 
potentially significant. 

Mitigation Measure 

The project specific mitigation is presented below to meet the requirements of Specific Plan 
MM 4.3-6 regarding obtaining the appropriate permits and providing appropriate mitigation for 
impacts to waters of the U.S./State on the project site or off-site improvement areas. 

MM BI0-5: A verification o£'concurrence with the 2015 wetland delineation must be obtained 
from the USACE. 

Authorization from the Corps and the RWQCB (for example, an Individual 
Permit and a 401 Water Quality Certification) shall be obtained as 
necessary/required by these agencies prior to filling any waters of the U.S./State 
on the project site off-site improvement areas. 

Impacts shall also be minimized by the use of BMPs to protect preserved waters 
of the U.S./State and to ensure that water quality standards are not compromised 
in preserved wetlands and other waters within the watershed. These practices can 
include installing orange construction fencing buffers, straw waddles to keep fill 
from entering preserved/avoided wetlands and other waters, and other protective 

GATEWAY STATION WESTSE!R 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND S1~TEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERA110NS 

18 
DECEMBER 20! 5 



measures. During project construction, a biological monitor shall be on site to 
monitor the integrity of any preserved wetlands and other waters during mass 
grading or filling of the project site or off-site improvement areas. 

For those wetland areas that are not avoided by project construction, 
compensatory mitigation shall be provided. As approved by the USACE, the 
project applicant may purchase mitigation credits from an approved mitigation 
bank or an approved in-lieu fee mitigation entity at a 1: 1 ratio. 

As an alternative to the purchase of credits in a mitigation bank, wetlands may be 
created on site and, if so, shall have an equal or higher functional value than those 
wetlands affected by the project (known as in-kind replacement). If wetlands 
cannot be created in-kind and on site, then other alternatives shall include off-site 
and/or out-of-kind mitigation. In any case, mitigation requirements for wetland 
areas that are not avoided shall be that all impacted wetlands are replaced at a 
minimum 1: I ratio (for each square foot of impact, one square foot of wetland 
would be restored/created) or at a ratio determined by the USACE at the time 
permits are issued. Mitigation requirements will be based upon the existing 
conditions of the wetlands impacted. Where practicable, wetland plant/animal 
populations shall be relocated prior to disturbance to the impacted wetlands to any 
re-created wetlands. Topsoils shall also be removed from impacted wetlands if 
practicable, and placed into any re-created wetlands. These topsoils would 
contain a seed bank of the impacted plant species which would germinate with 
fall/winter hydration of the re-created wetlands. 

If wetlands are restored/created, adequate compensation shall include creating 
wetlands at a suitable location that meet the following performance standards: 

• The wetlands shall remain inundated or saturated for sufficient duration to 
support a predominance of hydrophytic vegetation. 

• The wetlands shall exhibit plant species richness comparable to affected 
wetlands. 

• The wetlands shall replace the lost wetlands at a minimum ratio of one 
acre created for each acre, or fraction thereof, permanently impacted. 

• The developer shall provide for the protection of the mitigation areas in 
perpetuity either through a petmanent protection device such as a 
restrictive covenant or conservation easement. 

• The developer shall establish a five-year program to monitor the progress 
of any restored or created wetland mitigation, other than Mitigation Bank 
Credits, toward these standards. At the end of each monitoring year, an 
annual report shall be submitted to the City, the RWQCB, and the 
USACE. This report shall document the hydrological and vegetative 
condition of the mitigation wetlands, and shall recommend remedial 
measures as necessary to conect deficiencies. 

GATEWAY S1ATION WEST SEIR 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

19 
DECEMBER 2015 



• The USACE and other regulat01y agencies generally require that wetlands 
not impacted by the proposed project and any new wetlands created to 
mitigate project impacts be set aside in perpetuity, either through deed 
restnctwns or conservation easements. See the avoidance and 
minimization measure regarding the open space area (MM BI0-9). 

MM BI0-9: The open space area shall be set aside in perpetuity, either through deed 
restrictions or conservation easements. Because the open space area contains 
waters under jurisdiction of the USACE and RWQCB, and potentially suitable 
habitat for species regulated by and CDFW, the plan shall be developed in 
coordination with these agencies. If a perpetual deed restriction is used to 
preserve the open space the land owner and any assignees/transferees of the title 
of the property shall assume liability for the perpetual management of the 
preserved lands. The deed restriction shall provide the allowed and prohibited 
uses of the preserved site, and these uses shall be approved by the agencies. If a 
conservation easement is established, a non-wasting management endowment 
(non-wasting infers that principal may not be used to pay for management actions, 
only interest on the principal sum may be used) shall be established in concert 
with the grantee of the conservation easement and shall be large enough to pay for 
necessary management actions. In lieu of a management endowment, other 
financial assurances may be provided that otherwise are found acceptable by the 
USACE. An example of an alternative funding source would be via a Geologic 
Hazards Assessment District (GHAD). Home Owners' Associations and 
Landscape Lighting Districts are not suitable funding entities as funds collected 
via these entities can be distributed City wide at the discretion of the City. In 
contrast, GHADs must be used within the taxing district where the funds 
are acquired. 

At least 60 days prior to commencement of ground disturbing activities (including 
site remediation activities), the applicant shall submit to CDFW, RWQCB, 
USACE for review and approval a management plan for the open space preserve 
area. The management plan will address the following issues: 

• Funding: The applicant shall provide to the agencies documentation that 
funds for monitoring and perpetual maintenance of the open space area is 
available through one of the previously described mechanisms. 

• Maintenance and Repair: The applicant shall provide for routine 
maintenance such as debris removal and inspection and repair of fences 
and access entries. The frequency of the maintenance activities shall be 
developed in coordination with the agencies. 

• No Vehicles: Except as needed for maintenance and repair, and access of 
existing easements on the property, or as necessary in emergency 
situations, non-motorized and motorized vehicles shall be prohibited from 
the open space area. 

GATEWAY STA110N WESTSE/R 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSJDERATIDNS 

20 
DECEMBER 20/ 5 



Rationale 

• Inspection and Monitoring: The applicant shall establish a five-year 
program to monitor the progress of the wetland mitigation toward these 
standards. At the end of each monitoring year, an annual report shall be 
submitted to the City, the RWQCB, USACE, and CDFW. This report 
shall document the hydrological and vegetative condition of the wetlands, 
and shall recommend remedial measures as necessary to correct 
deficiencies. 

• Restricted Activities: The applicant shall identify activities prohibited 
from taking place in the open space area. These include, but are not 
limited to: (I) alteration of existing topography or other alteration or uses 
for any purpose; (2) placement of any new structures in the open space 
area; (3) dumping and/or burning of rubbish, garbage, or other waste or fill 
materials; ( 4) construction and/or placement of new infrastructure, other 
than those already identified in the project design, including new roads or 
trails, and storm water systems or utilities ( outside of the existing 
easements); (5) use of pesticides or herbicides unless othe1wise approved 
by the agencies. 

To minimize the potential for predation and harassment of wildlife using the open 
space area, solar salt ponds, and Plummer Creek Wetland Mitigation Bank from 
cats associated with the Gateway Station West development, the keeping of 
outside feline pets or feral cat stations shall be prohibited. Enforcement of the 
restriction shall be reflected in the Covenants, Conditions & Restrictions of the 
neighborhood. All occupants of the project site and potential occupants shall be 
notified of this restriction. 

The above mitigation measures will reduce impacts to waters of the U.S. through specific 
measures to avoid and minimize impacts, and to provide compensatory mitigation for 
unavoidable impacts. These measures include project design parameters, best management 
practices, and compensatory mitigation requirements that would reduce potential impacts to a 
less than significant level. The City finds that, pursuant to Section 1509l(a)(l) of the State 
CEQA Guidelines, changes or alterations have been required in or incorporated into the 
project, which would mitigate or avoid potential impacts to waters of the U.S.. The City 
further finds that the change or alteration in the project or the requirement to impose the 
mitigation as a condition of project approval is within the jurisdiction of the City to require, 
and that this mitigation is appropriate and feasible. 

Potential Impact - Habitats Regulated by CDFW 

Permanent impacts to bed, banks, and channel of drainage ditches potentially regulated by 
CDFW would result from the placement of fill into certain drainages and associated seasonal 
wetlands to facilitate construction of the proposed project. Temporary impacts are associated 
with remediation activities along the segment of Drainage Ditch 1 through the open space area. 

GATEWAY STATION WESTSEIR 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONS1DERA110NS 

21 
DECEMBER 2015 



Mitigation Measure 

MM BI0-6: A Streambed Alteration Agreement shall be obtained for impacts to habitats 
regulated by CDFW pursuant to Section 1600 et seq. of the California Fish and 
Game Code. Measures required by the Streambed Alteration Agreement shall be 
implemented as a condition of project approval and prior to ground disturbance 
affecting the drainage ditches and associated vegetation regulated by CDFW. A 
"no net loss" of bed, banks, and channels of the regulated waterways permanently 
lost as a result of the project shall be achieved with this mitigation measure. 

Rationale 

The above mitigation measure will reduce impacts to habitats regulated by CDFW by requiring 
the applicant go through the appropriate permitting and coordination process to ensure no net 
loss of the regulated waterways. The Lake and Streambed Alteration Program provides a 
mechanism for CDFW to suggest modifications to the project to eliminate or reduce harmful 
impacts to fish and wildlife resources. The City finds that, pursuant to Section 1509l(a)(l) of 
the State CEQA Guidelines, changes or alterations have been required in or incorporated 
into the project, which would mitigate or avoid potential impacts to habitats regulated by 
CDFW. The City further finds that the change or alteration in the project or the requirement 
to impose the mitigation as a condition of project approval is within the jurisdiction of the 
City to require, and that this mitigation is appropriate and feasible. 

Potential Impact - Protected Trees 

Two trees on the project site and two trees in the off-site improvement areas meeting the criteria 
for protection under the City Municipal Code would be removed for the proposed project. Two 
additional trees in the off-site improvement areas may be able to be retained. 

Mitigation Measure 

MM BI0-7: A tree permit shall be obtained from the City prior to the removal of any tree 
protected by City ordinance on the project site or off-site improvement areas. To 
offset impacts resulting from the removal of protected trees, replacement trees 
shall be planted in designated open space areas such as multi-family landscaped 
areas or streetscape on the project site. Tree replacement shall be at a 1: 1 ratio 
(that is, for each tree removed, one tree shall be planted as a replacement). 
Replacement trees shall be native California species that are native to the 
Newark area. 

A Tree Management Plan shall be prepared for the proposed project if tree 
removal occurs. Preparation of this plan and subsequent planting and monitoring 
shall be a condition of project approval and shall be tied to a security bond or cash 
deposit posted by the developer with the City to pay for any remedial work that 
might need to occur, if the prior effort fails. 

All planted trees shall be provided with a buried irrigation system that shall be 
maintained over a minimum three-year establishment period. The irrigation 

GATEWAY STAT/ON WESTSEIR 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONS1DERA110NS 

22 
DECEMBER 20] 5 



Rationale 

system shall be placed on automatic electric or battery operated timers so that 
trees are automatically watered during the dry months of the establishment period. 
At the end of the 3-year establishment period, the irrigation system could be 
removed, if necessary. The planted trees' health shall be monitored annually for 
5 years by a qualified biologist or arborist. Annual monitoring reports shall be 
submitted to the City. 

At the end of a five-year monitoring period, at least 80 percent of planted trees 
shall be in good health. If the number of planted trees falls below an 80 percent 
survival rate, additional trees shall be planted to bring the total number of planted 
trees up to 100 percent of the original number of trees planted. Irrigation and 
follow-up monitoring shall be established over an additional three-year period 
after any replanting occurs. Any replanting and follow-up monitoring shall be 
reported in annual reports prepared for the City, Community Development 
Department. A performance bond, letter of credit, or other financial instrument 
shall be established to pay for any remedial work that might need to occur, if the 
prior effort fails. 

The City has a goal (General Plan Goal CS-4) to conserve and manage the City's tree resources 
and urban forest. Chapter 8.16 of the Municipal Code regulates the cutting down, destruction, or 
removal of any tree with a trunk diameter of 6 inches or greater at 4 feet above ground level 
allows the City to regulate tree removal in the City. The mitigation measure above is consistent 
with the City's regulatory requirements related to tree resource conservation and management, 
and would minimize and abate impacts to trees as a result of the proposed project. 
Implementation of the above mitigation measure would minimize impacts to trees to less than 
significant. The City finds that, pursuant to Section 1509l(a)(l) of the State CEQA 
Guidelines, changes or alterations have been required in or incorporated into the project, 
which would mitigate or avoid potential impacts to trees meeting the requirements for protection 
under the City Municipal Code. The City further finds that the change or alteration in the 
project or the requirement to impose the mitigation as a condition of project approval is 
within the jurisdiction of the City to require, and that this mitigation is appropriate and 
feasible. 

Potential Impact - Salt Marsh Harvest Mouse 

Based on a habitat assessment prepared by a qualified CDFW and USFWS pe1mitted salt marsh 
harvest biologist, the project is not expected to impact the salt marsh harvest mouse. To bolster 
this finding, the applicant has installed exclusionary fencing along the southern and western 
project site boundaries and proposes to voluntarily implement protective measures for salt marsh 
harvest mouse during culvert replacement activities. 

Mitigation Measure 

MM 4.3-1 of the Dumbarton TOD Specific Plan PEIR requires that a CDFW and USFWS 
permitted federal and state permitted salt marsh harvest mouse biologist conduct a habitat 

GATEWAY STATION WEST SEJR 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERR/0/NG CONS/OERATIONS 

23 
DECEMBER 20/5 



assessment to determine whether suitable habitat is present for salt marsh harvest mouse. If the 
conclusion is rendered by the CDFW and USFWS-qualified biologist that no impacts to the salt 
marsh harvest mouse would occur, the standards of care dictated by CEQA will be met and no 
further action shall be warranted. Dr. Gretchen Padgett-Flohr determined that the site does not 
contain suitable habitat to support SMHM and that none would be affected by its development 
(HELIX 2015c). That conclusion was bolstered by an additional pedestrian survey of the site by 
Dr. Padgett-Flohr on July 10, 2014 that also concluded that no suitable habitat was present on the 
site. Based on these findings by a qualified, CDFW and USFWS permitted salt marsh harvest 
biologist, the standards of care dictated by CEQA have been met and no further action is 
warranted, and no compensatory mitigation is required. 

However, to bolster this finding, the applicant proposes to voluntarily implement protective 
measures for salt marsh harvest mouse during culvert replacement activities in the culvert 
replacement site. The project specific mitigation is presented below based on the requirements 
ofMM4.3-l. 

MM BI0-8 A qualified biologist (biological monitor) shall be on site in the culvert 
replacement site during pre-construction and culvert replacement activities. 

Vegetation required to be removed in the culvert replacement site shall be 
removed by hand, and the area to be cleared would be minimized to the extent 
possible. Removed vegetation shall be stockpiled in areas away from the 
work activities. 

Mouse-proof fencing shall be installed prior to culvert replacing activities, and 
maintained for the duration of construction. Prior to installing the salt marsh 
harvest mouse fence, all vegetation must be cleared from alongside the fence line 
route. The fencing shall be installed around the work area to prevent mice from 
entering the work area. The fencing shall be climb-proof ( for example, smooth 
plastic, not silt fencing), and installed in such a manner that the salt marsh harvest 
mouse cannot dig under the fence. The salt marsh harvest mouse is known to be 
an agile climber, but rarely digs extensively; regardless, fencing materials must 
account for both behaviors. 

The salt marsh harvest mouse fence shall be constructed using eight-millimeter 
plastic sheeting that is sandwiched between wooden stakes and buried in a 
minimum six-inch deep trench. The stakes shall screw together, firmly 
sandwiching the plastic in place. It is mandatory to sandwich the plastic between 
stakes if the fence is to last through even moderate winds. The finished installed 
fence shall be three feet above the ground. The plastic sheeting shall be smooth 
and non-climbable, and shall be buried and stapled to the ground at three-inch 
intervals to prevent rodents from digging under the fence. If construction 
activities occur for longer than three months from when the fence was installed, 
the fencing shall be replaced after three months. The integrity of the salt marsh 
harvest mouse fencing shall be inspected on a weekly basis by the 
biological monitor. 

GATEWAY STATION WESTSEIR 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF O VERRID/NG CONSIDERATIONS 

24 
DECEMBER 2015 



3. Cultural Resources 

Potential Impacts -Archaeological Resources and Human Remains 

Although there are no known culturally significant resources on site and their discovery is 
unlikely, there is always the potential for the existence of buried archaeological materials within 
the project area and associated off-site improvements. If previously unidentified resources are 
discovered during constrnction, these impacts could be significant. Ground disturbing activities 
could uncover human remains, which would be considered a potentially significant impact. 

Mitigation Measures 

MM 4.4-la. Prior to the issuance of grading permits for future development allowed within the 
Dumbarton TOD Specific Plan area, project sponsors shall retain qualified 
archaeologists meeting the Secretary of the Interior's Professional Qualification 
Standards for prehistoric and historic archaeologist. The qualified archaeologists · 
shall train the constrnction crew on the mechanisms used to identify cultural 
resources and to caution them on the legal and/or regulatory implications of 
knowingly destroying cultural resources or removing artifacts or human remains 
from the project sites. 

In accordance with State CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5, should subsurface 
deposits believed to be cultural in origin be discovered during the construction of 
future development projects within the project site, then all work shall halt within 
a 200-foot radius of the discovery. A qualified professional archaeologist, 
meeting the Secretary of the Interior's Professional Qualification Standards for 
prehistoric and historic archaeologist, shall be retained at the project sponsor's 
expense to evaluate the significance of the find. Work shall not continue at the 
discovery site until the archaeologist conducts sufficient research and data 
collection to make a determination that the resource is either: (I) not cultural in 
origin; or (2) not potentially significant or eligible for listing on the NRHP or the 
CRHP. 

If a potentially eligible resource is encountered, then the archaeologist, lead 
agency, and project sponsor shall arrange for either: (I) total avoidance of the 
resource, if possible; or (2) test excavations to evaluate eligibility and, if eligible, 
data recovery as mitigation. The determination shall be formally documented in 
writing and submitted to the lead agency and filed with the Northwest Information 
Center as verification that the provisions in this mitigation measure have been 
met. 

If human remains of any kind are found during construction acttv1ttes, all 
activities shall cease immediately and the Alameda County Coroner shall be 
notified as required by State law (Section 7050.5 of the Health and Safety Code). 
If the coroner determines the remains to be of Native American origin, he or she 
shall notify the NARC. The NARC shall then identify the most likely 
descendant(s) (MLD) to be consulted regarding treatment and/or reburial of the 

GATEWAYSTA110N WESTSEJR 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

25 
DECEMBER 20/ 5 



Rationale 

remains (Section 5097.98 of the PRC). If an MLD cannot be identified, or the 
MLD fails to make a recommendation regarding the treatment of the remains 
within 48 hours after gaining access to the remains, the City shall rebury the 
Native American human remains and associated grave goods with appropriate 
dignity on the property in a location not subject to further subsurface disturbance. 
Work can continue once the MLD's recommendations have been implemented or 
the remains have been reburied if no agreement can be reached with the MLD 
(Section 5097.98 of the Public Resources Code). 

The above mitigation measure will reduce potentially significant impacts to previously 
undiscovered cultural resources and human remains by stipulating the notification requirements 
and post-discovery actions in the event such resources are encountered during construction. 
These actions would ensure that relevant information contained in the archaeological resources, 
which is important to understanding human history, is preserved. 

In the event that human remains are unearthed, the County Coroner and the MLD would be 
notified of the discovery to ensure that the proper steps are taken. Mitigation would reduce 
impacts to human remains to below a level of significance because, based on the determined 
significance, the site would be avoided or recovery would be allowed, and the human remains 
would not be destroyed. The proposed mitigation would ensure that any discovered human 
remains would be preserved for the County Coroner and/or the MLD and associated tribe. The 
City finds that, pursuant to Section 1509l(a)(l) of the State CEQA Guidelines, changes or 
alterations have been required in or incorporated into the project, which would mitigate or avoid 
potential impacts to cultural resources and human remains. The City futther finds that the 
change or alteration in the project or the requirement to impose the mitigation as a condition of 
project approval is within the jurisdiction of the City to require, and that this mitigation is 
appropriate and feasible. 

4. Geology 

Potential Impact 

The proposed project would result in significant potential impacts related to seismic ground 
shaking, liquefaction, and associated effects such as dynamic settlement, manufactured slope 
instability, geologic/soil instability (including conosive soils, trench excavation instability, and 
the presence of shallow bedrock and groundwater), and expansive soils. 

Mitigation Measure 

Section 4.5 of the Dumbarton TOD Specific Plan PEIR identified MM 4.5-1 to address identified 
potentially significant geology/soils impacts within the Specific Plan area in the form of 
requiring design-level geotechnical engineering investigations for all proposed development 
within the Specific Plan area. While this requirement has been met through project-specific 
geotechnical investigations, as described in the Draft SEIR, additional project-specific 
requirements are identified below in MM GEO-I to supplement the Specific Plan PEIR 
mitigation and address site-specific geologic hazards issues identified in the project geotechnical 

GATEWAY STATION WESTSE/R 

FJNDJNGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

26 
DECEMBER 20 f 5 



investigations associated with seismic ground shaking, liquefaction and related effects, 
manufactured slope instability, geologic/soil instability, and expansive soils. 

MM GE0-1: A site-specific geotechnical investigation shall be conducted by a qualified 
engineer or engineering geologist to verify that final project plans and/or 
construction operations incorporate applicable regulatory/industty requirements 
( e.g., IBC/CBC and City standards), recommendations contained within the 
project geotechnical investigations (BSA 2013, 2014), related plan review, and 
field observations/testing. Specifically, such verification shall encompass 
requirements and recommendations related to potenially significant impacts from 
seismic ground shaking, liquefaction and related effects, manufactured slope 
instability, geologic/soil instability (including corrosive soils, trench instability, 
and shallow bedrock/groundwater), and expansive soils. The results of the noted 
investigation shall be documented by the project engineer or engineering 
geologist and submitted to the City for review. 

Rationale 

The above mitigation measure will reduce potentially significant impacts to geology and soils by 
requiring that site specific investigations be performed, and recommendations provided by a 
project engineer or engineering geologist to verify that the project plans are consistent with 
applicable regulatory/industry requirements. Compliance with requirements and standards 
established by the City and IBC/CBC would reduce risks associated with seismic ground 
shaking, liquefaction and related effects, manufactured slope instability, geologic/soil instability, 
and expansive soils to below a level of significance. The City finds that, pursuant to Section 
1509l(a)(l) of the State CEQA Guidelines, changes or alterations have been required in or 
incorporated into the project, which would mitigate or avoid potential impacts to cultural 
resources and human remains. The City further finds that the change or alteration in the project 
or the requirement to impose the mitigation as a condition of project approval is within the 
jurisdiction of the City to require, and that this mitigation is appropriate and feasible. 

5. Hazards and Hazardous Material 

Potential Impacts 

Implementation of the proposed project would result in significant potential impacts related to 
the known and (potentially) unknown occurrence of hazardous materials within the project site 
and adjacent properties, the potential release of hazardous materials from more distant off-site 
sources, and effects to existing on-site groundwater monitoring wells associated with off-site 
remediation efforts. Impacts as a result of potential release of hazardous materials from more 
distant off-site sources are significant and unavoidable and are discussed in Section C. 

Mitigation Measures 

Specific Plan Mitigation Measures 

The following mitigation measures are identified in the Dumbarton TOD Specific Plan PEIR. 
Portions of MM 4.7-la have been implemented through completion of the project Phase I and 

GATEWAY STATION WESTSE/R 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

27 
DECEMBER 20/5 



Phase II ESA investigations, including summarizing available information, assessing data gaps, 
and identifying and implementing additional investigations such as health risk assessments (with 
the remaining requirements in this measure addressed below in more detail as part of project
specific MMs under MM HZ-2). Pertinent elements of the TOD Specific Plan PEIR MMs 4.7-
lb through 4.7-le remain applicable to the proposed project and shall be implemented prior to 
site disturbance to address associated environmental impacts: 

MM 4.7-lb Prior to grading permit issuance, areas to be graded shall be cleared of debris, 
significant vegetation, pre-existing abandoned utilities, buried structures, and 
asphalt concrete. 

MM 4. 7-lc Prior to the import of a soil to a particular property within the Specific Plan area 
as part of that property's site development, such soils shall be sampled for toxic or 
hazardous materials exceeding applicable Environmental Screening Levels for the 
proposed land use at such a property as required by the Oversight Agency prior to 
importing to such a property. 

MM 4.7-ld Areas containing Naturally Occurring Asbestos (NOA) within the Dumba1ton 
TOD Specific Plan area shall be confirmed prior to grading permit issuance. Prior 
to grading or construction of a particular property containing NOA, an application 
from the Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) shall be 
required for projects over one-acre in size. Dust control and an NOA air 
monitoring program shall be required. Additionally, the following general 
construction practices shall be adhered to for those properties containing NOA: 

• The site shall be maintained in a wet condition to prevent airborne dust. 
On-site soil shall be wetted during grading and trenching operations. 

• Over excavation and removal of NOA material to one foot below utility is 
recommended for utility corridors. 

MM 4.7-le On those properties where NOA is known to occur, the following measures shall 
be used for guidance only. The specific requirements for each property shall be 
determined by the risks involved and appropriate mitigation measures required to 
protect human health. 

• Detached Single Family Residences - A mm1mum 3-foot soil cover in 
building pad areas, extending at least 5 feet beyond the building perimeter is 
recommended. Deed restrictions should be considered (such as not allowing 
swimming pools) if there is less than 10-feet of soil cover over the serpentinite 
with NOA. 

• Podium Type Multi-Unit Residential Structures - A minimum 2-foot thick 
soil cover is recommended. 

• Pavement and Concrete Hardscape - If NOA material is covered to prevent 
airborne dust after construction, soil cover is not required. 

GATEWAY STA110N WEST SEIR 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

28 
DECEMBER 2015 



• Landscaped Areas - A minimum 2-foot thick soil cover in landscaped areas is 
recommended. 

Project-Specific Mitigation Measures 

A number of additional project-specific requirements are identified below to supplement the 
noted Specific Plan PEIR mitigation and address associated potential impacts related hazards and 
hazardous materials. 

MMHZ-1 

MMHZ-2 

A qualified hazardous materials specialist shall review final project grading and 
development plans prior to approval to verify related conditions and assumptions 
in the project Phase I and Phase II ESAs, or to identify modified and/or 
additional requirements. 

After completion of final project grading and development plans, but prior to the 
issuance of grading or building permits for the proposed Gateway Station West 
project, a Hazardous Materials Remediation Plan (HMRP) shall be prepared by a 
qualified hazardous materials specialist and submitted to the City and applicable 
Oversight Agencies (e.g., the RWQCB, DTSC and County DEH) for review and 
approval. The HMRP shall address remediation requirements (as applicable) for 
all potential hazardous material impacts identified in the project Phase I and 
Phase II ESAs, as well as other pertinent sources, based on review of final project 
grading and development plans. Specifically, remediation requirements in the 
HMRP shall include the following: 

• REC No. I - Former Magnesia Site. If the project grading plans identify 
deeper excavations (e.g., underground utilities) in applicable portions of 
the REC No. 1 area, associated soils exhibiting the following 
characteristics shall be removed and properly disposed of at an approved 
off-site location: (1) arsenic concentrations above the identified 
background level (11 mg/kg); (2) cobalt concentrations above the 
identified screening level (23 mg/kg); and (3) pH levels above 8.5. 

• REC No. 2 - Impacted Groundwater. Pursuant to coordination with and 
direction by the RWQCB, vapor intrusion engineering controls (e.g., seals 
or barriers) shall be implemented in applicable locations to address 
potential VOC vapor intrusion impacts from shallow groundwater. 

• REC No. 4 - Former NSC Area. Soils within the proposed development 
area exhibiting the following characteristics shall be removed and properly 
disposed of at an approved off-site location: ( 1) arsenic concentrations 
above the identified background level (11 mg/kg); (2) lead concentrations 
above the identified screening level (80 mg/kg); and (3) PAH compounds 
with concentrations above the identified screening levels ( as identified for 
individual compounds in the Phase II ESA, H&A 2014b ). 

GATEWAY STATION WEST SEJR 29 
DECEMBER 2015 FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERA110NS 



• REC No. 5 - Pistol Range. Soils exhibiting_cobalt concentrations above 
the identified screening level (23 mg/kg) shall be removed and properly 
disposed of at an approved off-site location. 

• REC No. 6 - Naturally Occurring Asbestos. The HMRP analysis of REC 
No. 6 shall include requirements to: (1) implement Specific Plan EIR MM 
4.7-ld, including dust control, air quality monitoring, and overexcavation 
for applicable utilities, as well as other pertinent measures identified in the 
HMRP (if applicable); and (2) review the NOA requirements identified in 
Specific Plan EIR MM 4.7-le to determine if the associated requirements 
are applicable to the proposed project, or to identify other applicable 
measures to provide appropriate remediation of NOA in conformance with 
associated regulatory standards. 

• REC No. 7 - E-1 Drainage Ditch. Soils along the entire length of the E-1 
Drainage Ditch that exhibit the following characteristics shall be removed 
and properly disposed of at an approved off-site location: (I) arsenic 
concentrations above the identified background level ( 11 mg/kg); (2) lead 
concentrations above the identified screening level (80 mg/kg); (3) PAH 
compounds with concentrations above the identified screening levels ( as 
identified for individual compounds in the Phase II ESA, H&A 2014b ); 
( 4) TPHd and TPHmo with concentrations above the identified screening 
levels (110 mg/kg for TPHd, and 2,500 mg/kg for TPHmo); and (5) pH 
levels above 8.5. 

• REC No. 8 - E-1 Settling Ponds and Detention Basin. Soils exhibiting the 
following characteristics shall be removed and properly disposed of at an 
approved off-site location: (I) cobalt concentrations at the detention basin 
above the identified screening level (23 mg/kg); (2) TPHd at the detention 
basin with concentrations above the identified screening level 
(110 mg/kg); and (3) pH levels above 8.5 at the settling ponds and 
detention basin. 

• REC No. 9 - Historical Industrial Use. Based on the extensive history of 
industrial activities within and adjacent to the project site, all applicable 
project-related grading and excavation activities (as identified in the 
HMRP) shall be monitored by a qualified hazardous materials specialist 
for the potential occurrence of currently unknown hazardous materials or 
other hazards. If such conditions are encountered, activities shall cease in 
the subject area until appropriate remediation efforts are identified by a 
qualified hazardous materials specialist, reviewed and approved by the 
appropriate regulatory agencies, and properly implemented. 

MM HZ-3 All project grading, excavation and development activities in the vicinity of the 
four on-site groundwater monitoring wells (W-25 and B-26 through B-28, refer to 
SEIR Figure 4.7-1) shall conform with applicable related requirements in the 
ACWD Groundwater Protection Act (Ordinance No, 2010-01). Specifically, the 
project applicant ( or a designated representative of the applicant) shall provide 

GATEWAY STATION WEST SEJR 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

30 
DECEMBER 2015 



written verification to the City that all applicable requirements related to well 
protection, destrnction and/or abandonment have been implemented to the 
satisfaction of the ACWD. 

Rationale 

The above mitigation measures will reduce potential impacts related to hazardous materials to a 
less than significant level. The mitigation measures require abatement for areas containing 
NOA, and remediation for areas containing hazardous materials identified in the Phase I 
Environmental Assessment. The City finds that, pursuant to Section 1509l(a)(l) of the State 
CEQA Guidelines, changes or alterations have been required in or incorporated into the project, 
which would mitigate or avoid potential impacts to hazardous materials within the project site 
and adjacent properties, and effects to existing on-site groundwater monitoring wells associated 
with off-site remediation efforts. The City further finds that the change or alteration in the 
project or the requirement to impose the mitigation as a condition of project approval is within 
the jurisdiction of the City to require, and that this mitigation is appropriate and feasible. 

6. Hydrology and Water Quality 

Potential Impacts 

Prior to mitigation, implementation of the proposed project would result in significant potential 
impacts to local groundwater resources associated with the use of subsurface measures to address 
identified liquefaction hazards ( e.g., the installation of subdrains or piles, and implementation of 
efforts such as soil vibrocompaction, grouting and deep mixing), as well as water quality 
concerns related to the discharge of extracted groundwater (if required). 

Mitigation Measures 

Section 4.8 of the Dumbarton TOD Specific Plan PEIR identified MM 4.8-4a to address 
identified potentially significant hydrology impacts within the Specific Plan area in the form of 
requiring detailed hydrology studies for all proposed development within the Specific Plan area. 
While this requirement has been met through the project-specific Drainage/Water Quality 
Technical Memorandum (CB&G 2015b), additional project-specific requirements are identified 
below to supplement the Specific Plan PEIR mitigation and address potential impacts related to 
the protection of groundwater resources and water quality effects from the disposal of 
extracted groundwater. 

An additional mitigation measure identified for hydrology/water quality in the Specific Plan 
PEIR (MM 4.8-4b) is related to storm drain lines crossing the Hetch Hetchy Pipeline corridor 
(not part of the proposed project), and is thus not applicable to the current project. 

MM HYD-1: All project dewatering operations, subsurface activities related to on-site 
remediation of liquefaction hazards ( e.g., the installation of subdrains or piles, and 
implementation of efforts such as soil vibrocompaction, grouting and deep 
mixing), and other pertinent activities, shall conform with applicable related 
requirements in the ACWD Groundwater Protection Act (Ordinance 
No. 2010-01). Specifically, the project applicant (or a designated representative 

GATEWAY STATION WEST SEJR 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

31 
DECEMBER 2015 



of the applicant) shall provide written verification to the City that all applicable 
requirements related to dewatering operations and subsurface activities ( as 
described) have been implemented to the satisfaction of the ACWD. 

MM HYD-2 All project-related groundwater extraction disposal operations shall conform with 
applicable waste discharge requirements issued by the RWQCB for disposal of 
extracted groundwater (if such waste discharge requirements are issued by the 
RWQCB). Specifically, the project applicant (or a designated representative of 
the applicant) shall consult with the RWQCB prior to implementing on-site 
dewatering activities to determine if such waste discharge requirements are 
required, and shall provide written verification to the City that either: (I) no waste 
discharge requirements related to project dewatering are required by the RWQCB; 
or (2) all applicable requirements related to dewatering operations have been 
implemented to the satisfaction of the RWQCB. 

Rationale 

The above mitigation measures will reduce potential impacts to hydrology and water quality to a 
less than significant level by requiring the applicant to obtain verification from the appropriate 
regulatory agencies that the applicable requirements by that agency have been implemented to 
the satisfaction of the agency. The City finds that, pursuant to Section 1509\(a)(l) of the State 
CEQA Guidelines, changes or alterations have been required in or incorporated into the project, 
which would mitigate or avoid potential impacts to hydrology and water quality. The City 
further finds that the change or alteration in the project or the requirement to impose the 
mitigation as a condition of project approval is within the jurisdiction of the City to require, and 
that this mitigation is appropriate and feasible. 

7. Noise 

Potential Impact - Temporary Increase in Ambient Noise 

Construction of the project would generate elevated noise levels that may disrupt nearby noise 
sensitive receptors. The magnitude of the impact would depend on the type of construction 
activity, equipment, duration of each construction phase, distance between the noise source and 
receptor, and the presence of any intervening structures. The project has incorporated design 
measures to reduce the potential effects of construction noise; nonetheless, there is the potential 
for disruption of nearby sensitive receptors, which would be considered a significant impact. 

Mitigation Measure 

MM 4.10-1 b from the Dumbarton TOD Specific Plan PEIR requires project applicants to 
implement a list of measures to respond to and track complaints pertaining to construction noise, 
ongoing throughout demolition, grading, and/or construction. 

GATEWAY STATION WEST SEJR 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

32 
DECEMBER 20] 5 



MM4.10-lb 

• Identify a procedure and phone numbers for notifying the City Building Inspection 
Division staff and Newark Police Department ( during regular construction hours and 
off-hours); 

• Post a sign on site pertaining to the permitted construction days and hours and complaint 
procedures and who to notify in the event of a problem. The sign shall also include a 
listing of both the City and construction contractor's telephone numbers ( during regular 
construction hours and off-hours); 

• Designate an on-site construction complaint and enforcement manager for the project. 
The manager shall act as a liaison between the project and its neighbors (including on-site 
residents). The manager's responsibilities and authority shall include the following: 

o An active role in monitoring project compliance with respect to noise; 

o Ability to reschedule noisy construction activities to reduce effects on 
surrounding noise sensitive receivers; 

o Site supervision of all potential sources of noise ( e.g., material delivery, shouting, 
debris box pick-up and delive1y) for all trades; and, 

o Intervening or discussing mitigation options with contractors. 

• Notify neighbors and occupants within 300 feet of the project construction area at least 
30 days in advance of construction activities regarding the details and estimated durntion 
of the activity; and, 

• Hold a preconstruction meeting with the job inspectors and the general contractor/on-site 
project manager to confirm that noise measures and practices (including construction 
hours, neighborhood notification, posted signs, etc.) are completed. 

Rationale 

The above mitigation measure would reduce impacts to sensitive receptors from construction 
noise to less than significant, because the City and construction contractor would be responsible 
for informing the nearby residents of the potential disturbance, and there would be a notification 
system in place in the event a sensitive receptor is disturbed. Through public involvement and 
active responsiveness to the concerns of the nearby residents, the potential impact would be 
reduced to less than significant. The City finds that, pursuant to Section 1509l(a)(l) of the State 
CEQA Guidelines, changes or alterations have been required in or incorporated into the project, 
which would mitigate or avoid potential impacts from construction noise on nearby sensitive 
receptors. The City further finds that the change or alteration in the project or the requirement to 
impose the mitigation as a condition of project approval is within the jurisdiction of the City to 
require, and that this mitigation is appropriate and feasible. 

GATEWAY STATION WEST SEJR 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND S1~TEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONS1DERA110NS 

33 
DECEMBER 2015 



Potential Impact - On-site Stationary Noise Source (Residential HVAC Units) 

The proposed project would result in potentially significant impacts from noise where ground
mounted heating, ventilation, and air-conditioning (HVAC) equipment would be located closer 
than 25 feet from adjacent residential property lines. 

Mitigation Measure 

MM NOI-1 HVAC Condenser Noise Attenuation. For residences located within 25 feet of 
ground-mounted HVAC equipment, attenuation of exterior HVAC noise to levels 
to 45 dBA LEQ (for usable outdoor space) shall be ensured prior to issuance of 
certificates of occupancy. For single-family attached or multi-family 
development, potential noise control measures to achieve the performance 
standard for outdoor usable space include, but are not limited to: noise control 
barriers around the HV AC units and/or the outdoor usable space, and/or installing 
roof-mounted units with a standard parapet wall. 

Rationale 

The above mitigation measure would reduce noise impacts by ensuring that noise levels from the 
HV AC equipment would be reduced to below the 45 dBA threshold for adjacent residential 
properties. Implementation of this mitigation measure would reduce the potentially significant 
impacts to less than significant. 

The City finds that, pursuant to Section 1509l(a)(I) of the State CEQA Guidelines, changes or 
alterations have been required in or incorporated into the project, which would mitigate or avoid 
potential impacts from HV AC noise on nearby residences. The City further finds that the change 
or alteration in the project or the requirement to impose the mitigation as a condition of project 
approval is within the jurisdiction of the City to require, and that this mitigation is appropriate 
and feasible. 

Potential Impact - Cumulative 

Implementation of the proposed project would result in cumulative 2035 traffic noise levels 
along Enterprise Drive between Hickory Street and Willow Street contributing to a significant 
cumulative impact at a representative distance of 75 feet from the roadway. 

Mitigation Measure 

The following MMs shall be implemented to reduce cumulative traffic nmse levels along 
Enterprise Drive from Hickory Street to Willow Street. 

MM NOI-2 Reduce Posted Speed Levels alimg Enterprise Drive. Prior to the issuance of 
building permits, the project applicant shall coordinate with the City's Public 
Works Director to change the posted speed limit along Enterprise Drive (between 
Hickory Street and Willow Street) to 25 mph. Implementation of this measure 
shall be indicated on all project plans and specifications. 

GATEWAY S1~TION WESTSEIR 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

34 
DECEMBER 2015 



MM NOI-3 Site-Specific Noise Analysis for Proposed Uses along Enterprise Drive. Prior 
to the approval of building permits for residences located along Enterprise Drive 
between Hickory Street and Willow Street, a site-specific acoustic analysis shall 
be conducted to ensure exterior and interior sound levels are equal to or less than 
the applicable allowable limits (60 CNEL for single-family exterior, 65 CNEL for 
multi-family exterior, 45 CNEL for residential interior). 

Rationale 

The above mitigation measures will reduce noise impacts from cumulative traffic along 
Enterprise Drive from Hickory Street to Willow Street to less than significant. Modeling results 
for the Year 2035 scenario demonstrate that implementation of MM Noi-2 would reduce off-site 
exterior noise levels to within City standards, as shown in Appendix J Table 5-2, Mitigated 
Cumulative Exterior Traffic Noise Levels at 75-foot Representative Distance of the Draft SEIR. 
With implementation of MM Noi-3, off-site proposed uses along Enterprise Drive would not be 
exposed to interior and exterior noise levels in excess of thresholds. 

The City finds that, pursuant to Section 1509l(a)(l) of the State CEQA Guidelines, changes or 
alterations have been required in or incorporated into the project, which would mitigate or avoid 
potential impacts from cumulative traffic levels along Enterprise Drive between Hickory Street 
and Willow Street. The City further finds that the change or alteration in the project or the 
requirement to impose the mitigation as a condition of project approval is within the jurisdiction 
of the City to require, and that this mitigation is appropriate and feasible. 

8. Transportation 

Potential Impacts - Level of Service at Intersections 

Consistent with the findings in the Specific Plan PEIR, the proposed project would increase 
traffic levels and would have a direct significant impact on the level of service at four 
intersections within the study area for the existing plus project, and would have a significant 
impact on the level of service at 10 future 2035 plus project (cumulative) scenarios. 

Mitigation Measures 

The following mitigation measures are from the Specific Plan PEIR, and are relevant to the 
proposed project. 

Direct Mitigation Measure 

MM 4.14-1: 

• Willow Street/Thornton Avenue: A right turn overlap phase to the northbound approach 
on Willow Street shall be provided. Additionally, a U-turn restriction for the westbound 
left turn movement on Thornton A venue shall be posted. 

GATEWAY STAT/ON WESTSEJR 

FJNDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF 0VERRJDING CONSIDERATJONS 

35 
DECEMBER 20/ 5 



• Cedar Boulevard/Thornton Avenue: An additional westbound left turn lane from 
Thornton A venue to Cedar Boulevard shall be provided. 1 

• Willow Street/Enterprise Drive: Two options for mitigation at this intersection are 
proposed by the Specific Plan, including a roundabout or signalization of the intersection. 
One of the two options shall be implemented.2 

• Cherry Street/Mowry Avenue: Mitigation measures were identified at this intersection as 
part of the Area 3 and 4 EIR. The measures proposed included the addition of a second 
left-turn lane on the westbound approach, and resulting in realignment of the east and 
westbound approaches and modification to the traffic signal. These improvements are 
not sufficient to mitigate the project's impact; additional ROW to widen this approach 
may be needed. Therefore, additional mitigation measures were identified: 

o The westbound approach of the intersection of Cherry Street/Mowry Avenue shall 
be modified to include a right turn and a through-right turn lane. This 
improvement would require modification of the traffic signal and removal of the 
existing pork chop island. 

Cumulative Mitigation Measures 

MM4.14-6: 

• SR 84 Eastbound Ramps/Thornton Avenue: An additional eastbound right turn lane on 
the SR 84 Eastbound Off-Ramp at the intersection of SR 84 Eastbound Ramps/Thornton 
Avenue shall be provided 

• Gateway Boulevard/Thornton Avenue: The nmthbound right turn lane on Thornton 
A venue at the intersection of Gateway Boulevard/Thornton A venue shall be restriped to 
provide a shared through-right turn lane. The existing north leg has three receiving lanes 
to make this improvement feasible. 

• Willow Street/Thornton Avenue: Mitigation for cumulative impacts will be addressed 
through implementation of the mitigation required for direct impacts at this intersection, 
as described in MM 4.14-1. 

• Cherry Street/Thornton Avenue: The intersection of Cherry Street/Thornton Avenue shall 
have an additional eastbound right tum lane on Thornton A venue. 

• Newark Boulevard/Thornton Avenue: The intersection of Newark Boulevard/Thornton 
Avenue shall have an additional northbound left turn lane on Newark Boulevard to 
accommodate the heavy left turn movement. 

1 This mitigation measure has been identified to be infeasible due to Jack of available ROW for the additional 
westbound lane. 

2 Since circulation and certification of the Dumbarton TOD Specific Plan EIR, the potential for signalization 
of this intersection has been elin1inated. Mitigation would consist of roundabout in1plementation. 

GATEWAY STATION WESTSEJR 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIOING CONSIDERATIONS 

36 
DECEMBER 2015 



• Cedar Boulevard/Thornton Avenue Mitigation for cumulative impacts will be addressed 
through implementation of the mitigation required for direct impacts at this intersection, 
as described in MM 4.14-1. 

• Willow Street/Enterprise Drive:. Mitigation for cumulative impacts will be addressed 
through implementation of the mitigation required for direct impacts at this intersection, 
as described in MM 4.14-1. While a single-lane roundabout would operate acceptably 
with the proposed traffic volumes, right-tum bypass lanes may be provided to/from the 
west leg to connect to the four-lane section of Enterprise Drive west of the intersection. 

• Cherry Street/Central Avenue: The intersection of Cherry Street/Central Avenue shall 
have an additional eastbound right turn lane on Central A venue. 

• Cherry Street/Mowry Avenue: Mitigation for cumulative impacts will be addressed 
through implementation of the mitigation required for direct impacts at this intersection, 
as described in MM 4.14-1. 

• 1-880 NB Ramps/Mowry Avenue: The intersection of 1-880 NB Ramps/Mowry Avenue 
shall be restriped to include a left/right share lane, resulting in the northbound approach 
having a final lane configuration of a left-turn lane, a left and right shared lane, and dual 
right-tum lanes. 

Ifrestriping of the intersection is not achievable, an alternate mitigation shall be to revise 
the City's General Plan policy to permit LOS D operations at freeway ramp intersections 
with existing or proposed bicycle facilities. CmTently, City General Plan Policy 3d states 
that the City should "Work with the State and City of Fremont to maintain LOS "C" at all 
intersections on the border of Newark, particularly Newark Boulevard/Dumbarton 
Freeway, Thornton Avenue/Dumbarton Freeway, Stevenson Boulevard/Interstate 880, 
Mowry Avenue/Interstate 880 and Thornton Avenue/Interstate 880, to accommodate 
buildout of lands in Fremont and Newark in the vicinity of the intersections." 
Additionally, General Plan Policy 2e supports completion of the Citywide Bicycle Master 
Plan, which may include new bicycle lanes on Mowry Avenue through the 1-880 
interchange. In order to recognize that automobile traffic operations should be balanced 
with bicycle access and pedestrian access across the interchange, General Plan Policy 3d 
may be amended in the following way to promote access for all travel modes: "Work 
with the State and City of Fremont to maintain LOS "C" at all intersections on the border 
of Newark, particularly Newark Boulevard/Dumbarton Freeway, Thornton Avenue/ 
Dumbarton Freeway, Stevenson Boulevard/Interstate 880, Mow1y Avenue/Interstate 880 
and Thornton Avenue/Interstate 880, to accommodate buildout of lands in Fremont and 
Newark in the vicinity of the intersections, except at intersections that are along the 
City's proposed Bikeway Network where automobile LOS D is permitted." Revision of 
the City's General Plan to permit LOS D at freeway interchange intersections along the 
proposed bicycle network would reduce this impact to less than significant. 

MM 4.14-8: Prior to issuance of building petmits for a Specific Plan use, the applicant shall 
pay all applicable transportation-related fees in accordance with the latest adopted 
fee schedule at the time permits are sought. Such fees shall include, but not be 

GATEWAY STATION WESTSE!R 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

37 
DECEMBER 20/ 5 



limited to, the City of Newark Capital Facilities Fee for Transportation, and the 
ACTC Regional Transportation Impact Fee. Payment of these fees would 
partially mitigate the impacts of the Specific Plan. 

Rationale 

The above mitigation measures will reduce the direct and cumulative significant impacts as a 
result of the proposed project at most of the impacted intersections. The mitigation measures 
include intersection modifications to improve operations with the addition of the Specific Plan 
(which includes the proposed project). The proposed mitigation at some intersections is 
infeasible, as discussed further in Section IV.B.2. The significant direct impacts at the Cedar 
Boulevard/Thornton A venue intersection are unmitigable and would remain significant and 
unavoidable. Cumulative impacts at the following intersections would remain cumulatively 
significant and unavoidable: 

• SR 84 Eastbound Ramps/Thornton Avenue 

• Cherry Street/Thornton Avenue 

• Newark Boulevard/Thornton A venue 

• Cedar Boulevard/Thornton Avenue 

• Cherry Street/Central A venue 

For all other intersections, the direct and/or cumulative impacts would be reduced to a less than 
significant level following mitigation. The City finds that, pursuant to Section 1509l(a)(l) of the 
State CEQA Guidelines, changes or alterations have been required in or incotporated into the 
project, which would mitigate or avoid potential impacts from direct and cumulative traffic 
levels in the study area. The City further finds that the change or alteration in the project or the 
requirement to impose the mitigation as a condition of project approval is within the jurisdiction 
of the City to require, and that this mitigation is appropriate and feasible. 

B. Potential Environmental Impacts Determined to be Significant and Unavoidable 
after Mitigation 

Pursuant to Section 1509l(a)(3) of the State CEQA Guidelines, the City finds that, for each of 
the following significant effects identified in the Final SEIR, specific economic, legal, social, 
technological, or other considerations make the mitigation measures or project alternatives 
infeasible: 

1. Hazardons Materials 

Potential Impact - Release of hazardous materials from more distant, off-site sources 

There is the potential for a worst-case scenario release of boron trichloride, nitrogen dioxide, 
and/or chlorine from the off-site Matheson Tri-Gas facility. Such a scenario would be a 
significant impact, although the probability for such an occurrence is considered low based on 
established regulatory requirements and industry standards designed to avoid or minimize such 
releases. 

GATEWAY STATION WEST SEIR 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

38 
DECEMBER 2015 



Mitigation Measnre 

There are no feasible project-specific mitigation measures beyond those established by 
regulatory requirements and industry standards that are designed to avoid or minimize such 
releases. These regulatory requirements and industry standards are ah·eady in place and no 
mitigation measure would affect their efficacy. 

Rationale 

The source of the potential release of hazardous materials is off of the project site and is under 
operation by other entities. As previously stated, the facility is under operation based on 
established regulatory requirements and industry standards designed to avoid or minimize 
accidental releases. There are no feasible project-specific mitigation measures that could be 
implemented. 

2. Transportation and Traffic 

Potential Impact - Level of Service at Cedar Boulevard/Thornton Avenue 

Implementation of the project would result in the existing level of service at the Cedar 
Boulevard/Thornton Avenue intersection to degrade to unacceptable levels during the p.m. peak 
hour and would exacerbate operations by increasing the average delay by four or more seconds 
during the a.m. peak hour. 

Mitigation Measures 

The Specific Plan PEIR includes the following mitigation measure to address the level of 
service: 

MM 4.14-1 Cedar Boulevard/Thornton Avenue: An additional westbound left turn lane from 
Thornton Avenue to Cedar Boulevard shall be provided. 

Rationale 

MM 4.14-1 is a mitigation measure contained in the Specific Plan PEIR; however, this measure 
is infeasible due to a lack of available ROW along Thornton Avenue for the additional 
westbound lane, and potential secondaiy impacts (e.g., increased pedestrian crossing distances). 
No feasible mitigation measures, beyond the project design features already incorporated into the 
project, are currently available to address the operational phase level of service at the 
intersection. For this intersection, the impact would remain significant and unavoidable. 

Potential Impact - Increased Demand for Public Transit 

The Dumbarton TOD Specific Plan PEIR identified significant impacts related to an increased 
demand for public transit lines serving the area as a result of Specific Plan implementation. 
Within the immediate project area, AC Transit's Line 275, a local bus line, has a stop along 
Willow Street approximately 0.2 mile from the project site. Although the project's design would 
accommodate transit services such as bus stops, shelters, and planned sidewalks to access future 

GATEWAY STAT/ON WEsrSEIR 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONS1DERA110NS 

39 
DECEMBER 2015 



facilities, significant impacts are identified related to an increased demand for public transit lines 
and a need for action by the Alameda County Transit (ACT). 

Mitigation Measure 

The Specific Plan PEIR includes the following mitigation measure to address public transit 
needs: 

MM 4.14-2 The City shall coordinate with AC Transit to improve bus service to the Specific 
Plan area to lessen the impact of vehicular traffic on the local and regional 
roadways. Potential transit accommodations may include: 

Rationale 

• Implementation of shuttle service to the Ardenwood Park and Ride lot to 
provide a connection to the Dumbarton Express bus line and the Fremont 
and/or Union City BART stations 

• Rerouting bus lines 251 and/or 275 through the Specific Plan area to provide 
convenient stop(s) with bus shelters and benches 

• Addition of a new bus line to serve the Specific Plan area 

As the future of the DRC Project is uncertain and improved bus service to the Specific Plan area 
cannot be guaranteed (as it is under Alameda County Transit's jurisdiction) as required in 
MM 4.14-2, this impact would remain significant and unavoidable. The cunent City General 
Plan (as amended during adoption of a Dumbarton TOD Specific Plan), allows LOS that would 
otherwise be considered unacceptable where projects are part of the City's regional effort to 
reduce vehicle trips and greenhouse gas emission, support transit and enhance the quality of life 
in the region, as is the case with the proposed project. 

Potential Impact - 2035 Cumulative Level of Service at Intersections 

Implementation of the project would result in the 2035 cumulative level of service at numerous 
intersections in the study area to degrade to unacceptable levels, by increasing the delay by four 
or more seconds. As described in Section A.8, the impacts at four intersections could be reduced 
to less than significant through implementation of the proposed mitigation. However, the 
mitigation would not be feasible at five intersections. Those intersections and the proposed 
mitigation are listed below. 

Mitigation Measure 

The Specific Plan SEIR includes the following mitigation measure to address the level of 
service: 

GATEWAY STATION WESTSEJR 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND SJ~TEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

40 
DECEMBER 20 f 5 



MM 4.14-6: 

• SR 84 Eastbound Ramps/Thornton Avenue: An additional eastbound right turn lane on 
the SR 84 Eastbound Off-Ramp at the intersection of SR 84 Eastbound Ramps/Thornton 
A venue shall be provided 

• Cherry Street/Thornton Avenue: The intersection of Cherry Street/Thornton Avenue shall 
have an additional eastbound right tum lane on Thornton Avenue. 

• Newark Boulevard/Thornton Avenue: The intersection of Newark Boulevard/Thornton 
Avenue shall have an additional northbound left turn lane on Newark Boulevard to 
accommodate the heavy left turn movement. 

• Cedar Boulevard/Thornton Avenue Mitigation for cumulative impacts will be addressed 
through implementation of the mitigation required for direct impacts at this intersection, 
as described in MM 4.14-1. 

• Cherry Street/Central Avenue: The intersection of Cherry Street/Central Avenue shall 
have an additional eastbound right tum lane on Central Avenue. 

Rationale 

MM 4.14-6 is a mitigation measure contained in the Specific Plan SEIR; however, the mitigation 
at the five intersections listed above is infeasible due to either the intersection being located 
outside of the City's jurisdiction, or due to a lack of available ROW to allow for the necessary 
roadway improvements to reduce the impact. No feasible mitigation measures, beyond the 
project design features already incorporated into the project, are currently available to address 
the operational phase level of service at the intersection. For these intersections, the cumulative 
impact would remain significant and unavoidable. 

Potential Impact - Level of Service at Five Roadway Segments 

Implementation of the Specific Plan, including the proposed project, would affect the level of 
service at the following three intersections, causing them to degrade from LOS E or better to 
LOSF: 

• Thornton Avenue, from Willow Street to Sprnce Street 

• Thornton Avenue, from Sprnce Street to Cheny Street 

• Thornton A venue, from Cedar Boulevard to I-880 Southbound Ramps 

Two additional segments would experience a V/C increase of0.02 or more of a segment already 
operating at LOS F without the project conditions: 

• I-880, from SR 84 Eastbound to Thornton Avenue 

• I-880, from Mowry A venue to Stevenson Boulevard 

Impacts at these roadway segments are potentially significant. 

GATEWAY STATION WEST SEJR 

FJNDJNGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSJDERATIONS 

41 
DECEMBER20/5 



Mitigation Measure 

The Specific Plan SEIR includes the following mitigation measure to address the level of 
service. 

MM 4.14-8: Prior to issuance of building permits for a Specific Plan use, the applicant shall 
pay all applicable transportation-related fees in accordance with the latest adopted 
fee schedule at the time permits are sought. Such fees shall include, but not be 
limited to, the City of Newark Capital Facilities Fee for Transportation, and the 
ACTC Regional Transportation Impact Fee. Payment of these fees would 
partially mitigate the impacts of the Specific Plan. 

Rationale 

The above mitigation would be required, which would reduce the traffic impacts of the Specific 
Plan regionally, but the fee program would not fully fund all of the mitigation necessary. 
Mitigation measures to reduce impacts to these roadway segments would not be feasible because 
these roadway segments are either outside of the City's jurisdiction or they do not have sufficient 
roadway ROW to allow for the necessary roadway improvements. No feasible mitigation 
measures, beyond the project design features already incorporated into the project, are currently 
available to address the operational phase level of service at the intersection. For these roadway 
segments, the impact would remain significant and unavoidable. 

C. Alternatives to the Proposed Project 

State CEQA Guidelines (Section 15126.6) require that a discussion of project alternatives be part 
of any EIR. Any such identified alternatives must significantly meet project objectives, or they 
cannot be said to be true project alternatives. Further, State CEQA Guidelines 1509l(a)(3) and 
15091 (b) require an explanation and analysis of why project alternatives are infeasible. 
Chapter 6 of the Draft SEIR discusses the following alternatives: No Project/No Build 
Alternative; No Project/Existing Specific Plan Alternative; Reduced Project Alternative; 
Wetland Avoidance Alternative. 

Significant on-site impacts associated with the proposed project include air quality, biological 
resources, cultural resources, geology and soils, hazards and hazardous materials, 
hydrology/water quality, and noise. In addition, off-site transportation/traffic impacts related to 
roadway/intersection operations were concluded to be significant and unavoidable under the 
Specific Plan and proposed project analyses. 

1. No Project/No Build Alternative 

Description 

Pursuant to Section 15126.6(e) (3)(B) of the State CEQA Guidelines, the No Project/No Build 
Alternative represents the " ... circumstance under which the project does not proceed." 
Consistent with the Specific Plan EIR, the No Project/No Build Alternative assumes that the site 
would remain in its current physical condition and would not be developed with the proposed 
project uses or any other uses permitted under the existing adopted Specific Plan. Existing on-

GATEWAY S1'A110N WEST SEJR 
FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

42 
DECEMBER 20] 5 



site structures and uses associated with the City police dog training and firing range, as well as 
private construction storage activities, could remain, along with associated land uses and 
associated indirect effects to the adjacent undeveloped open space. Even if these existing uses 
remain, this alternative would not result in additional ground disturbance or increase in intensity 
of existing use patterns. 

Environmental Effects Compared to the Proposed Project 

Accordingly, this alternative would avoid all of the potentially significant impacts associated 
with building the proposed project, including: l) air quality, 2) biological resources, 3) cultural 
resources, 4) geology and soil, 5) hazardous materials, 6) hydrology and water quality, 7) noise, 
and 8) transportation and traffic. However, the No Project/No Build Alternative would also 
reduce the likelihood that existing on-site contamination would be fully remediated (as required 
for the proposed project), based on the projected lack of incentive for new development to 
" ... absorb remediation costs and facilitate property remediation and redevelopment." Thus, this 
alternative would result in a greater impact from hazards and hazardous materials in comparison 
to the proposed project. 

Under this alternative, the open space preserve would not be established, and the existing on-site 
land uses would remain, along with the potential for indirect effects to the adjacent undeveloped 
open space. However, even with the existing land uses, the No Project/No Build Alternative 
would not result in additional ground disturbance or an increase in the intensity of the existing 
use patterns. 

Relation to Project Objectives 

The No Project/No Development Alternative would fail to meet the following project objectives: 

(I) Provide on-site residential development consistent with the densities identified in the 
Dumbarton TOD Specific Plan and the City General Plan Land Use Element, including 
housing needs identified during the period of 2015 to 2023 in the 2015 Housing 
Element Update. 

(2) Provide a mix of housing opportunities from single-family to multi-family housing to 
meet the City's housing needs. 

(3) Create a compact, walkable community with access to employment opportunities. 

( 4) Provide residential units within walking distance of the future, planned transit station to 
generate the ridership necessary to support the station in keeping with the Dumbarton 
TOD Specific Plan. 

(5) Permanently preserve and/or restore sensitive biological resources (including wetlands) 
in the southwestern portion of the Gateway Station West project site. 

( 6) Set aside land for open space preservation and recreation opportunities, including the 
candidate trail proposed for San Francisco Bay Trail status. 

GATEWAY STAT/ON WESTSE!R 43 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS DECEMBER 2015 



(7) Develop a focused new community with a distinct identity, architectural style and sense 
of place while being compatible with existing and planned neighborhoods. 

Further, because the project site would remain largely vacant, the No Project/No Build 
Alternative would be inconsistent with all housing/development-related goals and objectives in 
the City General Plan, the adopted Dumbarton TOD Specific Plan and the proposed project. Nor 
would the No Project/No Build Alternative permanently place open space into protected 
preserve, or contribute to development of recreational opportunities associated with the candidate 
regional trail proposed for the project. It also would not meet the Specific Plan goal of using 
primarily vacant land for its highest and best use. 

Because beneficial effects of development implementation relative to remediation of on-site 
contamination would not occur, and because project objectives would not be obtained, this 
alternative would be less preferred than the proposed project. 

Finding and Rationale 

This alternative is deemed infeasible because it fails to feasibly attain the basic objectives of the 
project, and would fail to provide the public benefits associated with implementation of the 
proposed project, which include: conservation of environmental resources ( 63 percent of the on
site wetland habitats would be preserved in the open space preserve); provision of housing within 
a walkable/bikeable distance to employment opportunities, generation of the ridership necessary 
to support public transportation, and site remediation. 

2. No Project/Existing Specific Plan Alternative 

Description 

Pursuant to Section 15126.6(e)(3)(A), "when the project is a revision of an existing land use or 
regulatory plan, policy or ongoing operation, the no project alternative will be the continuation of 
the existing plan, policy or ongoing operation." In the current case, the Dumbarton TOD 
Specific Plan was adopted by the City in 2011. Although no Specific Plan Amendment is 
required due to the fact that the proposed changes are within the amount of variance permitted 
under the approved Specific Plan (up to 20 percent), the proposed project does propose land uses 
that would result in impacts different from those assessed under the adopted Specific Plan. The 
impacts of the proposed project are therefore also compared with impacts anticipated to occur 
under the existing plan (the Dumbarton TOD Specific Plan). Under this scenario, only the 
portions of the plan applicable to the proposed project area (generally west of Hickory Street and 
south of Enterprise Drive) are addressed. 

Both the No Project/Existing Specific Plan Alternative (Existing Specific Plan Alternative) and 
the proposed project would affect 54.53 acres within the original full Specific Plan area of 
160.3 acres. The adopted Dumbarton TOD Specific Plan shows low, medium, and medium high 
residential densities, as well as park and recreational open space acreage. Differences between 
the two plans include a decrease in residential units under the proposed project from a possible 
total of 652 to the proposed 589 residences (a difference of 63 homes), with some shifts in 
housing types as well. Acreage and locations of proposed park or open space areas would 
remain the same. It is possible that the "additional" homes proposed for the Gateway Station 

GATEWAY STATION WEST SE!R 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND S1~1'EMENTOF OVERRIDING CONSIDERA110NS 

44 
DECEMBER 2015 



West development area under the Specific Plan would simply be transfetTed to another property 
within the Specific Plan, in accordance with policies in the plan. 

Environmental Effects Compared to the Proposed Project 

Similar to the proposed project, implementation of the Existing Specific Plan Alternative would 
introduce structures and associated infrastructure in a currently largely undeveloped site. The 
Existing Specific Plan Alternative would have a development footprint matching the proposed 
project, although the density of residences would be increased. Implementation of the Existing 
Specific Plan Alternative would be anticipated to result in incrementally greater impacts 
associated with direct and/or cumulative air quality, biology, noise, and transportation and 
traffic; and impacts similar to those described for the proposed project for the issues of cultural 
resources, geology and soils, hazards and hazardous materials, and hydrology/water quality. 

The projected maximum daily emissions during construction are expected to remain similar 
between the proposed project and the Existing Specific Plan Alternative. However, due to the 
increase in number of residences ( 63 units) under the Existing Specific Plan Alternative, this 
alternative would result in increased project-specific operation emissions associated with 
vehicular use over those for the proposed project. The proposed project is projected to be within 
the threshold of NOx emissions, but with the increase in residences, the Existing Specific Plan 
Alternative would result in emissions exceeding the threshold. As a result, the alternative would 
result in a significant operational impact for NOx that would not occur under the proposed 
project. 

Impacts to biological resources would be slightly greater under the Existing Specific Plan 
Alternative, as the design includes a trail following the parcel boundary lines along the south and 
west sides of the project site, thereby locating a substantial portion of the trail in the area 
proposed for open space/wetland preserve. Under the proposed project, the trail would be placed 
immediately adjacent to the development, within the development footprint, removing a passive 
use area from immediately abutting the preserve, and reducing the additional area of impact. 
Similarly, the slightly greater footprint impact associated with the trail would result in slightly 
greater potential impacts to cultural resources; although the overall impact would remain the 
same. 

Because the Existing Specific Plan Alternative would result in development of up to 63 more 
homes than the proposed project, the alternative would result in an increase in noise generated by 
HV AC systems, and an increase in the number sensitive receptors potentially affected by the 
noise. Further, this alternative would also significantly contribute to a potential cumulative noise 
impact associated with off-site project traffic. Similarly, because the proposed project would 
have fewer homes, project-generated traffic would be less than under the Existing Specific Plan 
Alternative, and would contribute less to significant and unavoidable off-site roadway and 
intersection impacts identified under the Specific Plan. 

None of the significant impacts identified for the proposed project would be avoided or 
substantially reduced under the Existing Specific Plan Alternative, and these impacts would 
remain significant. Other than the focused hazardous materials and traffic issues, which would 
remain significant and unavoidable for both the proposed project and alternative, and operational 

GATEWAY STATION WEST SEJR 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

45 
DECEMBER 2015 



NOx, which would remain significant for the alternative, all other impacts would be mitigated to 
less than significant levels for both the alternative and proposed project. 

Relation to Project Objectives 

Both the Existing Specific Plan Alternative and the proposed project would meet the identified 
project objectives. Both projects generally would: (I) provide on-site residential development 
consistent with the densities identified in the Dumbarton TOD Specific Plan and the City 
General Plan Land Use Element, including housing needs identified for the period of 2015 to 
2023 in the 2015 Housing Element Update; (2) provide a mix of housing opportunities from 
single-family to multi-family housing to meet the City's housing needs; (3) create a compact, 
walkable community with access to employment opportunities; ( 4) provide residential units 
within walking distance of the future, planned transit station to generate the ridership necessary 
to supp01t the station in keeping with the Dumbarton TOD Specific Plan; (5) permanently 
preserve and/or restore sensitive biological resources (including wetlands) in the southwestern 
portion of the Gateway Station West project site; (6) set aside land for open space preservation 
and recreation opportunities, including the candidate trail proposed for San Francisco Bay Trail 
status; and (7) develop a focused new community with a distinct identity, architectural style and 
sense of place while being compatible with existing and planned neighborhoods. 

The Existing Specific Plan Alternative would be incrementally more responsive to items I, 2 and 
4 as it could more closely adhere to the Dumbarton TOD Specific Plan densities and mix for the 
parcel, as well as the related Dumbarton TOD Specific Plan goal of developing predominantly 
vacant land for its highest and best use. As previously described, the Existing Specific Plan 
Alternative design includes a trail following the western and southern perimeter of the open 
space, which introduces direct and indirect impacts to the open space area. The proposed project 
would be incrementally more responsive to item 5, as the open space set aside under the 
proposed project would be slightly preferred over the alternative design. 

Finding and Rationale 

While this alternative could feasibly attain the basic objectives and the public benefits associated 
with implementation of the proposed project, it is considered environmentally less preferable 
than the proposed project. This is based on increased incremental significant and unavoidable 
operational impact relative to air quality (NOx), a slightly increased impact associated with an 
improved trail surrounding the open space/preserve area, as well as the increased noise and 
transportation and traffic impacts when compared with the proposed project. 

3. Reduced Project Alternative 

Description 

Under the Reduced Project Alternative, development would be scaled back in the central and 
southern portions of the project site, with an overall development area of approximately 
28.5 acres versus approximately 41 acres for the proposed project. This alternative would 
include a total of 471 residential units, or 118 fewer units compared to 589 units under the 
proposed project. The candidate regional trail identified for the proposed project also would be 
proposed as part of this alternative. For the Reduced Project Alternative, although the exact 

GATEWAYS1~TJON WESTSEIR 

FJNDJNGS OF FACT AND STATEMENTOFOVERRJDJNG CONSJDERAT!ONS 

46 
DECEMBER 2015 



footprint would vary slightly as the development footprint is somewhat smaller than the 
proposed project, it would be similar to the proposed project in that it would be sited adjacent to 
the alternative's proposed residential uses along the southerly and westerly parcel boundaries. 

Environmental Effects Compared to the Proposed Project 

Implementation of the Reduced Project Alternative would be anticipated to result in generally 
incremental reductions of impacts related to air quality, biological resources, cultural resources 
and both direct and cumulative noise and transportation and traffic, with impacts to geology and 
soils, hazards and hazardous materials, and hydrology/water quality expected to be similar to 
those described for the proposed project. All CEQA levels of impact would remain the same 
except for the one intersection at Willow Street/Thornton Avenue under Existing Plus Project 
conditions, in which significant impacts under the proposed project would be reduced to a levels 
below significant under the Reduced Project Alternative. Excluding the focused hazardous 
materials and traffic issues, which would remain significant and unmitigable for both the 
proposed project and alternative, all impacts would be mitigated to less than significant levels for 
both the alternative and proposed project. 

Relation to Project Objectives 

The Reduced Project Alternative would meet the identified project objectives; however, due to 
the reduction in residential units, the alternative would fail to meet the following project 
objectives to the same extent as the proposed project: 

(1) Provide on-site residential development consistent with the densities identified in the 
Dumbarton TOD Specific Plan and the City General Plan Land Use Element, including 
housing needs identified during the period of 2015 to 2023 in the 2015 Housing Element 
Update. 

(2) Provide a mix of housing opportunities from single-family to multi-family housing to 
meet the City's housing needs. 

(3) Provide residential units within walking distance of the future, planned transit station to 
generate the ridership necessaiy to support the station in keeping with the Dumbarton 
TOD Specific Plan. 

The proposed project would be more responsive to housing items 1, 2 and 4 as it would provide 
approximately 20 percent more homes than the alternative, which would more closely adhere to 
the Dumbarton TOD Specific Plan and updated Housing Element densities and mix for the 
parcel (as well as open space preserve), as well as the related Dumbarton TOD Specific Plan 
goal of development of predominantly vacant land for its highest and best use. The proposed 
project would place 589 residential units (93 percent of the General Plan goal) on the site, but 
would have less medium high density housing. While both development scenarios would 
contain open space area, the Reduced Project Alternative would provide an additional 12.5 acres 
( or 30 percent) more. The Reduced Project Alternative also would be more responsive to item 5 
as the larger open space set aside would be preferred over the smaller amount of open space 
associated with the proposed project. Overall, the differences in objectives attainment are 

GATEWAY STA110N WESTSE!R 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

47 
DECEMBER 2015 



the proposed project, as well as potential but currently unknown impacts to cultural resources 
(although impacts would all remain significant), as well as reductions in impacts related to air 
quality and noise (with these impacts also to remain significant). Proposed project impacts to 
jurisdictional waters would be eliminated under this alternative. Potential impacts to geology 
and soils, and hydrology/water quality under this alternative are expected to be similar to those 
described for the proposed project, and would remain significant. The alternative would be 
slightly less preferred than the proposed project for the issue of hazards and hazardous materials. 
Excluding the focused hazardous materials and traffic issues, which would remain significant 
and unmitigable for both the proposed project and alternative, all impacts would be mitigated to 
less than significant levels for both the alternative and proposed project. 

The less than significant impacts to air quality under the proposed project would be substantially 
lessened under the Wetland Avoidance Alternative, as the number ofcars would be substantially 
reduced based on the fewer residences. Short-term, construction related impacts to air quality 
associated with NOx emissions would remain significant under the Wetland Avoidance 
Alternative; however, due to the reduced footprint and shorter construction period required to 
construct a smaller development, the timeframe for the impact would be substantially shorter. 
Although the potentially significant impact would not be eliminated, it would be reduced under 
the Wetland Avoidance Alternative. 

The Wetland Avoidance Alternative would result in a disturbance footprint 75 percent less than 
the proposed project. The developable footprint would be almost wholly located within the 
ruderal/disturbed and nonnative habitats, and would avoid all impacts to wetlands and other 
waters of the U.S. on the project site and off-site improvement areas. Impacts to protected trees 
and species occurring in the ruderal/disturbed and nonnative habitats (e.g. burrowing owl and 
other raptors) would remain potentially significant. Impacts to other species would be reduced. 
Because this alternative would entirely avoid all waters of the U.S., remediation activities 
affecting waters of the U.S. would not be implemented, and the site remediation along the 
drainage ditch through the open space parcel would not occur. The habitat along the ditch would 
not be expected to improve as it would under the proposed project. 

While impacts to previously undiscovered cultural resources would remain potentially significant 
under the Wetland Avoidance Alternative, the potential for impacts would be substantially 
reduced when compared with the proposed project. 

Project-related site remediation would only occur in the vicinity of the build area; therefore, 
under the Wetland Avoidance Alternative, the area of remediation would be reduced and site 
remediation would not occur in the open space area, or the previously mentioned drainage ditch. 
Under the Wetland Avoidance Alternative, large portions of the site containing hazards issues 
would not be remediated, and some portions would be retained as open space while containing 
those hazards issues. Under the proposed project, all areas of the site containing hazards issues 
( open space and proposed for developed) would be remediated. The potential for off-site release 
of hazardous materials would remain significant and unmitigable. 

Like the proposed project, noise impacts to sensitive receptors would remain potentially 
significant for ground-mounted HV AC systems located closer than 25 feet from adjacent 
residential prope1ty lines under the Wetland Avoidance Alternative. However, the number of 

GATEWAY S1AT/ON WEST SEIR 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

49 
DECEMBER 2015 



sensitive receptors potentially impacted would be substantially reduced under the Wetland 
Avoidance Alternative. Further, due to the reduction in residents, the considerable contribution 
to noise impacts along Enterprise Drive from the proposed project would be reduced under this 
alternative, likely to a less than considerable level. 

The Wetland Avoidance Alternative would result in substantially less traffic contributed to the 
significant and unavoidable impacts to several off-site roadway segments and intersections 
resulting from the Specific Plan. Based on the reduction in traffic associated with this 
alternative, significant impacts at eight intersections under the proposed project would not occur 
under the Wetland Avoidance Alternative. Under this alternative cumulative traffic impacts at 
two additional intersections would remain significant, but would be substantially lessened from 
the proposed project. 

Relation to Project Objectives 

The Wetland Avoidance Alternative would provide 25 percent of the housing provided by the 
proposed project. As a result, the alternative would fail to meet the following project objectives 
to the same extent as the proposed project: 

(1) Provide on-site residential development consistent with the densities identified in the 
Dumbarton TOD Specific Plan and the City General Plan Land Use Element, including 
housing needs identified dming the period of 2015 to 2023 in the 2015 Housing 
Element Update. 

(2) Provide a mix of housing opportunities from single-family to multi-family housing to 
meet the City's housing needs. 

(3) Create a compact, walkable community with access to employment opportunities. 

(4) Provide residential units within walking distance of the future, planned transit station to 
generate the ridership necessary to support the station in keeping with the Dumbarton 
TOD Specific Plan. 

(5) Permanently preserve and/or restore sensitive biological resources (including wetlands) 
in the southwestern portion of the Gateway Station West project site. 

(6) Set aside land for open space preservation and recreation opportunities, including the 
candidate trail proposed for San Francisco Bay Trail status. 

The proposed project would be more responsive to housing items 1, 2, 3 and 4 as it would 
provide approximately 75 percent more homes than the alternative, which would more closely 
adhere to the Dumbarton TOD Specific Plan and updated Housing Element densities and mix for 
the parcel (as well as open space preserve), as well as the related Dumbarton TOD Specific Plan 
goal of development of predominantly vacant land for its highest and best use. Both the 
proposed project and the Wetland Avoidance Alternative would include the open space preserve; 
however, the proposed project would more closely meet the objective as it includes site 
remediation activities which are expected to improve habitat conditions. Further, due to its 
larger size, the proposed project would more fully support objective 6. 

GA1EWAY STA170N WEST SEJR 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

50 
DECEMBER 2015 



The Wetland Avoidance Alternative is expected to be similar to the proposed project in regards 
to objective 7: 

(7) Develop a focused new community with a distinct identity, architectural style and sense 
of place while being compatible with existing and planned neighborhoods. 

Finding and Rationale 

While the Wetland Avoidance Alternative would result in reduced environmental impacts related 
to air quality, biological resources, cultural resources, noise, and transportation and traffic, this 
alternative is infeasible because it does not meet the objectives specified in the Specific Plan for 
the proposed project. The Wetland Avoidance Alternative does not meet the related Dumbarton 
TOD Specific Plan goal of developing predominantly vacant land for its highest and best use. 
Further, it would fail to provide the extent of public benefits associated with implementation of 
the proposed project, including remediation of the site; provision of housing within a 
walkable/bikeable distance to employment opportnnities, and generation of the ridership 
necessary to support public transportation. 

V. STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

A. Background 

Pursuant to Section 21081 ofCEQA and Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, the City 
of Newark found that mitigation was not feasible for: (I) potentially significant impacts from the 
worst-case scenario releases of hazardous materials from existing off-site facilities; (2) 
unacceptable level of service at the Cedar Boulevard/Thornton Avenue intersection; (3) 
increased demand for public transit lines and the need for action by the Alameda County Transit; 
(4) considerable unavoidable contributions to cumulative impacts oflevel of service at a number 
of intersections under 2035 conditions; (5) considerable unavoidable contributions to cumulative 
impacts of level of service at a number of roadway segments under 2035 conditions. The 
potentially significant hazardous materials impact from off-site facilities was not addressed in the 
Specific Plan PEIR. All other significant and unavoidable impacts are consistent with the 
findings of the Specific Plan PEIR. A General Plan Amendment was processed with the City's 
adoption of the Specific Plan to allow an unacceptable level of service at major and other 
intersections for projects that are part of the City's regional effort to reduce vehicle trips and 
greenhouse gas emissions, support public transit, and enhance the quality of life in the region. 
With adoption of the General Plan Amendment, the Specific Plan was determined to be 
consistent with the General Plan policy pertaining to transportation and circulation. 

Under CEQA, before a project which is determined to have significant, unmitigated 
environmental effects can be approved, the public agency must consider and adopt a "Statement 
of Overriding Considerations" pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines 15043 and 15093. As the 
primary purpose of CEQA is to fully inform the decision makers and the public as to the 
environmental effects of a Project and to include feasible mitigation measures and alternatives to 
reduce any such adverse effects below a level of significance, CEQA nonetheless recognizes and 
authorizes the approval of projects where not all adverse impacts can be fully lessened or 
avoided. The agency, however, must explain and justify its conclusion to approve such a project 
through the Statement of Overriding Considerations setting forth the project's general social, 

GATEWAY STATION WESTSE!R 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

51 

DECEMBER 2015 



economic, policy or other public benefits which support the agency's informed conclusion to 
approve the project. 

B. Statement of Overriding Considerations 

Pursuant to PRC Section 2108l(b) and State CEQA Guidelines Section 15093, the City has 
balanced the benefits of the project against its unavoidable adverse impacts to hazardous 
materials and transpo11ation and traffic, and has adopted all feasible mitigation measures with 
respect to these significant and unavoidable impacts. The City, having considered all of the 
foregoing, finds that there are specific overriding economic, legal, social, technological, and/or 
other benefits associated with the proposed project that outweigh unavoidable direct and/or 
cumulative impacts related to the above mentioned resources. The City also has examined 
alternatives to the proposed project and found that the No Project/No Build Alternative, Reduced 
Project Alternative, and Wetland Avoidance Alternative would be environmentally superior to 
the proposed project. Still, the City determined that although environmentally superior, the build 
alternatives would also result in significant and unavoidable impacts to hazards and hazardous 
materials, and transportation and traffic. 

The City, (i) having independently reviewed the information in the SEIR and the record of 
proceedings; (ii) having made a reasonable and good faith effort to eliminate or substantially 
lessen the significant environmental impacts resulting from the project to the extent feasible by 
adopting the mitigation measures identified in the SEIR; and (iii) having balanced the benefits of 
the project against the significant environmental impacts, chooses to approve the project, despite 
its significant environmental impacts, because, in its view, specific economic, legal, social, 
technological, and Overriding Benefits of the project render the significant environmental 
impacts acceptable. 

C. Overriding Benefits 

The City of Newark finds that the proposed project would have the following substantial 
Overriding Benefits: 

1. The project will provide on-site residential development consistent with the densities 
identified in the Dumbarton TOD Specific Plan and the City General Plan Land Use 
Element, and address housing needs identified in the 2015 Housing Element Update. 

2. The project will provide a mix of housing opportunities to meet the City's housing needs. 

3. The project will create a compact, walkable community with access to employment 
opportunities within a walkable/bikeable distance. 

4. The project will help generate the ridership necessary to suppo11 the future, planned 
transit station. 

5. The project will involve remediating the entire site of hazardous materials. 

6. The project will involve developing predominantly vacant land for its highest and best 
use. 

GATEWAY STATION WESTSEJR 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

52 
DECEMBER 20/ 5 



7. The project includes trails and sidewalks, thereby encouraging alternate modes of 
transportation. 

8. The project will set aside land for open space preservation and recreational opportunities, 
including a candidate trail propose.d for San Francisco Bay access. 

9. The project will permanently preserve sensitive biological resources (including wetlands) 
in the southwestern portion of the project site. 

I 0. The project is considered to be an example of "smart growth" that is designed to support 
existing and future public transit, create a walkable community, use land efficiently 
through compact development design, and reduce urban sprawl on the periphery of the 
City. 

11. The project will include improvements along the City-maintained Hickory Street, 
including the addition of travel lands, curb and gutter, sidewalks, and landscaping. 

12. The project will include improvements along a 715-foot-long segment of the City
maintained Enterprise Drive, between Hickory Street and Willow Drive. These 
improvements would include construction of a 12-foot-wide median curb in applicable 
portions of the noted roadway segment, as well as installation of a 5-foot-wide sidewalk 
and an adjacent 6-foot wide landscape corridor along the southern edge of the proposed 
Enterprise Drive ROW (with all of the noted improvements except the proposed 5-foot
wide sidewalk located within the existing 80-foot-wide Enterprise Drive ROW). 

13. Construction of the project will create temporary, construction-related employment 
opportunities. 

GATEWAY STAT/ON WESTSEJR 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

53 
DECEMBER 20] 5 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

GATEWAY STATION WESTSE!R 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

54 
DECEMBER 2015 



Scanned separately: 

Gateway Station West Project 

Final Supplemental Environmental Impact 
Report Volume I 

December 2015 

Draft Supplemental Environmental Impact 
Report Volume II 

December 2015 



ORDINANCE NO. 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
NEW ARK AMENDING TITLE 17 OF THE NEWARK 
MUNICIPAL CODE BEING THE CITY OF NEW ARK ZONING 
ORDINANCE BY REZONING APPROXIMATELY 41 ACRES 
(ASSESSOR PARCEL NUMBERS: 537-852-9; 537-852-10; 537-
852-11) FROM MT-1 (HIGH TECHNOLOGY PARK DISTRICT) 
TO MDR-FBC (MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL - FORM 
BASED CODES) AND HDR-FBC (HIGH DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL- FORM BASED CODES) 

The City Council of the City of Newark does ordain as follows: 

Section 1: Pursuant to Section 17 .80.070 of Title 17 (Zoning) of the City of Newark Municipal 
Code, the City Council of the City of Newark does hereby find that the zoning change embodied 
in this ordinance is necessary and desirable to achieve the purposes of Title 17 (Zoning) of the 
Newark Municipal Code; is consistent with the policies, goals and objectives of the General 
Plan; and promotes the public health, safety, morals, comfort, convenience, and general welfare 
of the residents of the City of Newark. 

Section 2: Title 17 (Zoning) of the Newark Municipal Code and Section 17.44.010 "Zoning 
Map" thereof, being the City of Newark Zoning Regulations, are hereby amended by rezoning 
portions of property shown on Vesting Tentative Tract Map 8099, in the City of Newark, County 
of Alameda, State of California, from MT-1 (High Technology Park Distiict) to MDR-FBC 
(Medium Density Residential-Form Based Codes) and HDR-FBC (High Density Residential
Form Based Codes) hereinafter described as follows: 

All that portion of real property shown on Vesting Tentative Map 8099 in the City 
of Newark, County of Alameda, State of California as shown on Exhibit A, 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

Section 3: Severability and Validity. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase 
or word of this ordinance is for any reason held to be unconstitutional, unlawful, or otherwise 
invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, then such decision shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this ordinance. The City Council of the City of Newark hereby declares 
that it would have passed and adopted this ordinance and each and all provisions thereof 
irrespective of the fact that any one or more of said provisions be declared unconstitutional, 
unlawful or othe1wise invalid. 

Section 4: Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days from the date of 
its passage. Before expiration of fifteen (15) days after its passage, this ordinance shall be 
published in The What's Happening Tri City Voice, a newspaper of general circulation published 
and printed in the City of Fremont, County of Alameda and circulated in the City of Newark. 

Ordinance No. 





. )Jci ;_ 
r· 

' 
' ' 

r ' !, J~, 
' 

,-

'~-~ 1j 





-,___ ___ _ ------
" !H -, 
J 
' '! 

,-
-, 1-
•1. ~ ' . -P-}--f-



I 
I 

\( 

ii~ i 
' 

J[~ if i 
' 

,~i iii 
i'!l • . ~ . 
l' I 

lH1a1H 

--~ --"'-"..:.: 



_,, 

-------------- J' ------------

···············~ --1--1 
1./ ., 



!UIIGIIT 

~ 
!ii 

ftlCXOIYmEET 

-"J:· 

!!l.l'.l:lll 

l 
1 
I 
I :, i 
i 
" I• 

/I , I 
/ I: 

/ 
/ ' 

// t,\&m.l I 

/~ _ -

i 
!ii 

:315 ,NM 
rAR<XL , 

SDW'! = 

I/ ~,-«11,fflY,U~ 
fDf'l.41lrcilTlllOTYOIMN.W: 

... ric,ocai,mln'IILUft' -.................................... 

~ 

1'11'CM.ICXPW.'Jal,M 
ltH,NA:l,cunDO 

FIRE ACCESS PLAN 
VESTING TENTAT!VE¥Af' 

TRACT 8099·· 
GATEWAY STATION WEST 



' 

I , I , I Hf----__:__J r-----+-

j ,Ir ---~:c_____J 
: I "I--+ __ :_ " . 

/; 



RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
NEWARK APPROVING P-14-49, A PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT, AND U-14-50, A CONDITIONAL USE 
PERMIT, FOR A 589-UNIT RESIDENTIAL PROJECT 
(GATEWAY STATION WEST) LOCATED WITHIN THE 
DUMBARTON TRANSIT ORIENTED DEVELOPMENT 
SPECIFIC PLAN AREA AT THE WESTERN EDGE OF THE 
CITY OF NEW ARK 

WHEREAS, the Applicant DUMBARTON AREA 2, LLC filed with the Plam1ing 
Commission of the City of Newark an application for P-14-49, a plam1ed unit development, and 
U-14-50, a conditional use permit, for a 589-unit residential development within the Dumbarton 
Transit Oriented Development Plan Area; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Municipal Code Section 17.72.060, a public hea1ing notice was 
published in the T1i-City Voice on January 19, 2016, and mailed as required, and the Plam1ing 
Commission held a public hearing on said application at 7:30 p.m. on February 2, 2016 at the City 
Administration Building, 37101 Newark Boulevard, Newark, California. 

WHEREAS, the Plam1ing Commission of the City of Newark recommended that the City 
Council grant the application as shown on Exhibit A, pages I through 46, subject to various 
conditions. 

WHEREAS, a public hearing notice was published in the Tii-City Voice on February 9, 
2016, and mailed as required, and the City Council held a public heating on said application at 
7:30 p.m. on February 25, 2016 at the City Administration Building, 37101 Newark Boulevard, 
Newark, California. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 17.40 (Plam1ed Unit Developments), Section 17.40.050 
(Permit Procedure), Chapter 17.72 (Use Permits), and 17.72.090 (Review by City Council), the 
City Council makes the following findings: 

1. That Application P-14-49 for a plaillled unit development is in accord with the purpose of 
the Form Based Code and other regulations applicable to the Dumbarton Transit-Oriented 
Development (TOD) Specific Plan area. Application P-14-49 proposes to construct a residential 
development with minor deviations from the City's Form Based Code for the TOD Specific Plan 
area. The approval of Application P-14-49 for a plam1ed unit development would result in the 
construction of 589 residential units, which would advance the Specific Plan's objectives, and 
with the minor deviations allowed by an approval of Application P-14-49, the project would 
continue to achieve the purpose of the Form Based Code to ensure that the design and form of the 
development is compatible with the surrounding environment. 

2. That Application P-14-49 for a plam1ed unit development is not likely to cause serious 
health problems, will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare, nor materially 

Resolution No. 1 (Pres1449-2) 



injurious to properties or improvements in the vicinity. The Dumba1ton TOD Specific Plan EIR 
(State Clearinghouse Number 2010042012) certified by the City Council on September 8, 2011, 
and the Supplemental EIR ("SEIR") (State Clearinghouse Number 2014082002) certified by the 
City Council on February 25, 2016 in connection with the City Council's consideration of 
Application P-14-49, analyze all of the impacts on public health and safety that might occur from 
the project, including with the proposals contained in Application P-14-49. The project elements 
proposed by the planned unit development are within the scope of the project analyzed by these 
CEQA documents, and the SEIR specifically demonstrates that the project would not cause 
serious health, safety or welfare concerns, nor will be injurious to properties or improvements in 
the vicinity. 

3. That the standards for population density, site areas and dimensions, site coverage, yard 
spaces, heights of structures, distances between structures, usable open space, off-street parking 
and off-street loading facilities, and landscaped areas as contained in Application P-14-49 for a 
planned unit development will continue to produce an environment of stable and desirable 
character consistent with the objectives of the Dumbarton TOD Specific Plan. 

4. That the standards for population density, site areas and dimensions, site coverage, yard 
spaces, heights of structures, distances between structures, usable open space, off-street parking 
and off-street loading facilities as contained in Application P-14-49 for a planned unit 
development will not generate more traffic than the streets in the vicinity can can-y without 
congestion and will not overload any facilities or utilities. The Dumbarton TOD Specific Plan 
EIR ce1tified by the City Council on September 8, 2011 and the SEIR certified by the City 
Council on February 25, 2016 analyze all of the project's impacts on traffic and utilities. 

5. That the combination of different dwelling types and/or variety of land uses in the 
development will complement each other and will harmonize with existing and proposed land 
uses in the vicinity. 

6. That Application P-14-49 for a planned unit development will comply with each of the 
applicable provisions of the City's Municipal Code concerning planned unit developments, 
specifically including Chapter 17.40 of the City's Code. 

7. That Application U-14-50 for a conditional use permit is in accord with the purpose of the 
Form Based Code and other regulations applicable to the Dumbarton Transit-Oriented 
Development (TOD) Specific Plan area. Application U-14-50 proposes to construct a residential 
development with minor deviation from the City's Form Based Code for the TOD Specific Plan 
area. The approval of Application U-14-50 for a conditional use permit would result in the 
construction of 589 residential units, which would continue to advance the Specific Plan's 
objectives, and with the minor deviations that would be permitted with the approval of 
Application U-14-50 for a conditional use permit, the project would continue to achieve the 
purpose of the Form Based Code to ensure that the design and form of the development is 
compatible with the smrounding enviromnent. 

8. That Application U-15-6 for a conditional use permit is not likely to cause serious health 
problems, and will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare, nor materially 

Resolution No. 2 (Presl449-2) 



injurious to properties or improvements in the vicinity. The Dumbarton TOD Specific Plan EIR 
(State Clearinghouse Number 2010042012) certified by the City Council on September 8, 2011, 
and the SEIR (State Clearinghouse Number 2014082022) certified by the City Council on 
February 25, 2016 in connection with the City Council's consideration of Application U-15-6, 
analyze all of the impacts on public health and safety that might occur from the project, including 
with the proposals contained in Application U-15-6. The project elements proposed by the 
conditional use permit are within the scope of the project analyzed in these CEQA documents, 
and the SEIR specifically demonstrates that the project would not cause serious health, safety or 
welfare problems, nor will it be materially injmious to properties or improvements in the vicinity. 

9. That Application U-15-6 for a conditional use permit will comply with each of the 
applicable provisions of the City's Municipal Code concerning use permits, specifically including 
all provisions of Chapter 17.72 of the City's Code. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council does hereby approve this 
application for P-14-49, a planned unit development, and U-14-50, a conditional use pennit, for a 
589-unit residential development as shown on Exhibit A, pages 1 through 46, subject to 
compliance with the following conditions: 

Planning Division 

a. Approval of TM-14-47, Vesting Tentative Map 8099, shall be effective at such time RZ-
14-48, the Rezoning of the property within the boundary of Vesting Tentative Map 8099, 
takes effect. 

b. The project shall be subject to applicable environmental mitigation measures as described 
in the Dumbarton Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) Specific Plan Enviromnental 
Impact Report and the Supplemental Enviromnental Impact Report prepared for this 
project. 

c. There shall be no roof-mounted equipment other than satellite dishes, other similar 
television or radio antennas, and solar equipment. AC units shall not be mounted on the 
roof. 

d. All lighting shall be directed on-site so as not to create glare off-site, to the satisfaction of 
the Community Development Director. 

e. Construction site trailers and buildings located on-site shall be used for office and storage 
purposes only, and shall not be used for living or sleeping quarters. Any vehicle or 
pmiable building brought on the site during construction shall remain graffiti free. 

f. The covenants, conditions and restrictions (CC&Rs) filed for this development shall 
include a provision requiring that garages shall only be used for automobile parking and 
dwellings with apartment suites shall not be rented or sold to any occupants. 

g. Dwellings with apartment suites shall not be rented or sold to any occupants. 

Resolution No. 3 (Pres1449-2) 



h. Parking lot cleaning with sweeping or vacuum equipment shall not be permitted between 
7 :00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m. 

1. The site and its improvements shall be maintained in a neat and presentable condition, to 
the satisfaction of the Community Development Director. This shall include, but not be 
limited to, repainting surfaces damaged by graffiti and site clean-up. Graffiti 
removal/repainting and site cleanup shall occur on a continuing, as needed basis. Any 
vehicle or portable building brought on the site during construction shall remain graffiti 
free. 

J. All exterior utility pipes and meters shall be painted to match and/or complement the color 
of the adjoining building surface, as approved by the Community Development Director. 

k. The elevations as submitted by the developer as part of this application shall be reviewed 
and approved by the Planning Commission and City Council. The building elevations 
shall reflect all architectural projections such as roof eaves, bay windows, greenhouse 
windows, chimneys and porches. A site plan showing the building locations with respect 
to property lines shall also show the projections. Said elevations shall specify exterior 
materials. 

I. The floor plans as submitted by the developer as part of this application shall be reviewed 
and approved by the Planning Commission and City Council. 

m. All roof material shall consist of fire retardant shake roof, concrete tile, or a roof of similar 
noncombustible material. Mansard roofs with the above material may be used to screen 
tar and gravel roofs. All roofs shall be of Class C fire resistant construction or better. 
Composition shingles shall be Presidential-style or of comparable quality, subject to the 
review and approval of the Community Development Director. 

n. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the location and screening design for garbage, 
refuse and organics recycling collection areas for the project shall be submitted for the 
review and approval of Republic Services and the Community Development Director, in 
that order. The approved garbage, refuse and organics recycling areas shall be provided 
prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, as required by the Community 
Development Director. No refuse, garbage or organics recycling shall be stored outdoors 
except within the approved trash and recycling enclosures. 

o. Measures to respond to and track complaints pertaining to construction noise shall 
include: (1) a procedure and phone numbers for notifying the City of Newark Building 
Inspection Division and Newark Police Department ( during regular construction hours and 
off-hours); and (2) a sign posted on-site pe1iaining to the permitted construction days and 
hours and complaint procedures and whom to notify in the event of a problem. The sign 
shall also include a listing of both the City and construction contractor's telephone 
numbers ( dming regular construction hours and off-hours). 

Resolution No. 4 (Pres1449-2) 



p. Prior to the issuance of 50% of building permits, a dog park shall be completed on Parcel 
HHH. 

q. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the developer shall demonstrate compliance 
with the City's Affordable Housing Program, Chapter 17.18 of the Newark Municipal 
Code by paying a residential housing impact fee of $20 per square foot of floor area per 
dwelling unit for the first 1,000 square feet; and $8 per square foot of floor area for all 
square footage more than 1,000 square feet. 

r. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the developer shall enter into an agreement with 
the City Council to address Community Services fiscal suppo1t of $2,500 per unit for the 
Map Area specific to this project. 

s. Prior to the issuance of a building pe1mit, the developer shall pay the following fees: 
public safety impact fee ($1,989 per single-family dwelling unit and $2,079 per multi
family dwelling unit); community service and facilities impact fee ($1,942 per single
family dwelling unit and $1,596 per multi-family dwelling unit); transportation impact fee 
($801 per single-family dwelling unit and $460 per multi-family dwelling unit); park 
impact fee ($7,460 per dwelling unit); and art in public places and private development fee 
($270 per dwelling unit). 

t. Prior to issuance of a building permit, wall and fence details shall be submitted to the 
Community Development Director for review and approval. 

u. Prior to the issuance of a building pe1mit, details of the outdoor recreational amenities 
such as play structures shall be submitted to the Community Development Director for 
review and approval. 

v. Prior to issuance of a grading permit, the developer shall hire a qualified biologist to: (1) 
determine if occupied Burrowing Owl habitat(s) exist on the site, and (2) implement a plan 
to protect the owls and to excavate the site around any active burrows using hand tools to 
assure that the owls are not buried during grading in the event Burrowing Owl habitat(s) is 
found on the site. The occupied Burrowing Owl habitat(s), if found, shall not be disturbed 
during the nesting season. The Burrowing Owl survey shall be conducted not more than 
30 days prior to the time site grading activities will commence. 

w. Dming project construction, if histolic, archeological or Native American matelials or 
aitifacts are identified, work within a SO-foot radius of such find shall cease and the City 
shall retain the services of a qualified archeologist and/or paleontologist to assess the 
significance of the find. If such find is determined to be significant by the archeologist 
and/or paleontologist, a resource protection plan conforming to State CEQA Guidelines 
Section 15064.5 shall be prepared by the archeologist and/or paleontologist and approved 
by the Community Development Director. The plan may include, but would not be 
limited to, removal of resources or similar actions. Project work may be resumed in 
compliance with such plan. If human remains are encountered, the County Coroner shall 
be contacted inunediately and the provisions of State law carried out. 

Resolution No. 5 (Pres1449-2) 



x. Prior to their installation, mailbox locations and designs shall be approved by the 
Conununity Development Director and Newark Postmaster, in that order. The mailbox 
compartments of centralized mailboxes shall identify the individual dwelling units with 
permanent, easily legible lettering. 

y. The Bayside Trail shall be constructed with contiguous phases of development. Prior to 
the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for any non-model dwellings within a phase, 
the Bayside Trail segment contiguous to that phase shall be completed. 

z. Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, the parking areas, aisles and access 
drives shall be installed and striped as shown on the approved site plan. 

aa. Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, roll-up garage doors with automatic 
garage door openers shall be provided for each unit. 

bb. Prior to final inspection and utility release for each unit, the developer shall pre-wire each 
unit for satellite and cable television coll!1ections, as required by the Community 
Development Director. 

cc. Prior to the issuance of a sign permit, all signs, other than those referring to construction, 
sale, or future use of this site, shall be submitted for the review and approval of the 
Community Development Director. 

Engineering Division 

dd. The project shall conform to Tentative Map - Tract 8099, Sheets 1 through 8, and all 
conditions of approval set forth herein. Approval of this Tentative Map shall expire 
according to the provisions of the State Subdivision Map Act and any amendments thereto 
and applicable provisions of the Newark Municipal Code consistent with the State 
Subdivision Map Act. This vesting tentative map provides a preliminary design for the 
infrastructure improvements associated with the proposed subdivision. The developer 
shall be responsible for any required changes to this preliminary design as dete1mined 
necessary by the City of Newark to satisfy applicable design requirements of the City or 
any other public agencies or utilities with jurisdictional authority. 

ee. Prior to the approval of any final maps, detailed design review applications must be 
processed for all proposed building and landscaping improvements within each designated 
final map boundary. This future design review may result in required modifications to the 
infrastructure improvements shown on this vesting tentative map, including but not 
necessarily limited to public street layout, street widths, utility system design, and the total 
scope of public improvements; private street layout, widths, and scope of improvements; 
lot sizes, lot patterns, and the total number of lots; park improvements; storm water 
drainage design and storm water treatment improvements; solid waste management 
facilities; and other public improvements. The developer shall be responsible for any and 
all required changes to the preliminary infrastructure design. 

Resolution No. 6 (Pres1449-2) 



ff. The development will require approval of final tract maps filed in accordance with the 
State Subdivision Map Act and the City of Newark Subdivision Ordinance. Any 
necessary parcel maps or lot line adjustments to acquire lands beyond the current property 
boundary of the tentative map shall be recorded prior to the first final map or issuance of 
any model home permits. The final map(s) must be approved prior to the issuance of any 
building permits. Permission to grade on adjacent private properties shall be obtained 
prior to approval of the first final map. Evidence of such agreements must be furnished to 
the City as pmt of the approval. All required easement dedications as shown on the 
vesting tentative map and as detennined necessary with future design review shall be 
dedicated on the appropriate final map(s). 

gg. The final map(s) and complete tract improvement plans shall be submitted to the 
Engineering Division for review to ensure conformance with relevant codes, policies, and 
other requirements of the Newark Municipal Code and City of Newark street 
improvement standards. Prior to approval of the final map(s), the developer shall 
guarantee all necessary public and private street improvements and other infrastructure 
improvements within the subdivision and beyond the map boundary as required by the 
City of Newark Subdivision Ordinance and this vesting tentative map and all conditions 
herein, in accordance with tract improvement plans to be approved by the City Engineer. 
Improvement plans for on-site common areas and all private streets in the development 
shall be included with the tract improvement plans to ensure that the improvements are 
designed and constructed to City standards. 

These plans must be prepared by a qualified person licensed by the State of California to 
do such work. Street improvements shall include, but may not be limited to all required 
improvements as indicated on the vesting tentative tract map on Willow Street, Hickory 
Street (including the Enterprise Drive intersection), Enterprise Drive, all in-tract public 
streets, all p1ivate streets, water, sanitary sewer, and joint trench utilities, storm drain 
systems and all storm water treatment systems, street lighting systems including the 
replacement of all existing street lights in the plan area, all landscaping including median 
improvements and walls, park and other recreational area improvements, off-site traffic 
mitigation measures, and other improvements consistent with the Dmnbarton Transit 
Oriented Development Specific Plan. 

hb. If perfmmance bonds are posted or work has commenced by the developers of VTM 8085 
or VTM 8157, or a combination thereof, for the full scope of improvements identified, this 
condition shall not apply. Otherwise, the full length of Willow Street shall be improved 
p1ior to or concurrent with the first proposed phase of work within the vesting tentative 
map boundary. Improvements on Willow Street include, but are not limited to the 
following between Central Avenue and Enterprise D1ive: construction of all intersection 
improvements proposed in the plan area, construction of all center medians including all 
landscaping improvements, placement of all utility main lines and utility stub-outs for 
future developments ( excluding stub-outs for VTM 8085 and VTM 8098), a full width 
pavement grind and an asphalt concrete pavement overlay of 0.25' minimum thiclmess or 
greater, or replacement strnctural sections, that will result in a traffic index of not less 

Resolution No. 7 (Presl 449-2) 



than 9.0, curb and gutter, minimum 5-foot wide sidewalk, back-up landscaping, street light 
system replacement, pavement resttiping, bike lane placement, street signage, any required 
traffic calming measures, and additional improvements as necessary. Street frontage 
improvements to the east side of Willow Street along the and the west side of Willow 
Street shall exclude improvements behind the curb including dry utilities, undergrounding 
of overhead lines, landscaping, and sidewalk improvements. Improvements north of 
Enterprise Drive shall include pavement resurfacing, restriping, bicycle and pedestrian 
facilities and any necessary improvements over the existing railroad crossing for full 
connectivity to the existing street system, and landscape improvements. Applicant shall 
use good faith effort to obtain all rights-of-way necessary for these required 
improvements. Final intersection improvements and other traffic calming measures, 
including roundabout configuration, are subject to modifications from the preliminary 
design as shown on the tentative map, at the developer's expense, to satisfy code and other 
design requirements to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

11. All traffic mitigation measures identified under existing plus project conditions in the 
Dumba1ton Transit Oriented Development Specific Plan Environmental Impact Report for 
impacts that were not determined to be significant and unavoidable shall be completed or 
guaranteed prior to the approval of any final maps. This includes all recommended 
improvements at the following intersections: Willow Street and Thornton Avenue, 
Willow Street and Enterprise Drive, and Cheny Street and Mowry Avenue. All additional 
traffic mitigation measures under the future year 2035 plus project conditions for impacts 
that were not considered significant and unavoidable (this is limited to striping 
modifications at Gateway Boulevard and Thornton Avenue) should be completed 
concurrent with other off-site improvements. The full scope of recommended 
improvements shall be incorporated into the tract improvement plans. If either of the 
developers for VTM 8085 or VTM 8157 post bonds to guarantee this work, then the 
condition shall be deemed satisfied. 

JJ. Prior to approval of any final map(s ), any proposed project phasing shall be submitted for 
the review and approval of the City Engineer. The phasing plan provided with the vesting 
tentative map is subject to modification as required by the City Engineer. 

kk. All improvements must conform to the City's Sight Visibility Ordinance, Newark 
Municipal Code Chapter 10.36. Prior to any final map approval all building architecture 
and other improvements on proposed lots within a given phase of the development shall 
be sited as necessary to comply with this ordinance. If necessary, the proposed lot pattern 
shown on the tentative map shall be modified to accommodate a future desired building 
product. 

IL Concurrent with approval of the final map, the developer shall effectuate the removal of 
all existing easements encumbering the property within the tract boundary that conflict 
with areas proposed for improvement. Elimination or modification of existing utility 
easements on the site requires the approval from the respective utility district or company 
and the City of Newark. 

Resolution No. 8 (Pres1449-2) 



mm. Prior to approval of the final map( s ), the developer shall submit a pavement maintenance 
program for the drive aisles and parking areas on the project site. The maintenance 
program shall be signed by the prope1ty owner and the property owner shall follow the 
maintenance program at the City Engineer's direction. 

1111. This site is subject to the State of California National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
System (NPDES) Program General Permit for Storm Water Discharges Associated with 
Construction Activity. Prior to issuance of a grading permit or a building permit, the 
developer needs to provide evidence that the proposed site development work is covered 
by said General Permit for Construction Activity. This will require confirmation that a 
Notice of Intent (NOI) and the applicable fee were received by the State Water Resources 
Control Board and the submittal of the required Stonn Water Pollution Prevention Plan 
(SWPPP). In addition the grading plans need to state: "All grading work shall be done in 
accordance with the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan prepared by the developer 
pursuant to the Notice oflntent on file with the State Water Resources Control Board." 

oo. Prior to the issuance of the initial grading or any building permits for this project, the 
developer shall submit a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) for the review 
and approval of the City Engineer. The plan shall include sufficient details to show how 
stonn water quality will be protected during both: ( 1) the construction phase of the project 
and (2) the post-construction, operational phase of the project. The SWPPP shall be 
prepared by a Qualified SWPPP Developer (QSD) in the State of California. The 
construction phase plan shall include Best Management Practices from the California 
Storm Water Quality Best Management Practices Handbook for Construction Activities. 
The specific storm water pollution prevention measures to be maintained by the contractor 
shall be printed on the plans. The operational phase plan shall include Best Management 
Practices appropriate to the uses conducted on the site to effectively prohibit the entry of 
pollutants into storn1 water runoff from the project site including, but not limited to, low 
impact development storm water treatment measures, trash and litter control, pavement 
sweeping, periodic storm water inlet cleaning, landscape controls for fertilizer and 
pesticide applications, labeling of storm water inlets with a permanent thermoplastic 
stencil with the wording "No Dumping - Drains to Bay," and other applicable practices. 

pp. The project must be designed to include appropriate source control, site design, and storm 
water treatment measures to prevent storm water runoff pollutant discharges and increases 
in runoff flows from the site in accordance with Provision C.3 of the latest version of the 
Municipal Regional Storm Water NPDES Permit (MRP) adopted in November 2015 by 
the Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB), San Francisco Bay Region. 
Examples of source control and site design requirements include, but are not limited to: 
properly designed trash storage areas, sanitary sewer connections for all non-storm water 
discharges, minimization of impervious surfaces, and treatment of all runoff with Low 
Impact Development (LID) treatment measures. A properly engineered and maintained 
biotreatment system will only be allowed if it is infeasible to implement other LID 
measures such as harvesting and re-use, infiltration, or evapotranspiration. The sto1m 
water treatment design shall be completed by a licensed civil engineer with sufficient 
expeiience in storm water quality analysis and design. The Storm Water Control Plan 

Resolution No. 9 (Presl449-2) 



(Sheet TM-5) on this vesting tentative map would be approved as a conceptual plan only. 
Final approval is subject to the developer providing the necessary plans, details, 
worksheets, and calculations that demonstrate the plan complies with Provision C.3 of the 
MRP, subject to final review by the City Engineer and the RWQCB prior to the recording 
of any final maps. The developer is responsible for any and all necessary modifications to 
the site design to comply with MRP requirements. The use of treatment controls for 
runoff requires the submittal of a completed Storm Water Treatment Measures 
Maintenance Agreement prior to the approval of any final maps. 

qq. All storm water treatment measures are subject to review and approval by the Alameda 
County Mosquito Abatement District. The developer shall modify the grading and 
drainage design and the storm water treatment design as necessary to satisfy any and all 
imposed requirements from this District. 

rr. The preliminary Grading and Drainage Plan provided on Sheet TM-3 of the vesting 
tentative map has not yet been supp01ted with a detailed drainage feasibility analysis. 
This analysis, including initial drainage calculations, shall be completed and submitted by 
the developer for review by the City Engineer and the Alameda County Flood Control and 
Water Conservation District (ACFC&WCD) for determination of the general feasibility of 
the proposed design prior to development of detailed grading and drainage plans. The 
ACFC&WCD will not allow the design capacity of the existing flood control channel to 
be exceeded. The developer shall be responsible for any and all changes to the 
preliminary drainage design as shown on the tentative map as necessary to satisfy 
ACFC&WCD and City of Newark storm drain system requirements. 

ss. The developer shall submit detailed grading and drainage plans for review and approval 
by the City Engineer and the Alameda County Flood Control and Water Conservation 
District (ACFC&WCD). These plans must be based upon a City benchmark and need to 
include pad and finish floor elevations of each proposed structure, all rear yard drainage 
designs and surface treatments, proposed on-site property grades, proposed elevations at 
property line, and sufficient elevations on all adjacent properties to show existing and 
proposed drainage patterns. All pad elevations shall be a minimum 11.25 NGVD. All 
pavement shall drain at a minimum of one percent. The developer shall ensure that all 
upstream drainage is not blocked and that no ponding is created by this development. Any 
construction necessary to ensure this shall be the developer's responsibility. All mitigation 
measures identified in the Hydrology, Drainage, and Water Quality section of the 
Environmental Impact Report shall be properly addressed with the detailed grading and 
drainage plans. 

Hydrology and hydraulic calculations based on ACFC&WCD criteria shall be submitted 
for review and approval by the City Engineer and the ACFC&WCD prior to approval of 
any final maps. The calculations shall show that City and ACFC&WCD freeboard 
requirements will be satisfied (0.75 feet to grate or 1.25 feet to the top of curb under a JO
year stonn event design). 

Resolution No. 10 (Pres1449-2) 



tt. Where a grade differential of more than a 1-foot is created along the boundary lot lines 
between the proposed development and adjacent property, the developer shall install a 
masomy retaining wall unless a slope easement is approved by the City Engineer. Said 
retaining wall shall be subject to review and approval of the City Engineer. A grading 
permit is required by the Building Inspection Division prior to starting site grading work. 

uu. Permission to grade on adjacent private properties shall be obtained prior to approval of 
the first final map. Evidence of such agreements must be furnished to the City as part of 
the approval. 

vv. The applicant shall submit a detailed soils rep01i prepared by a qualified engineer, 
registered with the State of California. The report shall address in-situ and import soils in 
accordance with the City of Newark Grading and Excavation Ordinance, Chapter 15.50. 
The report shall include recommendations regarding pavement sections for all public and 
private streets. Grading operations shall be in accordance with recommendations 
contained in the soils report and shall be completed under the supervision of an engineer 
registered in the State of California to do such work. All documentation prepared during 
the inspection of grading operations shall be made available for review by the City 
Engineer. 

ww. An independent Project Geoteclmical Engineer shall be retained to review the final 
grading plans and specifications and provide construction inspection review at the 
developer's expense. The Project Geoteclmical Engineer shall approve the grading plans 
prior to approval by the City of Newark for issuance of a grading pennit. 

xx. Prior to approval of any final maps, the developer shall satisfy Alameda County Water 
District (ACWD) requirements for the proposed development as specified in previous 
correspondence with ACWD during the specific plan and tentative map review process. 
This includes, but is not necessarily limited to the following improvements: (1) individual 
water services to all residential units with a new, complete looped public water system 
sized and installed in accordance with ACWD's Standard Specifications for Water Main 
Installation and integrated with the existing public water system, including consideration 
of any proposed phasing of the water system installation; (2) water system components 
beyond the tentative map boundary, but determined as necessary by ACWD to meet 
requirements for the full specific plan area; (3) installation of non-potable water 
infrastructure for future use; (3) replacement of existing water mains as determined 
necessary by ACWD; and (4) recordation ofnecessa1y water service easements to ACWD. 
The Utility Plan provided on Sheet TM-4 of the vesting tentative map includes a 
preliminary water supply system layout that is subject to a complete review by ACWD at 
such time as formal, detailed utility plans are developed for construction. Any necessary 
site and utility design changes necessary to satisfy ACWD's design requirements shall be 
the developer's responsibility. 

yy. Prior to approval of any final maps, the developer shall demonstrate to the satisfaction of 
City that it has obtained approval from Union Sanitary District (USD) of the entire 
sanitary sewer system designed to serve the development including any existing sanitary 

Resolution No. 11 (Pres1449-2) 



sewer infrastructure modifications beyond the tentative map boundary as necessary to 
serve the development; and potential relocation, modification, or protection in place of the 
existing twin force mains. The Utility Plan provided on Sheet TM-4 of the vesting 
tentative map includes a preliminary sanitary sewer system layout that is subject to a 
complete review by USD at such time as formal utility plans are submitted for 
construction. Any necessary site and utility design changes necessary to satisfy USD's 
design requirement shall be the developer's responsibility. 

zz. The developer shall incorporate a Homeowner' s Association consisting of all property 
owners of lots in the development at the time of incorporation and in the future for the 
purpose of owning and maintaining the association's property, including but not limited to 
all private streets and common drive aisles, parking areas, landscape areas, storm water 
treatment areas, stmm drain systems, public access areas, and for paying for secmity 
lighting, any common garbage collection services, any security patrol services, if 
provided, and other functions of a Homeowner's Association. All common areas within 
the development shall be owned and maintained by the Homeowner's Association. Each 
property owner shall automatically become a member of the association and shall be 
subject to a proportionate share of the maintenance expenses. The Homeowner's 
Association shall be incorporated piior to the sale of any individual lots and/or p1ior to 
acceptance of tract improvements, whichever occurs first. A centralized facility of 
sufficient size such as a clubhouse shall be constructed for Homeowner's Association use 
at a location to be approved by the Community Development Director, unless the 
applicant is allowed to utilize a clubhouse at an alternative location, subject to approval by 
the Community Development Director. The CC&Rs shall prohibit the use of private 
streets as alternative routes to the in-tract public street system. 

aaa. Piior to City Council approval of any final maps, the bylaws governing the property 
owner's association and any declaration of covenants, conditions and restiictions (CC&Rs) 
filed for this development shall be reviewed and approved by the City Council at its 
discretion after mandatory review and recommendations by the City Attorney. Said 
covenants, conditions and restrictions shall be prominently displayed in the project sales 
office at all times. Approval of the covenants, conditions and restrictions shall not make 
the City a patty to enforcement of same. The CC&Rs shall apply equally to both owners 
and renters. The CC&Rs shall be w1itten to require renters to comply with the regulations 
of the CC&Rs, and a copy of the CC&Rs shall be given to each renter. The CC&Rs shall 
be written to allow less than a majority of owners to have pavement or landscape 
maintenance done and the cost thereof assessed to all owners in the project. The CC&Rs 
shall include a pavement maintenance progiam for all private streets and common drive 
aisles. 

bbb. The Homeowner's Association CC&Rs shall prohibit the on-site parking of non-self
propelled recreational vehicles, including boats, and any self-propelled recreational 
vehicles not used for transportation unless separate storage facilities are provided. The 
CC&Rs shall regulate the provision of any on-site parking of self-propelled recreational 
vehicles used for transportation. 

Resolution No. 12 (Pres1449-2) 



ccc. The CC&Rs for the project shall include a disclosure statement to all prope1ty owners 
indicating that the project site is located within a seismic hazard zone for liquefaction. 
The disclosure statement shall indicate that the buildings have been designed to current 
code requirements. The statement shall further indicate that the buildings, site 
improvements, and utilities are subject to damage during an eaithquake and that the 
buildings may be uninhabitable after an earthquake. This CC&R disclosure statement is 
subject to review and approval of the City Engineer prior to final map approval. 

ddd. The developer shall also assist the Homeowner's Association by having a management 
consultant firm review the maintenance and operating functions of the association. The 
management consulting firm shall be responsible to prepare a written report with 
recommendations to the association for managing the association's obligations and setting 
initial monthly assessment costs for each lot in the development. Membership and 
assessment cost shall be mandatory for all property owners of property in the development 
and shall run with the land. The developer shall pay all costs of incorporation and initial 
management review and reports. 

eee. The developer shall enter into a Landscape Maintenance Agreement to ensure the 
perpetual maintenance of all common front yard, side yard and back-up area landscaping 
within the development by the Homeowner's Association. This agreement shall run with 
the land and be binding upon all future owners or assigns. Any and all necessary 
easements shall be dedicated over individual lots to allow for the perpetual access and 
maintenance of landscaping. The full extent of landscape maintenance shall be 
determined with the future landscape improvements plans and detailed in said agreement. 
Landscaping by the City at the expense of the Homeowner's Association in these areas 
will only occur in the event the City Council deems the Homeowner's Association 
maintenance to be inadequate. Project perimeter walls and adjoining landscaped areas 
shall be included in a dedicated landscape easement to guarantee adequate maintenance of 
the walls. A Landscape Maintenance Agreement template is enclosed for your use. 

The City of Newark shall be provided with subordinate agreements to ensure that the 
position of the landscaping maintenance lien shall be superior to any liens or 
encumbrances other than taxes. 

fff. Prior to approval of the first final map, the developer shall petition the City Council to 
participate in an active Landscaping and Lighting District for the perpetual maintenance of 
median landscaping and lighting systems on Willow Street and Enterprise Drive, all public 
parks within the Dumbarton TOD Specific Plan area, and any public storm water 
treatment and stmm drain delivery systems including trash capture devices, all public 
street trees, all street lighting systems and any additional landscaping, landscape-based 
storm water treatment areas and storm drain systems, or lighting improvements within the 
public rights-of-way and dedicated public easement areas within the limits of the 
development. Maintenance activities will be performed by the City of Newark or its 
contractors through the Landscaping and Lighting District. All property owners within the 
tentative map boundary shall be assessed annually in accordance with requirements 
established with the Landscaping and Lighting District. The developer shall pay all 

Resolution No. 13 (Pres1449-2) 



associated costs in the City's Master Fee Schedule for establishment of the Landscaping 
and Lighting District. The developer shall record an indenture advising all prospective 
property owners in the project that their properties are included in a Landscaping and 
Lighting District for maintenance of landscaping, lighting, and related improvements 
installed as part of this project. 

ggg. All storm drain inlets within the entire development, located in both public and private 
areas, shall be equipped with full-capture trash devices approved by the Regional Water 
Quality Control Board that satisfy Provision C. l O requirements under the Municipal 
Regional St01m Water NPDES Permit. Trash capture device selection is subject to 
approval by the City Engineer. All trash capture device maintenance within public rights
of-way shall be completed through the Landscaping and Lighting District. All trash 
capture device maintenance within private areas shall be completed by the Homeowner's 
Association. The Homeowner's Association shall be responsible for trash and litter 
control and sweeping of all private streets within the development. All private stom1 drain 
systems and all associated trash capture devices shall be cleaned on a regularly scheduled 
basis as detailed in the required Storm Water Treatment Measures Maintenance 
Agreement. 

hhh. The Homeowner's Association shall be required to contract with a professional 
management firm to handle all necessary maintenance operations. Documentation of such 
contract shall be submitted to the City of Newark. All c011m1only owned facilities shall be 
properly maintained in a manner consistent with the CC&Rs and project requirements. 

iii. The Homeowner's Association shall periodically provide educational materials on storm 
water pollution prevention to all residents. 

jjj. Each buyer shall sign an aclmowledgment that he/she has read the constitution and bylaws 
of the Homeowner's Association and the CC&Rs applied to the development. 

kkk. The developer shall provide a complete set of construction plans in electronic format and 
reproducible paper (mylar) fonnat to the Homeowner's Association at the time of its 
fonnation. 

111. All existing overhead utilities within the development and along the fronting street rights
of-way to the centerline of the street shall be undergrounded to the nearest riser beyond 
the development's limits in accordance with the City of Newark Subdivision Standards. 
Undergrounding shall include all existing and proposed service drops. 

mmm. All new utilities including, but not limited to, electric and communication services shall be 
provided underground for all buildings in the development in accordance with the City of 
Newark Subdivision Standards. Electrical transformers shall be installed in underground 
vaults with an appropriate public utility easement or within the public right-of-way. This 
undergrounding requirement excludes the south side of Enterprise Drive and the east side 
of Hickory Street along the Ashland Chemical and Torian frontages. 

Resolution No. 14 (Pres1449-2) 



mm. Fire hydrants are to be located along public and private streets as determined by the 
Alameda County Fire Department. 

ooo. A streetlight plan and joint trench plan shall be submitted by the applicant with the second 
tract improvement plan check and approved prior to final map approval. All existing 
street lights on Enterprise Drive and Willow Street within the limits of the Dumbarton 
Transit Oriented Plan Area shall be replaced (unless another developer has guaranteed this 
work) with street lights consistent with the approved Dmnbarton Transit Oriented 
Development Specific Plan. LED lighting shall be utilized on all public and private streets 
and other common areas. 

ppp. A signpost with a sign having an area of at least 15-inches by 21-inches shall be installed 
at or near each private street entrance. The name of each private street shall be placed on 
this sign in clearly legible 4-inch letters. The signs shall have painted, in at least I-inch 
letters, "Private Property. Not dedicated for public use." 

qqq. On-site private streets are to be posted for "No Parking," except in those areas designed to 
accommodate guest parking, as shown on the vesting tentative map. 

rrr. The connection between private streets and public streets shall be by a City of Newark 
standard driveway. 

sss. Garbage, trash, or recycling containers shall be suitably concealed in an area dedicated 
within the garage of each unit, except such features may be placed at curbside on the 
designated garbage pick-up day. 

ttt. Public Utility Easements (PUE), Water Line Easements (WLE), Storm Drain Easements 
(SDE), and Sanitary Sewer Easements (SSE) shall be dedicated over all private streets in 
the development. The PUE, WLE, SDE and SSE dedication statements on the final map 
shall state that the PUE, WLE, SDE and SSE are available for, but not limited to, the 
installation, access and maintenance of water supply sanitary and storm sewers, and gas, 
electrical, and communication facilities. 

uuu. Emergency Vehicle Access Easements (EV AE) shall be dedicated over the full pavement 
width on all private streets in the development. The final easement geometry shall be 
subject to the approval of the City Engineer. 

vvv. Easements for public access shall be dedicated over those parcels intended for public uses, 
including the trail, and the park parcels. 

www. The developer shall request Pacific, Gas & Electric Co. to commence with the design of 
the underground utility improvements for the proposed development immediately 
following tentative map approval. 

xxx. The developer shall ensure that a water vehicle for dust control operations is kept readily 
available at all times during construction at the City Engineer's direction. A pick-up or 

Resolution No. 15 (Pres1449-2) 



vacuum type street sweeper shall be available at all times at the direction of the City 
Engineer to remove tracked dirt and debris from adjacent streets. 

yyy. All existing buildings within the proposed division of land shall be completely demolished 
prior to recording the first final map. 

zzz. Above ground architectural and building features that project over proposed property lines 
shall be permitted on townhouse and/or condominium units by easements recorded on the 
final map. Such features include, but are not limited to, eaves, bay windows, balconies, 
porches, landings, and stairways. The details for these easements, including dimensions 
and descriptions, shall be included on the final map. Foundations for townhouse units 
shall be contained within the individual lot. 

aaaa. Street names and an addressing scheme shall be developed during the final map and 
improvement plan review process in accordance with the City of Newark's Street 
Numbering and Naming Ordinance (Chapter 12.12). The street name theme and 
individual street names shall be determined at a future date. All addressing is based on the 
Alameda County grid pattern with streets running generally northerly and southerly 
having 5-digit addresses and streets nmning generally westerly and easterly having 4-digit 
addresses. 

bbbb. The developer shall repair and/or replace any public improvements (pavement, curb, 
gutter, etc.) damaged as a result of construction activity to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer. 

cccc. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy or release of utilities for any residential 
units, private streets, common vehicle accessways and parking facilities serving said units 
shall be paved in accordance with the recommendation of a licensed engineer based on a 
minimum Traffic Index of 6.0. 

dddd. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy or release of utilities for each dwelling 
unit, the on-site drive aisles and uncovered parking facilities shall be installed and striped 
as shown on the approved site plan. All on-site uncovered parking facilities and drive 
aisles shall be drained at a minimum slope of 1.0% for asphalt concrete surfaces and 0.3% 
for Portland cement concrete surfaces. 

eeee. The developer shall be responsible for implementation of all applicable mitigation 
measures identified in the Environmental Impact Repo1t for the Dumbarton Transit 
Oriented Development Specific Plan and the Supplemental Enviromnental Impact Report 
prepared for this project. 

ffff. Prior to occupancy of any buildings within the special flood hazard area or acceptance of 
any public improvements, the developer shall apply for and receive approval of a letter of 
map revision based on fill (LOMR-F) from the Federal Emergency Management Agency. 
The LOMR-F shall be based upon the as-built grades of the building pads and shall 
determine that the pads and all public and private streets are no longer within the special 

Resolution No. 16 (Pres1449-2) 



flood hazard area as indicated on the current Flood Insurance Rate Map for the City of 
Newark, Community Panel No. 06001C 0443G, dated August 3, 2009. 

gggg. Prior to the issuance of any permits, any proposed pe1meable pavement design shall be 
based on a geotechnical engineer's reconnnendation and reviewed by the manufacturer or 
the National Ready Mixed Concrete Association (NRMCA). The developer shall submit 
documentation to the City confirming approval by the manufacturer or NRMCA and 
geoteclmical engineer. The developer shall also ensure that the contractor hired to install 
the permeable pavement be certified by the NRMCA. Documentation that confirms 
certification shall be submitted directly to the City Engineer for review and approval. 

hhhh. The developer shall implement the following measures for the duration of all construction 
activity to minimize air quality impacts: 

I. Watering should be used to control dust generation during demolition of structures and 
break-up of pavement. 

2. All trucks hauling demolition debris from the site shall be covered. 
3. Dust-proof chutes shall be used to load debris into trucks whenever feasible. Wate1ing 

should be used to control dust generation during transport and handling of recycled 
materials. 

4. All active construction areas shall be watered at least twice daily and more often 
during windy periods; active areas adjacent to the existing land uses shall be kept 
damp at all times or shall be treated with non-toxic stabilizers or dust palliatives. 

5. All trucks hauling soil, sand, and other loose materials shall be covered or require all 
trucks to maintain at least 2 feet of freeboard. 

6. All unpaved access roads, parking areas, and staging areas at construction sites shall 
be paved, watered three times daily, or treated with (non-toxic) soil stabilizers. 

7. All paved access roads, parking areas, and staging areas at construction sites shall be 
swept daily with water sweepers; water sweepers shall vacuum up excess water to 
avoid runoff-related impacts to water quality. 

8. Limit traffic speeds on unpaved roads to 15 mph. 
9. Install sandbags or other erosion control measures to prevent silt runoff to public 

roadways. 
I 0. Replant vegetation in disturbed areas as quickly as possible. 
11. Minimize idling time (5 minutes maximum). 
12. Maintain properly tuned equipment. 

These measures shall be incorporated into the grading specifications as well as the best 
management practices of the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan, and shall be 
implemented to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

iiii. The developer shall provide all required paper and digital submittals of the project final 
map, tract improvements plans, and as-built plans as required by the City Engineer, 
including, but not necessarily limited to the following: ( 1) One full-size reproducible copy 
and one reduced reproducible copy of the approved tentative map; (2) Two electronic 
copies of the approved final map and improvement plans in a format approved by the City 

Resolution No. 17 (Pres1449-2) 



Engineer; (3) One full-size mylar copy and one reduced copy of the recorded final map; 
( 4) One reproducible set and four blue-line or photocopied sets of the approved tract 
improvement plans; (5) Two electronic copies and one mylar set of the as-built tract 
improvement plans. The City will require a digital submittal of all final maps and 
improvements plans. All CAD work must be prepared in a manner consistent with the 
Union Sanitary District's digital submittal requirements for layering conventions. This can 
be found on the web at: http://www.unionsanitary.com/digitalSubmittal.htm. Digital files 
submitted shall be based on accurate coordinate geometry calculations and the NAD83 
State Plane Coordinate System (Zone III) and NGVD29 (USD requires NA VD88) as 
ve1tical datum. A deposit of $5,000 shall be provided by the developer to the City to 
ensure submittal of all required documents. 

jjjj. The developer shall provide as-built record drawings in both electronic format and on 
mylar paper based on full and complete review and inspection by the developer's project 
civil engineer, landscape architect, and other design professionals of all public 
improvements and all improvements on private streets and property included in the tract 
improvement plan set. 

kkkk. If any condition of this vesting tentative tract map be declared invalid or unenforceable by 
a court of competent jurisdiction, this vesting tentative map shall terminate and be of no 
force and effect, at the election of the City Council on motion. 

llll. Pursuant to Government Code Section 66474.9, the subdivider, or any agent thereof, or 
successor thereto, shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Newark, its 
officials, employees or agents ( collectively "City") from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City to attack, set aside, void, or annul, the City's approval concerning this 
subdivision map application, which action is brought within the time period provided for 
in Section 66499.37. The City will promptly notify the subdivider of any such claim, 
action, or proceeding and cooperate fully in the defense. 

mmmm. The Conditions of Project Approval set forth herein include certain fees, dedication 
requirements, and other exactions. Pursuant to Govenunent Code Section 66020( d)(l ), 
these conditions constitute written notice of s statement of the amount of such fees, and a 
description of the dedications, reservations, and other exactions. The developer is hereby 
further notified that the 90-day approval period in which the developer may protest these 
fees, dedications, reservations, and other exactions, pursuant to Govenunent Code 
66020( a), has begun. If the developer fails to file a protest within this 90-day period 
complying with all of the requirements of Section 66020, the developer will be legally 
barred from later challenging such exactions. 

Landscape-Parks Division 

nnnn. The developer shall retain a licensed landscape architect to prepare working drawings for 
tract improvement landscape plans in accordance to with City of Newark requirements 
and the State of California Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance as amended by 
the California Water Commission on July 15, 2015. The associated Landscape 

Resolution No. 18 (Pres1449-2) 



Documentation Package must be approved by the City Engineer prior to approval of any 
final maps. 

0000. The developer shall implement Bay Friendly Landscaping Practices in accordance with 
Newark Municipal Code, Chapter 15.44.080. Prior to approval of any final maps, the 
developer shall provide sufficient information to detail the environmentally-conscious 
landscape practices to be used on the project. 

pppp. Prior to installation by the developer, plant species, location, container size, quality, and 
quantity of all landscaping plants and materials shall be reviewed and approved by the 
City Engineer. All street trees and park trees shall be minimum 24-inch box specimens. 
All plant replacements shall be to an equal or better standard than originally approved 
subject to approval by the City Engineer. 

qqqq. Prior to the release of utilities or issuance of any Certificates of Occupancy, all 
landscaping and irrigation systems shall be completed or guaranteed by a cash deposit 
deposited with the City in an amount to cover the remainder of the work. 

rrrr. Prior to issuance of Certificate of Occupancy or release of utilities, the developer shall 
guarantee all trees for a period of 6 months and all other plantings and landscape for 60 
days after completion thereof. The developer shall insure that the landscape shall be 
installed properly and maintained to follow standard horticultural practices. All plant 
replacements shall be to an equal or better standard than originally approved subject to 
approval of the City Engineer. 

ssss. Landscaping adjacent to the public right-of-way must confonn to the City's visibility 
requirements in accordance with Newark Municipal Code, Chapter 10.36. 

tttt. Prior to the issuance of any Certificates of Occupancy, the developer shall pay park-in-lieu 
fees in accordance with the City's current Master Fee Schedule and any updates thereto. 

uuuu. Any above ground utility structures, including backflow prevention devices, and 
appurtenances shall be installed within the developer's property line and a minimum of 10 
feet behind street face of curbs. The backflow prevention devices shall have a green 
painted security cage to protect them from vandalism. These locations shall be screened 
with landscaping to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. The landscape screen shall not 
interfere with the utility companies' or City Fire Department's access. 

Alameda County Fire Department 

vvvv. This project shall comply with the City of Newark's adopted Fire Code including Appendix 
D. 

Building Inspection Division 

wwww. Constmction for this project can occur only between the hours of 7 :00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. 

Resolution No. 19 (Presl449-2) 



Monday through Friday. The developer may make a written request to the Building 
Official for extended working hours and/or days. In granting or denying any request, the 
Building Official will take into consideration the nature of the construction activity which 
would occur during extended hours/days, the time and duration of the request, the 
proximity to residential neighborhoods, and input by affected neighbors. All approvals 
will be done so in writing. 

General 

xxxx. All proposed changes from approved exhibits shall be submitted to the Community 
Development Director who shall decide if they warrant Planning Commission and City 
Council review and, if so decided, said changes shall be submitted for the Commission's 
and Council's review and decision. The developer shall pay the prevailing fee for each 
additional separate submittal of development exhibits requiring Planning Commission 
and/or City Council review and approval. All time extensions for this planned unit 
development and conditional use permit shall be approved by the Planning Cornn1ission 
and City Council. 

yyyy. If any condition of this planned unit development and conditional use permit be declared 
invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, this plam1ed unit 
development and conditional use permit shall terminate and be of no force and effect, at 
the election of the City Council on motion. 

zzzz. This planned unit development and conditional use permit shall be given a public hearing 
before the City Council for the Council's review and approval. 

aaaaa. Prior to the submittal for building permit review, all conditions of approval of this project, 
as approved by the City Council, shall be printed on the plans. 

bbbbb. The developer hereby agrees to defend, indemnify, and save harmless the City of Newark, 
its Council, boards, connnissions, officers, employees and agents, from and against any 
and all claims, suits, actions, liability, loss, damage, expense, cost (including, without 
limitation, attorneys' fees, costs and fees oflitigation) of every nature, kind or description, 
which may be brought by a third party against, or suffered or sustained by, the City of 
Newark, its Council, boards, commissions, officers, employees or agents to challenge or 
void the permit granted herein or any California Environn1ental Quality Act 
determinations related thereto. 

ccccc. The Conditions of Project Approval set forth herein include certain fees, dedication 
requirements, reservation requirements and other exactions. Pursuant to Governn1ent 
Code Section 66020(d)(l), these Conditions constitute written notice of a statement of the 
amount of such fees, and a description of the dedications, reservations and other exactions. 
The developer is hereby fmiher notified that the 90-day approval period in which the 
developer may protest these fees, dedications, reservations and other exactions, pursuant 
to Governn1ent Code Section 66020(a), has begun. If the developer fails to file a protest 
within this 90-day period complying with all of the requirements of Section 66020, the 

Resolution No. 20 (Pres1449-2) 



developer will be legally barred from later challenging such exactions. 

Resolution No. 21 (Pres1449-2) 



GATEWAY STATION 
Newark CA 

OATE:S/29115 
U..t.JOl t ll-117 

0 
•

- URBAN 
ARENA 

I NTEO RAL '""··•~- •-• 
(..l,f1ohl ... 1t1•1... !-;;:;::.."":";;:'".,.:1: __ ._. __ - - ---- · - --· l

.._ ... 
COYER SHEET "'°'ics.o 

Exhibit A 



GATEWAY STATION 
Newark CA 

OAt'E::5129/U 
UAJOI • 13-177 

0 
I NTEG RAL 
":.!'~:.~!!· •ir• • 

URBAN 
:'.:,':~!:!.~.! c-_c..,_,,.,. ....... _, ...... _ 
--··-~ 

I TABLf OF 00!'.'TENTS =:::i 
ACS,O COV!l SH!'.!T 
~ I TMJU: Of C0NTbll$ 

~.o ARCl"ltrECTUW un l'lAN 

Al.I) UAtOf'T~o-t'.JXC'O.l#'OStTIP'I.N6 
Al. I 1.:AtOFTS,-JTll-llfXCOMPOSITTflf'VATI0,.,5 A 
,Al,2 ',.,IALOnSl'LITO-P'l.!li:COMi'OSIJfruYA1ION'SB 

..:Z.O UA~SI\JT 7.Jtl'ICCOW'OSm-.»15 
"2..1 U4 LOFT VUT7...rtEl Co,.Af'Offlt flEVATIONSA 
"2 .'2 UALOFTS,Uf7.,tfX(OII.POSITEl:LEV4 t lON:.B 

Al.O UA1'19-PUXCOMf'OSt11P'.N'GIST ~ lNOFl.OOI 
Al.I UA "9f-'l.DCOMPOSITT: P\A.....S 3ltO ROOR 
.-J.2 UA P9 9,11.D UEVAi'ONS 
Al.l UA"ff_,..!Xfil\llJlOt.lS 

M.0 U>.FLATS ......O:COMl'OS¥TE l'\.Al6 
AU UAflATS 0,'1.9 COM10SIT! fl.lVATIOHS A 
M.2 UAI\ATS6.t\!XCCWICS,tff£>.!\'Al'IOKSI 

A.5.0 VA 35'l!SS' ...U.fY. MN 1 rux>~ "ViNS 
A5,I UA35'-"'JJ.L~'t'.,i,,.N2fL~,v.N$ 
.U~ UA 3SU$' AUEY • Pl.AN 3 R.OOII: l"WG 
.1,$.) VA1"$f'.rc..."Y- Jl'W6 1-3R~All0Nl 

A6.0 UA 35'X50 f WNT. l'IAN I R.00! "-ANS 
,t.6.I UA 3$'"° f,t;)NT • PI.A,H '2 fl.OOl 1'1.>r:4 
MJ u,..35'X.SO',.-oNT,PlN.tl'1.00l,v.NS 
Mo.3 UA3SX$O'F~ NT , PLA:~ l -3U.fVAT',0NS 

AJJ) UAC\usrrJ:,rl"ICM.Cl.USiUt-M..."'l: 
A7,1 UAOIATU , ,V.-.,J ROOll'l.ANS 
"1 .'? UA CLUSTU • !'I.AN '2 Fl.OOll l't.,t,N$ 

Al .l UA CL.USn• , P\AN 3 FLOOl l\N-fS 
AJ.A UACU.6191, PlNHFLOOll\»6 
A7.5 UAQUS'TU. ~ , .... fLEV,( nOr(S 

-,- ... 
TABLE OF CONTENTS - ACS.1 



- - -

11! 
; ~i~ !-i" ~§'~ 

' ' 
,i 

:1 ' ' 

! 

' ~!~1!-B. 

' 
ti i 

:e~~~lc 
I i 
a ' 

l ___ _ 
ENTEi 
DRIVE 



I 



::J 
4 

= ·',..,.,J 

~ ] 
iLFT ~IJVATIOJi ;..aa;;.,;.:oum1. x;:.u; ,,.. • ,.., 

w.TER!A+S usrr CONTfM'9!AA't' AGWW:! 

.@K;HT EUVATlON 

IMICOOl'l'I.AnU01DIOll*11'10tAIID1,lll,I 
tzMDfr'~~~llllO~-~ ..,_ 
ffMOIWCW.IIJC.O!"llilCl«TAL«iOJACc.om 
UIWS!.Qllfll,lf,J'll'Qll:~,u1'JXJ#
/ltl/Of/lONJJt,,/#M~nw,c, 
IIIIIIJCU.:Somtr~llf!'tcu::r. m.CRt:1161 
1'QITGl'OICllltC)l1Mlf.-.i.lCWDIAIIINIICS. 
' AJJIIUJ JOM)Olt COIJ lm'AI. COollteL '1w.mtAT AOC. 
C"aWoGNIJ&,C)ll'M,00,~ 
Gll*CED.wt& Jlal:ilDl:GIIIMD.UUWINltUH 
GUZ1«7,i11LMW.IEK 
l'AWm>~co.111"'TAl.11.«!"'CWII. 
IIIL~WT'AI.NM,llT"'I..Wll,o,or.,, 
~l'OIIIOOl'co.ttllfflt.11.91!..U:AtOJJ!fllCOt 
•ClllllltM:> 
"1Al.~Ut~CMN.l:fCIXIASlllr:lfllfi::IOW ,,,,,, 
16AL~IIIXLUl~"-WOCQllliAtl.Af 
IIQllk:;,,d.AtC:CUOir.Q.. 

GATEWAY STATION 
NeworkCA 

DAl£:51'1J/15 
UA J01 11 13-m 

RfAR ELEVA'l10N 

~ONT ElEVATl01'1 

•

URBAN 

i~,rn!~1M} ~~-~~ 
- ----- i:H, '-"'-~,,.. :..: .. ·':": 

0 

WYA.J!Ct,IO>fflo~A.UfllOMKJJN:JH!~C....:it 

UA LOFT SPLIT 6-PLEX 
ELEVATIONS 

&1ri11omantlot 
Shoetno. 

Al.1 





I 



LEFTElfVAT10N ~Mr- 1\0' 
Q5&_'.Gi5j ~'y,.JA 

RIGHT ELEVATION ..:.aau ... i.&hriiJ.,, i6i&.iGr- F.cr 

M.*.Jl!ALSUST·CONTt..tJ!'OAA!,t§WIAN 
:U,CD$1'ft.U1'1t:mJIICllw.lltLFfGIIMOfMI 
~llloUCQTZM:llt~IOICWl'AlSW:: 

:TAHOM,Wl.sl.Ol'lltO.c,'M."°l:J'J.C:t>fn 
l,Olll'J:1,0l'f&atl.POll:MQ!',UMICI'; 
Na1181AUIIIJCllj'IODaf'IJWQ. 
MafOW.SVr'rlfl'~ lllfnl~- L'Q.Qlt!:,C 
~i"Ow.:ruCO,ITiELIUOINUIAIW:'tla 
hllfflJ~CO,IJ'~CCIMO.~Af"-'10t 
CIICll*JICIMoOXCll'lteflf(#C,t",£. 
c:AI.WiHfl!JJIC:TAL ?IMU:Cll'CUAAIIWIWl)llftAl"f 
"*liltTAI.Mlll'.wlM 
Mifllltl'Qa,r(IJ,l,l'ffM.PCm:lllllWI. 
~IWCIDlotTAl.'11M"ff~C,,. 
NMTU.-O~COtTJollJA41'1Sf11UJ.W ~T~OCiO't 

__ .., 
IIICl'ArLOll'DtltAD«IU4"~DOCIICYWlffllNICW 

""" .ICAtl.O~~~~O)OII.JAf lM 
11,QMPICf"J,fC*IICUIC. 

GATEWAY STATION 
Newon< CA 

UA°.:,\E:,Sl.t(~ 

RWaEVATl~ 

A R ENA Q -~ URBAN 
INTEGR.AL "'""~ ·-···-• 
Gi;. A1m,.,r,1 11c~ ~;':,!.~~-;.:1!~ -·- ·- .. ... -·~_.'._--~ 

nNIU'Ol-ectffl.~AltPIOM~""'-SI<~ 

Enlllrlm.ntSet 

UA LOFT SPLIT 7-PLEX 1,..., ... 
2 ELEVATIONS A .1 





~, ~· .~c·r,·· ' 1~·-L_: jffij] 1@1f~~,j 
[;:_i "" ~I '"' 11 /\ II /\ /\ II i\. II '"' I~-" : ... I • 

·11: 1/i~ ' _;· ·i:~1 11 i \f,rg \ ., ,~i,, ~-,-J~, i,· ~ :i 
s,w- ~ Y 1olL11 I ! . I . i ·.. 1 I 1.1 1 \ 10 m;;:;.·· ., t0icu °""°.. . ,~ f21e'J. LJ Ii i_.j !_) _; 1 1 ,a·· ~ . 

! '"'"''- . I ,~> f ·,.~,.. r ,.el 
I,~, r . ~·. 1111 .. ~=· : i ~= ['f1l = J ', t=:~::=. ~jj[M:j 

~=~ II /\r~'\\ ~~1 

UA P9 9-PLEX FIRST LEVH 

UA P9 9-PLEX SECOND LEVEL 

GATEWAY STATION 
Newark CA 

DAlC:5/2911> 
.'!_A_,19_!• 13·1Z.' 

~
~-ul ,, ,., .. --."-

1 ~" 8 l.--1 '-~ tif""" 
L ;, -- /,_ ""£ft .J 

0 
INTEGRAL 
'.~,'.: .~.:~:.~, ',IJ. ! ~.(} 

URBAN 
AR,,ENA 
',;,~;.;·;;,:··';::·:~·.;:; -----

PLAN SUMMARY 

PLAN 1 
2BR / 2.5 BATH 1,5825.F. 

PLAN 2 
38R i 2.5 BATH 1,690 S.F. 

PLAN 3 
3BR I 2 BATH 1,787 S.f. 

PLAN 4 
3BR/ is BATH 1,864 S.F. 

PLAN 5 
48Rj'3BATH 2,193 S.F. 

;·· - En!l!lomootSot 

·~' .. P99:PLEX COMPOSITE PLANS 1-A,3,Q 



n 1 ~~j II J 

I==/'~ -
1 l~ lfl_ ; - :ci .. ,~ I ~r"~'' ... - _-
- "" ~'·'ill llill""" ~ -- ~,,, - ·= ' j -f;J·'"T.I , E:ki r,rnTi:TliJ1· I ··· 'l -

- -f:31E3' 1 ca x I ~ :, "'@ E!ilE'.j 
21 .m::r,' '~ -~..:"'" ' ~-- · I'-, 

,I"":.."" fh'i: i ' ' : = I'"""""" 

'Pik~ 1 ~ , _I_~·-· _ 1 I 1 ___ •,,w _iny ~ :i,,,J ,--J --- I I I~ '1j1J 
= 1 I _,,.. - 1-~ I = - _. ~"' II, I l~.rr .,,,,. "'"" I 

11~ =· I - ""' 11 -
, 111" 11n111 'rL_,-,-~ ~I -~ 1111 111 11 d 
~~~. '~14Jv I ''" . --IF31 ,ra 

~ -r ~.:· 11: ~1,, - Ss ~ ···- • 

I ; 'U ,, _lj_J 
I I c=_J 

W/_1 

UA P9 9-PLEX THIRD LEVEL 

UAP9 9-PLEX ROOF PIAN 

GATEWAY STATION 
Newark CA 

UA~ir:i~m_ 
Q 

t~o~;~ g.~,~~ 

-- ~ --- - - - - ---RBAN , , , " " 
1

,n1111om01tt>0• 

AREN'( P9 9-PLEX COMPOSITE PLAN S~eelno. 

~ ~ ANDROOFPLANj A3.1 



,{--... 

f i 
I 

_, l 
I 

\ 
l 

I 
i 
! 

N 
:x rv'i 

IJ c:c 
V'l z 
0 
~ 
> w 
-' w 
X w 
-' 
0.. 
0,. 

"' 0.. 

! . 

~ - ~ 1 j • 



UA P9 9.1'(£)( LEFT ELEVATION 

~= ........ :: , . 

UA P9 9-PLEX RIGHT ELEVATION 

... ,.
ow.ilO .... 

GATEWAY STATION 
Newark CA 

DA.-""t::Sl2t/1S 
UAJOII 1> 1n 

UA P9 9-IWC lEfT MOTORCOURT ELEVATION 

UA P9 9,!'LEX_RLGHT M010RCOVRT ELEVATION 

o B · ~~rn~~ INTEG.RAL ............... .. 
~"'"'"!.!".!:·.~.! ' ----" --- ·t::~;;;.:i: ~ 

-~, 

tlNAl'IO!<tttt:Dm~A.111 ,IIOM.uw:tM!'~CMIX _ ... 
Shecll'IO, 

P9 9-PLEX ELEVATIONS I A3.3 



I 
r'"", r"',, ~. !\.le 

11.tlD~::i ~ i c - L-:11==:li 

I '

rn c, 
,_ I ,_.,-..; t,;:;, 

' ' }--~~·-'~~~ -"-"----------~-~-, 
,-, 

6-PLEX COMPOSITE PlAN 

*~;~~ 
I! j1 \~'fn1 lp 
I i 11· \, i .. \ / 1·1 

I . •. . \/ \/ ·-1'j ' . 
! 1~ .. ~"=~••,·,i. ~mJ-l~ct~UII ut , , 
~1~ ~· ~r~~~~ ~~~1·· .. ~~:; -.· 

f·l.----.-----•i»<~-J p :::;; 1[_, •! 
,,__.L--------"-'--~~-~f'IAN·"--'"---- PL>.N3 ,' 

GATEWAY STATION 
Newark CA 

0A1CC5/29/15 
_!!AJ<:)~·l_ll_ 

6-PLEX COMPOSITE PIAN 

0 
\~ll8~f~ 

1.1..fRBAN 

I -_- _.s.;~~:·?~ 
'"''"·' ..• 

PLAN 1 SUMMARY ~------~ 

"""'''"" ,,,,., """"'· "'" 

PLAN 2 SUMMARY F~~--~·-

·=t~i'.tr"~"" 

'""°"' '"'" :NO '«)CR 1,1<,SF 
:-,~~ 

"'"'"''' w,ico,~, 
.cwi,o, 

PLAN 3 SUMMARY 
Flats 

c,.,,,.,,,o,s,,.,.r:,,;o 
'"'"oo=, ... ,,, 

i~~ '1'~. 'i.'fJ 
JOD,FLCO<, '~"" "Ci01,!,~-,_,,;·,,-

"""'""' "'" c,,,ce '''"' 

PLAN, 4 SUMMARY 
Flo ts-

_lgefg,{&~;1;~~' 
'"• hDC" "'" 
2ND,MO• '·'""' --;~,~ 

, .. ccs, ""' 
,:.,.W.CE, "'" 

® ,. UA F"LATS 6-PLEX COMPOSITE 1=r~:.r\!Sol 
'''" PLANS I A4.0 



6-PllX LEFT ELEVATION 
e&Jlw6o,,.iii™u..:Ji6i.iifnJ,. S&d,111.,'.0' 

6-PLEX RJGI« ELEVATION 
c&:::;lu,vcii.,,.d::ZS...,_.w.,;;;;,.'lOPl~mi"' ib.ii. in- 1·q 

MIITtRIAIJ USJ· CONf!MPOWV AGWIA.'1 

»":DCDOIJIUifliltOfflllQlf-,.NC,lj,VCIJIIW 
ctlU'f'ICWID'ttt11MM~<O~~ ..,_ 
~st.WJL~l«T'~ f/lOOFIICUJIT: 
t.OW&Ol'fM.l'I.POIISIIIGI.IIU,IOClll", 
-~l8!0Clt'HW,C. 
Mlltat.A::OtTJfrOCOICSIW!Jf~• ~
NJlt!SillO~CC.TWfAILLCIIM'Jll .a\'IN'/l'CS. 
MWl'Ul/flCIWXIIQ)ITIIICTJrtCQIIE..~A11lCQt 
1".CIIM:AIOaOIWC"1/JltAIC. 
".......m,J1111M.n.lf'DftlCG&Mlal"°""'IW1PfrOW 
Cl.14:lfwrTAL~~ 
l'MfrJJJl'QliWCOlTMrfl'M.Nlf:1M.U1 
l;AtiWmll,t,C.IILMCftJA.A:iw.cW. 
,-QDIOW:DCCMT.MffAC. ft91 llll!ILGA1'9"" 
OOClll•tcXCllt"IC 
loffAl,~,iou..p,iww;focott~M'«N' 
um 
wtflOICJM"M'""""'Ql9CIC:GIL,t;JCICICll:o1TM 
IIQlllf Pl'CZ"A1GaNU\G. 

GATEWAY STATION 
Newark CA 

DA1e.5/2P/1S 
~AJOl• ll-ln 

6-PI.EX REAR ELEVATION 
as::1m rnrm& cm1 ... ;e.a; "'·'* 

6-Plf]( FRONT ElEVATION 

0 
•

U RBAN 
, ARENA 

I NTEG RAL ~ ·,;:.::::.:.;;:~ii: 
,:;o, .. r., 11n1 11 \• ·'"""' - '"'·"'-
·-- - .... ··- - 'l,.r;,-.. . --

! 

~ 

~':IQl<llllCl'ffl:51,0ol't,l.<r,UAQl,l~~C"AJ,,CX 

,. UA FLATS 6-PLEX ELEVATION; 1~;.1 



l 
l 
' ; .. ' .. 

' ' l 
I 
I 

N 

1~ 
L. 



/- ____ ., ______ 30~,Q'.____ -( 

t~,9'-'-1-·- ?.'-0" --------- -/_f,P.'..._~ 

- ; l~D 
I. 1 .. 'I!-,- - - IL 'I I . . --, C 

I I ~ - -- , I 
I ·- -~ L-~-

1 I 11 

Ii I II 

,1 11 

' 1] ' 

I I ~I ~ I ' . I I. 0 """" 11 ,1 ~o "'.:'· 

I : ggJ-"~ I 

I - ' 

i1 i I[ 

'_ n o· II I I I; r I .L"'"'~o,orn, - I 
I - ! ""'" I ! 

1 ·'-r''.·- ,_, -1
1 

TF'l "~"o'"?M ·[ . 

I LJ _cc-' Ii i = I I 1-- =~ -,= ~ I 
,_. "=" . i ±)I 

,I r _, Leib-d- _ -~t I 

"I 11 I . 1

1

, ---l--) 
11 i,'----1JL s!..---

FIRST LEVi'.L 

~, 

~I~ - _e-:'~ -w
e-= ~I ., ~ 

ltOOF ,-\ ! -..._ /, 

I 

-~MO S!rN !'ffJ 
"""~ l<'.'..bJ 

~ 
!D1 -J c 

''~'.~·~' 

VOLUME OPT 
BON~;',';;; ioor, 

- . 

8'0RD0M4 

'""' 

i_J)D/i 
,00,1~ 

1

127 

~=-=IIJ 
.~I 

Sl:COND LEVEL 
sc,J..c,•/•· ,·-~ 

PLAN 1 
2,491 S.F. WITH BONUS ROOM 

2,345 S.F. TOTAL 

GATEWAY STATION ~URBAN 
Newark CA 

DATC:£!<'115 
U-".J.OS_!l___l__:!::117 ~~~f;~~;~ 

~ 

"" '""',-,r, 
L 1 1,c! , _1D -

'"I. ""'!"""°~. . .. '.·-·" ~·.' 

I m~ 
I~ .. CT[ d~E3}n-1b[J_i 
I, _ •. · J .. 1\1 ' ' 

I 
"2:'IBfl't} . 1' 

1 1 ,,,,,, ·o·· oe,c, .. 

L -- ---.-.- -- """.'' ~-~,-' 
I · ,w ! ---

THIRD LEVEL ,,,,..,,,, ,-~ 

" :CnilllornontSot 

~ 
UA 35'X55' ALLEY LOADED lshoetno. 

FLOOR PLANS j AS.O 



~:,:,= . ----~ ::: ~~-=~ --~~~ 
, I - ---~r-). 
. , ··1"' 1 I +.--~ -· --- 11 I I] , 
Iii I ----, --, J!, I 
i1 I - II 

I 11 
i1 •• ~ I 
11 t _II L . · '.. ' _; 1i 

I -- ---~":":. d 11 
I ,m I 
I 1<. II 
I ii'-,~;' 11 

'.~Mui 

I 

~ ~ 

ID~d , .. -, I ,,,:??:' ' ~I I 

'"': ,' C : _ __l~i I i I 

'°''' - b'J. ---+-7 I 

'·-r·1 I 
. I 

~ I ': ,,,_ ___ _ ~-- --- __j_---'s 

FIRSTLCVEL 

~ 
lijri~-1 

~m 
nn 1·-rn1 

1'~ __ 1 

i,woe _] ",?~;~ ti ~;:ff~ ~'\ 

.. · 0 

'l\.:111--· ~- f. I g;,i ; ""' 0 
)..--'l;i 

' ' 11 ' Ill '-.JI'' w '11:1 "'.I -

~ 
l. , .. ;, 1 nA fr[ffi 

<ITCHrn 

'"· :=ma·./ I '/~ 

11:1 =:::::oi;~ l[)l[J °'' 
11 '~-' ·'""\'.";~~-, ~-J ._, --' 

1-.-----..,-------,----n-,=:-
~. 'ry{ .__.L_JI ~ 

- "-' --

SECOND LEVCL 

PLAN 2 
2,027 MAIN UNIT TOTAL 
2,710 TOTAL WITH APT. 

GATEWAY STATION o sm~~~t~ 
t~c:Tl~~~i1} ~ A:'.·~::;:f·:-'~:~:::.:·:: 

Newark CA 
OAlE:5/29115 

UAJoo,,3.,n 

~-------- ' 

f''' w.sTfl srn,oo~. o 
o,1,!'?!,'~' 

·1 

11 
Mi<SrE~,·;~:~OM l 

--~------

T!jlRD LEVEL 

~ LJA 35'X55' ALLEY LOADED l;!i:~~ntSot 
w FLOORPLANSI AS.1 



. 1'!ll""> r"",_::i"".~

1

~~=~=r 
~ ! it L_ -

~ 

~ 
0 

Ml-

z u..: 
:'S vi 
n..~ 

" "'N 



-,.,,.] 
_IQ~ -~1 
·~~J 
-a;r 

PtAN 1 FRONT ELEVATION 
, ..........&.i.i :,,•.1 m: 1,, . /· v 

l'lAN 2 FRONT ElE.VATlON 
- ..t.111' . , __ 

w.TEt!AlS US!: 'MMHOUSf,a,,,~ 

»'MCVOt'Fl'Ur.fl'llt~~~-
ctlC#fM)IICCll'IIM)ll~;o,c..,. .. 
~tlMt'IIT~ACaM1'11rc:Aatl* 
~,ccurroizino:w~l!OO' 
IIOCOMO:tr,MIO"*l,J..r~CMZ: 
llo:»C11JMCAT~IIIIHCDID,'f .... lllMI 
1111'1,0QIIU'C 
1W"'-fllHJO#'IIIIIIC, 
IIIGf~f,mr,OOC-,WltfCU.::S 
l'.O'llO~~ltO..-¥fflll.tOC,lllp~ 
IIAWllO ~ CGITef:lfCOrWWiM!011't'CUI.IIC.Mrtlll --CIA.IMllN(AIU.u .. ~oooe....,--

""' MUQ..c:IMtOl'IKJIM.-.oDII'~ 

PIAN 3 FRONT ELEVATION 

GATEWAY STATION 
0 ·· ·~~~~~ Newark CA 

OAT!:l/'29/ 15 
UAJOI I 1).171 

I NTEGRAL ,,,, ,., _ •....•. , ... 
Cc.tl\mun 1111; ,. t,:,::-:;.:"";";.'~1

.'~ 
·-.!"'.""'~-- - - - -- -- _ . ... 

-~] 
~ ' C?~ 

UA 35'XSS ALLEY LOADED 
ELEVATIONS 

] 
---

•• ~1 

Entitlomren1SOC ,_,,,., 
AS.3 



1-------1 
I 

Is' I I 1,;=; ·-, , , ·- -, O 
jU1 I ') Jil:J 
IF') Ms>cB, 1 I,?]~ eom 1 '. 11 I ·,d.'J___I "''•"·'" - RJoo/r. ~ , u '"''; I 111 

"I -= 
' , I l 

~~ I 

IF 

I 
I 

I 
~- lo II II r"\M,·-r' I . \l""- . L_j' 
UMstrB- I ··: L - ,0 I ~. _'-.,' 1,1'=- -

_______ _J 

TH_IRD LEVl:L 

--a·-.r /- ~~=o=-~--------~"io~.1 Jc_ I 1-------,,,r~ 1 

, , • r, ,1 

-~~ ! -L- 1 

,, -· 

1 
1 

I ""l'*t."~ :fft J,1:±# , I 
0 i;~:;"' Ji II 

_ -- i,7,,,,, 1= 

J --~ Gceo,fll -- , I I I =-- --, l] 11 ' ' j- RoomJJ I - - JI , I • I 11 I 
c.,,""' ~D '·'·"·'~..,,.r=·;, '. I L= -~I - -==c!i 

I~','~·- ~ 1 I I ·-· --·· g-1, I 
~ 1~1 1._1 -- . \c!rLI 

~ ...------, ,....------, "' 
I "" i'I ,\ '1 ·1'1 ::[l I 

I I '' 111 f--j I 
!'1_----1: 1

"' .. ____ ',. - ~ I 1 [ 

1,,1,i-"~:~.;yl 1:!,,i --~ "'.- I I I 

-~ ccc__. I ,,La!, ,,,,,---' j ,.. I I I 
I ,

1
11 LJ-•

1 
Tech :i41 :1-----t H 

_____Lb ,_ ', ', '' '1 I I , u m ~-· ~---· 
'' -"- -- - I ;--- =-=--=-::::--:::__ ~ -- u I 

L _______ _J t_LL ____ I __ JJj 

SECOND LEVEL FIRST LEVH 
c::::,:;c,~oo<>~l, ,~-. "--"" 11•- ·-~ 

PLAN 1 SUMMARY 
3BR I 2.5 BATH I FLEX RM. I OFFICE I "CALIF. RM." 
PLAN l: 2,299 S.F. 

GATEWAY STATION O\~-~~]fJ~ 
t~:0{~~~7J~ ;:.:~::;~_:::::~:;;~ 

'°""•"' 

~ uA 35'X50' FRONT LOADED 1r:~~~i_ntSol Newark CA 
UA~~lf,

5t,ri~ w FLOOR PLANS j A6.0 



1-------1 

l~lill ''-"'--"''" '-' 

;'.i}i,~:}'...I, 
~ 

I ·fu:,;i..:-i1
1 

.•. 1 r](·1 I I·. I !~_;u\~ .. JL' =~ 
~ 

:;,_ 

I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
L _______ _J 

Ji".!IRD LEVEl 

1-------1 
r _, ,.-OORLL 
II ='/'-' l 

~ 

@ 

'~ '" .I 

-,,;;;~ 

Greot 
Room 

""''"' r-r 
11 I LJ 

FP.~' ~.:-----'.I 

~ 

I 

I 
I 

~, 
'~,@.~:~ I.~.' I 

I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

J I 

L _______ _J 
SECOND LEVEL 

PLAN 2 SUMMARY -~----------
3 BR/2.5 BATH+ APT. (lBR/ 1 BATH/UV) 
PLAN 2: 2,027 S.F. 
APARTMENT: 514 S.F. 
TOTAL: 2,541 S.F. 

GATEWAY STATION 
0 

l:f,~,~~.~~~ Newark CA 
DAlE;0/29/1> 

.',I_AJ~l:l:)Z_] 

------~ / 

k L4~2"..__. ,, __ J.3~0'.' - r--J 
i i I ,--,~ ----} 

I c,, 
«=,I 

I~· - -
I ~ r, 
I ,~ ···, 

1

1 

I 
I 

J1ldU I = Ll'r~==-=,, 
' lbJ ...• 
II I tt:~ 
I I 

al J 
~ ~I 

I ~-· ~-

I 

I 1', I·, 1', I·, 

I ·I I I '1;.-11 1,·-.11 
I I I ,--,11 ,1,-~:li 
I II~: 111 

i : '· '·-='J' ',Id~· -'. r '*'- , I 1 
I 

1t :i :1 :1 ' -
I . L ... ---1 \ ___ '1 fu.r.;b_ 

'f~ ---~~-- . ' I 

l!._LL ____ I i __ l __ _J 
l'IRSTLEVEL 

U-RBAN 

.:,:;.~.~ .. : -
I~ 

'~ . uA 35'X50' FRONT LOADED l~!l:~~.r,!Sot 

••• FLOOR PLANS I A6.1 



1--------i 
"D 
n·1 ---, il,1,a, ~~L 
iliri\1 i j I II~-~~ , · 
,L'' _I "° o ---·---'=!. :fl ~ r:·~.'a,, -, i l1J.· 

''·"' c:.··-~ I iP 
51[ 1 'r c~;" ,--Ji 
'" } - L.1'' i ~· 

-ill 
i I 

' -m 

-0 

THIRD LE\11:.L 

I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 

1--------i 
~ ,w--, iu
-"""' 111 r I 11· ! Opt~me c'il 

' 'L '"·.'" '~I 

fill 
·i~! 

,. _Jh1·1·' 
·. wl 

' -

[____, 

I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
L _______ _J 

SECOND LEVEL 

PLAN 3 SUMMARY 
~---·--~·--
4 BR I 2.5 BATH I "CALIF. RM" Deck 
PLAN 3, 2,305 S.F. 
Calif. Rm Deck, 191 S.F. 

~-~-~s~~o-::-3
·
5
_':0,''_______ F----1':o~ 

I I 
,,______, i ___ '} 

01 I 

1. · . i I[ s1 

Ii ~ D11J·i =h . .. . 1, t ~: 
,I. &.;;,.'.·' 1a~~ .... ~-§11 .. ,, i1 __ , 
1·1' "' Kekh•t -- 19 11 - ,,, .. ,, ' I : 'i' 

:1 ~ ~II I 

'I .1i.\i!Jg_ ~I I 
' "' 

0

'" ••• ,,,_,,, 8111 i 
,,1 I L'.:w:=CJ r-;;:;:-:,, ~I 
Sa ,,,-

1 1:-----i ,:----i 
• 1 I', 1 1·, 

I 
I I I I 

'1 ~~ I 11--- I 

I ,-'' ~" 

I i:l :~'~.·~1~'1

/ -1:1...H m 
I ''-I '''-I f-1-11 
I 

11C 'C --=r- I I 

~; I --- I - ~ I , __ LL __ -- -_ }:iJ 
FIRST LEVEL 

GATEWAY STATION ~ ~~~~~ !- J-; u! 3~-'X5-0' F-~O~T ~A~E~[~-~~~~i_otso, Newark CA 
DME::5129/15 

.!l_AJO~~~ ~!'::.,:"':,:"" ~ FLOOR PLANS I A6. 2 ---.::~ .............. 



·m-1 
·~~J -r 
·~~J 

-~:] 
- -,.,,,,.] 
~.(!~ 

-~ 

~] I 
·=-] i 

1.q.~¢-

] 
""' 

PIAN 1 F!ONT ELEVATION 
.;::;::;::.:a:: •• u z:;u,v •• 1 . .,. 

PIAN 2 fRCNT ELEVATION 
W ~l-~i•l &b ii• . IC& 

PlAN 3 F~ONT ELEVATION 
;..;:waiblUt ....... t 11• i t-

GATEWAY STATION 
Newark CA 

OATt::Sffl/\5 
-~• 13-171 _ _ 

- «~IA1,,~"4 
::nl~'Ol11"1,,0,Pf)l'ft,410itWlrUH.l'JMAA:l!'IIIW. 
(Ult;.W«>ft)fltl1jllOlflOl'lQWJAl.:CIIICJNJ
AIIOCUElrr-~111rQIIIUOG 
.o:::Ptkr~:Hi<IQ.tl!CCf' 
IIIOCl:lr-uQIJ"r,MCCQIIUltUA.T"""'"""" 
111«.CCl.lM!l:AJ.x~ .. ..,ciw,,r~• 
,'fltOClfLJC 
__ ......, 
Mlf~,lllfffl'OCOIQIMJW~ 
IWNfU/QIICllaM."'Ct...,.,.. .. tAlLCUllt.-.OC:: 
ll'ltiW1ZD~~.xc:,uor,rM10tr1alltllll/fUI. 
DfGtlCl.~MJ 
Jo('~OoVl<,,IOIIIQ::A,qt~OOOfa lllT!tlWOC>!',O 

""' ~MICNrttl'lllWMIC)(W~ 

0 
INTEGRAL 
t;<,t,~!~.~llC'• 

I.URBAN 
I
·. . f.:.~.:=-i::i.~ 

'1: t-·--"'" 
__ A_ ~ '"'·'""-' ,.'"''''" 

\ 

- --- .............. 
UA 35'X50' FRONT LOADED "'"''"'· 

ELEVATIONS A6.3 



-------------------------~ 
! S-+ +-1-'--'. --' _j__J I :r=:J==:J-± +=~--1. ---1 
~-'T I I I I I' I 1~ 11 

:-µ ,--- i
1!r 111 I l I 

I fLOT:1,526SFI I ILOT:1,526SF_UlilLoT:1,268SFI, j LOT:2,093SF ri 
, pb1~2~ I, 1 3 ~,1), 1 ~ 1~L.-r1 . 1 4 ! 

1

1'

1 

I I I ' ' II . •, ,, I I I ' II I 11· 

'1·1 /\ II ·1!51 ·1··1 ,i\ /',, ·1'1 I @I ;'\ ,'\ ii\ II /\ 1· ,---J I, 

I I' i ,i',. ,1
1
, .• ©

1 I /
1
\ /\, I I 111 /\\ /\, 11 /\.1.1 /\, I I 'Ii 

I 1, I I.II / \, ·'.! ·\'I l1LI1=111 / \\ ,I .. \\ 1.1· 111 / \\ ,/ \\ I w II ~/ \ 111. I . i' 
I I I c _ __o '·-··' 1 L--c '-· _, 1 Ii '··-· ~- 11 I I · 'I 

'..._L_L_ ___ ____l ____ _.,.._L __ ----i' I _L.1111~~.--~~> Ii_, 
I ~ L. ]ll ,,.. . . , :J;:. ·,1 n I 1@1Bltm , 

I--- - ~. - -- - - - - - -- - .. - - ·-.-:: ·-- - - - ·- .~ --i.n;. _11_ I -ocrJ·~ • 
:::,_ --=-~-r~k, .. -r , l+ i I j ,----- --

r; r~~~-- - i._e, , ' 1 • -= ; . i _ • --=--=--=-~--.- 11; =--=-:::I 11 ~ ---- ,;~ .. , 
I I I ---- -1--- (J ---- +-- ·. --- -- ' f ·.~,,~, ~ ''Q' I' I \ ,' ;, I LJ \ ,' \ I ' \ ', ,' ! 

! I I . '1 ,; '~ · .. i •• r, 
--- - I '.t iL.:!j ·, ' ,1 ' 

J::..., \ :,c.,,e,.,':":,,1·· ,' LJ ,..,,, \ ,'°'"'.'".::"°'" ,' 
I \ ' ., \ ,' "- / \ ' 

j I I " fi 
1

' --,~fc=H-1e===" 
I I il ·~; ,;;;: I 

i I I~ '"1 I r ""t ~.'''1. 
I [ Ir! · l',c ( LJ ~1, 
· I ~ ,~ .- . I CJJ 
!.Lf- 0

~- 1,1 ~~ ~'"c.dl'·1i:_~cp.,J".i!k,~="'L~L_ lii-~;;:.Jjn~=r==~~~;;;;dl'.T, t+-. ,, _' 
1 l .L ____________ - - - - - - - -~ - - -,~ 

PLAN 3 
lSTFLOOR 

PLAN 2 
lSTFLOOR 

VA CLUSTER TY?ICAL a.PACK CONFIGURATION 

PLAN 1 
1 ST FLOOR 

------- GATEWAY STATION , ~ 
Newark CA 

OAlc'S(.11/1.\ 
UhJQSO IJ-117 

PLAN 4 
lSTFLOOR 

---... ~-,._r-w, 11:ollllomeo!Sot URBAN • ' · ' " _, st>ootno. 

~:?:~·~;2 el') UA CLUSTER TYPICAL 8-PACK I A7 .o _____,. '~"'' 



J-"3~r--~O'~--·-/ ~t 
i • I I r~,~1 . - i I 

I ,-- -.1 .. ··-·r~---.. --.---1-, 1· I I 
' ', ' ' 

\ ,' ', ,' 

~1,=1 ' ,, ' _i I ', I ·, ' 

1;-0.R<,Aiv.G<,I 

' "~""' I 

0 

•i 
I -~" 

"~ 

I.-. - ~ r-, I , ___ : 

l.__ I ~ "B~~, 
1

1: [' ~ I 

I - 1-- "°'. """'' I' "'" ' 
~i _· - r-] 

'1 
y--.----

1---=-
PLAN l 

1ST FLOOR 
359 S.F. 

' 

GATEWAY STATION 
Newark CA 

Of.11';!/29110 
u;, JOO ~ .. @:!?7 

"" 
c;::: 

'.
1;".;'~l'i 

~ 
CJ 

LIYlcJGitOOM 

~df-=+--4"_] 

I 
i, ·~r 

f";'111' 
,-, .1 I , 
t+o,.:- _ _J 

DINING ROOM 

'"~'". 

2ND FLOOR 
575 S.F. 

PLAN 1 
1,540 S.F. TOTAL 

0 
INTEGRAL 
:-"'"-::.',.'.':i.',l,''!.:g 

I .·· • AR:ENA .URBAN 

I ··"""''""""'" -------

ITT;lE:ill . ,-=,,,_ 
~AmOa!OSOOM , . .,,,. 

,,,,,.,T!.l!Al~ [" 

1 L 11r' _ _;JI m 
1,. 

"~:-;>,~·_;;2 

hl 

1= -~I 

-

3RD FLOOR 
606 S.F. 

~ " EMtlomenlSel 

~ 
LJA CLUSTER PLAN 1 FLOOR ISOootoo. 

PLANS A7 .1 



1. ~'-'" ~6'·0'' 3•.6' ~,r----~-------/--·-/ 
I · I J 

',,-----~ -
i el 

~I 
·1 

~I 

" I I I ~~-1 ... =1 
I II~ ,·-·, ,---, I 

i 

mi""'" ~ f' 

i,-·---

" ., 

PLAN 2 
1ST FLOOR 

GATEWAY STATION 
Newark CA 

OME:5129/15 
!,l!:,JO~• ':l-\~ 

ia1-,_:1~, lffro~ =, 

--· . ~;;;:;:; fTi1 
l_i nrnJ c 

' ,•--:-------c ""'"--" 

• LM\;u,:~;;M 'j ,': :-' :.·: 
~ . 

1
1 ~t1 1+':~ 

.: 1 U~EN 7 

'· "" .:: 0 '· '1· ';~:~.~~:i~ 
f}:'.! .. ~' 
0__ ~ 

l ,oof . ___ =--

2ND FLOOR 
888 S.F. 

PLAN 2 
1,705 S.F. TOTAL 

0 
INTEGRAL 
•.:,,c,~1:_'~'..'::.'.: 

r 

1 ~- ox·o 

Im . - ··... Jo 

ILJ" . I ' 

.

D. I 1. ·.-'.1 : ir =m··.· .·· 10 
~,L...· - I ,, I ~-. r.!AITEla,o,OOM 

I ltJ ""'" I , -

fr .. · 1.··.~ I LJ/11. 111 ~ 'Fr··. · ~Ill I 
111 L. ?'.~ H1i11 1 

111,,·. ,;i::;;=111 
II = · ·1 ' ROOF 

/ Ro9, ~--·-~-_J_~,---· 

ORBAN 

~.: .. ~.~:.: -----
'""'·"' 

3RD FLOOR 
449 S.F. 

•• IEnllllomontSol 

~ UA CLUSTER PLA.N 2 FLOOR Shootao. 

.. PLANS J A7 .2 



3a·.o· ---- - I 
,!'--- -- ·---1-1'.ctLi J,_~_,., __ _ --·- 29'-6• ---

rr1 1 

',-1--

I 

~ 
l 

, I 

l 

I ·= =n 

~ 

=:----___::_---: - I"" 
~ 
F_ 71 

I= ;:::;:_ 7i 
,= 1,,,,~ 

e;--11 • I y-------lL 
~I 

PLAN 3 
1ST FLOOR 
595 S.F. 

GATEWAY STATION 
Newark CA 

D'-1C,5/20IL5 
~.!.Q~l;1.1_Z7 

l~r,- ~- ~ 
c,;-, .. 1 J;i . . ·I. I 

1

• • •• '~!]Fill '9'1i=; ILLU__ L I I i'n 
.,.-A:.-. t--f.- aeo.ootoi _ ~, 

- -=-· ~ 
~

-Fl -- ."°'." . •· .''° . .,
0

,,, 

TEOL . lo ll~li 

~11-·. IP ~.:~: ., ,., fo l. , 
l]IM 'l """O ""'o'"' 
]] !IL; ~ 0 , ~cell 

i1=:w ~ J i _ __fl_g1 
~ 

2ND FLOOR 
753 S.F. 

PLAN 3 
l,9135.F. TOTAL 

0 ... ~~~~~ 
INTEGRAL · """'""·"~ ... ,.,,, 
,.;c, !.''"u," ','" > ·, , )·,~,\:7:,;•:';~;:~',;\: 

r-~----~ 

""''"''" 

~o 
,.wm,rn, j~= 

j 

,oc, 

c'.ltJ 

,cc,, I 

3RD FLOOR 
565 S.F. 

EntillomenlScl 

~ UA CLUSTER PLAN 3 FLOOR r0
•tn<>. 

.. PLANS, A7 .3 



{--_;i~~--------- .E1r. -,r--~6."..{ 

'\.-,-1_· -~---- ~I 
-RB[:IJ ,m, Ill 1 e1 

I , 

i 'l --i 
I I I 

6" 

sl 

'~~-.L::::J 

' - . 111 
1/ . - . - - 11 

' - ' 
i/ I----- ~~E 1'1 

~~- - Ii! 

C 0£::c•: :.::.0 _I:,~:; ~- iii 

"~ u L- 11 

'1 

~ -1 Ir 
~;P II lj 

1 
I L 
b; \IV:r;~~??M _. -C,0~:·~,:o,c:- 1

1

1_1 

c·-, I 

!if.. L-J "" I[ 1 - _, 
IL_. . 

11'-1 ,-, '"" 0 -~ 

,-,--________,;7=1 "II 's--1 )@_I~-- b&~~ ~-' ,O~H -5-
i 

~, __________ .J__..:.. __ _ 

, ___ - -----· 

PlAN 4 
1ST FLOOR 

869 S.F. 

----

GATEWAY STATION 
Newark CA 

DATE:5/2'//15 
_l!_AJ~•.!_:tl_77 

I w····~o 
~E1- : 'I 

~

, .. ,.oo_"' __ Y_ir """"' J 
' 

l'&2a 1 ff[fll «T><l l1 

1\.11 Q 0 

co, 

~- I t~~Jt],·- .. 
·l 

"~:;;.~·:' 

~
- i 

.. ,·/:· . I ---r - I 1n 
i ' ---1=1 

; I, --1 - ~~ L~ L, en1 

11' ~:,cz• . J =/= . . ·Im =:J - . ~ :1~~g,- "" 
-- -----= 

2ND FLOOR 
788 S.F. 

PLAN 4 
2,159 S.F. TOTAL 

r--- ------ ----·- -, 
,oOF • 

,oo,- -- _L__________ --- -----· _J 

I 
,frsJ M>Sl!SBEDP.DOM 

rnr,--:-,·· 
lifi' I 
~ rj_., 
r-
!i c::= 
~ ~- ~-J 

3RD FLOOR 
502 S.F. 

DRBAN 
--. A~:ENA 

~ 
0

~ uA CLUSTER PLAN 4 FLOOR 1~!1::~~~
1101 

.. PLANS I A7 .4 



MA.JW\U LA~· FJ..I.W+QUSl/CUFt~~ 

»»a.worrll\.elPl~"'""'IIJdl-r-. 
C%Wlo110oMOOOtNClr~At*"'°loYO,..., 
JMJaJIC!nlkloWl.-atH~•r~twm 
~~..:UIIICO' 
MXZJauD!ln:NiOCOllml.11.10.SO,C 
11C1CZ:1m',ll,IN:IA1ot~111r..C1J1CN110MCIII# 
J.tftOC)ltl.#,f. 
Wffl.llNIClo'"""61!:. 
,_.~CfflffllCICIICIIICIIQA::,. 
l'Alltl[l)~Ct,,1,r.lCIAI.J.IW~.wtrAil.tOIJW,tA~ 

'J l'1,,?r.C-.«JICGll'fOCl!Ct1Unlll~rfwlU.L,11[1A. 

l --e MfTC.~l!\lUf/#c;,....:toco,t;•,......,.. 
! tr.a l l'IIC~#t0f)a':t1,1111,1,~~""'11UQ 

j 
j 

! 

PLAN 1 FARMHOUSE 

PLAN 3 FARMHOUSE 

GATEWAY STATION 
Newark CA 

OAT£:.sn9/1S 
U~JCl!.•J).177 

PLAN ·2 FARMHOUSE 

PLAN 4 FARMHOUSE 

()~-~~:~~ INTEGRAL """'4""'.__...,, 
~"_g'~~•a• . ==--~~ 

-~~]J 
. - -- .,,,--] 1 

---''H:!!S I 

-"=] 

-_] ; 
_-:~T 
--~1, 

!0_=1j 

-1-"" UA CLUSTER ELEVATIONS -A7 .s 



--~co, ______ IO __ MO,,,-

Qlllll_l_ , __ Cl,,o. ... 1~1U

... - ...... w.11,wontN1...r;,,o11 .. - - --.. ll0.1C$MO;.....a,o:rt0o4~DO<.Otfl'lo<t~ ... ~ 

';r~=:a.~a~-=~=--= .. 
· - to>f"J'\Cl"0,.-1:.Q~ ........ 

TRAIL !Q,NDtt>ATE FOi 9.AYTAAIL STATUSJ 
20' 'MOE MULTI-USE nAIL 

SU SttffT L-07 fOtAOOITlONAl 
St:CllON ANO tOCAOON eNFORMATION 

---GATEWAY STATION~:~ ll[i~~ 
u,..J01• _1~N' 

i3 
I 

....... "' ~Sot 

CS::- OVERALL SITEPLAN ,,,..,,,., ·· 
~ L-01 . 



l 
I 
I .. 

i 
l 
I• 

I I 

' i 

z 
0 -
~ 
ten 
>
<( 

3: 
w 
t-
<( 
C) 

_,. 

lfl 
5 z 
0 
z 
< 
0 z w 

~ 
...J 

l'.> z 
I= z 
.'.S 
n.. 



PATIO TRilS Ii 1..:_ · lf{; 

LAAGe PARK TREES 

PAP.r.NAY S1l£ET mes 

~ IIJ 
~ 

[I 
0-1 illn 

Pl.ANTING LEGEi"'-10 t:Ot,wu,11T ..... 

~ -"1-

-~ -
"i--~-
~Iii.~ 

.....UANOUIIAl.lf.S ·--9.ot.NIX'.~ 

1----~ r.t-·· -
-- ~t"" -

~t"'· 

NOTE: COMYJJhffY?Nl.'<.c:,,.,,,.a)NCJMAl,._'TA:NroBY~~ 

CONCEPT DETAILS • 

• --TABlE , OUMOR-'46.ot-60RB 

• BCNOi • OUMORA60.60R3 our:>OOR EXERCISE 

GATEWAY STATION~~~~~ - ~fJ~~ 
UAJOl• 12-079 

' 

-KEY MAP '1S 

Ii 
I 

' """' . • • a • • , ... ,.....,.., 

COMMUNITY PARK ,.,,.,...,. 
~ CONCEPTUAL LANDSCAPE PLAN L-03 



r1 • UA FLATS _,, 

TRAIi. ~DATE FOR BAYTI.AILSTATUS} - ----~f-Jiz,!'I~~;:::. 
SEE AOOmONAL ll'FOR.V.ATION 

TKS SW-:ET ANDSH!:ETL.07-------6;11~~~ 
?A.TIOTiu:E 

WRTICIJ.St«t.~-------,..,e;,.,S,..,.11!1" 
-''WICE PAS!O 

WAJXWAY 

:6' UA P9 

IATX>m,-A.lw"'tif .w;J- ~ I.J 
AAOUfECTUIW. rAOO 

4' Wt0e PA.SEO WAL.X 

:i'Dm•----\-l~~~~----~~ R.ESIOENTW. PAOO 

P~AV~ETTREE 

( 3 \ UA CLUSTER 
-'-' 

A' w.0E PASEO 
W>J.XWAY 

PAR'f;;W,.,YTREE 

rASfOnEE 

P;Jl!J:W"4Y SftfET ntEE 

-/ ,--=-·-----1----7/ 

( 4; TRAIL (CANDIDATE FOR BAY~ --w 

eENOt · DUMOR 460-60!8 
TYP\CAll Y I PU 200' OF 1'1" 

- -.,--~.~ 4;' '.h. SHAOEJ"'E 
lwiD!. 

MULTl·rlP.Nl 

ISEE SECTION & IAYOUT ON SHEET L-071 

TRAIL STATUS) 

"'-. 

-
NOTE: FOR PlANT Mfllflt,\J. OETAI.S REFER TO SHEET L,02 KEY MAP NTS 

---GATEWAY STATION~~ - ~i~ 
IJAJCl!_l_l:_q~ - - EJ 

TYPICAL LANDSCAPE 
ENLARGEMENT PER BUILDING TYPE 

&IU,eme,ntSo: 
$hec1no, 

L-04 



12. PARCEL B PARK r 6~' UA LOFT SPLIT 

4'WDE.lt..'N!li'AllKWIUY/AYTWtCA!. ~ 

4' WIOE PAAK PfR!METER W!J.XWAY TYPICAL 

:z: 
CONNECTlONTO S, !,t.YTRA!L 

TOTLOTAGE.52-.SwrTliSAff~ 
PIAY SUR.FACE 

B~N01 • 0~ 460-60Q 1 

I 

'?-JJ .,'~,;J--:..J7 
, ·w:OE WAlXWAY---,"'il"<iiiP~ - PIAYSTRUClURE CONCEPT 

PATIO TREE: 

PATIOWITH~PAVING 

SH.ADE TREES 

5'WIOEWIJ.K\VAY 

TURfmA 

PAAJIN/AY 

--- ~---.. - ------ --~, 

\\ 
I \ 
i i 
I I 
/ I y 

V 

NOTE: FOR Pl.AA"! ~RIAL WA!LS Rfi'ER TO SHf:T L..Q2 KEY MAP NTS 

---GATEWAYSTATION~f?;1 II§,~~~ 
U1' JOt # 12.o79 -

o .. • .i .. EnUiemcf\lSol 

~ TYPICAL LANDSCAPE I""°'"" 
c::z; ENLARGEMENTS L-05 -· 



8 1 PARCEL HHH DOG PARK 

<i' 'MOE WAIXWAY 

00G WASTE 3AG O!:SP""...NS!:R 
BENOI • OC..'MOA 4,60.4Cltl 

S'YNTHETICTURF AAfA 

PAi!/:WAYTl.EE ----..____," 
' ' "'CEWALl(WAV / ~ . ~ K ·'_ 

l \ :::,;;., -~ '·· 

' '· 
\ 

\ 
I 

M.l.fYtlft / \ l~ 

RESIOEN'TIAI. FRONT PATIO~- -- ...,,,,,,.,., 

PASEOTm I\ \ ~ 

REAA P0tt0t wmt 
ALLEY ACCESS 

l {r \ :=~~~6CRS 
..:i-Cl'-'------ ---OOG P".AYsnt..'CTIAE 

' \ ADJJIONOACK CHAIRS 

C!NTfll. CO\U.EO PAV!UON 

DOG DRINKING FOUNTAIN 
t.NlfASl'tNG AUA 

~

. ; -=rncruRFAAEA -----7----,!-- 4'HIGH DOGFENCf 

- / / .L--S'WiCEPl~fTUWJL'(WAY 

_- · ·fL_.- ~ 

;' 
/ 

..: I 
TalJSCO.~ 00G WASTE BAG OISl9ISU SYNTHE'IX: TUlf AA£A ocx; ORIN<Ji-;G FOLWTAll'I OCXi1tAYSTie..JCllRE 

r,.:ott: FOR.Pt.ANT MAI'EA1AI. DETA'I.S Rfff.lt TO SHEETL-02 KEY MAP NTS 

---GATEWAYSTATION N~~ - ~~J 
Wt.JOI , 12-07? ~ 

PARK ENLARGEMENT & TYPICAL 
ENLARGEMENTS 

&r.ltlotnanr:sei 
Sriciotna. 

L-06 



ENTERPRISE 
DRIVE 

.,.,. .-. 

:! z 
<O e: ;= 
>- u 
<~ 
a:, o6 
Oz Uo 
~ ;= 
U< zu 
<o fl: ...J 

1Z 
ji 

z 
0 
.:: 
<( ... 
V, 

>
<( 

3r: 
w 

~ 
C) 



( _1_ 
1 PRIMARY ENTRY MONUMENT , 2.' SUBDIVISION ENTRY MONUMENT 

14' OVElti'lll HEIGHT 

6X6 W00C P'OSTS 

S' THK'l< CONCW'f CA~ 

M!T'Al.SIGN.-.Gf 

~ECl.>OOING 

CCLOf;l~ CONam BAS!: 

60" O't'EV.U. HOGHT 

WOODPOSTSANO 
ao,._,os 

2' CONCtm C>I 

STONE Cl.ADDING 

COlO~ CONCIETE BA.SE 

---GATEWAY STATION ?
0
~~~! mm~~~i 

O...tf:11/04/701S EB: u....~o•, 12419 

·~ Mcoi.tcEPTUAL ENTRY MONUMENTS i:.,"';:'' .. ' 
~ L-08 



-- 11 ~ij, 

--::----- -------
-----



....................... 
: ................... .. 
: ............ ... ,u 

Sa 01111, i ss'' I! s •ll • Iii 

----= :,,.,0,,11••••••.,n•• 

-= i~!!!!!>HBHHl!H!B 

I .: :"""'"'"""""'" 

l!BB!!!ln!!!!ll!Hl! 

;., • ' .... ! •• ,, ..... '"'' 

j jnu!BUB!BB!!!B! 

"', .................... .. 
~ J!lB!HHBH~BH!!!! 

i ;, .. .,,,,,,,,, ........ . 



------- - ----- -------
---------- -

• ' a 
" ;, ., 

Wt;: . . 
a , _ lj 
17[. ~ 



_, 

' ! ·! 

/ 

I 
,,/ 

/ 

--":.~-.-:::--:-_--__ _ 
-------



! !! 
r~ Ii 

111 ~ i l 
!lnH 
i } ; I 

1 l!•m 

-----
·- .. ::\~'.:~'.\--



~Zl'N 11 
P.u::tl. I 

. 
~ 
I 
' 

I 
I 
i 
' 

I 
I 
j 
' 

'"'""" !OIIHll'lot:t/l'fflA'([)Wl:l,YJ:1 

~, 
114 ... 

-
Ill 

-
Ill Ill 

- -
"' Ill ~ - · m 111 

- -
"2 119 

- -
m IOI 

-;-1 

,a: SHUT 7 

I " " .. 11 

" " ~ I I " ,.;. 

ICO ll 12 11 

Ill ~ 13 1i 

112 II e " " s . • 
10! n 

" 
u 

'" 
II 16 7) 

ID! " 17 n 

116 " I " 7l I 

,i I I 1 I 

" I I .. " 
" " IQ 4l <! . II 

.. " .. .. 
" -

" 
ll 41 " " " 

16 S1 s .. » s ,. 21 . • 
ii l6 " )I 

JI 
l/) 

II jj 

" 
l7 n 19 

ff l6 l l " JJ II 

-
10 n $l Jj ,. 

I H 

I \ I Ill 

I~~~ 

~ 

r A1.AMltlACIIO!ffl'r;ll'l'I.IJOtl\'l>I I ,,.,,,,. .. ,.."" ........ 
..... """""'"""""' ..................................... =::-.::;:• 

~ 

i 
SI 

~ 111(,,,,,_MMXZ:C IG,,o 

cw AES 

~ 

FIRE ACCESS PLAN 
VESTING TENT A TIVE

0¥Af' 
TRACT 8099"-



i 
~ 

SE!IUGlrr 

_,///,/ 

~~~~~~·,,/ ' - -~·- / -~ ~ 

~ HlCJ::OllY ST1EET 

-uI:· , ,~ 
Ill ,, 
, ,,7 

I ~ 
) ' 

' 

m.Mol 

I 
i 
I 

! ,. I 
l 
I' ,, 
/I 
'' 

// \ 

/,/ 
/ t~ I 

~/ 

i 
ill 

(r_"""'""'""'""' \ I ,.,.. ........... ,,., ........ 
'W" PIOI01mNBlfYM1,:'1' .. ......................... .......... T'l'l'ICll,ic:o;PW,""3~fllll': 

-.W.1U.w::ctll llc,.:) 

~ 

FIRE ACCESS PLAN 

VES~r;i~;'¥AP 



"'· 
~ 

'" " . , " • -· ' . . . . I . . ' • w 
•w .•. •w ,w ,w •u , w ... ,w , w ,w 

m I ·':?, ,,1 .~ .1.....1. ;::, +11,.; -I I "" 

" 
,. 

"' 
,. ' " . . " . . . 

,w • W 
.... l ,w ,., ~ ,w "' ,w ,w "" ,w 1,itt , w ,w 

~ . • 111 . . 
"" 

/ Ill 
,w ,w ,u ril • ,w ... 

"' " ~ m " 
. 

" ' • W , w •w 

,. . ' 

;;. .. ;I " ,,. ' .~-~ , .. : .. ' n " "I " •w I "" 
"' "' l~I .",1 , w 

..,,., .,.,_ .,_:_w_ ,w 

"' .".:. m .. 
' 

ltlCKORY sn£ET - -: ""i-'1-"• w\tt --~-~-~"""--"'" ~-~;-=-• .. :S·-·rr·= ..... ·=.: ... ... :, .. , o,o:r· .. ; --= . ~ ·-; -. : .-:-:-:-;-:::- -:-:-:-:-.... :-:-::-:-:-:-:-:-:::::··········:-::::;.-~ 

i I 111 I l~I' ~l ~ I I I ,~I ;; - - ! - \ 
TRACI' a::M !- PHAS! 2 - r -

I 
I I TR>...'"' BOBS - " '"'' 

• H 
I I I ,--:.-:::__ I l)l 

,,. . ,., ~ "' ! "' ~ "" " I ~ 
FU!UKE B snIET . 

- """ 

' / 

•11~=·~ 

ASthANtl CHE:MICAU! 
on-011s-oos 

I 
I.DI' U Lat 15 tat !I Ll7l' : 7 La:' II ,/ rMtCL A 

-- I.Dl'I 1.=r: 

I 
tB ,r·.,. T~ 9085---:--,;: l TRA 1S7 , r ,.,. el .· Ul'fll 

!k i ~ - I 1;~. 
,~ I ] L) 2 r -'" _____ _;.; 

=•= ·-,~ ~ I y,nw,srurrl. -/· ~ -,~ . -~ 

- - .; I I ~ i """ I """ I "'" 1rl . ''" 
.. 1 .. 1~~111 .. 1., r ,,,1 .. 1..~ .. I 
• . ,. ,·. ]=-ti ~~~ r-"-; 'f .. ['I J:"1..-i't ~t: 0 

----------~---:;,--~ ~:::~-1 
~_t_ ) I 

stenos a.a -
~ 11 

r ~:: 1·r _;_ 1·r, ~:: r 
SE~!!: 0.0 

!!?.~ 

" ,\ 

~-"~ wewtt. ... .l ~ ' .,.~~ -

MK:a\LTEMPOWYACCESSR.OADS~ 

-· . . .. ~ 

I , . I . l .. 'Cl ' i ,I'"" '" :O" ~ i ,; 

HlCXOkY.ffl.EF:T{FlOMTEMl'O~~~lOADTO~PJStOP.M) 

. .,. .,. 

tttr r· ·ci .,. .. 1-· .,. 
'A' A~'Ue (FiOMHt;_K_?RYST!U!ETTOFmttr) 

.,.,....., , .,.,.. .. , _ ... _.,_ .,.aa,c fll' _,O_ ..., 

:=..:~~1=-=::.v..=~ ... 

LEGEND 

D -.am-1--,i,ni 
ffl - ··-
D -···-·--·'lllfft 
- - ........... _,_,. __ ,fflll:1 ···-m - -i,t""'°' 

Ir:§! 
TEMPORARY ACCESS PLAN 

VESTING TENT ATIVE:t,W 
TRACT 8099·· 

GATEWAY STATION WEST 



RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
NEWARK APPROVING TM-14-47 VESTING TENTATIVE 
MAP 8099, · TO CONSTRUCT APPROXIMATELY 589 
RESIDENTIAL UNITS 

WHEREAS, the DUMBARTON AREA 2, LLC, has submitted TM-14-47, Vesting 
Tentative Map 8099, to the City Council of the City of Newark for a 589-unit residential 
development on an approximately 41 acres property within the Dumbarton Transit Oriented 
Development Plan Area (the "Gateway Property"); and 

WHEREAS, TM-14-47, Vesting Tentative Map 8099, includes off-site improvements 
consistent with the Dumbarton Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) Specific Plan; 

NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to California Government Code Sections 66473 et seq., 
the City Cmmcil finds and resolves as follows: 

1. That TM-14-47, Vesting Tentative Map 8099 is consistent with the City's General Plan 
and the Dumbarton Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) Specific Plan and as such is compatible 
with the objectives, policies, general land uses, and programs specified therein. TM-14-47, 
Vesting Tentative Map 8099 calls for the construction of a 589-unit residential development 
within the Dumbarton Transit Oriented Development Plan Area, and implements the Specific 
Plan's objective of providing residential units in the Specific Plan project area. TM-14-47, 
Vesting Tentative Map 8099 is an implementation of the City's previously adopted policies. 

2. That the Gateway Property is physically suitable for the construction of a 589-unit 
residential development. The Dumbarton Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) Specific Plan 
Environmental Impact Rep01i ("EIR") (State Clearinghouse Number 2010042012) certified by 
the City Council on September 8, 2011 and the Supplemental EIR ("SEIR") (State Clearinghouse 
Number 2014082022) reconunended for certification by the Planning Commission on February 2, 
2016, and ce1iified by the City Council of February 25, 2016, folly analyze all physical impacts of 
TM-14-47, Vesting Tentative Map 8099 on the Gateway Property. The impacts on the property 
envisioned by TM-14-47, Vesting Tentative Map 8099, which result from the uses and the density 
described in that map, was fully analyzed by the EIR and the SEIR. These documents conclude 
that the Gateway Property is physically suitable for construction of a 589-unit residential 
development. 

3. That TM-14-47, Vesting Tentative Map 8099 is not likely to cause substantial 
environmental damage or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife or their habitat. The 
Dumbarton Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) Specific Plan EIR certified by the City Council 
on September 8, 2011 and the SEIR certified by the City Council on February 25, 2016 analyze 
all the environmental impacts of TM-14-47, Vesting Tentative Map 8099. These documents 
conclude that TM-14-47, Vesting Tentative Map 8099 is not likely to cause substantial 
environmental damage or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife or their habitat. 



4. That TM-14-47, Vesting Tentative Map 8099 is not likely to cause serious health 
problems. The Dumbarton Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) Specific Plan EIR certified by 
the City Council on September 8, 2011 and the SEIR certified by the City Council on February 
25, 2016 analyze all the impacts ofTM-14-47, Vesting Tentative Map 8099 on public health and 
safety. These documents conclude that TM-14-47, Vesting Tentative Map 8099 is not likely to 
cause serious health problems. 

5. That TM-14-47, Vesting Tentative Map 8099 does not conflict with easements, acquired 
by the public at large, for access through or use of, property within the proposed subdivision. As 
concluded by the SEIR certified by the City Council on February 25, 2016, TM-14-47, Vesting 
Tentative Map 8099 simply implements the Dumbarton Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) 
Specific Plan, which was previously approved by the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 
Newark does hereby approve TM-14-47, Vesting Tentative Map 8099 as shown on Exhibit A, 
and made a part hereof by reference, subject to the following conditions: 

Planning Division 

a. Approval ofTM-14-47, Vesting Tentative Map 8099, shall be effective at such time RZ-
14-48, the Rezoning of the property within the boundary of Vesting Tentative Map 8099, 
takes effect. 

b. The project shall be subject to applicable environmental mitigation measures as described 
in the Dumbarton Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) Specific Plan Environmental 
Impact Report and the Supplemental Environmental Impact Report prepared for this 
project. 

c. There shall be no roof-mounted equipment other than satellite dishes, other similar 
television or radio antennas, and solar equipment. AC units shall not be mounted on the 
roof. 

d. All lighting shall be directed on-site so as not to create glare off-site, to the satisfaction of 
the Community Development Director. 

e. Construction site trailers and buildings located on-site shall be used for office and storage 
purposes only, and shall not be used for living or sleeping quarters. Any vehicle or 
portable building brought on the site during construction shall remain graffiti free. 

f. The covenants, conditions and restrictions (CC&Rs) filed for this development shall 
include a provision requiring that garages shall only be used for automobile parking and 
dwellings with apa1iment suites shall not be rented or sold to any occupants. 

g. Dwellings with apartment suites shall not be rented or sold to any occupants. 

h. Parking lot cleaning with sweeping or vacuum equipment shall not be permitted between 
7:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m. 

Resolution No. 2 



1. The site and its improvements shall be maintained in a neat and presentable condition, to 
the satisfaction of the Community Development Director. This shall include, but not be 
limited to, repainting surfaces damaged by graffiti and site clean-up. Graffiti 
removal/repainting and site cleanup shall occur on a continuing, as needed basis. Any 
vehicle or portable building brought on the site during construction shall remain graffiti 
free. 

J. All exterior utility pipes and meters shall be painted to match and/or complement the color 
of the adjoining building smface, as approved by the Community Development Director. 

k. The elevations as submitted by the developer as part of this application shall be reviewed 
and approved by the Plmming Commission and City Council. The building elevations 
shall reflect all architectural projections such as roof eaves, bay windows, greenhouse 
windows, chimneys and porches. A site plan showing the building locations with respect 
to property lines shall also show the projections. Said elevations shall specify exterior 
materials. 

I. The floor plans as submitted by the developer as part of this application shall be reviewed 
and approved by the Planning Commission and City Co1mcil. 

m. All roof material shall consist of fire retardant shake roof, concrete tile, or a roof of similar 
noncombustible material. Mansard roofs with the above matetial may be used to screen 
tar and gravel roofs. All roofs shall be of Class C fire resistant construction or better. 
Composition shingles shall be Presidential-style or of comparable quality, subject to the 
review and approval of the Community Development Director. 

n. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the location and screening design for garbage, 
refuse and organics recycling collection areas for the project shall be submitted for the 
review and approval of Republic Services and the Community Development Director, in 
that order. The approved garbage, refuse and organics recycling areas shall be provided 
prior to the issuance of a Ce1iificate of Occupancy, as required by the Community 
Development Director. No refuse, garbage or organics recycling shall be stored outdoors 
except within the approved trash and recycling enclosures. 

o. Measures to respond to and track complaints pertaining to construction noise shall 
include: (1) a procedure and phone numbers for notifying the City of Newark Building 
Inspection Division and Newark Police Department ( during regular construction hours and 
off-hours); and (2) a sign posted on-site pertaining to the permitted construction days and 
hours and complaint procedures and whom to notify in the event of a problem. The sign 
shall also include a listing of both the City and constt·uction contractor's telephone 
numbers (during regular constrnction hours and off-hours). 

p. Prior to the issuance of 50% of building permits, a dog park shall be completed on Parcel 
HHH. 

q. Ptior to the issuance of a building permit, the developer shall demonstrate compliance 
with the City's Affordable Housing Program, Chapter 17.18 of the Newark Municipal 

Resolution No. 3 



Code by paying a residential housing impact fee of $20 per square foot of floor area per 
dwelling unit for the first 1,000 square feet; and $8 per square foot of floor area for all 
square footage more than 1,000 square feet. 

r. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the developer shall enter into an agreement with 
the City Council to address Community Services fiscal support of $2,500 per unit for the 
Map Area specific to this project. 

s. Prior to the issuance of a building pe1mit, the developer shall pay the following fees: 
public safety impact fee ($1,989 per single-family dwelling unit and $2,079 per multi
family dwelling unit); community service and facilities impact fee ($1,942 per single
family dwelling unit and $1,596 per multi-family dwelling unit); transportation impact fee 
($801 per single-family dwelling unit and $460 per multi-family dwelling unit); park 
impact fee ($7,460 per dwelling unit); and art in public places and private development fee 
($270 per dwelling unit). 

t. Prior to issuance of a building permit, wall and fence details shall be submitted to the 
Community Development Director for review and approval. 

u. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, details of the outdoor recreational amenities 
such as play structures shall be submitted to the Community Development Director for 
review and approval. 

v. Prior to issuance of a grading permit, the developer shall hire a qualified biologist to: (I) 
determine if occupied Burrowing Owl habitat(s) exist on the site, and (2) implement a plan 
to protect the owls and to excavate the site around any active bunows using hand tools to 
assure that the owls are not buried during grading in the event Burrowing Owl habitat(s) is 
found on the site. The occupied Burrowing Owl habitat(s), if found, shall not be disturbed 
during the nesting season. The Burrowing Owl survey shall be conducted not more than 
30 days prior to the time site grading activities will commence. 

w. Dming project construction, if historic, archeological or Native American materials or 
mtifacts are identified, work within a 50-foot radius of such find shall cease and the City 
shall retain the services of a qualified archeologist and/or paleontologist to assess the 
significance of the find. If such find is determined to be significant by the archeologist 
and/or paleontologist, a resource protection plan confmming to State CEQA Guidelines 
Section 15064.5 shall be prepared by the archeologist and/or paleontologist and approved 
by the Community Development Director. The plan may include, but would not be 
limited to, removal of resources or similar actions. Project work may be resumed in 
compliance with such plan. If human remains are encountered, the County Coroner shall 
be contacted immediately and the provisions of State law cairied out. 

x. P1ior to their installation, mailbox locations and designs shall be approved by the 
Community Development Director and Newark Postmaster, in that order. The mailbox 
compa1tments of centralized mailboxes shall identify the individual dwelling units with 
permanent, easily legible lettering. 

Resolution No. 4 



y. The Bayside Trail shall be constructed with contiguous phases of development. Prior to 
the issuance of a Ce1iificate of Occupancy for any non-model dwellings within a phase, 
the Bayside Trail segment contiguous to that phase shall be completed. 

z. Plior to the issuance of a Ce1iificate of Occupancy, the parking areas, aisles and access 
drives shall be installed and striped as shown on the approved site plan. 

aa. Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, roll-up garage doors with automatic 
garage door openers shall be provided for each unit. 

bb. P1ior to final inspection and utility release for each unit, the developer shall pre-wire each 
unit for satellite and cable television com1ections, as required by the Community 
Development Director. 

cc. Prior to the issuance of a sign permit, all signs, other than those refening to construction, 
sale, or future use of this site, shall be submitted for the review and approval of the 
Community Development Director. 

Engineering Division 

dd. The project shall conform to Tentative Map - Tract 8099, Sheets 1 through 8, and all 
conditions of approval set forth herein. Approval of this Tentative Map shall expire 
according to the provisions of the State Subdivision Map Act and any amendments thereto 
and applicable provisions of the Newark Municipal Code consistent with the State 
Subdivision Map Act. This vesting tentative map provides a preliminary design for the 
infrastructure improvements associated with the proposed subdivision. The developer 
shall be responsible for any required changes to this preliminary design as dete1mined 
necessary by the City of Newark to satisfy applicable design requirements of the City or 
any other public agencies or utilities with jurisdictional authority. 

ee. Prior to the approval of any final maps, detailed design review applications must be 
processed for all proposed building and landscaping improvements within each designated 
final map boundary. This future design review may result in required modifications to the 
infrastructure improvements shown on this vesting tentative map, including but not 
necessarily limited to public street layout, street widths, utility system design, and the total 
scope of public improvements; private street layout, widths, and scope of improvements; 
lot sizes, lot patterns, and the total number of lots; park improvements; storm water 
drainage design and storm water treatment improvements; solid waste management 
facilities; and other public improvements. The developer shall be responsible for any and 
all required changes to the preliminary infrastructure design. 

ff The development will require approval of final tract maps filed in accordance with the 
State Subdivision Map Act and the City of Newark Subdivision Ordinance. Any 
necessary parcel maps or lot line adjustments to acquire lands beyond the current prope1iy 
boundary of the tentative map shall be recorded prior to the first final map or issuance of 
any model home permits. The final map(s) must be approved prior to the issuance of any 
building permits. Permission to grade on adjacent private properties shall be obtained 

Resolution No. 5 



prior to approval of the first final map. Evidence of such agreements must be furnished to 
the City as part of the approval. All required easement dedications as shown on the 
vesting tentative map and as determined necessary with future design review shall be 
dedicated on the appropriate final map(s). 

gg. The final map(s) and complete tract improvement plans shall be submitted to the 
Engineering Division for review to ensure conformance with relevant codes, policies, and 
other requirements of the Newark Municipal Code and City of Newark street 
improvement standards. P1ior to approval of the final map(s), the developer shall 
guarantee all necessary public and private street improvements and other infrastructure 
improvements within the subdivision and beyond the map boundary as required by the 
City of Newark Subdivision Ordinance and this vesting tentative map and all conditions 
herein, in accordance with tract improvement plans to be approved by the City Engineer. 
Improvement plans for on-site common areas and all private streets in the development 
shall be included with the tract improvement plans to ensure that the improvements are 
designed and constructed to City standards. 

These plans must be prepared by a qualified person licensed by the State of California to 
do such work. Street improvements shall include, but may not be limited to all required 
improvements as indicated on the vesting tentative tract map on Willow Street, Hickory 
Street (including the Enterprise Drive intersection), Enterprise Drive, all in-tract public 
streets, all private streets, water, sanitary sewer, and joint trench utilities, storm drain 
systems and all storm water treatment systems, street lighting systems including the 
replacement of all existing street lights in the plan area, all landscaping including median 
improvements and walls, park and other recreational area improvements, off-site traffic 
mitigation measures, and other improvements consistent with the Dumbarton Transit 
Oriented Development Specific Plan. 

hh. If performance bonds are posted or work has commenced by the developers ofVTM 8085 
or VTM 8157, or a combination thereof, for the full scope of improvements identified, this 
condition shall not apply. Otherwise, the full length of Willow Street shall be improved 
prior to or concurrent with the first proposed phase of work within the vesting tentative 
map boundary. Improvements on Willow Street include, but are not limited to the 
following between Central Avenue and Enterp1ise Drive: construction of all intersection 
improvements proposed in the plan area, construction of all center medians including all 
landscaping improvements, placement of all utility main lines and utility stub-outs for 
future developments ( excluding stub-outs for VTM 8085 and VTM 8098), a full width 
pavement grind and an asphalt concrete pavement overlay of 0.25' minimum thiclmess or 
greater, or replacement structural sections, that will result in a traffic index of not less 
than 9.0, curb and gutter, minimum 5-foot wide sidewalk, back-up landscaping, street light 
system replacement, pavement restriping, bike lane placement, street signage, any required 
traffic calming measures, and additional improvements as necessary. Street frontage 
improvements to the east side of Willow Street along the and the west side of Willow 
Street shall exclude improvements behind the curb including dry utilities, undergrounding 
of overhead lines, landscaping, and sidewalk improvements. Improvements north of 
Enterprise Drive shall include pavement resurfacing, restriping, bicycle and pedestrian 
facilities and any necessary improvements over the existing railroad crossing for full 

Resolution No. 6 



connectivity to the existing street system, and landscape improvements. Applicant shall 
use good faith effort to obtain all rights-of-way necessary for these required 
improvements. Final intersection improvements and other traffic calming measures, 
including roundabout configuration, are subject to modifications from the preliminary 
design as shown on the tentative map, at the developer's expense, to satisfy code and other 
design requirements to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

11. All traffic mitigation measures identified under existing plus project conditions in the 
Dumbarton Transit 01iented Development Specific Plan Environmental Impact Report for 
impacts that were not determined to be significant and unavoidable shall be completed or 
guaranteed prior to the approval of any final maps. This includes all recommended 
improvements at the following intersections: Willow Street and Thornton Avenue, 
Willow Street and Enterprise Drive, and Chen-y Street and Mowry Avenue. All additional 
traffic mitigation measures under the future year 2035 plus project conditions for impacts 
that were not considered significant and unavoidable (this is limited to striping 
modifications at Gateway Boulevard and Thornton Avenue) should be completed 
concurrent with other off-site improvements. The full scope of recommended 
improvements shall be incorporated into the tract improvement plans. If either of the 
developers for VTM 8085 or VTM 8157 post bonds to guarantee this work, then the 
condition shall be deemed satisfied. 

jj. Prior to approval of any final map(s), any proposed project phasing shall be submitted for 
the review and approval of the City Engineer.· ·The phasing plan provided with the vesting 
tentative map is subject to modification as required by the City Engineer. 

kk. All improvements must conform to the City's Sight Visibility Ordinance, Newark 
Municipal Code Chapter 10.36. Prior to any final map approval all building architecture 
and other improvements on proposed lots within a given phase of the development shall 
be sited as necessary to comply with this ordinance. If necessary, the proposed lot pattern 
shown on the tentative map shall be modified to accommodate a future desired building 
product. 

II. Concuirnnt with approval of the final map, the developer shall effectuate the removal of 
all existing easements encumbering the property within the tract boundary that conflict 
with areas proposed for improvement. Elimination or modification of existing utility 
easements on the site requires the approval from the respective utility district or company 
and the City of Newark. 

mm. Prior to approval of the final map(s), the developer shall submit a pavement maintenance 
program for the drive aisles and parking areas on the project site. The maintenance 
program shall be signed by the prope1iy owner and the property owner shall follow the 
maintenance program at the City Engineer's direction. 

nn. This site is subject to the State of California National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
System (NPDES) Program General Permit for Storm Water Discharges Associated with 
Construction Activity. Prior to issuance of a grading permit or a building permit, the 
developer needs to provide evidence that the proposed site development work is covered 

Resolution No. 7 



by said General Permit for Construction Activity. This will require confirmation that a 
Notice of Intent (NOI) and the applicable fee were received by the State Water Resources 
Control Board and the submittal of the required Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan 
(SWPPP). In addition the grading plans need to state: "All grading work shall be done in 
accordance with the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan prepared by the developer 
pursuant to the Notice oflntent on file with the State Water Resources Control Board." 

oo. PJior to the issuance of the initial grading or any building permits for this project, the 
developer shall submit a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) for the review 
and approval of the City Engineer. The plan shall include sufficient details to show how 
storm water quality will be protected during both: (I) the construction phase of the project 
and (2) the post-construction, operational phase of the project. The SWPPP shall be 
prepared by a Qualified SWPPP Developer (QSD) in the State of California. The 
construction phase plan shall include Best Management Practices from the California 
Storm Water Quality Best Management Practices Handbook for Construction Activities. 
The specific storm water pollution prevention measures to be maintained by the contractor 
shall be pJinted on the plans. The operational phase plan shall include Best Management 
Practices appropriate to the uses conducted on the site to effectively prohibit the entry of 
pollutants into storm water runoff from the project site including, but not limited to, low 
impact development stom1 water treatment measures, trash and litter control, pavement 
sweeping, periodic storm water inlet cleaning, landscape controls for fertilizer and 
pesticide applications, labeling of storm water inlets with a permanent thermoplastic 
stencil with the wording "No Dumping - Drains to Bay," and other applicable practices. 

pp. The project must be designed to include appropriate source control, site design, and storm 
water treatment measures to prevent storm water runoff pollutant discharges and increases 
in runoff flows from the site in accordance with Provision C.3 of the latest version of the 
Municipal Regional Storm water NPDES Permit (MRP) adopted in November 2015 by 
the Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB), San Francisco Bay Region. 
Examples of source control and site design requirements include, but are not limited to: 
properly designed trash storage areas, sanitary sewer connections for all non-storm water 
discharges, minimization of impervious surfaces, and treatment of all runoff with Low 
Impact Development (LID) treatment measures. A properly engineered and maintained 
biotreatment system will only be allowed if it is infeasible to implement other LID 
measures such as harvesting and re-use, infiltration, or evapotranspiration. The sto1m 
water treatment design shall be completed by a licensed civil engineer with sufficient 
expe1ience in storm water quality analysis and design. The Storm Water Control Plan 
(Sheet TM-5) on this vesting tentative map would be approved as a conceptual plan only. 
Final approval is subject to the developer providing the necessary plans, details, 
worksheets, and calculations that demonstrate the plan complies with Provision C.3 of the 
MRP, subject to final review by the City Engineer and the RWQCB p1ior to the recording 
of any final maps. The developer is responsible for any and all necessary modifications to 
the site design to comply with MRP requirements. The use of treatment controls for 
runoff requires the submittal of a completed Storm water Treatment Measures 
Maintenance Agreement pJior to the approval of any final maps. 

Resolution No. 8 



qq. All storm water treatment measures are subject to review and approval by the Alameda 
County Mosquito Abatement District. The developer shall modify the grading and 
drainage design and the storm water treatment design as necessary to satisfy any and all 
imposed requirements from this District. 

rr. The preliminary Grading and Drainage Plan provided on Sheet TM-3 of the vesting 
tentative map has not yet been supported with a detailed drainage feasibility analysis. 
This analysis, including initial drainage calculations, shall be completed and submitted by 
the developer for review by the City Engineer and the Alameda County Flood Control and 
Water Conservation District (ACFC&WCD) for determination of the general feasibility of 
the proposed design prior to development of detailed grading and drainage plans. The 
ACFC&WCD will not allow the design capacity of the existing flood control chaimel to 
be exceeded. The developer shall be responsible for any and all changes to the 
preliminary drainage design as shown on the tentative map as necessary to satisfy 
ACFC&WCD and City of Newark storm drain system requirements. 

ss. The developer shall submit detailed grading and drainage plans for review and approval 
by the City Engineer and the Alameda County Flood Control and Water Conservation 
District (ACFC&WCD). These plans must be based upon a City benchmark and need to 
include pad and finish floor elevations of each proposed strncture, all rear yard drainage 
designs and surface treatments, proposed on-site property grades, proposed elevations at 
property line, and sufficient elevations on all adjacent properties to show existing and 
proposed drainage patterns. All pad elevations shall be a minimum 11.25 NGVD. All 
pavement shall drain at a minimum of one percent. The developer shall ensure that all 
upstream drainage is not blocked and that no ponding is created by this development. Any 
construction necessary to ensure this shall be the developer's responsibility. All mitigation 
measures identified in the Hydrology, Drainage, and Water Quality section of the 
Environmental Impact Report shall be properly addressed with the detailed grading and 
drainage plans. 

Hydrology and hydraulic calculations based on ACFC&WCD criteria shall be submitted 
for review and approval by the City Engineer and the ACFC&WCD prior to approval of 
any final maps. The calculations shall show that City and ACFC&WCD freeboard 
requirements will be satisfied (0.75 feet to grate or 1.25 feet to the top of curb under a 10-
year storm event design). 

tt. Where a grade differential of more than a 1-foot is created along the boundary lot lines 
between the proposed development and adjacent prope1iy, the developer shall install a 
masonry retaining wall unless a slope easement is approved by the City Engineer. Said 
retaining wall shall be subject to review and approval of the City Engineer. A grading 
permit is required by the Building Inspection Division prior to starting site grading work. 

uu. Permission to grade on adjacent private properties shall be obtained prior to approval of 
the first final map. Evidence of such agreements must be furnished to the City as part of 
the approval. 

Resolution No. 9 



vv. The applicant shall submit a detailed soils report prepared by a qualified engineer, 
registered with the State of California. The repo1t shall address in-situ and import soils in 
accordance with the City of Newark Grading and Excavation Ordinance, Chapter 15.50. 
The report shall include recommendations regarding pavement sections for all public and 
private streets. Grading operations shall be in accordance with recommendations 
contained in the soils report and shall be completed under the supervision of an engineer 
registered in the State of California to do such work. All documentation prepared during 
the inspection of grading operations shall be made available for review by the City 
Engineer. 

ww. An independent Project Geotechnical Engineer shall be retained to review the final 
grading plans and specifications and provide construction inspection review at the 
developer's expense. The Project Geotechnical Engineer shall approve the grading plans 
prior to approval by the City of Newark for issuance of a grading permit. 

xx. P1ior to approval of any final maps, the developer shall satisfy Alameda County Water 
District (ACWD) requirements for the proposed development as specified in previous 
correspondence with ACWD during the specific plan and tentative map review process. 
This includes, but is not necessarily limited to the following improvements: (1) individual 
water services to all residential units with a new, complete looped public water system 
sized and installed in accordance with ACWD's Standard Specifications for Water Main 
Installation and integrated with the existing public water system, including consideration 
of any proposed phasing of the water system installation; (2) water system components 
beyond the tentative map boundary, but determined as necessary by ACWD to meet 
requirements for the full specific plan area; (3) installation of non-potable water 
infrastructure for future use; (3) replacement of existing water mains as determined 
necessary by ACWD; and ( 4) recordation of necessary water service easements to ACWD. 
The Utility Plan provided on Sheet TM-4 of the vesting tentative map includes a 
preliminary water supply system layout that is subject to a complete review by ACWD at 
such time as formal, detailed utility plans are developed for construction. Any necessary 
site and utility design changes necessary to satisfy ACWD's design requirements shall be 
the developer's responsibility. 

yy. Prior to approval of any final maps, the developer shall demonstrate to the satisfaction of 
City that it has obtained approval from Union Sanitary District (USD) of the entire 
sanitary sewer system designed to serve the development including any existing sanitmy 
sewer infrastructure modifications beyond the tentative map boundary as necessary to 
serve the development; and potential relocation, modification, or protection in place of the 
existing twin force mains. The Utility Plan provided on Sheet TM-4 of the vesting 
tentative map includes a preliminary sanitary sewer system layout that is subject to a 
complete review by USD at such time as formal utility plans are submitted for 
construction. Any necessary site and utility design changes necessary to satisfy USD's 
design requirement shall be the developer's responsibility. 

zz. The developer shall incorporate a Homeowner' s Association consisting of all property 
owners of lots in the development at the time of incorporation and in the future for the 
purpose of owning and maintaining the association's prope1ty, including but not limited to 
all private streets and common drive aisles, parking areas, landscape areas, storn1 water 

Resolution No. 10 



treatment areas, storm drain systems, public access areas, and for paying for security 
lighting, any conunon garbage collection services, any security patrol services, if 
provided, and other functions of a Homeowner's Association. All conunon areas within 
the development shall be owned and maintained by the Homeowner's Association. Each 
property owner shall automatically become a member of the association and shall be 
subject to a proportionate share of the maintenance expenses. The Homeowner' s 
Association shall be incorporated prior to the sale of any individual lots and/or prior to 
acceptance of tract improvements, whichever occurs first. A centralized facility of 
sufficient size such as a clubhouse shall be constmcted for Homeowner's Association use 
at a location to be approved by the Conununity Development Director, unless the 
applicant is allowed to utilize a clubhouse at an alternative location, subject to approval by 
the Conmrnnity Development Director. The CC&Rs shall prohibit the use of private 
streets as alternative routes to the in-tract public street system. 

aaa. P1ior to City Council approval of any final maps, the bylaws governing the property 
owner's association and any declaration of covenants, conditions and restrictions ( CC&Rs) 
filed for this development shall be reviewed and approved by the City Council at its 
discretion after mandatory review and recommendations by the City Attorney. Said 
covenants, conditions and restrictions shall be prominently displayed in the project sales 
office at all times. Approval of the covenants, conditions and restrictions shall not make 
the City a party to enforcement of same. The CC&Rs shall apply equally to both owners 
and renters. The CC&Rs shall be written to require renters to comply with the regulations 
of the CC&Rs, and a copy of the CC&Rs shall be given to each renter. The CC&Rs shall 
be written to allow less than a majority of owners to have pavement or landscape 
maintenance done and the cost thereof assessed to all owners in the project. The CC&Rs 
shall include a pavement maintenance program for all private streets and common drive 
aisles. 

bbb. The Homeowner's Association CC&Rs shall prohibit the on-site parking of non-self
propelled recreational vehicles, including boats, and any self-propelled recreational 
vehicles not used for transportation unless separate storage facilities are provided. The 
CC&Rs shall regulate the provision of any on-site parking of self-propelled recreational 
vehicles used for transportation. 

ccc. The CC&Rs for the project shall include a disclosure statement to all property owners 
indicating that the project site is located within a seismic hazard zone for liquefaction. 
The disclosure statement shall indicate that the buildings have been designed to current 
code requirements. The statement shall further indicate that the buildings, site 
improvements, and utilities are subject to damage during an earthquake and that the 
buildings may be uninhabitable after an earthquake. This CC&R disclosure statement is 
subject to review and approval of the City Engineer prior to final map approval. 

ddd. The developer shall also assist the Homeowner's Association by having a management 
consultant firm review the maintenance and operating functions of the association. The 
management consulting firm shall be responsible to prepare a written report with 
recommendations to the association for managing the association's obligations and setting 
initial monthly assessment costs for each lot in the development. Membership and 

Resolution No. 11 



assessment cost shall be mandatory for all property owners of property in the development 
and shall run with the land. The developer shall pay all costs of incorporation and initial 
management review and reports. 

eee. The developer shall enter into a Landscape Maintenance Agreement to ensure the 
perpetual maintenance of all common front yard, side yard and back-up area landscaping 
within the development by the Homeowner' s Association. This agreement shall run with 
the land and be binding upon all future owners or assigns. Any and all necessary 
easements shall be dedicated over individual lots to allow for the perpetual access and 
maintenance of landscaping. The full extent of landscape maintenance shall be 
determined with the future landscape improvements plans and detailed in said agreement. 
Landscaping by the City at the expense of the Homeowner's Association in these areas 
will only occur in the event the City Council deems the Homeowner's Association 
maintenance to be inadequate. Project perimeter walls and adjoining landscaped areas 
shall be included in a dedicated landscape easement to guarantee adequate maintenance of 
the walls. A Landscape Maintenance Agreement template is enclosed for your use. 

The City of Newark shall be provided with subordinate agreements to ensure that the 
position of the landscaping maintenance lien shall be superior to any liens or 
encumbrances other than taxes. 

fff. Prior to approval of the first final map, the developer shall petition the City Council to 
participate in an active Landscaping and Lighting District for the perpetual maintenance of 
median landscaping and lighting systems on Willow Street and Enterprise Drive, all public 
parks within the Dumbarton TOD Specific Plan area, and any public storm water 
treatment and storm drain delivery systems including trash capture devices, all public 
street trees, all street lighting systems and any additional landscaping, landscape-based 
storm water treatment areas and storm drain systems, or lighting improvements within the 
public rights-of-way and dedicated public easement areas within the limits of the 
development. Maintenance activities will be perfo1med by the City of Newark or its 
contractors through the Landscaping and Lighting District. All property owners within the 
tentative map boundary shall be assessed amrnally in accordance with requirements 
established with the Landscaping and Lighting District. The developer shall pay all 
associated costs in the City's Master Fee Schedule for establishment of the Landscaping 
and Lighting District. The developer shall record an indenture advising all prospective 
property owners in the project that their properties are included in a Landscaping and 
Lighting District for maintenance of landscaping, lighting, and related improvements 
installed as part ofthis project. 

ggg. All storm drain inlets within the entire development, located in both public and private 
areas, shall be equipped with full-capture trash devices approved by the Regional Water 
Quality Control Board that satisfy Provision C. l O requirements under the Municipal 
Regional Stom1 water NPDES Permit. Trash capture device selection is subject to 
approval by the City Engineer. All trash capture device maintenance within public rights
of-way shall be completed through the Landscaping and Lighting District. All trash 
capture device maintenance within private areas shall be completed by the Homeowner's 
Association. The Homeowner's Association shall be responsible for trash and litter 

Resolution No. 12 



control and sweeping of all private streets within the development. All private storm drain 
systems and all associated trash capture devices shall be cleaned on a regularly scheduled 
basis as detailed in the required Storm water Treatment Measures Maintenance 
Agreement. 

hhh. The Homeowner's Association shall be required to contract with a professional 
management film to handle all necessary maintenance operations. Documentation of such 
contract shall be submitted to the City of Newark. All commonly owned facilities shall be 
properly maintained in a manner consistent with the CC&Rs and project requirements. 

iii. The Homeowner's Association shall periodically provide educational materials on storm 
water pollution prevention to all residents. 

JJJ. Each buyer shall sign an acknowledgment that he/she has read the constitution and bylaws 
of the Homeowner's Association and the CC&Rs applied to the development. 

kkk. The developer shall provide a complete set of constmction plans in electronic format and 
reproducible paper (mylar) format to the Homeowner's Association at the time of its 
formation. 

Ill. All existing overhead utilities within the development and along the fronting street rights
of-way to the centerline of the street shall be undergrounded to the nearest riser beyond 
the development's limits in accordance with the City of Newark Subdivision Standards. 
Undergrounding shall include all existing and proposed service drops. 

mmm. All new utilities including, but not limited to, electric and communication services shall be 
provided underground for all buildings in the development in accordance with the City of 
Newark Subdivision Standards. Electrical transformers shall be installed in underground 
vaults with an appropriate public utility easement or within the public right-of-way. This 
undergrounding requirement excludes the south side of Entetprise Drive and the east side 
of Hickory Street along the Ashland Chemical and Torian frontages. 

nnn. Fire hydrants are to be located along public and private streets as detennined by the 
Alameda County Fire Department. 

ooo. A streetlight plan and joint trench plan shall be submitted by the applicant with the second 
tract improvement plan check and approved prior to final map approval. All existing 
street lights on Enterprise Drive and Willow Street within the limits of the Dumbarton 
Transit Oriented Plan Area shall be replaced ( unless another developer has guaranteed this 
work) with street lights consistent with the approved Dumbarton Transit Oriented 
Development Specific Plan. LED lighting shall be utilized on all public and private streets 
and other common areas. 

ppp. A signpost with a sign having an area of at least 15-inches by 21-inches shall be installed 
at or near each private street entrance. The name of each private street shall be placed on 
this sign in clearly legible 4-inch letters. The signs shall have painted, in at least !-inch 
letters, "P1ivate Property. Not dedicated for public use." 

Resolution No. 13 



qqq. On-site private streets are to be posted for "No Parking," except in those areas designed to 
accommodate gnest parking, as shown on the vesting tentative map. 

1rr. The connection between private streets and public streets shall be by a City of Newark 
standard driveway. 

sss. Garbage, trash, or recycling containers shall be suitably concealed in an area dedicated 
within the garage of each unit, except such features may be placed at curbside on the 
designated garbage pick-up day. 

ttt. Public Utility Easements (PUE), Water Line Easements (WLE), Storm Drain Easements 
(SDE), and Sanitary Sewer Easements (SSE) shall be dedicated over all private streets in 
the development. The PUE, WLE, SDE and SSE dedication statements on the final map 
shall state that the PUE, WLE, SDE and SSE are available for, but not limited to, the 
installation, access and maintenance of water supply sanitary and storm sewers, and gas, 
electrical, and conmmnication facilities. 

uuu. Emergency Vehicle Access Easements (EV AE) shall be dedicated over the full pavement 
width on all private streets in the development. The final easement geometry shall be 
subject to the approval of the City Engineer. 

vvv. Easements for public access shall be dedicated over those parcels intended for public uses, 
including the trail, and the park parcels. 

www. The developer shall request Pacific, Gas & Electric Co. to commence with the design of 
the underground utility improvements for the proposed development immediately 
following tentative map approval. 

xxx. The developer shall ensure that a water vehicle for dust control operations is kept readily 
available at all times during constmction at the City Engineer's direction. A pick-up or 
vacuum type street sweeper shall be available at all times at the direction of the City 
Engineer to remove tracked dirt and debris from adjacent streets. 

yyy. All existing buildings within the proposed division of land shall be completely demolished 
prior to recording the first final map. 

zzz. Above ground architectural and building features that project over proposed property lines 
shall be permitted on townhouse and/or condominium units by easements recorded on the 
final map. Such features include, but are not limited to, eaves, bay windows, balconies, 
porches, landings, and stairways. The details for these easements, including dimensions 
and descriptions, shall be included on the final map. Foundations for townhouse units 
shall be contained within the individual lot. 

aaaa. Street names and an addressing scheme shall be developed during the final map and 
improvement plan review process in accordance with the City of Newark's Street 
Numbering and Naming Ordinance (Chapter 12.12). The street name theme and 

Resolution No. 14 



individual street names shall be determined at a future date. All addressing is based on the 
Alameda County grid pattern with streets running generally northerly and southerly 
having 5-digit addresses and streets rum1ing generally westerly and easterly having 4-digit 
addresses. 

bbbb. The developer shall repair and/or replace any public improvements (pavement, curb, 
gutter, etc.) damaged as a result of construction activity to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer. 

cccc. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy or release of utilities for any residential 
units, private streets, cmmnon vehicle accessways and parking facilities serving said units 
shall be paved in accordance with the recommendation of a licensed engineer based on a 
minimum Traffic Index of6.0. 

dddd. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy or release of utilities for each dwelling 
unit, the on-site drive aisles and uncovered parking facilities shall be installed and striped 
as shown on the approved site plan. All on-site uncovered parking facilities and drive 
aisles shall be drained at a minimum slope of 1.0% for asphalt concrete surfaces and 0.3% 
for Pmtland cement concrete surfaces. 

eeee. The developer shall be responsible for implementation of all applicable mitigation 
measures identified in the Environn1ental Impact Repmt for the Dumbarton Transit 
Oriented Development Specific Plan and the Supplemental Environmental Impact Report 
prepared for this project. 

ffff. Prior to occupancy of any buildings within the special flood hazard area or acceptance of 
any public improvements, the developer shall apply for and receive approval of a letter of 
map revision based on fill (LOMR-F) from the Federal Emergency Management Agency. 
The LOMR-F shall be based upon the as-built grades of the building pads and shall 
determine that the pads and all public and private streets are no longer within the special 
flood hazard area as indicated on the current Flood msurance Rate Map for the City of 
Newark, Community Panel No. 06001C 04430, dated August 3, 2009. 

gggg. Prior to the issuance of any permits, any proposed permeable pavement design shall be 
based on a geotechnical engineer's recommendation and reviewed by the manufacturer or 
the National Ready Mixed Concrete Association (NRMCA). The developer shall submit 
documentation to the City confirming approval by the manufacturer or NRMCA and 
geotechnical engineer. The developer shall also ensure that the contractor hired to install 
the penneable pavement be certified by the NRMCA. Documentation that confirms 
certification shall be submitted directly to the City Engineer for review and approval. 

hhhh. The developer shall implement the following measures for the duration of all construction 
activity to minimize air quality impacts: 

1. Wate1ing should be used to control dust generation during demolition of structures and 
break-up of pavement. 

2. All trucks hauling demolition debris from the site shall be covered. 

Resolution No. 15 



3. Dust-proof chutes shall be used to load debris into trucks whenever feasible. Watering 
should be used to control dust generation during transport and handling of recycled 
materials. 

4. All active constrnction areas shall be watered at least twice daily and more often 
dming windy pe1iods; active areas adjacent to the existing land uses shall be kept 
damp at all times or shall be treated with non-toxic stabilizers or dust palliatives. 

5. All bucks hauling soil, sand, and other loose materials shall be covered or require all 
trncks to maintain at least 2 feet of freeboard. 

6. All unpaved access roads, parking areas, and staging areas at construction sites shall 
be paved, watered three times daily, or treated with (non-toxic) soil stabilizers. 

7. All paved access roads, parking areas, and staging areas at constJ·uction sites shall be 
swept daily with water sweepers; water sweepers shall vacuum up excess water to 
avoid runoff-related impacts to water quality. 

8. Limit traffic speeds on unpaved roads to 15 mph. 
9. Install sandbags or other erosion control measures to prevent silt runoff to public 

roadways. 
10. Replant vegetation in disturbed areas as quickly as possible. 
11 . Minimize idling time (5 minutes maximum). 
12. Maintain properly tuned equipment. 

These measures shall be incorporated into the grading specifications as well as the best 
management practices of the St01m Water Pollution Prevention Plan, and shall be 
implemented to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

1111. The developer shall provide all required paper and digital submittals of the project final 
map, tract improvements plans, and as-built plans as required by the City Engineer, 
including, but not necessarily limited to the following: (1) One full-size reproducible copy 
and one reduced reproducible copy of the approved tentative map; (2) Two electronic 
copies of the approved final map and improvement plans in a format approved by the City 
Engineer; (3) One full-size mylar copy and one reduced copy of the recorded final map; 
( 4) One reproducible set and four blue-line or photocopied sets of the approved tract 
improvement plans; (5) Two electronic copies and one mylar set of the as-built tract 
improvement plans. The City will require a digital submittal of all final maps and 
improvements plans. All CAD work must be prepared in a manner consistent with the 
Union Sanitary District's digital submittal requirements for layering conventions. This 
can be found on the web at: http://www.unionsanitary.com/digitaJSubmittal.htm. Digital 
files submitted shall be based on accurate coordinate geometry calculations and the 
NAD83 State Plane Coordinate System (Zone III) and NGVD29 (USD requires NA VD88) 
as vertical datum. A deposit of $5,000 shall be provided by the developer to the City to 
ensure submittal of all required documents. 

JJJJ. The developer shall provide as-built record drawings in both electronic format and on 
mylar paper based on full and complete review and inspection by the developer's project 
civil engineer, landscape architect, and other design professionals of all public 
improvements and all improvements on private streets and property included in the tract 
improvement plan set. 

Resolution No. 16 



kkldc. If any condition of this vesting tentative tract map be declared invalid or unenforceable by 
a court of competent jurisdiction, this vesting tentative map shall terminate and be of no 
force and effect, at the election of the City Council on motion. 

llll. Pursuant to Government Code Section 66474.9, the subdivider, or any agent thereof, or 
successor thereto, shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Newark, its 
officials, employees or agents ( collectively "City") from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City to attack, set aside, void, or annul, the City's approval concerning this 
subdivision map application, which action is brought within the time period provided for 
in Section 66499.37. The City will promptly notify the subdivider of any such claim, 
action, or proceeding and cooperate fully in the defense. 

mmmm. The Conditions of Project Approval set forth herein include certain fees, dedication 
requirements, and other exactions. Pursuant to Government Code Section 66020(d)(l), 
these conditions constitute written notice of s statement of the amount of such fees, and a 
description of the dedications, reservations, and other exactions. The developer is hereby 
further notified that the 90-day approval period in which the developer may protest these 
fees, dedications, reservations, and other exactions, pursuant to Government Code 
66020( a), has begnn. If the developer fails to file a protest within this 90-day period 
complying with all of the requirements of Section 66020, the developer will be legally 
barred from later challenging such exactions. 

Landscape-Parks Division 

nnnn. The developer shall retain a licensed landscape architect to prepare working drawings for 
tract improvement landscape plans in accordance to with City of Newark requirements 
and the State of California Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance as amended by 
the California Water Commission on July 15, 2015. The associated Landscape 
Documentation Package must be approved by the City Engineer prior to approval of any 
final maps. 

0000. The developer shall implement Bay Friendly Landscaping Practices in accordance with 
Newark Municipal Code, Chapter 15.44.080. Prior to approval of any final maps, the 
developer shall provide sufficient information to detail the environmentally-conscious 
landscape practices to be used on the project. 

pppp. Prior to installation by the developer, plant species, location, container size, quality, and 
quantity of all landscaping plants and materials shall be reviewed and approved by the 
City Engineer. All street trees and park trees shall be minimum 24-inch box specimens. 
All plant replacements shall be to an equal or better standard than originally approved 
subject to approval by the City Engineer. 

qqqq. Prior to the release of utilities or issuance of any Certificates of Occupancy, all 
landscaping and irrigation systems shall be completed or guaranteed by a cash deposit 
deposited with the City in an amount to cover the remainder of the work. 

rrrr. Prior to issuance of Certificate of Occupancy or release of utilities, the developer shall 

Resolution No. 17 



guarantee all trees for a period of 6 months and all other plantings and landscape for 60 
days after completion thereof. The developer shall insure that the landscape shall be 
installed properly and maintained to follow standard horticultural practices. All plant 
replacements shall be to an equal or better standard than originally approved subject to 
approval of the City Engineer. 

ssss. Landscaping adjacent to the public right-of-way must conform to the City's visibility 
requirements in accordance with Newark Municipal Code, Chapter 10.36. 

tttt. Prior to the issuance of any Ce1tificates of Occupancy, the developer shall pay park-in-lieu 
fees in accordance with the City's current Master Fee Schedule and any updates thereto. 

uuuu. Any above ground utility structures, including backflow prevention devices, and 
appurtenances shall be installed within the developer's property line and a minimum of 10 
feet behind street face of curbs. The backflow prevention devices shall have a green 
painted security cage to protect it from vandalism. These locations shall be screened with 
landscaping to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. The landscape screen shall not 
interfere with the utility companies' or City Fire Department's access. 

Alameda County Fire Department 

vvvv. This project shall comply with the City of Newark's adopted Fire Code including 
Appendix D. 

Building Inspection Division 

wwww. Construction for this project can occur only between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. 
Monday through Friday. The developer may make a written request to the Building 
Official for extended working hours and/or days. In granting or denying any request, the 
Building Official will take into consideration the nature of the construction activity which 
would occur during extended hours/days, the time and duration of the request, the 
proximity to residential neighborhoods, and input by affected neighbors. All approvals 
will be done so in writing. 

General 

xxxx. All proposed changes from approved exhibits shall be submitted to the Community 
Development Director who shall decide if they warrant Planning Commission and City 
Council review and, if so decided, said changes shall be submitted for the Commission's 
and Council's review and decision. The developer shall pay the prevailing fee for each 
addifional separate submittal of development exhibits requiring Planning Commission 
and/or City Council review and approval. All time extensions for this planned unit 
development and conditional use permit shall be approved by the Planning Commission 
and City Council. 

yyyy. If any condition of this planned unit development and conditional use permit be declared 
invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, this plaimed unit 

Resolution No. 18 



development and conditional use permit shall terminate and be of no force and effect, at 
the election of the City Council on motion. 

zzzz. This planned unit development and conditional use permit shall be given a public hearing 
before the City Council for the Council's review and approval. 

aaaaa. Prior to the submittal for building permit review, all conditions of approval of this project, 
as approved by the City Council, shall be printed on the plans. 

bbbbb. The developer hereby agrees to defend, indemnify, and save harmless the City of Newark, 
its Council, boards, commissions, officers, employees and agents, from and against any 
and all claims, suits, actions, liability, loss, damage, expense, cost (including, without 
limitation, attorneys' fees, costs and fees oflitigation) of every nature, kind or description, 
which may be brought by a third party against, or suffered or sustained by, the City of 
Newark, its Council, boards, commissions, officers, employees or agents to challenge or 
void the pe1mit granted herein or any California Environmental Quality Act 
determinations related thereto. 

ccccc. The Conditions of Project Approval set forth herein include ce1iain fees, dedication 
requirements, reservation requirements and other exactions. Pursuant to Government 
Code Section 66020( d)(l ), these Conditions constitute written notice of a statement of the 
amount of such fees, and a description of the dedications, reservations and other exactions. 
The developer is hereby further notified that the 90-day approval period in which the 
developer may protest these fees, dedications, reservations and other exactions, pursuant 
to Government Code Section 66020(a), has begun. If the developer fails to file a protest 
within this 90-day pe1iod complying with all of the requirements of Section 66020, the 
developer will be legally barred from later challenging such exactions. 

Resolution No. 19 



--
I/ 1 

-------

! ,11 . ~ g ,· 
' 

' ' ,, 
!· 
1' 
' I' •! 

~=~:=~ ____ ) 
) -------...c.._:..~c 

;.;~// 
---·:,_r 

001 



e IITI! 11 ~11:urd!··· ... ,_ ... , 

1

1! , ; 1 · · i~'""' I , , 

~tl ,,--,---·-- ----:-, i-:-

fil ~\, 

//) 

... « ! ! 

,:h1i;
1

il 

i" 

~ ~. 

·~· ' i 
! 

" ! 
s 

~ 



~ --

----------~ .. {(, 
·r/~ 
' ,/ 

i 
I 
' 

=::'~ .. M-1 
1' '"""- ~ .. r-'-"!!,, ;'; ,...,_, 

,O~><-•~M ---- --::_;;..._,. ----

S.~E;:, ~,\ ~E:.r=" 

' ""' :::::::=t;"' ·"'"':T~[ ~ ~ .:,.,= 
:.,-=, ll : _'_ '-~- ---- ---

-~-----z:"""'""'m ~~r:::," 

,,,_,,. ~;.i,-::.::.,a,.. 
~-·~--"'".,::~ ~~-~= 

..:,.. 

--~:,J~;:~,~-
--- ~ ..... ,,. .. · 

I __.,,. 
-="' ~a=' 

-s;:" ... _ tz.,,..,_~'2':. ____ _ 

I 
~ 

~~ ~ ..... 

~

'W 

~- tsi PM 31 
fMc:EL I 

, -"''"'"'"°""~""'"'Cl!!. "'"""'""' 
..... ~....,':"/'~~:.."'~~·~. 

Y
-, 

' I'""'°''"" 
,-__ _ 

!~ 
!! ,'· i!I 
"' 

-""'~'-lf,~ "' ·~-t~-=-~ ·""1:t:: ls/'':::-=~ ~~ -~:~~:-7--·~: __ _ 
'!?/~~ ~~ ~ 

~-

FMC CORPORATICN 
537-0852..0C2-07 

jl!:E:., .. a:::"" 

It 
ll 

,}f' 

. -
-••M 

'",;"~",!" 

'l :;.,_+ .... ~ --~ 
,::'7, ,;: 's."'"-::.;;;;;fl --

"Jr,':'~; 

<r~w:nz--·,;: .. ;,;;;;;;.;;,-

-~::, :r ___ ·~ --\:'~;,. 
~;.... .... ~ ·~~-

itbH!if _,;:§)''-:::;.; s ' ~ 
"" """'"""" ~"' ""~"" :.r-· 

:::, /'.¥2+-d ,~;, ,"'·-
__________ L""""'""" 

~ ~ -<~AA,~,-,;:'~~~ 
rJ1r11 J: r!ti

1

._ ' 1~ !;"'" VESTING TENTATIVE~ 
___,L-_ -J:t_ .• TRACT 8099 

Fi: "1¥.li' ="'"" - ,i, .. ~----:.:_ GATEWAY STATION WEST ~-"'~-.... ~~ "" ""'""'~'"" E; ="'"""'""' IIJ.A),1IOlJ.c1m,m ="""' 
·--- I - I ...., ""-'"' TM I ="=--- ""''""-""''.iii-' . " .. " I """"' __ ,,__ I El' 

~.,. "':"''""~ =-~.:::-~ . . :_ _:::_::! li 



- --l------ ----------------

! .-

!, 

•'1 ii 

@I 



zsz f'M 11 
r>.RC!l. I 

~ 
I 
I 

! 
I 
I 
I 
I : 

/ 
I 

· .. :'.~·-.. 

'""'"" !Cll'OIS>~Wll'lf) 

Ill 

114 

Ill 

11, 111 

"' Ill 

Ill llD 

Ill , .. 

Sf:I SHt.tr 1 

" 
VJ IO 

II 

!CO 
,i 11 

Ill " 11 16 61 

"' 
fl .. 71 

" 
ID! 9l ll 1< 11 

"' 
II " 1l II 

" 11 n " 
It u 11 70 

" fl .. 
It l2 

" .. JI 

" 
1l 

SI 4t JI 
JI lD 

!l ll n 
ll " 

" ll " ll II 

ll ll ll ~ 11 

i 
Sl 

~ 

II ......,,a»m',.m.a:lm! 
\ ,,...,,.,,.,,."""'''""' 

~ 

(' __ 

I " =-·~ ......... --
• I 

1 · 

... 
fltE,tlfCa'.NA,MCJll,W 

_.,...._ 

~ 

FIRE ACCESS PLAN 
VESTING TENTATIVE¥Af> 

TRACT 8099'-
GATEWAY STATION WEST 

m · · =:"': l.u;;; =- 18 I ~ l ~!.':::..':"-,-TM-61: 
~l'! __ __;•.n-ill'~ : -.: -- ••wn l 



i 
~ 

mltlGl!T 

~r~'~-/ Lf-U; ,,/ . . nr= - -&, • - / ,E } 

vr · 1111~ 111 • 

/,~ 
/~ ' 
:/, 
f 

HJCl{OR.YS'MlEET 

!!ru!/,t 

! 
i 
l 
I 

I 
' 
:! 

''1 

/1 
I ' 

,,/ i 
/ I 

' ' 
~ ,"/ P...at:111 

,//_,/ 

/' 

s 
" $J =i 

3!S PM M 
PARCU 3 

IEEUFr 

LEGEXD 

~c:othl'rtt.UTlua'l'UllC I/ • ruou.nro,n"""""""" 

..... 

.t=::} 

l'lal'Omlr:u!rtl)IIA.'r.' 

n,c,,.IQ.l:NU,f'll()W,W: 
~TUNXa!1'W 

FIRE ACCESS PLAN 
VESTING TENTATIVE ¥AP 

TRACT 8099. 
GATEWAY STATION WEST 

~ • 0 =:"': lw; :::~ 18.~ I ~ I ~ !.'=..':':-- M-7 l 
~, "' ... ~ == --= - .a , 



,, 

' '-----~ _JLI 

.......... - --

" ' ,, 



GATEWAY STATION 
Newark CA 

OATE:S/l'111.5 
U1'JOB• 1J-17? 

Q .URBAN ARENP( 
I NTEGRAL '""·' • "··-·'"' t..+,foh, t,,111 1 1\ '• . t7::.~~:~"ti::~1~1'1~ ·~ . ·- - ~ ___ .. , __ 

,:: 

COVER SHEET li"!:~s.o 



GATEWAY STATION 
Newark CA 

OATf:5/29/U 
UA JOll 1).1,r __ 

Q 

•

URBAN 
A REN fl< 

INTEGRAL _ ·:::'::.:':Z-.:.7::;:•,: 
,.; .. ,r .. 11, 1,1 nltlt'• uu r., nH 1mn,,, .. 1 .~ ... --... "' 

I TABLE OF CONTENT> I 
ACS.O COYER SHfET 
..0.1 T~L,OF CQ:,,ITEN1!. 

ACI.O AAOirT~UVJ. SITT PW~ 

Al ,O UAI.OfTS1"JT6,N.EXCOMPOSITEl'VINS 
Al.I U1'LOfTSMO-P'I.EXC0\1POSITf£1.fVAOONSA 
Al.2 l1Al.OfT51'1JT4-N.UC0Mf'OS1fEflfVATIONS 8 

,l,,l,O UALOFTSM7,1".tX. COMl'OSITTl'L."""5 
"2.1 \J1' LOrtSM1.mxco,..,osrrE [L[VATIOmA 
"2.2 UA LOFT SNT7-P'l.fX COMP~n lllVATIONS a 

"1.0 UA '9 'JI\.Vt COMPOSrre Pv,:.:5 tST & '2:,:0 fl.OOR 
A.1.1 UAP99,,..EXCOMP0SrTfl'i,l,."'53ROFlOOR 
"1,2 liAP9'MUX.et!VATl0~ 
"'3..1 UA '9 ,,P'.fX fl.[VATlONS 

lul,0 UA ~;s U'LEX cOM,osOE l'tANS 
M , l t.1Afl.Al16-N:XCOMPOSITf ElEVATlONSA 
M .2 UA F!AfS 6-l't.ex COMPOSITE fLEVATIONS I 

AS.O UA"XSS'AUEY ,PV,N 11'1.00RL'V.NS 
AS.I IJA3SX!!S'AUFf•PlAN2FLOORP!.ANS 
M.2 UA3~~S'AUEY,1ViNlHOORPLANS 
AS.3 VA JSX!!S' AH EY • "-""'S 1,3 ElEVATIOM 

A6.0 VA 35X50' FRONT . f'lN,/ 1 n.ocn l".A,'S 
M.1 UA35~1'RONT, ~lAN 2R.oot M"li 
A0,2 !JA 3,'XSO' FroNT . ,otAN 3 flOOlt ,V.."'CS 
M.3 \JA 35XSC FRONT-PLAN!. 1.J UEVATIOHS 

lol.O UACwm i -TYPICAI.CL.USTU ! -P>.CK 
"7,1 VAC:lUSTER • "1AN 1 fLOOuv .. ,-s 
AJ.2 UAC\U5TU-~2ft.OO•,V,,,.,'S 
>J.3 VAC:WSTE•·~lf tOORl'UJ6 
A7,4 UACU.J5TH . PLAN~ flOOHIA~ 
Iv ..S VA ClllSTEl . f,'LAM )-1 HEVATIONS 

&lmlornDNSa1 
Sheclno. 

TABLE OF CONTENTS I ACS.1 



,/ 

,.,..,..,.,,.. 

~,l,SJ\ 

;:l;l::l::l ;;:;: 
Ne, v~ ,,..,..,.., . 

,iin ~~ ~~~ 

' ~ 
~}iij~ ~!i!Ji§ 

I 

/ 

,., ... .., ... 
!olit 
'""'~::l 
""'"'"' 

~~~[ 
;J_ 
5 

' ' 
!!iji§ ! 

I 

L 

j 

' 
ENTEi 1 g 
DRIVE 1,!£J. I 



6-PLEX THIRD LEVEL 

-----·-----~~----~ 

6-PLEXSECOND LEVEL 

If i-r··············, ..... ~°'"'·;; .. ~,.; ....... ·."".;····'·········ft 

1' ,~~,Ji JV ,V ~:YJJ. ·· 
./ ?Y } - }PLAN3 1 I

··· -vc-L -!r· ,.jv 
p rf'"" · o - --JrPI.ANt-· [ - ·-{ I 

i j" , . !! l r - I ,l J, ' ,",'' 

' ' ',.. ::~:, '1' '"' ~-' . [lr\ ,.2l~. 
~ _-~-~~-- µ:,J~ -,--~----~. t·«--1;~--~"~-""-+~1l 

6-PlEX FIRST U:VEL 

GATEWAY STATION 
Newark CA 

OAT!cSn0/,5 
UAJOB• 13·117 

(j 

i~l.~,~~11 
URBAN 
~.~J~~r::i.ei 

',.;::::;·;·'":';::·:~':,:: '~·-··-. ·---

PLAN 1 SUMMARY 

"'''"'OJT ·=~>C,.,Ta""'~ 
: ;:,·~:gg;~"-'"~~'c. 
:~~-·:,~:,' ~lti 
,o, ... , '·'"~' 
m,:c,.s,, ·-· "'" "'" 

PLAN 2 SUMMARY 

"""'°''',:,"'"""'' ,,.cs=•"'"" 
'"·"°°'· "'"·'· '"0.FlCOR, oo,,p 

""""""' '""· 01)!, 

·-=~- ""·' .,,,.,,,,, "'~' 

PLAN 3 SUMMARY 

'"''"""' 0"1.-·0"'"'""'"0 
"""""''°"""'""" '"'"'00"'''·'"'-'"' m.f\Ollt, m,., 
,,o.rceoo, ""·' 
:u:,,,coo,, "'"· 
10 .... , '·''"''-'· 

-11,'LCOO«, l<O~P """""°'' ,,.~, 

"""'""" ~":'i'g,'('i'J~·'··· 
,,er,,00.,w.,.5"'-'"' 
,,, ... oo,, "'"' ;:-:,~,' :-:.:~:. 

• O;J., ~<:<!>\.} 

.m,:o,.-,,. "u """'""' ... ~, 

fnl!lomonlSot 
6-PLEX LJA LOFT SPLIT ISh~lno. 

COMPOSITE PLANS Al.O 



LEFT ELEVATION 

RIGHT Elcv'ATI.QN 

IIAiUW.S UST: CON'T~MPOIARY AGW LAN 

, :m ctJ.tHrl'IMTOf£m:IVOIIWAU,i;e,i.fil:JlJlil,I 
c:l'.Mtl(rJl!WIDart/ll::lf\l!MCILNIOliQlll'tCNW.::.>.:1/IC --:t.lJIIJIM:IW.WSLO,,.!«;JIErA(.l!OQIIAC'Cfm 
UIW:i..o,tl1A.Ttl1"<M:JHGa1l.YJtOQI. 
~AUIMMNIW,l.."CW~ 
AtUGI.A.S$lMll:'f~l'lf7)f~.~l!CD 
NJl/n:t,JIOMlDl~l,l(J'Atl.Ov.zot~t::. 
l iJNIOJIIQI\GP~rutrAl.CCltlfl.UAcicrn:Arl'lCIOII 
OlfiAIINIGMO~M\'Cf!COl'i:.,,~ 
C.U.VAIIIZDJ/ffA,l.fl.'l(lll.QIGlWIDAA~llflH~W 
c.wc:.t~M.lftlU'Mt"'~ 
IAJ/MO.flOWIICCW.TllnM.TUar:nml-11 
kVMlltmwtllLNilNCrtLW,11,'iCW, 
H.lllrlJJ~CIMTI.ICTAl.~ATUlflr:'/DOClt 
•cct01U!C 
~J,LC'l'Dlt(ADJtDf.L,U,,(WLl,Cf~l'tfff,/llfM)Ctl' 
um. 
MfTJ.L~AO!L~CA'i::CtOOl..u:iomitlATtM 
WDNCS'o\Q"AT~l,(',IU. 

GATEWAY STATION 
Newark CA 

OATE:5129/15 
UAJ01 t l3•1n 

fil:,'.R ELEYAT10N 
MoOttHLCttmi.h ™:ua••l'.o· 

FROITT ELEVATIO_l"_ 
;w,ofu..CM)ni.t " K:cil t/ll" M I'-"' 

UlV"-l~Hf~~HOWNAlf.f80:l,,IAOJ.1iC!l(f 11Ntli'I C:ll.<.Cl1 

t 

0 • . -·. ~~~~~ 
1eoi.,,vr - N' IEnlll!crr.cnlS~t 

lNT EG R.AL . .:'.:.~~:.:":.~::::::i.! 
(,.(,.!t_•II \I H 11 1 ~ • . "~ !:_'~'~:. '.':•::':·,'!'! 

UA LOFT SPLIT 6-PLEX I"""'°· 
ELEVATIONS A 1. 1 



! 

I . . 
i 
' l 
' ' ' I 



J.PLEX THIRD LEVEL 

101r oo~-,---
r: oo~-i"'-''~ ,-- ' 

-~ ~G ::: ' ~I- ' 
~ C.,_,.'!;' PLAN l 
~ I ' . . ' 

l ~ · · • 1tt1I' .. , · L': 

-~ _,:,,-;11~ n _- ---
'=t;i Q PLAN2 

~I oD :~ 
l;J_l__=C 

7 -PleX SECOND l.£VEL 

7 .pte)( FIRST LEVEL 

GATEWAY STATION 
Newark CA 

DAlE:5/29/IS 
U~.JQ~_!_l:l,1]1 

0 
INTEGRAL '.,..,,.,u,.i, .. ,, 

o1' I 
~" 

n:_ 
'1'.a;P 

•

UR.BAN 
AREN,,:,;: 

~:::::::~:.'·"'·'"\ ... 

PLAN 1 SUMMARY 

"°"""'"'''C"'"""M ''""'="'·'"''"' .,,.noe.t, "" 
·'"DPlOClR, m,r 
·""·"""'' .. ,.,. 
• 6r>< '·'"'·'· 

·"""""'' '"" ·"""'"' <'1U 

PLAN 2 SUMMARY 
~,1<C<Jt>T"'°"D 

.ab<O<OO..,/l,SO"H' 

·'"·'"'"'' '""· ·'""·"°"'' ,..,,. .,.O,'LOO,, "°'·' 
law, '·""·' 

'""· 
PLAN 3 SUMMARY 

'""'""'"' on...::,MSOP1,;:ev,1,;110 

~11r111fu. 
10,,1., ,.,ro>.! 

:~"';'.· ::ni· 

PLAN 4 SUMMARY 
DU>LW,>11. 

~"'.';'g:,'\~~~~""" 
<rriaROO>IS,:J,,,,l'1, 
1'Ul00R• "'"· 
;':g·;ecog:: :it;· 
.o,,.,, ,,oe,s., 

:=~'' "'·' ...... 

7-PLEX UA LOFT SPLIT 1·\~~l~~:~ISot 
COMPOSITE PLANS A2.0 



i 
l 
i 
i 
l 
i 
I 
' ' I 
j 
i 

LEFT ELEVATION 
i.ii,;Sowilorll!fu,., i6i.i'.i lw • NI' 

RIGHT ELEVATION 
i.iixitii,l sd ,r ~lfuA :l:,ii:, L/1'• 1'4' 

('AA'ltRW.5 USTr CQml:M~OWY AC~lt!AN 

m1c:DltXt.-u.1l'tA'~W.W.~N.rJmu.l' 
~ QWIEJmllUCRLIEA~AND~NTAL:1::tHC 

:;TNIQll'Q:W,::IJWIG.ME'T,lLIIOQl'Acwr,: 
LGW~• Vi.Tll' Ql!sw:Lf,111.'!'l'IOCI'. 
NID\'.lffl~M'COW~ 
(lltAtu_S,omtrOCQUllffilc..u:J. ctll.WU:/Gll 
f~JIOll'IIOl.~1""1/IL~AV.NW¢:. 
,AQl(1ta~D! tQ1.TkftAI.COR.lll.~AT~ 
C-..u.,i,WOAVO:t~.t,CltA~ 
CAI.VN«lt.DM(l'At JUleCW(CLWIDAl,t.Sll,mtill).W 
c:AIIOOll'Ul.l'IWMCK 
1'J.¥mIJ~co..tw:tN.11.-tmtutl 
CAl.~ ... \llt0"""1At1'J.JWffnASl,IIHaC.-,. 
1'J.HIUJ~CClol.TM£TAl.lWl'"fflrW1Ar omtYDOCII 
•t:CII.Qlt'IWI 
I/CtAL.a~,rxJ.4'~DO~l'llr'W~lf 

""' ~A!.~IIQJAMIIQIOCIEtlGt.C:DCIQlt.SJ.TLNI! 
l'l'!IM:.-.ia;ATC1'1CtlNOtbQ.. 

GATEWAY STATION 
Newark CA 

OAIE:S/2.9/1.S 
VA J0tllt13-ln 

REAA ELEVATION :.&ii, it1· • rq MO&) .. ·u&1 um ... 

0 • . - .~~~~~~ 
I NTECi llAL .· . ::::.•;:.:~.~::;·:;:,: 
t.1. 11, n, 1.1 1+111 \· l. "' lJ.~ " " '~11 ..... ... " ... " ·" " 

IUVATQjH?~$HOWN ARrlOM~tNl'n"'1:lff~ 

UA LOFT SPLIT 7-PLEX 
ELEVATIONS 

l:n11nomONSe1 
Sheelna. 

A2.1 



I 

I.,. 
i 
' i 
! 
! 



"';'J.Lfilil"l"L -,-1 .... 
~ 

I! "" I "'1li@4 
:0.'11.:a 

';);~: '~:.? -~_] 

= -
,':".:. i~ ,~I -----i 

.. ~"·~~ 

~ 

lJA P9 9-Pl.EXFIRST LfVEL 

lJA P'9 9-PlEX SECOND LEV!'L 

GATEWAY STATION 
Newark CA 

DME:O/:IW5 
VAJOS I 1~·117 

'~ 

~ 

'';.1lll" 

11~ 
' ~ 

(; 

1:~,!:.~?~t~ 

~ 

= 

= 

•

ORBAN 
AREN.t>; 

~·::.~~~~- '·""'""'' 

PLAN SUMMARY 

PLAN 1 
2BR / 2.5 BATH 1,5825.F. 

PLAN 2 
3BR / 2.5 BATH 1,690 S.F. 

PLAN 3 
3BR / 2 BATH 1,787 S.F. 

PLAN 4 
3BR / 2.5 BATH 1,864 S.F. 

PLAN 5 
48R/3 BATH 2,193 S.F. 

En1momon1 set 

~ P9 9-PLEX COMPOSITE PLANS 1''"A3.0 



UA P9 9-PLEXTHIRD LEVEL 

UA P9 9-PLEX ROOF PLAN 

GATEWAY STATION 
Newark CA 

01,1!:,sn~11s 
Ll,',_J_OB __ !._\J:!1_7_ 

0 
!~~r~,~;'.-L 

= 

URBAN 
('R,ENA 
,,.,,.,,,.,,.·,.,,,,,.,., .. -

,:'"': P9 9-PLEX COMPOSITE PLAN l[~~~~:;~s..i 
w AND ROOF PLAN A3.1 



l 
I 
; . 
i , 

I 
l 

I 
' 4 •Xl.0-TO!lll'I: 

i .,r .. •rov.l'! 

! .1,.sro oot 

• a'a"n'. 
~ 

VA e9 9~e~ FRONT E_ID'ATION 

UA ?9 9,PLEX RfAR lliVAT:ON 

GATEWAY STATION 
Newark CA 

OATE:S/29/15 
UAJOB# 13-ln 

~l/t •l'"1' 

W.THW..S U5TJ OASSIC AGW IA.N 

:c.19Wdf.VT,llf,4:1111~1'1!,1,!,LJUENAJ.a~ 
UJ,,t'fflCM.,O'Tt.'llalt~.41.J.ND~.Jd,'C ...... 
.&ll'KV.T~»IIJ!WlfOCIII' . 
.:rM(llilC$&1,!SUlll'~•,out1,41,,100,~i:&1r.. 
l'AMrED,llllwtJtA,~ tt'O~AT~Nl:)IJOV£ .... ,,.,.... 
i.co.,~J TC,UILf(Ml!. 
~CCIUM'l,fJfo«f.11,!ff,/ ctJ.tCNrt lMlll)IKl\o'Ar 
fLOCli'lui:: 
"lll"l\.~MA,14S, 

~W.S:SfNTltfOOCI.UllffllW.::. 
,AMt11.-~ CCM1CIA!.~,l((r,,,i.L01.m 
A~lNC:, 

fAM?.,f'CWOfi~rfO~A!.CE~Cu.wuwt..:~ 
I/U~,ttf.EJ1 
MITALOKllllr'J.!l~~DOOU~?W~ 

'"" 

-"--. ____ ..,., - ·-,,"" 

LIA P9 9.?LEX MOTORCOURT REAR ELEV~TION 

0 
lNTEGltAL 
•,.r.h,{11vul li '- • 

.. , i U RBAN 
,AR_!:.N~ 
~ ~w:.,~:::";·~~:·.~~: , .... , .. - ....... .. 

.~.,,,..,. ...... ,............., 

\ .,. 
!1.1'1'11tlOf,/1'11cKT,1M:JWM.ut, -=>M~~,ww,tC,.W),f: 

!CAil, IIW' - ....,. ' EN~lemonlSat 

A3.2 
Shocl rio. 

~ P9 9-PLEX ELEVATIONS 



tJ}l_fJ 11'.eLEX LEFT EL_~or,i 

UA P9 9-~EX RJGHT El.£VAT10N 

GATEWAY STATION 
Newark CA 

01'1E:~nP/1S 
UAJO~ jl ll-ln 

_µ_~_P9 _9-PLEX tEfT MOTQ_ij~OU_RT ELEVATIQN 

~1' P9 _12"..~LEX _IUGHT MOTORCOURT E_lEVA1JQN 

0 
INTEC R.Al 
(.•,il1 fl, \11!11 h . 

URBAN 
ARENA 
1111 •• , .. .. , .... lol,1 

""''-"'·c.111,-,u"• 
l.ltl.Hu1t1,. n,.,io.1111 - ~ 

\. 
·:·\ 

Cl..'V'*'~lltr.tfn~H::lWM/'IIUCM .. ~~"r """"'1C.t,l,OI! 

En:itf1im~ntso1 
Slicctne. 

P9 9-PLEX ELEVATIONS I A3.3 



GATEWAY STATION 
Newark CA 

OMC:5/:!l'IIS 
u~;o••1>'m 

§_-PLEX COMPOSITE PLAN 

"""'''""-''"" 

6.PLEX COMPOSITE PLAN 

6·PlfX COM!'OSITE PLAN 

I Plm! 

() 
INTEGRA 
'·''"''"""'''" 

URBAN 
;'R,EN,::S,: 
"',',,,.:·:;.:·:;:;-;.~:·, ---

"'"''·'" ,~ 

PLAN 1 SUMMARY 
Flo ts 

"""""''c,"''"'''" "'"",""""'""" 
"'·"""" "'·' ·'·""·"""'' "'·' ""·""°'' '·"'"'· ,tO;k, W>H, 

,,..cc,,;,, ·-·· 
"°""''' Slolr. 

PLAN 2 SUMMARY 
flats 

~~.;~~~ 

· '"·'"'"" "'"'· '""-'"'"'' '·""-'· 
10]At.· '·'"" 

·"'-<:ONfs· oos, 
·o-J.CON10, i,o,,. 

·"""""· ''"'-'· 

PLAN 3 SUMMARY 
Flats 

·=·'"""'"'""'" "'"'"'°""2'"'"'' 

:~~~ .. ',.~{~G. 
,0"1C0Mt l:>H1. 

·""'"'' "''"· 

PLAN 4 SUMMARY 
flats · 

:=&~1'Z:~" 
•l>ULOOo, "'" '''"'·"""'' ,,,.,,~, 

101,'l '·"'"' 

•IWCcm, 1'?'1. 

"""'"'' "''·'· 

~ "UA FLATS 6-PLEX COMPOSITE 1:~~l~~~~-"ISo! 
.• ,,. PLANS 1 A4.0 



6-PlfX LEFT ELEVATION 
Z&ii.w611MT;.eW:w,iiilvAli6N)iri£.., i.6fu11, - 1·"°' 

6-PLEX RIGHT ELEVATION 
COH:iMi'OIXM\2$.ilwi tilv,.hcN~ffii.., :.&ii 111 .. 1·.D' 

M,1,TEl!Al.5 UST· CONTEWOR.AAV AGWIAN 
:fmC(l,IO,'l'fl'i.A.trtlt~l!MiU.14'1/!>iNCIIIM 
Wl!Nrl llMll~\llATICALAMI/CltlZOHrAl.~M:; 

"'"'" I;T~~W:t~/olaAI.IIOOtAcrom: 
l.CWU.Ol'f.tUl.Tll'all.sl,,lr;J.6,C.T',..OC,:. 
AMQDm'Q.I.U,Wll,jj,I\W,OOWnAM(!. 
f .Kl'fl:t.U:vmtrCOOCSIW!l!'l:t.4!:• C:OC:~ACO 
, ~l'(l"OEll~WTM..I.OINtll~ 
, Aoll'TCl'Ov.tlut~tld:fAI.CCMl:I.IRACUnAJ/'I.°"' 
0'4'VW,QAJ(Jg,QIWgllfJ01~ 
aA,l,VNl\'?tllLIUM.1\IKDWl'Cltl,IA'Ok.flMT>rHlAW 
l:~MtT'AL IIW'/,/tJK. 
AWTt:l~UICOAT.MIT..U.1IJltlllE.IU:. 
i:A.VMTZE0""'1M. f A/W'tTo'l.,C.111M:1 W. 
~ l'OlitoU ~TlliffN.1\dlrlltUaAtOfflfT' 
COQll•c:ctQ\"~ 
J.lt:III.C\llNlt,IDJlau..l'CNIACf CO!lff)llr)f~ 
""1 
l.lt7M.o.uHt.AO~~i:u.;s.:ocJ1111.1tM! 
ll'OMS,1.~AtCIIOl.ii/DIE(!J. 

GATEWAY STATION 
Newark CA 

CAlE:~('2!1/15 
_u_~.x:,a _•_1H" 

6-PLEX REAR ELEVATION 
(&.iilMl'C!.ii,ij.,,d,wwllliv,iJi&Ufu1. :.&£.tln -11.Cl' 

6-PLEX FRONT ELEVATION 
fo:,fo.iRS11MT;;aw.wJti6AuON~fn.tA 16.i.i, 11'11 • r.tr 

0 
•

··, URBAN 
· ARENA 

INTEGRAL , , ::~•;: .. ::.:;:;:;;:;:,: 
· .~ lltlH \11 .1 l ,lt \ • • l , L.!11.lM ..... 1.11;,Jt~ ... . .. , .,~.,.., ...... . _ .. .. __ ~ 

nt\fAI ION H(JC,.lff'J S!IQ'M'Alff\OM AOIACXN't '1NCM CMC! 

·:\ 

UA FLATS 6-PLEX ELEVATIONS 
A 

EhlMJcmonl Scl 
Sl'lee!nc. 

A4.1 



6-PlfX LEFT ElfVATION 
l;6~ju,Jb,w,.r .;.i;-UiY11,i@~ffiii ~&J.i, .,. ,. r>O' 

~ 
• It 

I 
~ 
1, 

6-PLEX ~GKT ELEVATION 
e&t"""'6W.T..aG~uH.ltifu~tm, W.:111 - 1""' 

MAJPIALS UST1 CON'ID,,wOWY AGWIAN 

:!l';IIWW(l',c,.urutm:,uCllw.11..L,lhf:HR/Olllllt 
CLMf'.lo'rDGIN1~'4llnCAI.MID~M.UIUIC ....... 
;r~~:tCl'lt,'CMrorL~oc,A«ENT: 
LCWSLQl'eNTV,~~,i,yl!OCI", 
~1,/.IM'/,W"".,,OWH!Nln 
fSDl~tl,TXYCOO/tl'l'llnfc.!.A!S'.~~ 
,Nlt1tJ,,l'D~CtM'flCTM.I.OVIQ~ 
,Mf1m.l'CIKl~CC.-1~~~AT1tCl!lt 
~mJ:t.C!"IM:IN'JOFlAVf. 
IW.VAK!ltlllilfTAI. J1.IUCl'Co(CUWI.W:.,IWM~\l'I' 
C~Mro,l.~IK!H. 
,Mllm,OM!f-'CC.-T.IC?Al..n.lt!7Jltl.ir. 
~VM4l:tOM!TA.l.,JIIWaJU.SNNaW. 
fAMtJJ/IOK'l'.WCMTMrrAl:1\lll!~JJumn' 
OOOl!·CCC.CritllfD 
wrrill~IIOtJ..W"r:.ur.4Cl!:ic;rQUl•,mow,ccw 
Ula 
l,,lf1AlO~JtOU..lol'C~OI.C":toM:ATINf 
~VAc:IJ.T~tlm. 

GATEWAY STATION 
Newark CA 

OATE:~/2'9/IS 
_U,,\J~lfl3-177 

0 
INTEGRA L 
'-La h 1ih\1 1t I l l ~ • 

6-PLEX REAR ELEVATION 
C&1CMr&,,h m1iiv,.\&ihifi ~Wi lfl •ICir 

6-?l.EX FRONT ELEVATION 
(&,dl.i,J&itJ:i'i.t1N.W1u1v,JIICN~fri.h1 ~&ii, II• • !~17 

-~f.~~~~ =~""-'- -- '- '"'" ' """'-

!UVAnCIH HOC:HTS $HOWW >JI f81;>1,4 ,1DJ.la'"1' 1N~ CWe 

\. 

I
Enllllcm«lnllM 

UA FLATS 6-PLEX ELEVATIONS B _
11100

A_4.2 



/-- , 
}_£,_!Lz. 7 Q: ,,,~I 

I - ~I -'<--' 

I ' __ t I 
II [Ill ,---, ,---, '11n I I 
!I _,._ ___ .J..._\__ , w--· i 

1 I I \ J 
\ I \ --r
\ I \ I 
\ I I 
\ 1,.c,.,c;;O<GE\ I 
\ I "~"M \ I 
\ I \ I 
II II 
V V / 

~ 

I 
~ 

!_~_ ~JC::::! ' 
~ ''" -0 

rg-=,, o 
( j_l ' 0~11"C ,oOM 

g1 ;1 

. ,.,,,,.,.. I 

Do " - LI' '"'"""= I \ = ,- . : """'' 1 
' . i@ ~ n~ I 

,, -~ ~i 
~! I ~11 ~-~ II L 

FIRST LEVEL 

OOOF 

woe JOJ--i--
.,,~~~~'.:' ~

' 
"" ' 

"" 111, 
"" -

ID 
OEOl<OOM.l ,~,,,,4 

-, 

l<Jtu"''°" ,o"~.F" 

SECOND LEVEL 

- ID 
ROOF 

,,,,,,. I ,w,oo,.,, 

DlDI 
~ 

PLAN 1 
2,491 S.F. WITH BONUS ROOM 

2,345 S.F. TOTAL 

GATEWAY STATION 
Newark CA 

OAlE:S/29115 
_UAJOB#IJ.177 

0 
INTEGRA 

URBAN 
t.~.7¥ .. ~ .. ~ 
<,"'"""•'°"'"'""\': 

ROOF 

~I 
,C n""';'./)'.~"1~1 
· ,ilD ___dO: 

~I 

I 
·'&'/8[,~ ,,,,,,,. 

L:: - - __c ,~:;:;~ 

ROOF 

THIRD LEVEL 

Enllllornonllal 

~ 
UA 35'X55' ALLEY LOADED ISt,oolno. 

FLOOR PLANS AS.Cl 



~ ~ < 
.:·.o· ·..o· ,r-<GLJ 

"'--1 

ro•~ 

\---1 \---1 
\ I I I 
\ I \ I 
\ I \ I 
\ I \ I 
I I I 

\ /~.o;i:;}:,":?e \ / 
\ I \ I 
II II 
V V 

~ 
... - £,:\~ 
11,--,, cl, ·t, o· 

I. ·1 L_JJ. '":':.~?'·'" .. ·.. . 

~

'"~'00". (1, ,., a· 'f& 

"< -- I 

J -
'<! 
{-- " 

1[ 

FIRSTlfVfL 

-r1 
;rn, I 

i 

~ 
C 

~I 

~I 
~ 

ty1jl' lv/11 

0 

ID 

D 
rn!O ¥ 

If~ 
ll~-r ,mro=, Ii ,,~,,, ..• 
'Jf) 
~, 

SECOND LEVEL 

I 

PLAN 3 
2,671 S.F. TOTAL 

GATEWAY STATION 
Newark CA 

OAresr.,ws 
UAJOa•13·117 

0 
INTEGRAL 

o·RBAN 
ARENA 

''""··""' ··--.. ~ 

a .,rnoooM, ornOOOM,~ ·:_ I" 
~ -.. ,. ... ,,~ '··:'.""' rn 
IIDLJ Du 1-uo1I 

THIRD LEVEL 

OPT.MSTJt.O&l 

UA 35'X55' ALLEY LOADED 
FLOOR PLANS 

Erul•lomoolSol 
S!\ocloo. 

AS.2 



/'~~~~~~~~--"''"''"'~~~~~~~~{ 

_....2M 

FE:q\ ___ : IIL I ,~II 1

' 
1 

. ! L_ ' / 

1---1 

' r 
' r 
' r 
' r \ r 

/2.cARC>.WJ;E\ / 
I >M~M \ I 

\ I \ I 
II \/ 
V V 

±Q." 

" r , - I ~, I 
. u- i 

!i 
I 
I 
1, 

, ·I _J i 

I 

I 

;1 ~1 

- ·1 aEOROOM ~ i 

l I &L 1 ~ID ~ Ii ! 
,-~ 

FIRST LEVEL 

[f '---w 
l!IDul D '.l CJI!Jj 

i0Dft00M eio,oOM 
"·"""" ,.,.,,. J 

~1-r~1 

,_K_,~ .. ·L 
= "" 

IIAT><llQ 

(?-<:) 
r)_2J 

10':o. 00 
r---r ll~rlG ROOM 
L....._J .... ~ •. , 

[fil ~ 
.BQQ!'. 

SECOND LEVEL 

PLAN 2 
2,027 MAIN UNIT TOTAL 
2,710 TOTAL WITH APT. 

GATEWAY STATION 
(J 

!ti.~~~·-~~.~~ 
Newark CA 

OATE:5/:29115 
UAJOif 13,171 

URBAN 
ARI=N~ 

Hi'""'""'"""·"" 

1 •00F I 

w.g~.'.{~~~f" 0 

IAASTE~,~~:':°M t 

THIRD LEVEL 

,; 1•atillomenlSGI 
~ UA 35'X55' ALLEY LOADED Shoolno. 

, ... , FLOOR PLANS I AS.1 



-.,,,,-] 
,._ 
-f.l\T.], 

!-'!-~ 

PlAN 1 FRONT ELEVATION ,-mo .... umt bt1 ,, • . ,w PlA.N 2 FRONT ELEVATION 
CLJ.~i-:.hll :.ekt, 11• ~ 1"" 

tMTfRW,S l1S.T1 .FARMrlOUSEJCP.AR3MAN 

l'v.OC:l!tllr,OV.,TtltlnUIOllw.it.l.l'Wl:ffANO DII.M. 
CColfNl'~Dl1EllrClfl'l'fOlimllrfN.~Nl!JllllW. 
<lfilOa:llfJ,/TIC),l,lft)J,CCflffl~r1l,141,.f! ~ . 
~COlll'DM!Oft.»ONl:L!tt:or:I. 
t,CrOl;ltw.'1<(1'!1~~.vt.Nli.rvm.. 
~COl.l,Ud.1,Ta(~Nl)I Wle>ITICMOT,11,:1( 
Ar l'I.COIIUNE 
\WW..!WOOP,'/.WC1 
Mltl.~lfmwacoa~~. 
~.-.fl'Tnll"O!l1'0c:twtoA:.llWl,WJilEJAl.~CWPAI\T<Wl.l.. 
l'AWTt!ll'OIIG.'AClll.J'l'O ~CeoitA111ff lo'!O'illtl.ollW.W'l'T,1t 

'"""""""' .tlflALM~~G.l.tACICOCil'l:tll'l'iNl\!MlCW 

""' ~t:i..wA'!c.l'r rcMAl.lll!Mla~~ 

GATEWAY STATION 
Newark CA 

0Al!!:Sn9/l,S 
VAJ0! » 13-177 

lNTEGRAL 
C.::"J(t l',1\Hlil11:I> •

URBAN 
~.:.I.~~~ 
C«\, ... ._C.w,..i.,,hio 

, L IUJlt+1H l.ll<Al.t1'1 ·---

-osr] 
·=::1. i ......... ~, 

,.,.=--J 

PLAN 3 FRONT ELEVATION 
- I • • ~ 

' ·:·1. 

UA 35'X55' ALLEY LOADED 
ELEVATIONS 

Enll!lomotliSol 
Shectn::o. 

AS.3 



1-------, 
I 

I 
I Dll 
I 
I 

I 

~ D''I ~t J 'l.:'...:.'l·T 

~. 'I ,1! I 
I -

I 

I 
I 

I 

L _______ _J 

THIRD LEVEL 

.J.2.::Q'' r---

1-------, _,-
• 
~ 
·1 i 

' ,, 8DIJ]· i ~-~ - I I[ v, . , , ) 
1 

Cl Game/Flex ,.J 111 

~

1 

•• ,6~ 1='-·I, I .· .. t~11 o01 

rm --lh1 "' '" ,- i=J I I .. j 
l@:J / C1 r I ,,. . . .. 
7'Rfi/l ,, ,-., .::ii1f':"7lrs::7lil b :i! ·~,~~ 

I~ c-i n, 
·-~ \/I 

! l__Ji1:,,.li D I 
I 

. flLL_JJI I~· I 11 1/-\1 0 P"' 
-1-............l '-------....... ' !....'fil!L 

+2--1 

I ~ Ef"-----1--" 

L _______ _J ~ LL---~--
SECONDLEVH FIRST LEVEL 

G....,,,-,«,06.\\c,1", ,01,,.,, 

PLAN l SUMMARY 
3BR I 2.5 BATH I FLEX RM. I OFFICE I "CALIF. RM." 
PLAN l , 2,299 S.F. 

GATEWAY STATION 
G •. --- ~~:~~ uA 35'X50' FRONT LOADED rt!~~.nlSel Newark CA 

OAl0:~/29/lS 
UAJO!l • l:l-177_ n~.:::.e.~.~.~L :.~':,::·:.:·':';:t..i::.:: et> FLooR PLANs A6.0 ........ ·....... .:;·-:..· ------------



,-------1 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
~. i 

,-------1 
I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 
I 

I 

I 

I 

OJ',/'<;:', 

DI 

EE Great _ 

D 
!7~~. q,8 1p 

n ,".,-"7, 
- - -

EBJ n 
\ J' ' .. ' 

D .. ck 

~ 

_______ _J L _______ _J 

35'-0" f ' o, '"'· rn• 7-0' f 
~ ~I ~ I . 

'1' ~ D· 

1 r-::;- 1' § 
. 'tnr--· I ' II''\ ,'' _,( I :J'! 
, 1dU,!'.:. ~ =~ 

~ : ~ ! i .. ·=D, 
Apartment L..J 

1 

1E 
~I ;1 )'II '"' 

1-· -11 Ill 1l 
1.
1~!\1~11 I
'· Ml' I I'~ ih ,,,,( :11 
1l-i11~1 

1 11 ,o u r~J 
q"'I I I 
~ --~ _J 

THIRD LEVEL 
SECOND Ll:Vl:l FIRST LEVE!, 

"'"' '"'""' I'• ·-~ 

PLAN 2 SUMMARY 
3 BR/2.5 BATH +APT. (IBR/1 BATH/LIV) 
PLAN 2, 2,027 S.F. 
APARTMENT, 514 S.F. 
TOTAL, 2,541 S.F. 

GATEWAY STATION 
~.

URBAN efy ' u: 35'X50' FRONT LOADED 1·\~~1
~~r;:.nis., Newark CA 

OATSSl2'/IS 
.Y!'_!Q!_l_,:i-m 

ARENA 
!_'.'.1,!,,~ 5~. ~.~~ i:,:,,~ii·:::;.:,::~;;:.i:: ,.,. FLOOR PLANS A6, 1 



I I 
Kfil 

1

1'1TilO I 
11011, I 
~ 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

L _______ _J 

THIRD LEVEL 

1-------1 
I 

"' . ':, "" . 
IDCl,a.:J] Br 4/ . Jf 

Opt...Y2!Y.m ~ -1~r1· ''tlll 
@ 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
L _______ _J 

SECOl>ID LEVEL 

PLAN 3 SUMMARY 
4 BR I 2.5 BATH I "CALIF. RM" Deck 
PLAN 3, 2,305 S.F. 
Cal;!. Rm Deck, 191 S.F. 

GATEWAY STATION 
Newark CA 

DAIE:5/29/\5 
~,'_0111:l-171 

u 
INTEGRAL 
''''"' ~,u_,·, 1,,e, 

' _l - . ··r~, 
J 1- ~ §I 

., 

I ffi!~o 
llii,g_ 771~ 
... , .. ,,. b 

I~. I ll,'#k4e'.7!,. ti ~I 

/\_1\ 1\ I\ 

. lrll ~I 

Ll \1.ur~·1D1i 
CJ I ~1 . F'L,.__ ,, 

,_ 1::iJ 
FIRST LEVEL 

Enlillom011ISet URBAN 
ARENA 

~ 
UA 35'X50' FRONT LOADED l1h•otno. 

FLOOR PLANS l A6,2, -



PLAN I FR.ONT ELEVATION 

-.] 
,.] 

- z, 

?!AN 2 FRONT ELEVATI_QN 

GATEWAY STATION 
Newark CA 

u ... 
0.:Jfl~G~ 

MA.Tfttt.:.S llSTi ,MMHOU~/CW'l'SMI\N/AGW JAN 

:tm ai.m ,U.,T!~ OO!Mllt~lFl.'CliJ.'O t,,/,ll 
aJltljrao.utDMOUCll''10illlOY?M.lOC.WCMIIIMU; 
Jl,OW1£1i'T~.o.a:t,>1n ~t~Clotn. 
~JCCU"Q::j11¢1'1'~AOO', 
WCICO I IUO!rl:N.rJCO'lll~AI~ blD.1 
1"10t0ectW\::.o.rc.:~P11,11o1i'lfCEUUr1CW1:1 111U1 
... ,/11.0QOI~ 

..WT!,W!MlQVM,,,Ma. 
hl'P~ff.>11f!T~w,I)(~ 
' -"'lll(.O~"'CQll7t(l ,111,WUIL,UM:!1AllOl.'l'Uil~ 
M!tlftl/'IMetACO,,lllCQt~AAOfrl'a.Ro.:...WTA:. 
DECl(~y 
M!l'.tl.~~~DDM:l~Tlf~ 
11~:;. 
nt!IICI.U!MCM'l'!t'IUIIU4.IM$0!¥~ 

-]··· 

-=r=:-] 
j.q.~ 

e~ 3 FRONT ~!;VATION 
,~ ~mi' A.11i.£tf• 0 IC6 

URBAN 

~b:;~~ 

':\ 

UA 35'X50' FRONT LOADED 
ELEVATIONS 

&llll:amor.ts.et 
Shee!no. 

A6.3 



I 
!--

---------------- -

- I I-
i LOT:1,526 SFAi·~1 LOT:1,526 SF . i . LOT:1,268 SF I, LOT:2,093 SF 

, 2 , 3 , l!li!lll"'"'~L 4 

I · \ 1\i !\A /i\\ A
1 

i A61 ;: U6 -LJJ y D[ 
I I r----=- :II 

,--, ,··--, 
I I \ I 
I I I I 
\ I \ I 
\ I \ I 
\ /,'°"'"'""'\ I 
\ I "· \ I 
\/ II 

I 

I::=:: L! --- It: 

V 
··~1 \"""-,';I·.. ;,o~" [II I I ; 

11 '~, 
I I 

\i D ~JD 
0 

~ oJ!1!1j 
1§. ~1 

_l 

.J__ _J 
'I I ; i ---- ------~ 

J_ 

PLAN 3 
1ST FLOOR 

PLAN 2 
lSTFLOOR 

UA CLUSTER TYPICAL a.PACK CONFIGURATION 

GATEWAY STATION 
Newark CA 

PLAN 1 
1ST FLOOR 

"'llilLJRBAN 

PLAN 4 
1 ST FLOOR 

Erllmemon1Set 
lh0<>loo. 

D~lS:S/29115 
~·1'7 

(; 
INTEGRAL 
'.::..:~·~."!''·' 

AREN.A: ~ ==: ~-~~~~~~'-'--UA CLUSTER TYPICAL 8-PACK I A7 .o 



';--------'\-

I ~ 
! >;,.-

;1 

r--------""'·c· ------~ r~I ,,, ~ 
+r~===~~~~~, I 

I 

-I II I I I 
I I \ I 

I I I 
I I I 

\ /2-CAR!.lAIIAf) / 
\ I ,.,,,,..,. \ I 
\ I \ I 
II \/ 
V V 

JI 

I 

r!l Jlv-f>ia/· 

=r=111acr /~-· 
~ ''8mt.r' l' 

s--
t: 

·'1'· • 
>C--------

L:2i ,,~.,,. I 1,.m,· 

- I ·I' C 

__ _J _ __:__, 

PLAN l 
l ST FLOOR 
359 S.F. 

GATEWAY STATION 
Newark CA 

OME:0/29/IS 
UAJ05• 13""7 

\O~ 

I /' 
ii' , \~.~::: ,tl D 
:(f_j [561 (1 ! :,I 

lQQJ ~' 
""~.''.;;,'.~o"' 

lMIIG,OOM 

~ 1/118JL....D..:J 
;----i 

ffi[IB 

B Jl 
"~"·" 

2ND FLOOR 
575 S.F. 

PLAN l 
1,540 S.F. TOTAL 

(; 
INTEGRAL 

•

-URBAN 

:°'R.fNA: 
'·"'·"'''~ ''''·"""" 

L 

j SEDl<OOMl 

_L, 

,._.,,,~ 

~===--s=----LJL_jl 
i •oo~ 

?J:! 

3RD FLOOR 
606 S.F. 

uA CLUSTER PLAN 1 FLOOR 1r~,~~i."1101 

PLANS A7.1 



3 ·.a· / 

~/ . i 

_J_I -n 
• ~ 71 

,---, ,~1 I 
C I H ~ 

' -

I 11~ ";, 
L..',J 

h " ;, 
L.J L..',J "-

;I 

I I / 
I I / 
I I 

I I 
I I / 

1,.o.,.a,,,.;) I 
I ,..,,,,~ \ I 

I I 
\I 
V 

r~ 

=-dl[r ~ 0) ,io,ooM o1 

""-- "" ';\'!;.~~! 

l=r 
~ 

,a,o, 

~-
, ___ _ 

"?I 
'Oj 

PLAN 2 
1ST FLOOR 

GATEWAY STATION 
Newark CA 

OAlE;M'l'/10 
UAJO!#l,l-177 

iffl! 1'.'1 A1 n!!iu------ =-i 

~1~;1: 

D ~ 
~~ i ~ -0':;:,.:~· 'I' 

I_J) I\ 1l 
, - .- :I 

-~ ~ ii 

l/'11;~~~~" 

2ND FLOOR 
888 S.F. 

PLAN 2 
1,705 S.F. TOTAL 

(J 

U:\~,:\~:~-~~ 

i~ 

il]l_J 
0 
0 

~
w--1 
~ MJ\S7ESS00a00M JG ,,_,,,, .• 

~~~:~~~ 
~,,,,.,,,, .. ~,.,., .. M,,j ______ •ea=, 

,09, 

~ 

3RD FLOOR 
449 S.F. 

uA CLUSTER PLAN 2 FLOOR 1=~~i.nlSol 
PLANS A7 .2 



f ,~ r ------------=·'·,:.___·· ~ 

-m 

ti ·1 

~ 

, , , , , 
\ / lllr~ 

1= 

PLAN 3 
1 ST FLOOR 

595 S.F. 

'."°I " .. ., I -, 
" 71 = "" 

~I 

GATEWAY STATION 
Newark CA 

OAlE:S/29/15 
UAJ0i~l3,-'71 

•=' 

2ND FLOOR 
753 S.F. 

PLAN 3 
1,913 S.F. TOTAL 

V 

l:~,I~:~~~:~.t: 

!OOF 

URBAN 
~.~ •. ~ .. ~.~ -- ~ 

""''"'AT>< 

·=' ill· ' 
"""\:Ji~~OOM rn t~-; 

D I itBI 
~ii' 

IIOOl'I 

3RD FLOOR 
565 S.F. 

t;olmomeollol 
LJA CLUSTER PLAN 3 FLOOR IShoeloo. 

PLANS A7.3 



;< 39'.6' 
' , 

I , 3';J 

,tf== -~~~-~· R 

,! 
~i 

t--

I c:;~,/ I 
\ ,._,,...,,, I . 

\ I 
\ I 
\ I 
\ I 
\ I 

I 

C---
1 

L------~:~ 
';';~;'.;. 

D 
'i1 

I 
I 

{_JD 
-~ DI' (~.): 

~ "~::~:.~.;'" "''",~~.~~,., 

I II u' 

11

. I I rn~J II LI II~ .. 9 l_j -- Jl1Eilii~·,
1~. ~~-::r1 _11_ 

~1-------~~--, ___ _ 
· -~- -

PLAN 4 
1ST FLOOR 
869 S.F. 

GATEWAY STATION 
Newark CA 

DATB5/201'5 
_U,',_J(J_0~_!3-!Z?" 

,om j 

,~,, I =-_j ~-[]~ 
1
8111, I OF ""'°"' Ill I I' """ 

'b; W~L---rnn i 
~

' ' 
I 

!IATHi 

Q_O 

LI IIOj·:1.!5,/,7'1 

n i- =1·1u-1 
!Jd 1 .__ ~ 

!OOF ·1 

j 

~Q 
DIGJrj 

I 
':,\';;c" ' 

[J 

Oll~tiO 
m !OOf 

=, 

2ND FLOOR 
788 S.F. 

PLAN 4 
2,159 S.F. TOTAL 

~" 

,,--~-URBAN U ARENA'. 

,.~,2}~:~.t~ __ ,_:-_ -~1~ 

,.,,,,,~·.,-,, 

,oo, . 

3RD FlOOR 
502 S.F. 

'Entltlomootso, et, UA CLUSTER PLAN 4 FLOOR shootoo. 

'""" PLANS A7 .4 



MAJ!RIMS ~T, ~AAMHotJSEJCIVITS.V.AN/AGIW.u.N 

~r:l.lltNr~l«D'ft111~WilU.~-~~ 
CVJt>r,~tafJ!ICJII/O'll:Cttl~ZfoC.AAC!l'lnf 
M'O~rl~itC~~1'Afl;:~f~. 
A!l!'Nl.:.(CQ\llf(WllllN~"~ 
l"IJCOG~iVIQCCIIUUAt~U0.1. 
WCCOCCIWl(l,'$AT~E~ae~rttW1ewa~11'1'1 

""°""" YWl'l.~FMIIU. 
IIUA~ tmt'IOOCA:~~~ 
l'AWWJ~"CO.l'CIAU.bUIHI/Ulltf.C.tar.ffA~ 
,Al.ll'O,~=-l'DOl(Cl'LtTIYfAl!Q,IICN'IAl..wr:!7/11. 
D(Q(~= 

MCTA:_1:M:,'l),DDA«l~C:IN,~I DCIDICNnti.T.\ICICW 

= 
,.-U:C:~NOIIT!'C'NUL~,""1tl!S. 

PLAN 1 FARMHOUSE 

PLAN 3 FARMHOUSE 

GATEWAY STATION 
Newark CA 

CAT!:5/,i!,ti, 
UA:oe.1 1.).117 

· PLAN ·2 -FARMHOUSE 

------------f 
-.] 
=--l 

- ___!.(!,~$.. 

!.O_cuuw.,. 

PLAN 4 FARMHOUSE 

o -~~w~~ INTEGRAL ...... ~ ...... .. 
t.1.,r.,., , ,..,11!1<:• . ,1,11<.i11uu1,mn,.,.,. 

-IEn:lflcmcnl~t 

UA CLUSTER ELEVATIONS _,.,.,A.7 .5 



TAAIL {CANOIOATE. P.Olt 8AYTltAll STATIJS) 
20' WIOf MUtTI·U$E l1.AII.. 

SEE SHfET 1..-07 FOR AOOmOl'W. 
SEcnON ANO LOCATION tNFOiWATICN 

---GATEWAY STATION~~& -~~ 
UA..011/ 12-079 

~ 

~ 

u 
I 

! Enf llemcn!Ser 
!SM11fr,o. ':, .• •• OVERALLSITEPLAN . L-01 



PLANTING LEGEND 

TRfES 

""' ...... 

SHRUBS 

---- · 

·~ -

,~ --

VINES MIO ESfAl.lfRS 

BAY fRlENOLY I.ANDSCAn PAA.CTICES A 1NCO~RATION 
..... tl . UIHOC.oi.t«fM.rMW/OMl'IMIULIII-MI- IICl"(i, •1Ayt1,C,,~\llt"""""'°~~,O,/'O- MO,t,WO.. 

=.::.-·--ftCUMIOITNtl,Oll!,IOO&tll~'46f,O,,S~ -0,-<-1••~-o•))lll'!OlTlf!IIQltlQlr010iloiffl --~,w.ia--"'llitf ... O," __ .,.. -MI----IO---~--. ,. ___ Ci&« ...... ._ ___ ... .......,, •• _ 

,aoo-~..,.••~-...ritic_oo __ t.0--·n.~00--..... coa•-..•-.-----•,-ai.cwr, 
-OOICOOIIOCIUIION-4'~...CD,,~-loOUIC 4 ..all'UIII.IOOC•-~-. ""'"'••--->lf-l'«ltO!Ol_inl_,..,.ce, 

FENCE & WALL NOTES ..... 

GATEWAY STATION~ - ~~j 
UAJOa • 12-0Tf 

PLANTING LEGEND AND NOTES ,~.., 
L-02 

\ 



PATIO TREES II I . . H'. 

WGEPARK'ffi!ES 

PAAr:NAY !IUlB OUT 

~ SHADETREE.5 i PAAK\"IAYSTR!:ETTREES f S' W.DESIDEWAU: 

i 
i 
i 

1 
~ CONCEPT DETAILS 

• OUTOOOR El<!RClSE 

~ 
TABLE .. DlJMO!U6<,60ae- · r - - • 

~ - _ . ; 
'BENO! - OUMOi.<460.60?.9 OUTOCCR EXERC'CS: 

[IJl_:I=] 
niTT7l 

Sl'Ea OVERH:.AO TREWS 

1m rn 
NOTE: COMMUNITY "ARK OWNED A.'ID MAINTAINEO-SY HOA 

OVfRr!EAO: SHAOE STR1..ICTlru: 'Wl1H PLAYGROUND 

---GATEWAY STATION~~~~1 Els.;;,;2 UA.105 • 12-07'1 ~ 

PlANT1NG LEGENO ~'AMI 

·==...- -

V',SfS~'.rtlESo'M.ltlS . -·--·· 
§:.1.0USOCQ,'_~ 

I 
'-. 

t>oi,~..,. --· 

:.::c:.. - ::-w:. 
~'t"' 

- --· .. - ~t'" 

-KEY MAP NTS 

COMMUNITY PARK 
CONCEPTUAL LANDSCAPE PLAN 

En!i:lomenlScl 
Shoctt no. 

L-03 



( f \ UA FLATS ~,, 

TRAll{CANOIOATEFORB>.YTAAJLSTATUS)------../-~ ,:.,:41!~~::::: 
SEE >.OD!T!ONA!. lNFOO.V."tlON 

THIS SHEET AND SH::ert-07-----~~1;5~~ 
?ATIOTP.EE 

VERTICAL SHRCB-----4-..:;>,,&:,.,..r.;:' 

W>J.¥:-NA'( -''""'10EPASEO- ---i~~7~t----J~ 
S'OEEP----i.....l~~~~\ ---J~ RESIOENTIAl PAllO 

P~AY STR~ETTREE 

rt , UA CLUSTER 

/ ~-- / 
),~ - -~_;,-

---~-/-- ( 4''"\ 
- ./ 

t_t UA P9 

i'ATIOTREE 

AP.CHITEClVML PATIO 

~· WIOE PASEO WAIY. 

PARKWAY STREET nee 

I '·:,-__ ------i----/ ~ ·v "----J..._l_J_ 
TRAIL (CANDIDATE FOR BAY TRAIL STATUS) 

JSEE SECTION & lAYOUT ON SHEET L-07J 
~ BENCH - OUMOR 460-60RB-'-
~ - ·~ - lYPK:AU.YIPER200'0F,,,' 

• . I - ' ' ·1,. SHAO?"' 
4'WIOEPASE0 

WA'.X'NAY 

PARKWAY TREE 

PASroTR.EE 

,,l_WtOf 
MUlll-i"TRJJl 

I 

( 

"-.. 

.. 
NOTE: FOR Pl>NT Mm'RJAL D£TA1LS REFER 1'0 SHEET L,02 KEY MAP NTS 

---GATEWAY STATION?a~k~! ~~i~~~ 
OATE:I/OA/2016 ~ 
UAJO&II ll-071' ~ 

TYPICAL LANDSCAPE 
ENLARGEMENT PER BUILDING TYPE 

En¥11cmi:n1Sol 
Shc,ctno. 

L-04 ~ 



(_!£_, PARCEL B PARK 

4' WIDE INNER ?ARX WALY:WAY T'YP!CAL 

t''NlOE PARX PfRIMITTk WJ.J..(:i.'IAY TYPICAi. 

B~CH. DUMOR<460-60RS l' J ff 
PfRIMffiR TREES \ I '" 

lAROE PAAK ~EES 

~---.........____--
'--

CONNECTION TOSF SAY TRAIL 

T0T LOTAGES'2·5'Mtl1SAFE ~ 
PlAY SURFACE 

BENCH. DUMOit A.60-60RB 

3'WIOEW~AY 

·;:~r:;- v~---. 
-'l 'WIDEWN.YNIAY • ~ ~ 

--GATEWAY STATION WEST 
Newark, CA 

OATE:lll(Mr.2015 
UAJ08 1 l2-07' 

PLAY STRUCTURE CONC!:PT 

tf ' UA LOFT SPLIT 

?A~A'f STREET TREE 

CONNECTION TO SF BAY TIW.L 

--- - - .........____ -~-- -- - --- - - -·:-....,_ 
' ··,. 

.... / '"s::-------~ ---~ 

NOTE: FOR Pt.ANT MATERl>J.. DETMS REFER TO S~ET L,02 KEY MAP NTS 

•

U R B A N 
ARENA 
1111 ............... ~ , 
r ...... .., •• ,_ .. ,1111 
, , m ,n,,i:, 1,11,,m .11,1 ~ 

TYPICAL LANDSCAPE 
ENLARGEMENTS 

EnllflcmenlSet 
Sheol no. ~ 

L-05 -\ 



(_[' PAR_CEL HHH DOG PARK ( 9'\ 35'X55' PRODUCT 
...J 

COt-:NECTION TO TRAR. 
!CANDIDATE FOR !lAY 'TWL STATUS) 

STEEt. OVERHEAD TRELLIS; 
P'.ANTEO 'MTH \11NES 

S' W!DC PARK WAJ.XWA.YTYPICAl 

!IBQ A.~..A WITH STEEL OVERH;AO 
TREWS; Pl.ANTED WITH YlNES 

SYNTI-!ETIC TURF AREA 

W.GE PARK TREES · 

-,"''--

'"\ 
\ 

\ 

PAAKWAY TREE 

•·v.oew,UON.v ~ 
ALLEY TREE ~ 

RESIOENTIM. FROr,,.'T PATIO , 

PASEOTR!:E 

REAR f'ORCH WITH 
>ill:YACCESS 

I." j' \_ , s,cH ouMo• '60..IORB 

'~ \ ~~~~~~~ 
L AOIRONOM:K CHAIRS 

~ . • • . ' 
1 1 

CENTER COVERED PAWJOl'l 

I .... DOG DRINKING FOUNTAIN 

~ ' ·l, / UNl..EASHING~ 

. I 5YNT><rncru~AA~ 
, -4' HIGH DOG FENCE 

5' WIDe PEiUMffiR WAJ:t.WAY 

- ---J-" . -

--~ ..1..r.,.,-

-~ --~~i~~t~~ I NOTE: FOR PLANT MATER!Al.. CET.NlS REFER TO SHEET !.,.02 KEY MAP NTS TREl.LIS CONc:EPT COG DRINKING FOUNTAIN DOG MYSlRUCTLm: DOG WASTE BI\G OISPENSER SYNTHETIC TURF AAf.A 

---GATEWAY STATION~~ aii;j 
U1'JOZll 12..(11f - -

· CS:I_ • • PARK ENLARGEMENT & TYPICAL 1=:::""'' •, 
~ ENLARGEMENTS L-06 !', 



ENTERPRISE 
ORM' 



( f , PRIMARY ENTRY MONUMENT _ _., ('l" SUBDIVISION ENTRY MONUMENT 

141' 0\/1:Mll HEIGHT 

6X6 WOOD POSTS 

s· THICK CONCRETE O.P 

METAl. SIGNAGC 

STONE Cl.ADDING 

COL0 9:ED CONCRETE !?AS!: 

60' CMlVJJ. HfiGHT 

WOOD POSTS .A.NO 
BOMOS 

2.' CONCRETEOO 

STONf CLAOOING 

COLORED CONClmE BASE 

--- GATEWAY STATION?
0
~~! ~~~~1~;~~ 0A.TE:llfJ4.!2/Jl5 ~ 

UAJ06 I 12~19 

NTS 

·~ ·coNCEPTUAL ENTRY MONUMENTS 1:1:::""" , 
~ i L-08 " 



------=s.--

\ I 



u1rn1!!···"'·•""1 

1 f lH! . 

) 

.;- -

~i(-



~!ii 
' ' ! ,.b11 

l I,! ii ' ' 
Ii 1li / i!il lj / I l•V :111 

'JJ 
·I~ \i ,1 i ,. HI d 
~ ,, ,I .. 

i •' 
"ii ' ~i l -ni 'I -,-\i I : ~ -- , I' ,, c' ' 

~;, - \ i i ~ 1 ;; \~ 
C O !\ ~, (\ 

h lj f' ,, 
!· ' ' Ii ,, 

' i ' y 
i 

------:....._ 

n ''1 Ii'• s~ e,' n ,• ~ 

' 
1TI: 

! • -~- i;~ i! -r !! I , , 1: l ! 
' " ti!i l: l1 i ; -1: I: ~2 . ~:f : Ii I 

' li 1 i 

. I 
!I! 

i i' \ I c; 
ii r 

11 
f 

' 
-

p 

! 
/ a! . :\~• ,I 

; : I 
1!11( 
' 

rn"j l!.EJJ 



I 

---~~--1 
--s.~ 

'' ., 
ih ., 

_, 

r !i; 
gr: 
if ·! 

} .. 

I 
I 

./ 

;,/ 

' ! 

--:,, 
' !, 

I f h ,I! ~I~ 

ii' ·! ~! 
~ 

' ' \ . 
\) 

1 

---:_--'.."--..:... ____ _ 

. ' ' ,,, !~; l!! 
Ii ;-: 

'MO:~' 
,!~ ,. ·"' !, ~! ,~ 

!f 1! 
~l: I;~ : ft!- !•· 

;fl "I' ~,:: 1!• 
' '•l !•' 

0 • 

'l>'t ~·~ ' . " ~1 ~ih d:; i! ~~ ~) ~-·~ 'Uf ·! 0 •1i ,; !! 
,,_ 

~ I ~ ~~ fi "~ > 

f[~~~';fl'';"'[~if;f'r';:1'""'::~~~; 

------
,-iic\j·-

\fil~ 
\\ 
J\ 

\ 



( 

.-r.:f--
\ru, 

\\ 
' ' 

:~·.:. - : . 

lo ! 

\l 



25Z PM 91 
! ARCE'.1. I 

~ 
' 
I 
' 

I 
I 
I 
I 
' 

! 
' 

/ 

Il l 

"""-"' {DmlUJ.an,'f'!lJ..'ll)UW,~ 

IIS 

-
114 

-
111 

-
1" 1ll 

"' 111 

Il l "' 
lll !Cl 

In IOI 

:!, 

l: 

-;-1 

SEE SHEET 7 

~ '1 It 19 

II " ;,;, u 11 ~ 

"" 
ff u 17 

!Cl " " 
75 

'" " " 
7S l: ; 

• • 
'" 

,1 
ll 7l 

IIM , 1 16 7J 

!IS 10 11 72 

,~ 
" I I! 71 I 

62 51 .. " I " 
" " t,i; ~ " 

. 
" 

" l9 " <I 
ll 

>---

" ll " " " 
ll 

,1 " ; " " ; JO " ' " '1 l6 " ll 
l! " 

~ ll lO ) 7 n 1, 

~ " ll ll ll .11 

,. ~ I ll ll I " 
11 

' ' 

~ 

1/----~'tl:Joa:Tll!errtafi.rll'.W: 

... 1AQ1(1StomtlmllA)(I' 

• '"••• • • •• " '"'"'"'""''"'"• • • • • ,. ••• • Tl?'Col,JICl,eNUfllCloUIN: 

~ 

~ 
!;j 

.YP.W.M~la..:o 

~ J!,l:l:»l',W,JIJ:/oCW11C,1,1) 

/',, 
' " f .. ~ ......... ', 

! ' 
:, ·- --- -= -

= 

FIRE ACCESS PLAN 
VESTING TENTATIVE¥AJ' 

TRACT 8099·· 



~ 
; 

S!E!IJGHT 

///_,,---

~~~l~L;Wi / . . - - - - ~ -~ J, 

L/ 

FDo<ol\Y STKttr 

-mti· 

!:F{W., 

l 
i 
l 
I 

\ 

l 
" 
~ 
' ' ' ' / 1 I , 

I 1' I , 
/ I 

; 
~ 

31 5P!t B4 
P,'RCEL 3 

S"1.m 
~ 

(("'"""'....,.,"""""'""" \ I ,,,.,.,,.," .. """"'"" 
T m:tOWlnurn:iwn--................. ...................... lTl'Cli~NLIIICll,N 

"""""':\d ..cct::;ll:C,IO 

~ 

FIRE ACCESS PLAN 

VES~~~~i~;¥AP 



-~II Ill ;!1• <}:\ /.:.:·~,··· ;· ..... : ··-;;·: . '?' u 
•IU ',. •w ,w . , w 

ID· ,' ill! . I'm Ill • 1 11 ·• • . 
, u • .•. . .. _,w "' ·. ,w. . ,w ,w 

:nc ' Ill ·· "' . . . 
'!' .•. ,w ... ,w 

TY.er 8035 : - r"HAS! Z 

• IU '"'· 

1,1 .. 

· m :·1-·u,1 \ .:11 1 m· :n l' · 11:-
-· LOT. to' 

=•= ,., c · 

/" 
.-1--·---:-

TAACT &OBS - Pl-'AS! I 

"' --. 

'! . .... ,,, . 
,w .. 

;u 
l,w 

! 
.. 

f ,IU, J , , w. .. ·,1- ,-" . 
1'U. ' .•. I •11, 

·I 

I.Ofll\l 

,, 

_ ,, r 
I ,, , .... --...,,,• ----

.. . ... Lat11 

n 

I 
;,, 

; 
L, ·1 

~ - -. ·ii 1? 1 
:,--, ~ , FTJMSFmEET _/ i .) 

_ ~ l~ ~,~~ ,,,,, I ·..,,, A' "' " . ti( 
I I K.- /11 - F= · I , ' / 1125 

r ·· t1J::1J ~------CJ--~---------------;;:.----- -""~~ 
M'"tllllZ- '<,~)1-

Sl:CTION A-A ; -;;;;-;-

~~ ,.)' ~) . . .. 00".Il 
~'=- f'IIM._,,..J ! .,,..l,, 1..:1-

si;cno..~cc 
~ 

r "° 1'1 ~"1-1/1 it:M o·• 
wwC;; . 

----------------;:;,-~----~--- -
~~- -:::::::::~ ~ .... ,. 

SECnON S.B '• - • 
~ II 

'f ~- f ·1 ~- r .. ~.: I' .L n ·-~~ 
Sf.CTION D-0 
~ 

uir1.' 

TRA;T itsi .. 

;sHWlo C!lfM,:J,LS 
q112:--01 1s.-oos 

.. ·r~ltCtl. /' 

~~ 

-

.ll!.J_ :: l 
~::1: 
. .. 1J: 'I l s: 1 

l!J'•' 
)II _Jifl / : FMC tcRf'O.mcN 

it'//;,' I S37-0~5.!-00Z-07 

.~~~-

TYPICAL T'!:M10!WI.Y ACCESS ROAD SECTION ~--

iL 

. ,,,, ,,. I 
i i I'.:..! er.\ & l...:.f·1~1 

RrCXOJ:Y ST1!:£T (!ROM TEMPOR.A_!! ~~S RQADTO 'E~IUSE OllVE) 

r. . . . ·:- . . .. 'i t:tr-, '" I .. t· d 
'A' AYENt!E (H\OMH1:,K,.°!:.STRE!TT0FSIB£ED 

~!!C-·--·-·--·-"'" .. ·----=~~~~~::i:r=~~. 

~ 

o-~-c- -ltlffl 
Im-·-o--~-·--·rl!Qt 
• .,.-.OIIIOl-t -1t.UI\IIC-PICII ···-~ [IJ -~·-

tn\'IT COUNT ...---· 
TEMPORARY ACCESS PLAN 

VESTING TENTATIVE:tJAP 
TRACT 8099'· 

I!!-=~-=--~ 1=8, 



RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
NEW ARK AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SIGN A 
COMMUNITY FINANCING AGREEMENT WITH DUMBARTON 
AREA2,LLC 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Newark that the Mayor of the City 
of Newark be and is hereby authorized to sign a Community Financing Agreement with 
DUMBARTON AREA 2, LLC, said agreement on file in the Office of the City Clerk. 



COMMUNITY FINANCING AGREEMENT 
BY AND AMONG THE CITY OF NEWARK AND DUMBARTON AREA 2, LLC 

REGARDING PROVISION OF CERTAIN PUBLIC FACILITIES AND SERVICES FOR 
THE DUMBARTON TOD PROJECT SPECIFIC PLAN 

This Agreement dated , 2016, (the "Effective Date") is 
entered into by and among the City of Newark, a California municipal corporation (hereinafter 
"City") and Dumba1ton Area 2, LLC a Delaware limited liability company ("Developer"). City 
and Developer are, from time to time, hereinafter referred to individually as a "Party" and 
collectively as the "Parties." Developer is the current owner of certain real prope1ty property 
known as the Gateway West Prope1ty (as defined below). This Agreement is entered into on the 
basis of the following facts, understandings and intentions of the Pmties. 

RECITALS 

A. In September, 2011, the City Council adopted the Dumbmton Transit Oriented 
Development ("TOD") Specific Plan ("Specific Plan"). The real property that is the subject of 
this Agreement is the entirety of the approximately 205-acre Specific Plan area, which is 
depicted on Exhibit A to this Agreement ("Specific Plan Property"), excluding certain 
governmental property located therein. The Gateway Parcel is owned by Developer and is 
depicted and legally described on Exhibit B to this Agreement and is refe1Ted to herein as 
"Property." It is the intent of the City, through the Specific Plan, to provide a comprehensive, 
long-term plan that guides future development of the Specific Plan Property in concert with and 
in response to the needs of the mm'ketplace. The Specific Plan establishes a policy and a 
regulatory framework to guide future development, including allowable land uses, development 
regulations, design guidelines, necessary infrastructure improvements, and an implementation 
plan to direct future development of the Specific Plm1 Property. 

B. In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (Pub. Res. Code 
Sections 21000 et seq.) mid its Guidelines (C.C.R., Title 14 Sections 15000, et seq.), as each is 
amended from time to time ("CEQA") (defined herein), City certified as adequate and complete 
an Environmental Impact Report ("EIR") for the Specific Plan, and the development envisioned 
within the Specific Plm1. The vm·ious property owners may propose to plm1, develop, construct, 
operate and maintain a mix of residential, commercial, entertainment, retail, office, recreation 
and related uses and structures on the Specific Plan Prope1ty, as more particularly described in 
the EIR ("TOD Project"). 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises contained 
herein and other consideration, the value, legality, and adequacy of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 

1.01 Agreed Upon Developer Obligations In order to implement the Specific Plan 
and to contribute to the provision of appropriate public improvements and services, the City and 
Developer hereby agree to the following contributions by Developer related to the TOD Project: 

SMRH:407384540.2 -1-



(1) Developer has agreed to contribute toward the estimated costs of 
the anticipated TOD Project-wide improvements, including the City's planning, design, right of 
way acquisition and construction of the Central Avenue Railroad Overcrossing. Developer's 
contribution shall be payable by Developer to the City at the time of, or prior to, the issuance of 
each building permit for development of new residential units on the Prope11y, at the rate and in 
the fixed amount of Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00) per dwelling unit (without 
adjustment). 

(2) Developer hereby consents to the imposition, creation, or funding 
of a duly-established financing district (including but not limited to a Communities Facilities 
District pursuant to the Mello Act) on the Property to fund services or facilities, or shall arrange 
for an alternative permanent annuity to provide equivalent revenue. The maximum amount of the 
assessment, special tax, or annuity shall not exceed Two Hundred Twenty Dollars ($220.00) per 
year per residential housing unit, which amount will be adjusted annually to reflect inflation, 
based on changes in the United States Bureau of Labor Statistics Cost of Living Index for the SF 
Bay Area. 

1.02 Amendments of this Agreement. 

This Agreement may be amended from time to time only upon the unanimous 
written consent of City and Developer. 

1.03 Construction. As used in this Agreement, and as the context may require, the 
singular includes the plural and vice versa, and the masculine gender includes the feminine and 
neuter and vice versa. 

1.04 Recordation. The Clerk of the City shall record, within ten (! 0) days after the 
Effective Date, a copy of this Agreement in the Official Records of the Recorder's Office of 
Alameda County. Developer shall be responsible for all recordation fees, if any. 

1.05 Governing Law. The interpretation, validity, and enforcement of the Agreement 
shall be governed by and construed under the laws of the State of California. 

1.06 Entire Agreement. This Agreement may be executed in multiple originals, each 
of which is deemed to be an original. This Agreement, including these pages and all the exhibits 
(set forth below) inclusive, and all documents incorporated by reference herein, constitute the 
entire understanding and agreement of the Parties. 

1.07 Signatures. The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that 
they have the right, power, legal capacity, and authority to enter into and to execute this 
Agreement on behalf of the respective legal entities of Developer and City. This Agreement 
shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the Parties hereto and their respective successors 
and assigns. 

1.08 Successors. This Agreement is intended to run with the land and bind 
Developer's successors-in-interest in the Property. Upon transfer, any success-in-interest shall 
be deemed to have accepted the terms and conditions of this Agreement and shall be deemed the 

-2-



"Developer" and any transferring Developer shall be released under this Agreement for any 
obligations arising after the date of transfer. 

1.09 Exhibits. The following exhibits are attached to this Agreement and are hereby 
incorporated herein by this reference for all purposes as if set fmth herein in full: 

Exhibit A Depiction of Specific Plan Property 

Exhibit B Legal Description of the Gateway West Parcel 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

-3-



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first 
hereinabove written. 

"City": 

CITY OF NEW ARK, 
a municipal corporation 

By: 
Alan L. Nagy, Mayor City of Newark 

"Developer": 

DUMBARTON AREA 2, LLC, 
a Delaware limited liability company 

-4-



CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT CIVIL CODE§ 1189 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

State of California 

County of ()yo, ~e., 

On .TanuarY) RI 2o I I,, before me, _ __,A~n~n~l~fv~~'-,-"'YM>=/-~e.,___f)'-77__,(\~!~o~-JrJ ... I.X.!4~V'f--_,_6~u,..JiCL-Uh~c~ 
iiate Here /nseltNfme and Title oftWOfficer 

personally appeared __ _,./""')"a'-'44'_,_m~e~~N~-~c-.h~a..~h~,~· hc.w.e ____________ _ 
Name(s) of Slgner(s) 

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person,(,;Ywhose namE\(5) is/are 
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/si'le/41,ey executed the same in 
hisJl'ler,'ti'leir authorized capacity.(ies), and that by his/llerf!l,ei1 signature(.s)-1'.,n the instrument the person.(sr, 
or the entity upon behalf of which the perso~cted, executed the instrument. 

ANNE NGUYEN 
Commission;; 2119883 
Notary Public • California ~ 

Orange County '!: 
Comm. Ex Ires Au 14, 2019 

Place Notary Seal Above 

I certify under PENAL TY OF PERJURY under the laws 
of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph 
is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

Signature_,_!],=c4,="1.-''---?1..,i-1L.."::..4,< .,,------::_ _____ _ 
SignatureoefJotary Public 

-----------------------------OPTIONAL--------------------------~ 
Though this section is optional, completing this information can deter alteration of the document or 

fraudulent reattachment of this form to an unintended document. 

Description of Attached Document 
Title or Type of Docurrent: C1>rob"uoi-h1 6oooce.Aav:etro611'¢ument Date: _________ _ 
Number of Pages: lP Signer(s) otti'er Than Nam<\d Above: ____________ _ 

Capacity(ies) Claimed by Signer(s) 
Signer's Name:------------ Signer's Name: ___________ _ 
, : Corporate Officer - Title(s): ______ _ ' Corporate Officer - Title(s): ______ _ 

' Partner - .- Limited ,. ·, General Partner - Limited , General 
Individual Attorney in Fact __ Individual Attorney in Fact 

I , Trustee Guardian or Conservator [l Trustee · Guardian or Conservator 
'. I Other: _____________ _ I I Other: ______________ _ 
Signer Is Representing: ________ _ Signer Is Representing: ________ _ 

§ g SJSQZWJL §b Q ;.;; '" S;GJGkWG, 

©2014 National Notary Association • www.NationalNotary.org , 1-800-US NOTARY (1-800-876·6827) Item #5907 



C~ :1 Specific Plan Boundary 

• 
1 Off-site Improvement Areas --., 

D APN Boundary 

Mop 0 111~: 06-17•2015 

Exhibit A 

SHH/FMC 

Torian 

Dumbarton TOD Specific Plan Area 
GATEWAY STATION WEST 

HELIX t o,_______;;_,650 ~ '--------'Feel 11noh =6501eel Figure 3-2 
Env/ronmenla/P/ann/ng....:~~-----------------------------------..;;;---



Exhibit B 

Legal Description a/Gateway West Parcel 

For APN/Parcol lD(s): 537-0852-009-00, 537-0852-010-(10 and 537-0852-0i1-00 

THE. LAND REFERRED TO HEREIN BEi.OW IS SITUAl l:D IN lHE CITY OF NEWAr-lK IN THE COUNTY or 
/\LAMEDA, STI\TE OF CALIFORNIA /\ND IS DESCRIBED I\S FOLLOWS: 

PARCEL A 

Parcel 1 , 2 and 3. Parcel Map 10391, filed No,mrbor 2. 2015. Mop Bao< 330, Pago 63 and 64, i\lameda County 
Records, 

PARCELS 

·1 hose r.erl,13Jn l,rpiled nori..exolusive easements created, nescrihell, defined and delina:al&d in U1at f'..ertain (~rant 
Dood dalod January 24, 2014, o>;nGulod by Caryl!!, lncorponJtod, a D0lavu1.re corporalin11, succossor by n•orgor 10 
Losllo S::ilt Co,, a Dolawaro corpo,atinn to Durnbarlon Aron. 2. LLC, a Dalav,aro l1mi1od Uab!lity cc1npany, rocordotl 
January 27, 2014, as lnslr,m1ent No, 2014022061. Official Rocordo. 



PLANNING COMMISSION ACTIONS 



CITY OF NEWARK DRAFT 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

_3_1_10_1 N_e_~_~_s_oo_~_g _~_. N_ew_a_~_.c_A_e_45_~_~_,e_6_• _~ _~5_7_~4_3_~_·_FA_X_5_1o_~_m_4_W_5~~~ City Administration Building 

·-/. 

7:30 p.m. 
City Council Chambers MINUTES Tuesday, February 2, 201 6 

A. ROLL CALL 

At 7:31 p.m., Chairperson Aguilar called the meeting to order. All Planning 
Commissioners were present except Commissioner Bridges (personal) . 

8. MINUTES 

8 .1 Approval of Minutes of the regular Planning Commission meeting of 
Tuesday, January 26, 2016. 

Commissioner Nillo moved, Commissioner Otterstetter seconded, to approve the 
Minutes of January 26, 2016. The motion passed 2 AYES, 2 ABSTENTION 
(Aguilar and Fitts). 

C. WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS 

None. 

D. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

None. 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

E.1 Hearing to consider: (1) Approving a resolution rescinding the December 8, 
2015 approval of Gateway Station West, a 589-unit residential project within 
the Dumbarton Transit-Oriented Development Specific Plan area located at 
the western edge of the City, including all associated resolutions and 
motions; (2) Approving a resolution making certain findings and 
recommending City Council Certify a Supplemental Environmental Impact 
Report (E-14-46) to the Environmental Impact Report (State Clearinghouse 
No. 2010042012) for the Dumbarton Transit Oriented Development; (3) 
Approving a resolution recommending rezoning (RZ-14-48) an 
approximately 41 -acre area (APNs 537-852-7) from MT-1 (High Technology 
Park District) to MDR-FBC (Medium Density Residential - Form Based 
Codes) and HDR-FBC (High Density Residential - Form Based Codes); (4) 
Approving a resolution recommending that the City Council approve P-14-



Planning Commission Minutes - Page 2 DRAFT February 2, 2016 

49, a planned unit development and U-14-50, a conditional use permit, for a 
589-unit residential project (Gateway Station West) located within the 
Dumbarton Transit Oriented Development Specific Plan area at the western 
edge of the City of Newark; (5) By motion, recommending that the City 
Council approve TM-14-47, Vesting Tentative Map 8099, to construct 
approximately 589 residential units; and (6) By motion, recommending that 
the City Council approve ASR-14-51, an Architectural and Site Plan Review, 
with Exhibit A, pages 1 through 46. 

Assistant City Manager Grindall gave the staff report. 

Answering Chairperson Aguilar, ACM Grindall stated the Housing Impact Fee 
replaces the Inclusionary Housing requirement and stated the City currently has 
approximately $3 Million in the Affordable Housing Trust Fund. 

Applicant Mark Butler, Integral Communities, 500 La Gonda Way, Suite 102, 
Danville, CA 94526, stated he has read and is in agreement to all conditions in 
Resolutions 1925, 1926, 1927 and 1928. 

Architect Michael Schrock, Urban Arena, 11772 Sorrenta Valley Road, Suite 212, 
San Diego, CA 92121, gave an overview of the project via a brief Power Point 
presentation. 

Answering Corrunissioner Nillo, Mr. Schrock stated there are no public restrooms 
in the proposed park areas and indicated that there will be sufficient power 
provided to maintain electric car charging stations. 

Answering Commissioner Fitts, Mr. Schrock confirmed the public will be able to 
have access to the linear parks; adequate parking is provided for this project; and 
housing pads will be built to meet or exceed all regulatory requirements. 

Answering Chairperson Aguilar, Mr. Schrock indicated that the center park along 
with the surrounding units, would be developed first and the trails would be 
developed last. 

Answering Chairperson Aguilar, Mr. Butler stated each linear park would be built 
contiguous with each development phase and estimated breaking ground early in 
2017. 

Chairperson Aguilar opened the Public Hearing. Since no one from the public 
chose to speak, Chairperson Aguilar closed the Public Hearing. 

Discussion ensued on the infrastructure to the entire Dumbarton Transit-Oriented 
Development site. 



Planning Commission Minutes - Page 3 DRAFT February 2, 2016 

Answering Chairperson Aguilar, ACM Grindall stated the Newark Unified School 
District was involved with the Dumbarton Transit-Oriented Development project 
from the beginning and can accommodate the anticipated school-aged children. 

Motion made by Commissioner Fitts, seconded by Commissioner Nillo to: (1) 
Approve Resolution 1925, rescinding the December 8, 2015 approval of Gateway 
Station West, a 589-unit residential project within the Dumbarton Transit
Oriented Development Specific Plan area located at the western edge of the City, 
including all associated resolutions and motions, (2) Approve Resolution 1926 
making certain findings and recommending that the City Council certify a 
Supplemental Environmental Impact Report (E-14-46) to the Environmental 
Impact Report (State Clearinghouse No. 2010042012) for the Dumbarton Transit 
Oriented Development; (3) Approve Resolution 1927, recommending rezoning 
(RZ-14-48) an approximately 41-acre area (APN 537-0852-007) from MT-1 (High 
Technology Park District) to MDR-FBC (Medium Density Residential - Form 
Based Codes) and HDR-FBC (High Density Residential - Form Based Codes); (4) 
Approve Resolution 1928 recommending that the City Council approve P-14-49, a 
plam1ed unit development and U-14-50, a conditional use permit, for a 589-unit 
residential project (Gateway Station West) located within the Dumbarton Transit 
Oriented Development Specific Plan area at the western edge of the City of 
Newark; (5) By Motion recommend that the City Council approve TM-14-47, 
Vesting Tentative Map 8099, to construct approximately 589 residential units; and 
(6) by Motion, recommend that the City Council approve ASR-14-51, an 
Architectural and Site Plan Review, with Exhibit A, pages 1 through 46. Motion 
passed 4 AYES. 

This item will be heard at the February 25, 2016 City Council Meeting. 

STAFF REPORTS 

G. COMMISSIO 

G.1 

ACM Grindall informed the Fiann· Commission and the Community that the 
City Council will be holding a Worksho on February 4, 2016 at 5:30 p.m. in the 
City Council Chambers to discuss the Civic ter Replacement project. 

Commissioners' Comments 

Answering Commissioner Fitts, ACM Grindall stated he will date the Planning 
Commission at a future meeting on the status of the Dumbarton 



RESOLUTIONNO. 1925 

RESOLUTION RESCINDING THE DECEMBER 8, 2015 
APPROVAL OF GATEWAY STATION WEST, A 589-UNIT 
RESIDENTIAL PROJECT WITHIN THE DUMBARTON 
TRANSIT ORIENTED DEVELOPMENT SPECIFIC PLAN 
AREA LOCATED AT THE WESTERN EDGE OF THE CITY, 
INCLUDING ALL ASSOCIATED RESOLUTIONS AND 
MOTIONS 

(Rres) 

WHEREAS, Integral Communities, has filed with the Planning Commission of the City 
of Newark an application for a 589-unit residential project within the Dumbarton Transit 
Oriented Development Specific Plan area located at the western edge of the City, including all 
associated resolutions and motions; and 

PURSUANT to Municipal Code Section 17.72.060, a public hearing notice was 
published in The Tri-City Voice on November 24, 2015, and mailed as required, and the 
Planning Commission held a public hearing on said application at 7:30 p.m. on December 8, 
2015 at the City Administration Building, 37101 Newark Boulevard, Newark, California; and 

WHEREAS, at the December 8, 2015 Planning Commission meeting, the Supplemental 
Environmental Impact Report did not include a finding of fact and a Statement of Overriding 
Considerations pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Sections 15091 and 15126.6. As such, the 
approval was based on incomplete information and therefore should be rescinded. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission hereby rescinds 
the December 8, 2015 approval of Gateway Station West, a 589-unit residential project within 
the Dumbarton Transit Oriented Development Specific Plan Area located at the western edge of 
the City, with the following conditions: 

a. Planning Commission Resolution Nos. 1918, 1919, and 1920 are hereby rescinded. 

b. The motion to recommend City Council approval ofTM-14-47, Vesting Tentative Map 
8099, to construct approximately 589 residential units, is hereby rescinded. 

c. The motion to approve ASR-14-51, an Architectural and Site Plan Review, with Exhibit 
A, pages 1 through 46, is hereby rescinded. 

Resolution No. 1925 I (Pres) 



This Resolution was introduced at the Planning Commission's February 2, 2016 meeting 
by Commissioner Fitts, seconded by Commissioner Nillo, and passed as follows: 

AYES: Aguilar, Fitts, Nillo and Otterstetter. 

NOES: None. 

ABSENT: Bridges. 

s/Terrence G1indall s/Jeff Aguilar 
TERRENCE GRINDALL, Secretary JEFF AGUILAR, Chairperson 

Resolution No. 1925 2 (Pres) 



RESOLUTIONNO. 1926 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF NEW ARK PLANNING 
COMMISSION MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS AND 
RECOMMENDING THAT THE CITY COUNCIL CERTIFY A 
SUPPLEMENTAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT FOR 
A ZONING AMENDMENT AND OTHER ENTITLEMENTS 
ALLOWING DEVELOPMENT OF A TOTAL OF 589 SINGLE
AND MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL UNITS (GATEWAY 
STATION WEST) ON APPROXIMATELY 41 ACRES (537-
0852-009; 537-0852-010; AND 537-0852-011) AND 
APPROXIMATELY 13.5 ACRES OF DESIGNATED OPEN 
SPACE WITHIN THE DUMBARTON TRANSIT ORIENTED 
DEVELOPMENT SPECIFIC PLAN 

(E-14-46) 

WHEREAS, the City of Newark caused an Environmental Impact Report (State 
Clearinghouse No. 2010042012) to be prepared to assess the potential environmental impacts of 
the proposed Dumbaiton Transit Oriented Development Specific Plan, and 

WHEREAS, the Environmental Impact Report consists of a Draft Environmental Impact 
Report document and a Final Environmental Impact Report document as well as the technical 
appendices, and all comments received by the City of Newark regarding the Draft Environmental 
Impact Report during the mandatory public review period and responses to those comments; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing on August 23, 
2011, and recommended that the City Council certify the Environmental Impact Report (State 
Clearinghouse Number 2010042012) for the Dumbarton Transit Oriented Development Specific 
Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council held a duly noticed public hearing on September 8, 2011, 
and certified the Environmental Impact Report (State Clearinghouse Number 2010042012) for the 
Dumbarton Transit Oriented Development Specific Plan after finding it complete and adequate 
pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); and 

WHEREAS, the Gateway Station West Project ("Project"), which is located within the 
Dumbarton Transit Oriented Development Specific Plan, consists of the construction of 321 
single family units and 268 multi-fainily units on approximately 41 acres (APN No.'s 537-0852-
009; 537-0852-010; and 537-0852-011) and approximately 13.5 acres of designated Open Space; 
and 

WHEREAS, the entitlements requested include Vesting Tentative Map 8099 (TM-14-47), 
an amendment to Title 17 (Zoning) of the Newark Municipal Code and the Official Zoning Map 
(RZ-14-48), a planned development permit, conditional use permit, and an Architectural and Site 
Plan Review; and 

Resolution No. 1926 I (pres 1446-2) 



(E-14-46) 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the requirements of the CEQA, a Supplemental Environmental 
Impact Report (SEIR) has been prepared for the Project, pursuant to Sections 15163 and 15168(c) 
of the State CEQA Guidelines, to analyze and mitigate the Project's potentially significant 
environmental impacts; and 

WHEREAS, through the SEIR, it has been determined that the Project's potentially 
significant environmental impacts specifically relate to impacts associated with air quality, 
biological resources, cultural resources, geology and soils, hazards and hazardous materials, 
hydrology/water quality, noise, and transportation/traffic; and 

WHEREAS, the City has prepared Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding 
Considerations that address the project's significant impacts and represent the City's independent 
judgment regarding the same. The Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations 
attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and are hereby incorporated herein by reference, and; 

WHEREAS, with the exception of certain impacts involving hazardous materials and 
transportation/traffic, pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines Sections 1509l(a)(l) and 15092(b), the 
City finds that these potentially significant impacts can be mitigated to less than significant as 
shown in Table S-1, Summary of Significant Effects, of the SEIR and Section IV(A) of the 
Findings of Fact, and; 

WHEREAS, the City has implemented all feasible mitigation measures for all potentially 
significant impacts, but as stated in Section IV(B) of the Findings of Fact, even after the 
implementation of all feasible mitigation measures, certain impacts involving hazardous materials 
and transportation/traffic will remain significant and unavoidable. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to PRC Section 2108l(b) and State CEQA Guidelines Section 
15093, the City has balanced the benefits of the project against its significant and unavoidable 
adverse impacts related to hazardous materials and transportation/traffic, and for the specific 
overriding economic, legal, social, technological, and/or other benefits associated with the 
proposed project as stated in the City's Statement of Overriding Considerations (Section V of the 
attached Findings of Fact), the City finds and declares that the project's benefits outweigh its 
significant and unavoidable impacts. 

WHEREAS, a Notice of Preparation (NOP), was along with copies of the project files, 
sent to local agencies concerned with the Project and then posted with the Office of the Alameda 
County Clerk on August 6, 2014, and a 45 -day public review period for the SEIR was established 
beginning on August3, 2015 and copies of the SEIR were transmitted to the State Clearinghouse 
(SCH#2014-08-2022); and 

WHEREAS, four comment letters from public agencies and the general public: the 
California Department of Transportation, the Alameda County Water District, Cargill, Inc. and 
Ashland, Inc., have been received; and 

WHEREAS, on February 2, 2016, the Planning Commission of the City of Newark 
conducted a duly noticed public hearing to consider the SEIR for the proposed Project, considered 
all public testimony, written and oral, presented at the public heating, and received and 

Resolution No. 1926 2 (presl446-2) 



(E-14-46) 

8. A Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program ("MMRP") for the Project has 
been prepared in accordance with Section 21081.6 of CEQA, and the Planning Connnission 
reconnnends that the City Council adopt the MMRP, which is attached to the FSEIR (Volume 1, 
Section E) and incorporated herein by reference. 

9. Based on the evidence and oral and written testimony presented at public heatings, 
and based on all the information contained in the Connnunity Development Department's files on 
the project, including, but not limited to, the SEIR, the Findings of Fact and Statement of 
Overriding Considerations, and the City's staff report, the Planning Connnission finds that: 

a. The SEIR was prepared in compliance with CEQA and State CEQA 
Guidelines; 

b. The Planning Connnission has reviewed and considered the information 
contained in the SEIR prior to approving the project; 

c. The SEIR adequately describes the project, its environmental impacts, 
reasonable alternatives and appropriate mitigation measures; 

d. The SEIR reflects the independent judgment and analysis of the City. 

10. Based upon all of the evidence presented and the above findings, the Planning 
Connnission reconnnends that the City Council of the City of Newark certify the Supplemental 
Environmental Impact Report for the Project with Errata and Responses to Connnents and adopt 
the attached (a) Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations, and (b) the 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program. 

The resolution was introduced at the Planning Commission's Februai·y 2, 2016 meeting by 
Connnissioner Fitts, seconded by Commissioner Nillo, and passed as follows 

AYES: Aguilar, Fitts, Nillo and Otterstetter. 

NOES: None. 

ABSENT: Bridges. 

s/Terrence Grindall s/J eff Aguilar 
TERRENCE GRINDALL, Secretary JEFF AGUILAR, Chairperson 

Resolution No. 1926 4 (pres1446-2) 



RESOLUTION NO. 1927 

RESOLUTION RECOMMENDING THE AMENDMENT OF 
TITLE 17 OF THE NEW ARK MUNICIPAL CODE BEING THE 
CITY OF NEW ARK ZONING ORDINANCE BY CHANGING 
THE ZONING OF A SPECIFIED AREA IN THE CITY OF 
NEWARK 

(RZ-14-48) 

WHEREAS, Integral Communities has made an application to the Planning Commission 
of the City of Newark to consider the amendment (RZ-14-48) to Title 17 (Zoning) of the Newark 
Municipal Code and the Official Zoning Map, by rezoning property described as follows: 

"All that portion of real property shown on Vesting Tentative Map 8099 in the City of 
Newark, County of Alameda, State of California as shown on Exhibit A, attached hereto 
and incorporated herein by reference." 

PURSUANT to Municipal Code Section 17.80.050, a public hearing notice was 
published in the Tri-City Voice on January 19, 2016, and mailed as required, and the Planning 
Commission held a public hearing on said application at 7:30 p.m. on February 2, 2016 at the 
City Administration Building, 37101 Newark Boulevard, Newark, California. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Planning Commission, based on the evidence and oral and 
written testimony presented at public hearings, and based on all the information contained in the 
Conmmnity Development Department's files on the project, including, but not limited to, the 
BIR, the Planning Commission's staff report, does resolve: 

a. That the Planning Commission recommends that the Newark City Council amend Title 
17 (Zoning) of the Newark Municipal code and Section 17.44.010 "Zoning Map" thereof, 
being the City of Newark Zoning Ordinance and Official Zoning Map, by rezoning 
portions of property shown on Vesting Tentative Tract Map 8099 from MT-I (High 
Technology Park District) to MDR-FBC (Medium Density Residential-Form Based 
Codes) and HDR-FBC (High Density Residential- Form Based Codes); and 

b. That the Planning Commission has reviewed said zoning and finds it consistent and 
compatible with the objective, policies, general land uses, and the programs of Newark's 
General Plan, necessary and desirable to achieve the purposes of the ordinance and 
proper, fair, and for the best interest of the health, safety, and general welfare of the City 
ofNewark; and 

c. That a copy of the minutes be forwarded to the City Council as a summary of the hearing. 

Resolution No. 1927 I (Presl448) 



This resolution was introduced at the Planning Conunission's Febrnary 2, 2016, meeting 
by Conunissioner Fitts, seconded by Commissioner Nillo, and passed as follows: 

AYES: Aguilar, Fitts, Nillo and Otterstetter. 

NOES: None. 

ABSENT: Bridges. 

s/Terrence Grindall s/Jeff Aguilar 
TERRENCE GRINDALL, Secretary JEFF AGUILAR, Chairperson 

Resolution No. 1927 2 (Pres1448) 









•I m1 
' II Sgf :! ll 

,,, !g' I i,, ~, '\ I!• . !!r B " 

f1 
\- hi! !'.1 , ~ tu1 , I ' ,, i 

L 1 r ll 'ii • 11 : ri ,l !~ i; I~ ! ' ,1::, ·ti f I .,_Ii~~~ ~11 , ... ~I? I •• .. ~ "' Ii :··,11;i;,i .rn~ .. i~ ' , f:,,.,, ]sl ·1:~;~~u - ' ll ~ ~1~ ;:;i I' t 
! ~.''ht ill~ 

; ! ~~ 
' ~, •U!l ~l< iht 

A 't.l!f I il p!! ~; / I! '!• II ll ~b ~ I ,, B ~,, ::> 



,, 

,, ,rm 
ill 

! 
!II rn 
l!n, 
i Ill 
!Im 



u 
D 
u 
D 

,B 
BB 
•o 
~n 
n 
n 
u 
n 
u 
D 
H 
B 
n 
D 
u 
I 
B 
I 
D 
D 
I 
ll 
B 
G 
D 
n 
H 
H 
D ,------!L..J ------u -.. _____ _ 

D ----
8 
n 
H 
II 
D 

.-

t 
1f 

' ! 

J. rnH$ J'JS 

I 

~Q=1~:ltfllJ;;.J:l~ •• 

~---J-0-,-,-+-,-+-,-1-.---lf--•-+-•--t-0~a11:j 





"' 

I . --,.,.,- / .. 

t. /', .. '' • /,9 
;:i ti .. 1! i .. !1 .!!: ••• ,... . ~. 

I 

cJr l ,~ 
•• ~Ii ;, 

!• ' 

:;,--

• 
'.l 
~ 

l 
' ff 
' ' 

ii ~;! 



(P-14-49, U-14-50) 

RESOLUTIONNO. 1928 

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE 
CITY OF NEWARK RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF P-14-
49, A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT, AND U-14-50, A 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, FOR A 589-UNIT 
RESIDENTIAL PROJECT (GATEWAY STATION WEST) 
LOCATED WITHIN THE DUMBARTON TRANSIT 
ORIENTED DEVELOPMENT SPECIFIC PLAN AREA AT THE 
WESTERN EDGE OF THE CITY OF NEW ARK 

WHEREAS, the Applicant has filed with the Planning Connnission of the City of 
Newark an application for P-14-49, a planned unit development, and U-14-50, a conditional use 
permit, for a 589-unit residential development within the Dumbarton Transit Oriented 
Development Plan Area; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Municipal Code Section 17.72.060, a public hearing notice was 
published in the Tri-City Voice on January 19, 2016, and mailed as required, and the Planning 
Connnission held a public hearing on said application at 7:30 p.m. on February 2, 2016 at the 
City Administration Building, 37101 Newark Boulevard, Newark, California. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Connnission reconnnends 
that the City Council grant this application as shown on Exhibit A, pages 1 through 46, subject to 
compliance with the following conditions: 

Planning Division 

a. Approval ofTM-14-47, Vesting Tentative Map 8099, shall be effective at such time RZ-
14-48, the Rezoning of the property within the boundary of Vesting Tentative Map 8099, 
takes effect. 

b. The project shall be subject to applicable environmental mitigation measures as described 
in the Durnbmion Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) Specific Plan Environmental 
Impact Report and the Supplemental Environmental Impact Report prepared for this 
project. 

c. There shall be no roof-mounted equipment other than satellite dishes, other similar 
television or radio antennas, and solar equipment. AC units shall not be mounted on the 
roof. 

d. All lighting shall be directed on-site so as not to create glare off-site, to the satisfaction of 
the Connnunity Development Director. 

Resolution No. 1928 1 (Pres1449-2) 



e. Construction site trailers and buildings located on-site shall be used for office and storage 
purposes only, and shall not be used for living or sleeping quarters. Any vehicle or 
portable building brought on the site during construction shall remain graffiti free. 

f. The covenants, conditions and restrictions (CC&Rs) filed for this development shall 
include a provision requiting that garages shall only be used for automobile parking and 
dwellings with apartment suites shall not be rented or sold to any occupants. 

g. Dwellings with apartment suites shall not be rented or sold to any occupants. 

h. Parking lot cleaning with sweeping or vacuum equipment shall not be permitted between 
7:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m. 

1. The site and its improvements shall be maintained in a neat and presentable condition, to 
the satisfaction of the Community Development Dh·ector. This shall include, but not be 
limited to, repainting surfaces damaged by graffiti and site clean-up. Graffiti 
removal/repainting and site cleanup shall occur on a continuing, as needed basis. Any 
vehicle or portable building brought on the site during construction shall remain graffiti 
free. 

J. All exterior utility pipes and meters shall be painted to match and/or complement the 
color of the adjoining building surface, as approved by the Community Development 
Director. 

k. The elevations as submitted by the developer as part of this application shall be reviewed 
and approved by the Planning Commission and City Council. The building elevations 
shall reflect all architectural projections such as roof eaves, bay windows, greenhouse 
windows, chimneys and porches. A site plan showing the building locations with respect 
to property lines shall also show the projections. Said elevations shall specify exterior 
materials. 

I. The floor plans as submitted by the developer as part of this application shall be reviewed 
and approved by the Planning Commission and City Council. 

m. All roof material shall consist of fire retardant shake roof, concrete tile, or a roof of 
similar noncombustible mate1ial. Mansard roofs with the above material may be used to 
screen tar and gravel roofs. All roofs shall be of Class C fire resistant construction or 
better. Composition shingles shall be Presidential-style or of comparable quality, subject 
to the review and approval of the Community Development Director. 

n. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the location and screening design for garbage, 
refuse and organics recycling collection areas for the project shall be submitted for the 
review and approval of Republic Services and the Community Development Director, in 
that order. The approved garbage, refuse and organics recycling areas shall be provided 
prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, as required by the Community 

Resolution No. 1928 2 (Pres1449-2) 



Development Director. No refuse, garbage or organics recycling shall be stored outdoors 
except within the approved trash and recycling enclosures. 

o. Measures to respond to and track complaints pertaining to construction noise shall 
include: (1) a procedure and phone numbers for notifying the City of Newark Building 
Inspection Division and Newark Police Department ( during regular construction hours 
and off-hours); and (2) a sign posted on-site pertaining to the permitted construction days 
and hours and complaint procedures and who to notify in the event of a problem. The 
sign shall also include a listing of both the City and construction contractor's telephone 
numbers ( during regular construction hours and off-hours). 

p. Prior to the issuance of 50% of building permits, a dog park shall be completed on Parcel 
HHH. 

q. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the developer shall demonstrate compliance 
with the City's Affordable Housing Program, Chapter 17.18 of the Newark Municipal 
Code by paying a residential housing impact fee of $20 per square foot of floor area per 
dwelling unit for the first 1,000 square feet; and $8 per square foot of floor area for all 
square footage over 1,000 square feet. 

r. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the developer shall enter into au agreement 
with the City Council to address Community Services fiscal support of $2,500 per unit 
for the Map Area specific to this project. 

s. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the developer shall pay the following fees: 
public safety impact fee ($1,989 per single-family dwelling unit and $2,079 per multi
family dwelling unit); community service and facilities impact fee ($1,942 per single
family dwelling unit and $1,596 per multi-family dwelling unit); transportation impact 
fee ($801 per single-family dwelling unit and $460 per multi-family dwelling unit); park 
impact fee ($7,460 per dwelling unit); and art in public places and private development 
fee ($270 per dwelling unit). 

t. Prior to issuance of a building permit, wall and fence details shall be submitted to the 
Community Development Director for review and approval. 

u. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, details of the outdoor recreational amenities such 
as play structures shall be submitted to the Community Development Director for review 
and approval. 

v. Prior to issuance of a grading pennit, the developer shall hire a qualified biologist to: (1) 
determine if occupied Burrowing Owl habitat(s) exist on the site, and (2) implement a 
plan to protect the owls and to excavate the site around any active burrows using hand 
tools to assure that the owls are not buried during grading in the event Burrowing Owl 
habitat(s) is found on the site. The occupied Burrowing Owl habitat(s), if found, shall not 
be disturbed during the nesting season. The Burrowing Owl study shall be conducted not 
more than 30 days prior to the time site grading activities will commence. 

Resolution No. 1928 3 (Pres1449-2) 



w. During project construction, if historic, archeological or Native American materials or 
artifacts are identified, work within a 50-foot radius of such find shall cease and the City 
shall retain the services of a qualified archeologist and/or paleontologist to assess the 
significance of the find. If such find is determined to be significant by the archeologist 
and/or paleontologist, a resource protection plan conforming to State CEQA Guidelines 
Section 15064.5 shall be prepared by the archeologist and/or paleontologist and approved 
by the Community Development Director. The plan may include, but would not be 
limited to, removal of resources or similar actions. Project work may be resumed in 
compliance with such plan. If human remains are encountered, the County Coroner shall 
be contacted immediately and the provisions of State law carried out. 

x. Prior to their installation, mailbox locations and designs shall be approved by the 
Community Development Director and Newark Postmaster, in that order. The mailbox 
compartments of centralized mailboxes shall identify the individual dwelling units with 
permanent, easily legible lettering. 

y. The Bayside Trail shall be constructed with contiguous phases of development. Prior to 
the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for any non-model dwellings within a phase, 
the Bayside Trail segment contiguous to that phase shall be completed. 

z. Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, the parking areas, aisles and access 
drives shall be installed and striped as shown on the approved site plan. 

aa. Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, roll-up garage doors with automatic 
garage door openers shall be provided for each unit. 

bb. Prior to final inspection and utility release for each unit, the developer shall pre-wire each 
unit for satellite and cable television connections, as required by the Commm1ity 
Development Director. 

cc. Prior to the issuance of a sign permit, all signs, other than those referring to construction, 
sale, or future use of this site, shall be submitted for the review and approval of the 
Community Development Director. 

Engineering Division 

dd. The project shall conform to Tentative Map - Tract 8099, Sheets 1 through 8, and all 
conditions of approval set forth herein. Approval of this Tentative Map shall expire 
according to the provisions of the State Subdivision Map Act and any amendments 
thereto and applicable provisions of the Newark Municipal Code consistent with the State 
Subdivision Map Act. This vesting tentative map provides a prelinlinary design for the 
infrastructure improvements associated with the proposed subdivision. The developer 
shall be responsible for any required changes to this preliminary design as determined 
necessary by the City of Newark to satisfy applicable design requirements of the City or 
any other public agencies or utilities with jurisdictional authority. 

Resolution No. 1928 4 (Presl 449-2) 



ee. Prior to the approval of any final maps, detailed design review applications must be 
processed for all proposed building and landscaping improvements within each 
designated final map boundary. This future design review may result in required 
modifications to the infrastructure improvements shown on this vesting tentative map, 
including but not necessarily limited to public street layout, street widths, utility system 
design, and the total scope of public improvements; private street layout, widths, and 
scope of improvements; lot sizes, lot patterns, and the total number of lots; park 
improvements; stormwater drainage design and stmmwater treatment improvements; 
solid waste management facilities; and other public improvements. The developer shall 
be responsible for any and all required changes to the preliminary infrastructure design. 

ff. The development will require approval of fmal tract maps filed in accordance with the 
State Subdivision Map Act and the City of Newark Subdivision Ordinance. Any 
necessary parcel maps or lot line adjustments to acquire lands beyond the current 
property boundary of the tentative map shall be recorded prior to the first final map or 
issuance of any model home permits. The final map(s) must be approved prior to the 
issuance of any building permits. Permission to grade on adjacent private properties shall 
be obtained prior to approval of the first final map. Evidence of such agreements must be 
furnished to the City as part of the approval. All required easement dedications as shown 
on the vesting tentative map and as determined necessary with future design review shall 
be dedicated on the appropriate final map(s). 

gg. The final map( s) and complete tract improvement plans shall be submitted to the 
Engineering Division for review to ensure conformance with relevant codes, policies, and 
other requirements of the Newark Municipal Code and City of Newark street 
improvement standards. Prior to approval of the final map(s), the developer shall 
guarantee all necessary public and private street improvements and other infrastructure 
improvements within the subdivision and beyond the map boundary as required by the 
City of Newark Subdivision Ordinance and this vesting tentative map and all conditions 
herein, in accordance with tract improvement plans to be approved by the City Engineer. 
Improvement plans for on-site common areas and all private streets in the development 
shall be included with the tract improvement plans to ensure that the improvements are 
designed and constructed to City standards. 

These plans must be prepared by a qualified person licensed by the State of California to 
do such work. Street in1provements shall include, but may not be limited to all required 
improvements as indicated on the vesting tentative tract map on Willow Street, Hickory 
Street (including the Enterprise Drive intersection), Enterprise Drive, all in-tract public 
streets, all private streets, water, sanitary sewer, and joint trench utilities, storm drain 
systems and all stormwater treatment systems, street lighting systems including the 
replacement of all existing street lights in the plan area, all landscaping including median 
improvements and walls, park and other recreational area improvements, off-site traffic 
mitigation measures, and other improvements consistent with the Dumbarton Transit 
Oriented Development Specific Plan. 

Resolution No. 1928 5 (Pres1449-2) 



hh. If performance bonds are posted or work has commenced by the developers of VTM 
8085 or VTM 8157, or a combination thereof, for the full scope of improvements 
identified, this condition shall not apply. Otherwise, the full length of Willow Street shall 
be improved prior to or concurrent with the first proposed phase of work within the 
vesting tentative map boundary. Improvements on Willow Street include, but are not 
limited to the following between Central Avenue and Enterprise Drive: construction of all 
intersection improvements proposed in the plan area, construction of all center medians 
including all landscaping improvements, placement of all utility main lines and utility 
stub-outs for future developments ( excluding stub-outs for VTM 8085 and VTM 8098), a 
full width pavement grind and an asphalt concrete pavement overlay of 0.25' minimum 
thickness or greater, or replacement structural sections, that will result in a traffic index 
of not less than 9.0, curb and gutter, minimum 5-foot wide sidewalk, back-up 
landscaping, street light system replacement, pavement restriping, bike lane placement, 
street signage, any required traffic calming measures, and additional improvements as 
necessary. Street frontage improvements to the east side of Willow Street along the and 
the west side of Willow Street shall exclude improvements behind the curb including dry 
utilities, undergrounding of overhead lines, landscaping, and sidewalk improvements. 
Improvements north of Enterprise Drive shall include pavement resurfacing, restriping, 
bicycle and pedestrian facilities and any necessary improvements over the existing 
railroad crossing for full connectivity to the existing street system, and landscape 
improvements. Applicant shall use good faith effort to obtain all rights-of-way necessary 
for these required improvements. Final intersection improvements and other traffic 
calming measures, including roundabout configuration, are subject to modifications from 
the preliminary design as shown on the tentative map, at the developer's expense, to 
satisfy code and other design requirements to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

11. All traffic mitigation measures identified under existing plus project conditions in the 
Dumbarton Transit Oriented Development Specific Plan Environmental Impact Report 
for impacts that were not determined to be significant and unavoidable shall be 
completed or guaranteed prior to the approval of any final maps. This includes all 
recommended improvements at the following intersections: Willow Street and Thornton 
Avenue, Willow Street and Enterprise Drive, and Cherry Street and Mowry Avenue. All 
additional traffic mitigation measures under the future year 2035 plus project conditions 
for impacts that were not considered significant and 1mavoidable (this is limited to 
striping modifications at Gateway Boulevard and Thornton Avenue) should be completed 
concurrent with other off-site improvements. The full scope of recommended 
improvements shall be incorporated into the tract improvement plans. If either of the 
developers for VTM 8085 or VTM 8157 post bonds to guarantee this work, then the 
condition shall be deemed satisfied. 

jj. Prior to approval of any final map(s), any proposed project phasing shall be submitted for 
the review and approval of the City Engineer. The phasing plan provided with the 
vesting tentative map is subject to modification as required by the City Engineer. 

kk. All improvements must conform to the City's Sight Visibility Ordinance, Newark 
Municipal Code Chapter 10.36. Prior to any final map approval all building architecture 

Resolution No. 1928 6 (Presl 449-2) 



and other improvements on proposed lots within a given phase of the development shall 
be sited as necessary to comply with this ordinance. If necessary, the proposed lot 
pattern shown on the tentative map shall be modified to accommodate a future desired 
building product. 

IL Concurrent with approval of the final map, the developer shall effectuate the removal of 
all existing easements encumbering the property within the tract bmmdary that conflict 
with areas proposed for improvement. Elimination or modification of existing utility 
easements on the site requires the approval from the respective utility district or company 
and the City of Newark. 

mm. Prior to approval of the final map(s), the developer shall submit a pavement maintenance 
program for the drive aisles and parking areas on the project site. The maintenance 
program shall be signed by the property owner and the property owner shall follow the 
maintenance program at the City Engineer's direction. 

nn. This site is subject to the State of California National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
System (NPDES) Program General Permit for Stom1 Water Discharges Associated with 
Construction Activity. Prior to issuance of a grading pennit or a building permit, the 
developer needs to provide evidence that the proposed site development work is covered 
by said General Permit for Construction Activity. This will require confirmation that a 
Notice of Intent (NOI) and the applicable fee were received by the State Water Resources 
Control Board and the submittal of the required Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan 
(SWPPP). In addition the grading plans need to state: "All grading work shall be done in 
accordance with the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan prepared by the developer 
pursuant to the Notice oflntent on file with the State Water Resources Control Board." 

oo. Prior to the issuance of the initial grading or any building permits for this project, the 
developer shall submit a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) for the review 
and approval of the City Engineer. The plan shall include sufficient details to show how 
storm water quality will be protected during both: (1) the construction phase of the 
project and (2) the post-construction, operational phase of the project. The SWPPP shall 
be prepared by a Qualified SWPPP Developer (QSD) in the State of California. The 
construction phase plan shall include Best Management Practices from the California 
Storm Water Quality Best Management Practices Handbook for Construction Activities. 
The specific storm water pollution prevention measures to be maintained by the 
contractor shall be printed on the plans. The operational phase plan shall include Best 
Management Practices appropriate to the uses conducted on the site to effectively 
prohibit the entry of pollutants into stormwater runoff from the project site including, but 
not limited to, low impact development stormwater treatment measures, trash and litter 
control, pavement sweeping, periodic storm water inlet cleaning, landscape controls for 
fertilizer and pesticide applications, labeling of storm water inlets with a permanent 
thermoplastic stencil with the wording "No Dumping - Drains to Bay," and other 
applicable practices. 

Resolution No. 1928 7 (Pres1449-2) 



pp. The project must be designed to include appropriate source control, site design, and 
stormwater treatment measures to prevent stormwater runoff pollutant discharges and 
increases in runoff flows from the site in accordance with Provision C.3 of the latest 
version of the Municipal Regional Stormwater NPDES Permit (MRP) adopted in 
November 2015 by the Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB), San Francisco 
Bay Region. Examples of source control and site design requirements include, but are 
not limited to: properly designed trash storage areas, sanitary sewer connections for all 
non-stormwater discharges, minimization of impervious surfaces, and treatment of all 
runoff with Low Impact Development (LID) treatment measures. A properly engineered 
and maintained biotreatment system will only be allowed if it is infeasible to implement 
other LID measures such as harvesting and re-use, infiltration, or evapotranspiration. 
The stormwater treatment design shall be completed by a licensed civil engineer with 
sufficient experience in stormwater quality analysis and design. The Storm Water 
Control Plan (Sheet TM-5) on this vesting tentative map would be approved as a 
conceptual plan only. Final approval is subject to the developer providing the necessary 
plans, details, worksheets, and calculations that demonstrate the plan complies with 
Provision C.3 of the MRP, subject to final review by the City Engineer and the RWQCB 
prior to the recording of any final maps. The developer is responsible for any and all 
necessary modifications to the site design to comply with MRP requirements. The use of 
treatment controls for runoff requires the submittal of a completed Stormwater Treatment 
Measures Maintenance Agreement prior to the approval of any final maps. 

qq. All stormwater treatment measures are subject to review and approval by the Alameda 
County Mosquito Abatement District. The developer shall modify the grading and 
drainage design and the stormwater treatment design as necessary to satisfy any and all 
imposed requirements from this District. 

rr. The preliminary Grading and Drainage Plan provided on Sheet TM-3 of the vesting 
tentative map has not yet been supported with a detailed drainage feasibility analysis. 
This analysis, including initial drainage calculations, shall be completed and submitted by 
the developer for review by the City Engineer and the Alameda County Flood Control 
and Water Conservation Dishi.ct (ACFC&WCD) for determination of the general 
feasibility of the proposed design prior to development of detailed grading and drainage 
plans. The ACFC&WCD will not allow the design capacity of the existing flood control 
channel to be exceeded. The developer shall be responsible for any and all changes to the 
preliminary drainage design as shown on the tentative map as necessary to satisfy 
ACFC&WCD and City of Newark storm drain system requirements. 

ss. The developer shall submit detailed grading and drainage plans for review and approval 
by the City Engineer and the Alameda County Flood Control and Water Conservation 
District (ACFC&WCD). These plans must be based upon a City benchmark and need to 
include pad and finish floor elevations of each proposed structure, all rear yard drainage 
designs and surface treatments, proposed on-site property grades, proposed elevations at 
property line, and sufficient elevations on all adjacent properties to show existing and 
proposed drainage patterns. All pad elevations shall be a minimum 11.25 NGVD. All 
pavement shall drain at a minimum of one percent. The developer shall ensure that all 

Resolution No. 1928 8 (Presl 449-2) 



upstream drainage is not blocked and that no ponding is created by this development. 
Any construction necessary to ensure this shall be the developer's responsibility. All 
mitigation measures identified in the Hydrology, Drainage, and Water Quality section of 
the Environmental Impact Report shall be properly addressed with the detailed grading 
and drainage plans. 

Hydrology and hydraulic calculations based on ACFC&WCD criteria shall be submitted 
for review and approval by the City Engineer and the ACFC&WCD prior to approval of 
any final maps. The calculations shall show that City and ACFC&WCD freeboard 
requirements will be satisfied (0.75 feet to grate or 1.25 feet to the top of curb under a 10-
year storm event design). 

tt. Where a grade differential of more than a !-foot is created along the boundary lot lines 
between the proposed development and adjacent property, the developer shall install a 
masomy retaining wall unless a slope easement is approved by the City Engineer. Said 
retaining wall shall be subject to review and approval of the City Engineer. A grading 
permit is required by the Building Inspection Division prior to starting site grading work. 

uu. Permission to grade on adjacent private properties shall be obtained prior to approval of 
the first final map. Evidence of such agreements must be furnished to the City as part of 
the approval. 

vv. The applicant shall submit a detailed soils report prepared by a qualified engineer, 
registered with the State of California. The report shall address in-situ and import soils in 
accordance with the City of Newark Grading and Excavation Ordinance, Chapter 15.50. 
The report shall include recommendations regarding pavement sections for all public and 
private streets. Grading operations shall be in accordance with recommendations 
contained in the soils report and shall be completed under the supervision of an engineer 
registered in the State of California to do such work. All documentation prepared during 
the inspection of grading operations shall be made available for review by the City 
Engineer. 

ww. An independent Project Geotechnical Engineer shall be retained to review the final 
grading plans and specifications and provide construction inspection review at the 
developer's expense. The Project Geotechnical Engineer shall approve the grading plans 
prior to approval by the City of Newark for issuance of a grading permit. 

xx. Prior to approval of any final maps, the developer shall satisfy Alameda County Water 
District (ACWD) requirements for the proposed development as specified in previous 
correspondence with ACWD during the specific plan and tentative map review process. 
This includes, but is not necessarily limited to the following improvements: (1) individual 
water services to all residential units with a new, complete looped public water system 
sized and installed in accordance with ACWD's Standard Specifications for Water Main 
Installation and integrated with the existing public water system, including consideration 
of any proposed phasing of the water system installation; (2) water system components 
beyond the tentative map boundary, but determined as necessary by ACWD to meeting 

Resolution No. 1928 9 (Pres1449-2) 



requirements for fue full specific plan area; (3) installation of non-potable water 
infrastrncture for future use; (3) replacement of existing water mains as determined 
necessary by ACWD; and ( 4) recordation of necessary water service easements to 
ACWD. The Utility Plan provided on Sheet TM-4 of the vesting tentative map includes a 
preliminary water supply system layout that is subject to a complete review by ACWD at 
such time as formal, detailed utility plans are developed for constrnction. Any necessary 
site and utility design changes necessary to satisfy ACWD's design requirements shall be 
fue developer's responsibility. 

yy. Prior to approval of any final maps, the developer shall demonstrate to the satisfaction of 
City that it has obtained approval from Union Sanitary District (USD) of the entire 
sanitary sewer system designed to serve the development including any existing sanitary 
sewer infrastructure modifications beyond the tentative map boundary as necessary to 
serve the development; and potential relocation, modification, or protection in place of 
the existing twin force mains. The Utility Plan provided on Sheet TM-4 of the vesting 
tentative map includes a preliminary sanitary sewer system layout that is subject to a 
complete review by USD at such time as formal utility plans are submitted for 
construction. Any necessary site and utility design changes necessary to satisfy USD 's 
design requirement shall be the developer's responsibility. 

zz. The developer shall incorporate a Homeowner' s Association consisting of all property 
owners of lots in the development at the time of incorporation and in the future for the 
purpose of owning and maintaining the association's property, including but not limited 
to all private streets and common drive aisles, parking areas, landscape areas, stormwater 
treatment areas, storm drain systems, public access areas, and for paying for secmity 
lighting, any common garbage collection services, any security patrol services, if 
provided, and oilier functions of a Homeowner's Association. All common areas within 
the development shall be owned and maintained by the Homeowner's Association. Each 
property owner shall automatically become a member of the association and shall be 
subject to a proportionate share of the maintenance expenses. The Homeowner's 
Association shall be inc01porated prior to the sale of any individual lots and/or prior to 
acceptance of tract improvements, whichever occurs first. A centralized facility of 
sufficient size such as a clubhouse shall be constrncted for Homeowner's Association use 
at a location to be approved by the Community Development Director, unless the 
applicant is allowed to utilize a clubhouse at an alternative location, subject to approval 
by the Community Development Director. The CC&Rs shall prohibit the use of private 
streets as alternative routes to fue in-tract public street system. 

aaa. Prior to City Council approval of any final maps, the bylaws governing the property 
owner's association and any declaration of covenants, conditions and restrictions 
(CC&Rs) filed for this development shall be reviewed and approved by the City Council 
at its discretion after mandatory review and reconnnendations by the City Attorney. Said 
covenants, conditions and restrictions shall be prominently displayed in the project sales 
office at all times. Approval of the covenants, conditions and restrictions shall not make 
the City a party to enforcement of same. The CC&Rs shall apply equally to both owners 
and renters. The CC&Rs shall be written to require renters to comply with the 

Resolution No. 1928 10 (Pres1449-2) 



regulations of the CC&Rs, and a copy of the CC&Rs shall be given to each renter. The 
CC&Rs shall be written to allow less than a majority of owners to have pavement or 
landscape maintenance done and the cost thereof assessed to all owners in the project. 
The CC&Rs shall include a pavement maintenance program for all private streets and 
common drive aisles. 

bbb. The Homeowner's Association CC&Rs shall prohibit the on-site parking of non-self
propelled recreational vehicles, including boats, and any self-propelled recreational 
vehicles not used for transportation unless separate storage facilities are provided. The 
CC&Rs shall regulate the provision of any on-site parking of self-propelled recreational 
vehicles used for transportation. 

ccc. The CC&Rs for the project shall include a disclosure statement to all property owners 
indicating that the project site is located within a seismic hazard zone for liquefaction. 
The disclosure statement shall indicate that the buildings have been designed to current 
code requirements. The statement shall further indicate that the buildings, site 
improvements, and utilities are subject to damage during an earthquake and that the 
buildings may be uninhabitable after an earthquake. This CC&R disclosure statement is 
subject to review and approval of the City Engineer prior to final map approval. 

ddd. The developer shall also assist the Homeowner's Association by having a management 
consultant finn review the maintenance and operating functions of the association. The 
management consulting firm shall be responsible to prepare a written report with 
recommendations to the association for managing the association's obligations and setting 
initial monthly assessment costs for each lot in the development. Membership and 
assessment cost shall be mandatory for all property owners of property in the 
development and shall run with the land. The developer shall pay all costs of 
incorporation and initial management review and reports. 

eee. The developer shall enter into a Landscape Maintenance Agreement to ensure the 
perpetual maintenance of all common front yard, side yard and back-up area landscaping 
within the development by the Homeowner's Association. This agreement shall run with 
the land and be binding upon all future owners or assigns. Any and all necessary 
easements shall be dedicated over individual lots to allow for the perpetual access and 
maintenance of landscaping. The full extent of landscape maintenance shall be 
determined with the future landscape improvements plans and detailed in said agreement. 
Landscaping by the City at the expense of the Homeowner's Association in these areas 
will only occur in the event the City Council deems the Homeowner's Association 
maintenance to be inadequate. Project perimeter walls and adjoining landscaped areas 
shall be included in a dedicated landscape easement to guarantee adequate maintenance 
of the walls. A Landscape Maintenance Agreement template is enclosed for your use. 

The City of Newark shall be provided with subordinate agreements to ensure that the 
position of the landscaping maintenance lien shall be superior to any liens or 
encumbrances other than taxes. 

Resolution No. 1928 11 (Pres1449-2) 



fff. Prior to approval of the first final map, the developer shall petition the City Council to 
participate in an active Landscaping and Lighting District for the perpetual maintenance 
of median landscaping and lighting systems on Willow Street and Enterprise Drive, all 
public parks within the Dumbarton TOD Specific Plan area, and any public stormwater 
treatment and st01m drain delivery systems including trash capture devices, all public 
street trees, all street lighting systems and any additional landscaping, landscape-based 
stormwater treatment areas and storm drain systems, or lighting improvements within the 
public rights-of-way and dedicated public easement areas within the limits of the 
development. Maintenance activities will be performed by the City of Newark or its 
contractors through the Landscaping and Lighting District. All property owners within 
the tentative map boundary shall be assessed annually in accordance with requirements 
established with the Landscaping and Lighting District. The developer shall pay all 
associated costs in the City's Master Fee Schedule for establishment of the Landscaping 
and Lighting District. The developer shall record an indenture advising all prospective 
property owners in the project that their properties are included in a Landscaping and 
Lighting District for maintenance of landscaping, lighting, and related improvements 
installed as part of this project. 

ggg. All storm drain inlets within the entire development, located in both public and private 
areas, shall be equipped with full-capture trash devices approved by the Regional Water 
Quality Control Board that satisfy Provision C.10 requirements under the Municipal 
Regional Stormwater NPDES Permit. Trash capture device selection is subject to 
approval by the City Engineer. All trash capture device maintenance within public 
rights-of-way shall be completed through the Landscaping and Lighting District. All 
trash capture device maintenance within private areas shall be completed by the 
Homeowner's Association. The Homeowner's Association shall be responsible for trash 
and litter control and sweeping of all private streets within the development. All private 
storm drain systems and all associated trash capture devices shall be cleaned on a 
regularly scheduled basis as detailed in the required Stormwater Treatment Measures 
Maintenance Agreement. 

hhh. The Homeowner's Association shall be required to contract with a professional 
management firm to handle all necessary maintenance operations. Documentation of 
snch contract shall be submitted to the City of Newark. All commonly owned facilities 
shall be properly maintained in a manner consistent with the CC&Rs and project 
requirements. 

m. The Homeowner' s Association shall periodically provide educational materials on 
stormwater pollution prevention to all residents. 

JJJ. Each buyer shall sign an acknowledgment that he/she has read the constitution and 
bylaws of the Homeowner's Association and the CC&Rs applied to the development. 

kid<. The developer shall provide a complete set of construction plans in electronic format and 
reproducible paper (mylar) fo1mat to the Homeowner's Association at the tinte of its 
formation. 

Resolution No. 1928 12 (Presl 449-2) 



111. All existing overhead utilities within the development and along the fronting street rights
of-way to the centerline of the street sha11 be undergrounded to the nearest riser beyond 
the development's limits in accordance with the City of Newark Subdivision Standards. 
Undergrounding shall include all existing and proposed service drops. 

mmm. All new utilities including, but not limited to, electric and communication se1vices shall 
be provided underground for all buildings in the development in accordance with the City 
of Newark Subdivision Standards. Electrical transformers shall be installed in 
underground vaults with an appropriate public utility easement or within the public right
of-way. This undergrounding requirement excludes the south side of Enterprise Drive 
and the east side of Hickory Street along the Ashland Chemical and Tmian frontages. 

mm. Fire hydrants are to be located along public and private streets as determined by the 
Alameda County Fire Department. 

ooo. A streetlight plan and joint trench plan shall be submitted by the applicant with the 
second tract improvement plan check and approved prior to final map approval. A11 
existing street lights on Enterprise Drive and Willow Street within the limits of the 
Dumbarton Transit Oriented Plan Area shall be replaced (unless another developer has 
guaranteed this work) with street lights consistent with the approved Dumbarton Transit 
Oriented Development Specific Plan. LED lighting shall be utilized on all public and . 
private streets and other common areas. 

ppp. A signpost with a sign having an area of at least IS-inches by 21-inches shall be installed 
at or near each private street entrance. The name of each private street sha11 be placed on 
this sign in clearly legible 4-inch letters. The signs shall have painted, in at least I-inch 
letters, "Private Property. Not dedicated for public use." 

qqq. On-site private streets are to be posted for "No Parking," except in those areas designed 
to accommodate guest parking, as shown on the vesting tentative map. 

m. The connection between private streets and public streets sha11 be by a City of Newark 
standard driveway. 

sss. Garbage, trash, or recycling containers shall be suitably concealed in an area dedicated 
within the garage of each unit, except such features may be placed at curbside on the 
designated garbage pick-up day. 

ttt. Public Utility Easements (PUE), Water Line Easements (WLE), Storm Drain Easements 
(SDE), and Sanitary Sewer Easements (SSE) shall be dedicated over all private streets in 
the development. The PUE, WLE, SDE and SSE dedication statements on the final map 
sha11 state that the PUE, WLE, SDE and SSE are available for, but not limited to, the 
installation, access and maintenance of water supply sanitary and storm sewers, and gas, 
electrical, and communication facilities. 

Resolution No. 1928 13 (Pres1449-2) 



uuu. Emergency Vehicle Access Easements (EV AE) shall be dedicated over the full pavement 
width on all private streets in the development. The final easement geometry shall be 
subject to the approval of the City Engineer. 

vvv. Easements for public access shall be dedicated over those parcels intended for public 
uses, including the trail, and the park parcels. 

www. The developer shall request Pacific, Gas & Elech·ic Co. to commence with the design of 
the underground utility improvements for the proposed development immediately 
following tentative map approval. 

xxx. The developer shall ensure that a water vehicle for dust control operations is kept readily 
available at all times during construction at the City Engineer's direction. A pick-up or 
vacuum type sh·eet sweeper shall be available at all times at the direction of the City 
Engineer to remove tracked dirt and debris from adjacent streets. 

yyy. All existing buildings within the proposed division of land shall be completely 
demolished prior to recording the first final map. 

zzz. Above ground architectural and building features that project over proposed property 
lines shall be permitted on townhouse and/or condominium units by easements recorded 
on the final map. Such features include, but are not limited to, eaves, bay windows, 
balconies, porches, landings, and stairways. The details for these easements, including 
dimensions and descriptions, shall be included on the final map. Foundations for 
townhouse units shall be contained within the individual lot. 

aaaa. Street names and an addressing scheme shall be developed during the fmal map and 
improvement plan review process in accordance with the City of Newark's Street 
Numbering and Naming Ordinance (Chapter 12.12). The street name theme and 
individual street names shall be determined at a future date. All addressing is based on 
the Alameda County grid pattern with streets running generally northerly and southerly 
having 5-digit addresses and streets running generally westerly and easterly having 4-
digit addresses. 

bbbb. The developer shall repair and/or replace any public improvements (pavement, curb, 
gutter, etc.) damaged as a result of construction activity to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer. 

cccc. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy or release of utilities for any residential 
units, private streets, common vehicle accessways and parking facilities serving said units 
shall be paved in accordance with the recommendation of a licensed engineer based on a 
minimum Traffic Index of 6.0. 

dddd. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy or release of utilities for each dwelling 
unit, the on-site drive aisles and uncovered parking facilities shall be installed and striped 
as shown on the approved site plan. All on-site uncovered parking facilities and drive 

Resolution No. 1928 14 (Pres1449-2) 



aisles shall be drained at a minimum slope of 1.0% for asphalt concrete surfaces and 
0.3% for Portland cement concrete surfaces. 

eeee. The developer shall be responsible for implementation of all applicable mitigation 
measures identified in the Environmental hnpact Report for the Dumbarton Transit 
Oriented Development Specific Plan and the Supplemental Environmental hnpact Report 
prepared for this project. 

ffff. Prior to occupancy of any buildings within the special flood hazard area or acceptance of 
any public improvements, the developer shall apply for and receive approval of a letter of 
map revision based on fill (LOMR-F) from the Federal Emergency Management Agency. 
The LOMR-F shall be based upon the as-built grades of the building pads and shall 
determine that the pads and all public and private streets are no longer within the special 
flood hazard area as indicated on the current Flood Insurance Rate Map for the City of 
Newark, Community Panel No. 06001C 0443G, dated August 3, 2009. 

gggg. Prior to the issuance of any pem1its, any proposed permeable pavement design shall be 
based on a geotechnical engineer's recommendation and reviewed by the manufacturer or 
the National Ready Mixed Concrete Association (NRMCA). The developer shall submit 
documentation to the City confirming approval by the manufacturer or NRMCA and 
geotechnical engineer. The developer shall also ensure that the contractor hired to install 
the permeable pavement be cettified by the NRMCA. Documentation that confirms 
cetiification shall be submitted directly to the City Engineer for review and approval. 

hhhh. The developer shall implement the following measures for the duration of all construction 
activity to minimize air quality impacts: 

I. Watering should be used to control dust generation during demolition of structures 
and break-up of pavement. 

2. All trucks hauling demolition debris from the site shall be covered. 
3. Dust-proof chutes shall be used to load debris into trucks whenever feasible. 

Watering should be used to control dust generation during transport and handling of 
recycled materials. 

4. All active construction areas shall be watered at least twice daily and more often 
during windy periods; active areas adjacent to the existing land uses shall be kept 
damp at all times or shall be treated with non-toxic stabilizers or dust palliatives. 

5. All trucks hauling soil, sand, and other loose materials shall be covered or require all 
trucks to maintain at least 2 feet of freeboard. 

6. All unpaved access roads, parking areas, and staging areas at construction sites shall 
be paved, watered three times daily, or treated with (non-toxic) soil stabilizers. 

7. All paved access roads, parking areas, and staging areas at construction sites shall be 
swept daily with water sweepers; water sweepers shall vacuum up excess water to 
avoid runoff-related impacts to water quality. 

8. Limit traffic speeds on unpaved roads to 15 mph. 
9. Install sandbags or other erosion control measures to prevent silt runoff to public 

roadways. 

Resolution No. 1928 15 (Pres1449-2) 



I 0. Replant vegetation in disturbed areas as quickly as possible. 
11. Minimize idling time (5 minutes maximum). 
12. Maintain properly tuned equipment. 

These measures shall be incorporated into the grading specifications as well as the best 
management practices of the storm water pollution prevention plan, and shall be 
implemented to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

1111. The developer shall provide all required paper and digital submittals of the project final 
map, tract improvements plans, and as-built plans as required by the City Engineer, 
including, but not necessarily limited to the following: (1) One full-size reproducible 
copy and one reduced reproducible copy of the approved tentative map; (2) Two 
electronic copies of the approved final map and improvement plans in a format approved 
by the City Engineer; (3) One full-size mylar copy and one reduced copy of the recorded 
final map; ( 4) One reproducible set and four blue-line or photocopied sets of the 
approved tract improvement plans; ( 5) Two electronic copies and one mylar set of the as
built tract improvement plans. The City will require a digital submittal of all final maps 
and improvements plans. All CAD work must be prepared in a manner consistent with 
the Union Sanitary District's digital submittal requirements for layering conventions. 
This can be found on the web at: http://www.unionsanitary.com/digita1Submitta1.htm. 
Digital files submitted shall be based on accurate coordinate geometry calculations and 
the NAD83 State Plane Coordinate System (Zone III) and NGVD29 (USD requires 
NA VD88) as vertical datum. A deposit of $5,000 shall be provided by the developer to 
the City to ensure submittal of all required documents. 

JJJJ. The developer shall provide as-built record drawings in both electronic format and on 
mylar paper based on full and complete review and inspection by the developer's project 
civil engineer, landscape architect, and other design professionals of all public 
improvements and all improvements on private streets and property included in the tract 
improvement plan set. 

kkkk. If any condition of this vesting tentative tract map be declared invalid or unenforceable 
by a court of competent jurisdiction, this vesting tentative map shall terminate and be of 
no force and effect, at the election of the City Council on motion. 

1111. Pursuant to Govermnent Code Section 66474.9, the subdivider, or any agent thereof, or 
successor thereto, shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Newark, its 
officials, employees or agents ( collectively "City") from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City to attack, set aside, void, or annul, the City's approval concerning this 
subdivision map application, which action is brought within the time period provided for 
in Section 66499.37. The City will promptly notify the subdivider of any such claim, 
action, or proceeding and cooperate fully in the defense. 

mmnun.The Conditions of Project Approval set forth herein include certain fees, dedication 
requirements, and other exactions. Pursuant to Government Code Section 66020( d)(l ), 
these conditions constitute written notice of s statement of the amount of such fees, and a 

Resolution No. 1928 16 (Presl 449-2) 



desc1iption of the dedications, reservations, and other exactions. The developer is hereby 
further notified that the 90-day approval period in which the developer may protest these 
fees, dedications, reservations, and other exactions, pursuant to Government Code 
66020(a), has begun. If the developer fails to file a protest within this 90-day period 
complying with all of the requirements of Section 66020, the developer will be legally 
barred from later challenging such exactions. 

Landscape-Parks Division 

nnmt. The developer shall retain a licensed landscape architect to prepare working drawings for 
tract improvement landscape plans in accordance to with City of Newark requirements 
and the State of California Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance as amended by 
the California Water Commission on July 15, 2015. The associated Landscape 
Documentation Package must be approved by the City Engineer prior to approval of any 
final maps. 

0000. The developer shall implement Bay Friendly Landscaping Practices in accordance with 
Newark Municipal Code, Chapter 15.44.080. Prior to approval of any final maps, the 
developer shall provide sufficient infonnation to detail the environmentally-conscious 
landscape practices to be used on the project. 

pppp. Prior to installation by the developer, plant species, location, container size, quality, and 
quantity of all landscaping plants and materials shall be reviewed and approved by the 
City Engineer. All street trees and park trees shall be minimum 24-inch box specimens. 
All plant replacements shall be to an equal or better standard than originally approved 
subject to approval by the City Engineer. 

qqqq. Prior to the release of utilities or issuance of any Certificates of Occupancy, all 
landscaping and irrigation systems shall be completed or guaranteed by a cash deposit 
deposited with the City in an amount to cover the remainder of the work. 

rrrr. Prior to issuance of Certificate of Occupancy or release of utilities, the developer shall 
guarantee all trees for a period of 6 months and all other plantings and landscape for 60 
days after completion thereof. The developer shall insure that the landscape shall be 
installed properly and maintained to follow standard horticultural practices. All plant 
replacements shall be to an equal or better standard than originally approved subject to 
approval of the City Engineer. 

ssss. Landscaping adjacent to the public right-of-way must conform to the City's visibility 
requirements in accordance with Newark Municipal Code, Chapter 10.36. 

tttt. Prior to the issuance of any Certificates of Occupancy, the developer shall pay park-in
lieu fees in accordance with the City's current Master Fee Schedule and any updates 
thereto. 

Resolution No. 1928 17 (Pres1449-2) 



uuuu. Any above ground utility structures, including backflow prevention devices, and 
appurtenances shall be installed within the developer's property line and a minimum of 10 
feet behind street face of curbs. The backflow prevention devices shall have a green 
painted security cage to protect it from vandalism. These locations shall be screened with 
landscaping to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. The landscape screen shall not 
interfere with the utility companies' or City Fire Department's access. 

Alameda County Fire Department 

vvvv. This project shall comply with the City of Newark's adopted Fire Code including Appendix D. 

Building Inspection Division 

wwww. Construction for this project can occur only between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. 
Monday through Friday. The developer may make a written request to the Building 
Official for extended working hours and/or days. In granting or denying any request, the 
Building Official will take into consideration the nature of the construction activity which 
would occur during extended hours/days, the time and duration of the request, the 
proximity to residential neighborhoods, and input by affected neighbors. All approvals 
will be done so in writing. 

General 

xxxx. All proposed changes from approved exhibits shall be submitted to the Community 
Development Director who shall decide if they warrant Planning Commission and City 
Council review and, if so decided, said changes shall be submitted for the Commission's 
and Council's review and decision. The developer shall pay the prevailing fee for each 
additional separate submittal of development exhibits requiring Planning Commission 
and/or City Council review and approval. All time extensions for this planned unit 
development and conditional use permit shall be approved by the Planning Commission 
and City Council. 

yyyy. If any condition of this planned unit development and conditional use permit be declared 
invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, this planned unit 
development and conditional use permit shall terminate and be of no force and effect, at 
the election of the City Council on motion. 

zzzz. This planned unit development and conditional use permit shall be given a public hearing 
before the City Council for the Council's review and approval. 

aaaaa. Prior to the submittal for building permit review, all conditions of approval of this project, 
as approved by the City Council, shall be printed on the plans. 

bbbbb. The developer hereby agrees to defend, indemnify, and save harmless the City of 
Newark, its Council, boards, commissions, officers, employees and agents, from and 

Resolution No. 1928 18 (Pres1449-2) 



against any and all claims, suits, actions, liability, loss, damage, expense, cost (including, 
without limitation, attorneys' fees, costs and fees of litigation) of every nature, kind or 
description, which may be brought by a third party against, or suffered or sustained by, 
the City of Newark, its Council, boards, commissions, officers, employees or agents to 
challenge or void the permit granted herein or any California Environmental Quality Act 
determinations related thereto. 

ccccc. The Conditions of Project Approval set forth herein include certain fees, dedication 
requirements, reservation requirements and other exactions. Pursuant to Government 
Code Section 66020(d)(l), these Conditions constitute wiittennotice ofa statement of the 
amount of such fees, and a description of the dedications, reservations and other 
exactions. The developer is hereby further notified that the 90-day approval period in 
which the developer may protest these fees, dedications, reservations and other exactions, 
pursuant to Government Code Section 66020(a), has begun. If the developer fails to file 
a protest within this 90-day period complying with all of the requirements of Section 
66020, the developer will be legally barred from later challenging such exactions. 

The Commission makes the findings prescribed in Newark Municipal Code Sections 
17.40.050 and 17.72.070, and directs a Notice of Decision be mailed to the applicant and filed 
with the City Clerk who shall present said Notice to the City Council pursuant to Newark 
Municipal Code Section 17.72.080. 

This Resolution was introduced at the Planning Commission's February 2, 2016 meeting 
by Commissioner Fitts, seconded by Commissioner Nillo, and passed as follows: 

AYES: Aguilar, Fitts, Nillo and Otterstetter. 

NOES: None. 

ABSENT: Bridges. 

s/Terrence Grindall s/J eff Aguilar 
TERRENCE GRlNDALL, Secretary JEFF AGUILAR, Chairperson 

Resolution No. 1928 19 (Pres1449-2) 



F.1 Acceptance of contract with New Image Landscape Company for Park and 
Landscape Maintenance Services Project 1007C - from Maintenance Supervisor 
Hornbeck. (RESOLUTION) 

Background/Discussion - On December 13, 2012 the City Council awarded a contract to New 
Image Landscape Company, for park and landscape maintenance services for the 2013 calendar year. 

Two additional years of work were included in the specifications and could be implemented upon 
mutual consent by the City and the contractor. Approval was granted and the contract extended for 
completion of the 2015 Park and Landscape Maintenance Services. All work on this project is now 
complete. 

Attachment 

Action - It is recommended that the City Council, by resolution, accept the contract with New Image 
Landscape Company, for Park and Landscape Maintenance Services Project I 007C. 

Report 
City Council Meeting 

Thursday 
February 25, 2016 

F.1 



RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
NEWARK ACCEPTING THE 2015 CONTRACT WITH NEW 
IMAGE LANDSCAPE COMP ANY FOR PARK AND 
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICES PROJECT 1007C 

WHEREAS, the City of Newark entered into a 2014 contract with New Image Landscape 
Company, pursuant to Resolution No. 10,045, in accordance with plans and specifications for the 
contract; and 

WHEREAS, said work has been completed in conformance with the plans and 
specifications of the 2015 rollover of the contract herein above referred to and the conditions 
there of; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that said 2015 contract is hereby accepted and 
the City Council does hereby authorize the release of bonds guaranteeing completion of work, the 
filing of a Notice of Completion, and payment to the contractor pursuant to the contract. 

Serl 



F.2 Authorization for the Mayor to sign an agreement with Joel Nelson Productions, 
Inc., for the 2016 Music at the Grove Program - from Recreation and Community 
Services Director Zehnder. (RESOLUTION) 

Background/Discussion - Since 1987, the Recreation and Community Services Department has 
organized a summer concert series at Shirley Sisk Grove. Based upon the quality of service 
provided for the 1987 tlu·ough 2015 concert series, staff recormnends that the firm of Joel Nelson 
Productions, Inc., be retained to provide ente1iaimnent and production services for the four 
scheduled concerts. The proposed agreement requires that Joel Nelson Productions, Inc. will: 

I. Provide four ( 4) live professional musical entertainment events at the Shirley Sisk Grove. 
Concerts will be held on Friday evenings, June 24, July 8, July 22, and August 5, 2016. 
With permission from City staff, concerts dates are subject to change. 

2. Provide for all acts and talent as approved by City staff. 

3. Provide on-site sound and stage managers at all conce1is to coordinate and execute 
technical requirements. 

4. Provide setup, installation, and maintenance of a stage for each concert. Stage for the 
2016 concert series must be of professional quality, meet all ADA requirements, and will 
include commercial-grade scaffolding, shade cover, plywood backing and skirting. All 
stage surfaces to be painted black. 

5. Provide professional setup, installation, and maintenance of all sound, audio, and 
electrical equipment for each concert. 

6. Provide professional staffing to assist with day-of-event logistics. 

The amount to be paid to Joel Nelson Productions, Inc., for all services described above is 
$25,250.00. Funding for the 2016 Music at the Grove concert series will be arranged through the 
Newark Betterment Corporation as well in-kind donations from local businesses and 
organizations including Homewood Suites, and Tri-City Voice. 

Permission to use the parking lot area at NewPark Mall and the access roads will be finalized 
prior to the first concert on June 24, 2016. 

Because the conce1is are being sponsored totally by the City, liability coverage is provided under 
the City's ABAG Plan. It should be noted that as part of the agreement with NewPark Mall, the 
City will have to indemnify them for losses, which may occur as a result of the concert's 
activities. The inderm1ification will release NewPark Mall from any and all liability for Music at 
the Grove attendees who utilize the parking lot area. 

Attachment 

Report 
City Council Meeting 

Thursday 
February 25, 2016 

F.2 



Action - It is recommended that the City Council, by resolution, authorize the Mayor to sign an 
agreement with Joel Nelson Productions, Inc., for the 2016 Music at the Grove Program. 

Report 
City Council Meeting 

Thursday 
February 25, 2016 

F.2 



RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
NEWARK AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SIGN AN 
AGREEMENT WITH JOEL NELSON PRODUCTIONS, INC., 
FOR THE 2016 MUSIC AT THE GROVE PROGRAM 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Newark that the Mayor of the City 
of Newark be and is hereby authorized to sign an agreement with Joel Nelson Productions, Inc., 
for the provision of 2016 Music at the Grove Program, said agreement on file in the Office of the 
City Clerk. 

(022516dzrl) 



AGREEMENT 

Agreement, made February 25, 2016 by and between JOEL NELSON, JOEL NELSON 

PRODUCTIONS, INC. (hereinafter called "JNP"), and the CITY OF NEW ARK, a California 

corporation (hereinafter called "City"). 

WITNESS ETH 

WHEREAS, the CITY OF NEW ARK desires to expand and improve the recreational and 

cultural opportunities of the residents of the City of Newark; and 

WHEREAS, the CITY OF NEW ARK has determined that a summer concert series 

would serve to so expand the recreational and cultural opportunities of the residents of the City 

of Newark; and 

WHEREAS, the CITY OF NEW ARK has determined that an experienced and 

professional production company is necessary to produce the summer concert series; and 

WHEREAS, JOEL NELSON, JOEL NELSON PRODUCTIONS, INC., offers the special 

knowledge and professional expertise to produce the summer concert series; 

NOW THEREFORE, the CITY OF NEW ARK and JOEL NELSON, JOEL NELSON 

PRODUCTIONS, INC., do hereby agree as follows: 

1. JNP shall provide live musical entertainment in a professional manner at Shirley 

Sisk Grove, at Cedar Boulevard, at New Park Mall, in the City of Newark, on 

Friday evenings, June 24, 2016; July 8, 2016; July 22, 2016 and August 5, 

2016. 

2. All acts, bands, entertainers and talents shall be selected by a joint conm1ittee 

from City and JNP. Final decisions will be based upon quality, availability, and 

costs. 

3. JNP will provide City with duly executed copy of JNP 's contracts with all 

entertainers 60 days prior to the date of the first concert, which is scheduled for 

June 24, 2016. 

4. In addition to its duties pursuant to Paragraph I hereof, JNP shall: 

JoelNelsonAgreen1ent2016 1 



a. Provide staff to be available by telephone, computer, and mobile telephone 

to respond to needs and questions pertaining to the concert series at all 

reasonable times from the date of execution hereof to August 18, 2016. 

b. Provide an on-site sound and stage manager at all concerts to coordinate 

and execute technical requirements. 

c. Provide setup, installation, and maintenance of a stage for each concert to 

include one additional date of use on Sunday, July 17, 2016 for Mariachi 

Festival. Stage to be of professional quality, will meet all ADA 

requirements and will include scaffolding, shade roof, backing, and 

plywood skirt. All surfaces to be painted black. Stage must be installed at 

least one week prior to the first scheduled concert to be held Friday, June 

24, 2016. 

d. Provide setup, installation, and maintenance of all sound, audio, lighting, 

and electrical equipment for each concert. All equipment shall be of 

professional quality and meet or exceed all safety requirements. 

e. Provide the City with a certificate of insurance showing worker's 

compensation insurance as required by the Labor Code of the State of 

California and Employer's Liability Insurance for all JNP personnel. 

f. JNP hereby agrees to defend, indemnify, and save harmless City, its 

Council, boards, commissions, officers, employees and agents, from and 

against any and all claims, suits, actions, liability, loss, damage, expense, 

cost (including, without limitation, costs and fees of litigation) of every 

nature, kind or description, which may be brought against, or suffered or 

sustained by, City, its Council, boards, commissions, officers, employees 

or agents caused by, or alleged to have been caused by, the negligence, 

intentional tortuous acts or omission, or willful misconduct of JNP, its 

officers, employees or agents in the performance of any services or work 

pursuant to this Agreement. 

The duty of JNP to indemnify and save harmless, as set forth herein, shall 

include the duty to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the California 

Civil Code; provided, however, that nothing herein contained shall be 

2 



construed to require JNP to indemnify City, its Council, boards, 

commissions, officers, employees and agents against any responsibility or 

liability in contravention of Section 2782 of the California Civil Code. 

Approval of the insurance contracts does not relieve JNP or subcontractors 

from liability under this paragraph, including but not limited to the duty to 

indemnify City set forth herein. By execution of this Agreement JNP 

acknowledges and agrees that it has read and understands the provisions 

hereof and that this paragraph is a material element of consideration. 

g. Procure and maintain for the duration of the contract, insurance against 

claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise 

from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by 

JNP, his agents, subcontractors, representatives, or employees. 

(1) Minimum Scope ofhlsurance 

Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 

(a) Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability 

coverage (occurrence Form CG 0001). 

(b) Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering 

Automobile Liability, Code l (any auto). 

( c) Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State 

of California and Employer's Liability Insurance. 

(2) Minimum Limits oflnsurance 

JNP shall maintain limits no less than: 

(a) General Liability: $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily 

injury, personal injury, and property damage (including 

operations, products and completed operations, as 

applicable). If Commercial General Liability Insurance or 

other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the 

general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this 

project/location or the general aggregate limit shall be 

twice the required occurrence limit. 

3 



(b) Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 per accident for bodily 

injury and property damage. 

(c) Employer's Liability: $1,000,000 per accident for bodily 

injury or disease. 

(d) Errors and Omissions Liability: NOT REQUIRED. 

(3) Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions 

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and 

approved by the City. At the option of the City, either: the insurer 

shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions 

as respects the City, its officers, officials, employees, and 

volunteers; or JNP shall provide a financial guarantee satisfactory 

to the City guaranteeing payment of losses and related 

investigations, claim administration and defense expenses. 

( 4) Acceptability of Insurers 

Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's 

rating ofno less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to the 

City. 

( 5) Verification of Coverage 

JNP shall furnish City with original certificates and amendatory 

endorsements effecting coverage required by this clause. The 

endorsements should be on forms provided by the City, or on other 

than the City's forms, those endorsements must conform to City 

requirements. All certificates and endorsements are to be received 

and approved by the City before work commences. The City 

reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all 

required insurance policies, including endorsements affecting the 

coverage required by these specifications at any time. 

( 6) Other Insurance Provisions 

The commercial general liability and automobile liability policies 

are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 

4 



(a) Additional Insured's. The City, its officers, officials, 

employees and volunteers are to be covered as insured: 

liability arising out of work or operations perfo1med by or 

on behalf of JNP; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or 

borrowed by JNP. 

(b) Primary Insurance. For any claims related to this project, 

the JNP 's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as 

respects the City, its officers, officials, employees and 

volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by 

the City, its officers, employees or volunteers shall be 

excess pf JNP's insurance and shall not be contribute with 

it. 

( c) Notice of Cancellation. Each insurance policy required by 

this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not 

be canceled by either party, except after thirty (30) days' 

prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt 

requested, has been given to the City. 

( d) Civil Code § 2782. Coverage shall not extend to any 

indenmity coverage for the active negligence of the 

additional insured in any case where an agreement to 

indemnify the additional insured would be invalid under 

Subdivision (b) of Section 2782 of the Civil Code. 

( e) Qualifications. All insurance companies providing 

coverage to JNP shall be insurance organizations 

authorized by the Insurance Commissioner of the State of 

California to transact the business of insurance in the State 

of California. 

(f) Subcontractors. JNP shall include all subcontractors as 

insured under its policies or shall furnish separate 

certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor. All 

coverage's for subcontractors shall be subject to all of the 

requirements stated herein. 

5 



(g) Waiver of subrogation. With respect to Workers' 

Compensation and Employer's Liability Coverage, the 

insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against 

the City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers 

for losses arising from work performed by JNP for the City. 

(h) Coverage is material element. Maintenance of proper 

insurance coverage in conformity with the provisions of 

this paragraph is a material element of this Agreement and 

failure to maintain or renew coverage or to provide 

evidence of coverage or renewal may be treated by City as 

a material breach of this Agreement. 

(i) Variation. The Risk Manager of City may approve a 

variation in those insurance requirements upon 

determination that the coverage, scope, limits and form of 

such insurance are either not commercially available or that 

the City's interest are otherwise fully protected. 

h. If any damage (including death, personal injury or property damage) 

occurs in connection with the performance of this Agreement, JNP shall 

immediately notify the City Risk Manger's office by telephone at 

510-578-4300, and JNP shall promptly submit to the City's Risk Manager 

a written report (in a fo1m acceptable to the City) with the following 

information: (a) name and address of the injured or deceased person(s), 

(b) name and address of witnesses, ( c) name and address of JNP 's 

insurance company, and ( d) a detailed description of the damage and 

whether any City property was involved. 

5. In consideration of the services to be provided by JNP, the City shall pay to JNP a 

fee of $25,250.00. Said fee is all-inclusive and represents all agency and 

contracting fees. All expenditures over and above the agreement amount shall be 

approved in written form prior to the expenditure. Receipts shall be provided for 

all purchases and services. Said fee shall be payable as follows: 

6 



a. $5,050.00 upon mutual execution of this agreement; 

b. $5,050.00 on or after June 24, 2016; 

c. $5,050.00 on or after July 8, 2016; 

d. $5,050.00 on or after July 22, 2016; 

e. $5,050.00 on or after August 5, 2016 

6. In addition to the foregoing, the City's duties in regards to said concerts shall be 

to prepare the site, provide for audience, provide electrical power on the site, and 

provide audience security and crowd control. 

7. Additionally, the City shall provide if requested by JNP, dressing room 

accommodations, and refreshments as deemed reasonable for each performance. 

8. JNP will provide the City ofNewark by February 19, 2016 the following 

information for each performer for each of the four scheduled concerts: 

a. One electronic publicity photo or artwork in jpeg format sent via email or 

provided on disk. 

b. Professional background on all performers. 

9. JNP is an independent contractor and not an employee or servant of the City. 

10. All persons not a party to this Agreement with whom JNP may contract in order 

to perform its duties under this Agreement, including but not limited to acts, 

bands, and entertainers and talents, are not employees or servants of the City nor 

do said persons have any contractual relationship with the City. 

11. JNP agrees to comply with all federal, state, and local laws and ordinances. 

12. JNP represents and wan-ants to City that it has all licenses, permits, and approvals 

of whatsoever nature that is legally required for JNP and the concert performers to 

perform this Agreement, including but not limited to payment of all royalties 

necessary to perform musical compositions or other copyright protected 

intellectual property. JNP represents and warrants to City that JNP shall, at its 

sole cost and expense, acquire and keep in effect at all times during the term of 

this Agreement any licenses, permits and approvals, which are legally required for 

JNP and the concert performers to perform this Agreement. In addition to the 

foregoing, JNP shall obtain and maintain the term hereof a valid City of Newark 

Business License. 

7 



JNP 

13. Time is of the essence. 

14. The parties agree that this Agreement shall be construed pursuant to the laws of 

the State of California and that in the event of any litigation regarding the 

perfmmance of or the terms and conditions of this Agreement, venue shall be 

within the Fremont-Newark-Union City Municipal Court, or the Alameda County 

Superior Court, South County Branch, Hayward, California. 

15. This instrument contains the entire Agreement of the pmiies. It may be modified 

only by an agreement in writing duly executed by the pmiies hereto. 

CITY OF NEW ARK 
a California Municipal Corporation 

By: ____________ _ 
JOEL NELSON, 

By: ____________ _ 
MAYOR 

JOEL NELSON PRODUCTIONS, lNC. 

ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

CITY ATTORNEY 

8 



F.3 Acceptance of work with G. Bortolotto & Company, Inc. for 2015 Asphalt Concrete 
Street Overlay Program, Project 1093 - from Associate Civil Engineer Tran. 

(RESOLUTION) 

Background/Discussion - On July 23, 2015, the City Council awarded a contract to 
G. Bartolotto & Company, Inc. for 2015 Asphalt Concrete Street Overlay Program, Project 1093. 
This project provided localized patch paving, pavement grinding, surfacing paving, and re
striping on various City streets and parking lots. 

This project was completed on time and within the original budget using Alameda County 
Measure B Sales Tax funds, Vehicle Registration Fee funds, and the Traffic Congestion Relief 
Fund. The parking lot maintenance portion of the project was funded with Capital funds. 

Attachment 

Action - It is recommended that the City Council, by resolution, accept the work with G. 
Bartolotto & Company, Inc. for 2015 Asphalt Concrete Street Overlay Program, Project 1093. 

Report 
City Council Meeting 

Thursday 
February 25, 2016 

F.3 



RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
NEW ARK ACCEPTING THE WORK WITH G. BORTOLOTTO 
& COMPANY, INC. FOR 2015 ASPHALT CONCRETE 
STREET OVERLAY PROGRAM, PROJECT I 093 

WHEREAS, the City of Newark has entered into a contract with G. Bortolotto & 
Company, Inc., Inc., pursuant to Resolution No. 10412, for 2015 Asphalt Concrete Street 
Overlay Program, Project I 093, in the City of Newark, in accordance with plans and 
specifications for the contract; and 

WHEREAS, said work has been completed in conformance with the plans and 
specifications of the contract hereinabove referred to and the conditions thereof; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that said work is hereby accepted and the City 
Council does hereby authmize the release of bonds guaranteeing completion of the work, the 
filing of a Notice of Completion, and payment to the contractor pursuant to the contract. 

Ttr 



F.4 Initiation of the 2016 Weed Abatement Program and setting April 14, 2016 for a 
public hearing - from Deputy Fire Marshal Guier/ Maintenance Supervisor 
Hornbeck. (RESOLUTION) 

Background/Discussion - The annual weed abatement program abates weeds on vacant 
commercial and industrial properties not maintained by the prope1ty owners as directed by the 
Fire Marshal. The abatement work consists of tractor mowing, supplemented with manual labor 
to clear weeds abutting fences and remove debris to facilitate the tractor work. There are 139 
industrial, residential and commercial parcels that have large areas of vacant ground that host 
seasonal weeds that could become a fire hazard. These parcels are located throughout the City. 

Property owners have the option to make their own arrangements for weed and debris removal. 
They must get the work completed prior to the schedule set for the City's contractor. The City's 
contractor is scheduled to perform weed abatement work in May and June. Property owners will 
be asked to return a pre-paid postcard to the City indicating that they will abate their own weeds. 
Alameda County Fire Department staff will inspect the properties prior to the abatement of the 
weeds. This provides sufficient opportunity for the property owners to perform their own work. 
All properties that the City performs the abatement work on will be assessed the full cost of that 
work, including administration costs. 

If necessary, an additional fall program will be scheduled to abate seasonal weeds, like 
tumbleweeds and re-growth of weeds that occur during the summer months. Prior to any 
supplemental fall weed abatement work, the City will provide written notices to the affected 
property owners. A second public hearing for the fall program is not required. 

Attachment 

Action - It is recommended that the City Council, by resolution, find and declare that weeds 
growing on specified properties are seasonal and recurrent nuisances; and rubbish, refuse, and 
dirt upon parkways, sidewalks, or private prope1ty in the City of Newark are public nuisances 
and must be abated and setting April 14, 2016 for a public heating. 

Report 
City Council Meeting 

Thursday 
February 25, 2016 

F.4 



RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF NEWARK FINDING AND DECLARING THAT 
WEEDS GROWING ON SPECIFIED PROPERTIES ARE 
SEASONAL AND RECURRENT NUISANCES; AND 
RUBBISH, REFUSE, AND DIRT UPON PARKWAYS, 
SIDEWALKS, OR PRIVATE PROPERTY IN THE CITY 
OF NEW ARK ARE PUBLIC NUISANCES AND MUST 
BE ABATED, AND SETTING APRIL 14, 2016 FOR A 
PUBLIC HEARING 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Newark hereby finds and determines 
that weeds are growing upon the streets, sidewalks, or private property in the City of 
Newark as hereinafter described, and that rubbish, refuse, and dirt is upon its parkways, 
sidewalks, or private property hereinafter described in the City of Newark and that said 
City Council hereby declares that all weeds are growing upon the streets, sidewalks, or 
private property in said City and all rubbish, refuse, and dirt in parkways, or private 
property in the said City are a public nuisances and the same are hereby ordered abated in 
the manner provided in Section 39560 to Section 39586, inclusive, of the Government 
Code of the State of California: and 

WHERAS, the name of said streets, parkways, sidewalks, and private properties 
are contained in Schedule "A, " attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference and 
made a part of this resolution as though set forth at length; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Clerk is hereby directed to 
mail written notices of the proposed abatement to all persons owning property described 
in this resolution, said written notice to be mailed to each person to whom such described 
property is assessed in the last equalized assessment roll available on the date this 
resolution is adopted by the City Council. The City Clerk shall complete said mailing at 
least five (5) days prior to the time for hearing of objections by the legislative body. The 
notice shall be substantially in the form provided by Section 39566 of the Government 
Code of the State of California, except that notices shall be signed by the City Clerk and 
the heading of the notice need not comply with Section 39565 of the Government Code; 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a public hearing to hear objections to the 
proposed removal of weeds, rubbish, refuse, and dirt will be held by the City Council at 
its regular meeting of April 14, 2016. 



MAP APN OWNER LOCATION 

1 92A-0720-005-10 PRESBYTERY OF SAN FRANCISCO 35450 NEWARK BOULEVARD 

2 092-0005-029-09 RAYLENE PIAZZO 6844 MAYHEWS LANDING RD. 

3 092-0131-001-09 FILBERT STREET DEVELOPMENT LLC FILBERT STREET AT SNOW 

3.1 092-0131-002-04 FILBERT STREET DEVELOPMENT LLC 37243 FILBERT STREET 

3.2 092-0131-003-00 FILBERT DEVELOPMENT LLC 37257 FILBERT STREET 

4 092-0021-015-03 BSL CORPORATION SYCAMORE STREET NEAR GEORGE 

5 092-0024-010-00 MARIA L. MARTINS SYCAMORE STREET NEAR 7303 DAIRY 

6 092-0029-022-00 ADELINE CALDEIRA TRS 36952 MULBERRY STREET 

7 092-0045-011-00 ENRIQUE & ESTHER GUERRERO MAGNOLIA STREET NEAR RICH 

8 092-0030-014-03 D & J MELVILLE & P & D CHANG 6717 THORNTON AVENUE 

9 092-0030-018-04 PAUL F. MERRILL 6781 THORNTON AVENUE 

9.1 092-0030-017-02 PAUL F. MERRILL 6765 THORNTON AVENUE 

10 092-0032-003-00 ALAN L DANG DAIRY AVENUE BETWEEN 36805 & 36926 

11 092-0041-008-03 UNION PACIFIC- REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.1 092-0024-017-00 UNION PACIFIC - REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.10 537-0521-008-01 UNION PACIFIC - REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.11 537-0521-008-02 UNION PACIFIC - REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.12 537-0521-009-02 UNION PACIFIC - REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.13 092-0054-003-00 UNION PACIFIC- REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.14 092-0200-015-01 UNION PACIFIC - REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.15 092-0253-001-00 UNION PACIFIC- REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.16 92A-2165-006-00 UNION PACIFIC - REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.17 92A-2300-007-00 UNION PACIFIC - REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 



11.18 92A-2300-006-14 UNION PACIFIC - REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.19 92A-2500-005-00 UNION PACIFIC - REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.2 092-0021-016-01 UNION PACIFIC - REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.20 92A-2500-004-00 UNION PACIFIC - REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.21 537-0850-021-00 UNION PACIFIC - REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.22 537-0850-020-00 UNION PACIFIC- REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.23 537-0850-019-00 UNION PACIFIC - REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.24 537-0850-018-00 UNION PACIFIC - REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.25 537-0850-017-00 UNION PACIFIC - REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.26 092-0054-002-00 UNION PACIFIC - REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.27 092-0068-003-02 UNION PACIFIC - REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.28 092-0069-002-02 UNION PACIFIC - REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.29 092-0069-003-00 UNION PACIFIC- REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.3 092-0021-016-02 UNION PACIFIC - REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.30 092-0067-012-05 UNION PACIFIC - REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.31 092-0067-014-00 UNION PACIFIC - REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.32 092-0067-019-00 UNION PACIFIC - REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.33 092-0067-020-00 UNION PACIFIC - REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.34 092-0065-002-00 UNION PACIFIC - REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.35 092-0064-010-00 UNION PACIFIC- REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.36 92A-1 095-129-00 UNION PACIFIC - REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.37 92A-1100-058-00 UNION PACIFIC - REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.38 92A-1105-014-00 UNION PACIFIC - REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.39 92A-2000-004-00 UNION PACIFIC - REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.4 092-0015-004-00 UNION PACIFIC - REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.40 92A-2010-002-00 UNION PACIFIC- REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 



11.41 092-0127-021-00 UNION PACIFIC - REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.42 092-0127-020-00 UNION PACIFIC - REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.43 092-0067-012-05 UNION PACIFIC - REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.5 92A-0506-107-00 UNION PACIFIC - REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.6 92A-0506-106-00 UNION PACIFIC - REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.7 92A-0501-030-00 UNION PACIFIC - REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.8 92A-0502-090-00 UNION PACIFIC - REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

11.9 92A-0620-061-00 UNION PACIFIC - REAL ESTATE SP RAILROAD R-0-W 

12 92A-2143-041-00 AMELIA SILVEY 6163 ROBERTSON AVENUE 

14 537-0850-002-00 PICK-N-PULL AUTO DISMANTLERS 7400 MOWRY AVENUE 

15 537-0460-007-25 H AZ.AD & B PIRGHIBI ETAL 6953 JARVIS AVENUE 

17 092-0145-011-00 JASON B EGGERT ET AL 7978 WELLS AVENUE 

18 901-0111-009-00 A&P CHILDRENS INVESTMENTS LLC 3970 CEDAR BOULEVARD 

19 092A-2165-009-04 PASCO BUILDING PRODUCTS REDEKER PLACE AT CHERRY 

20 92A-0501-034-13 SF BAY WILDLIFE REFUGE c/o J. Bradley CEDAR BOULEVARD 

S & P TRETTIN FAMILY TRUST (Steve 

22 092-0075-001-09 Trenton} MULBERRY STREET AT CLARK 

22.1 092-0075-001-03 S & P TRETTIN FAMILY TRUST MULBERRY STREET AT CLARK 

22.2 092-007 4-001-04 S & P TRETTIN FAMILY TRUST MULBERRY STREET AT CLARK 

22.3 092-0074-001-09 S & P TRETTIN FAMILY TRUST CLARK AVENUE AT MULBERRY 

22.4 092-0074-001-08 S & P TRETTIN FAMILY TRUST CLARK AVENUE AT MULBERRY & OLIVE 

22.5 092-0074-001-01 S & P TRETTIN FAMILY TRUST CLARK AVENUE AT OLIVE 

24 092-0075-004-02 SARWAT & COLETTE FAHMY TRS CHERRY STREET 

24.1 092-0075-005-02 SARWAT & COLETTE FAHMY TRS CHERRY STREET 

25 092-0210-002-01 MORTON SALT INC. - HARRY SHAH CENTRAL AVENUE & MORTON 

26 537-0460-007-28 FRANCISCAN GLASS COMPANY 35255 FIRCREST STREET 



26.1 537-0460-021-01 FRANCISCAN GLASS COMPANY FIRCREST STREET 

27 092-0083-009-00 CHAND KIRAN 36915 LOCUST STREET 

28 92A-2300-006-12 SKW MBT OPERATIONS INC. ( BASF) 38403 CHERRY STREET 

29 92A-0750-008-00 HOLY REDEEMER LUTHERAN CHURCH 35660 CEDAR BOULEVARD 

30 92A-2143-042-00 QIU MIAN 6179 ROBERTSON AVENUE 

31 901-0185-018-00 SI XVIII LLC CHERRY STREET LOT 1 

31.1 901-0185-023-00 SI XVIII LLC CHERRY STREET LOT 2 

31.2 901-0185-024-00 SI XVIII LLC STEVENSON BOULEVARD 

32 92A-0462-125-00 SATISH KUMAR & KESHI L. 8215 THORNTON AVENUE 

33 901-0188-006-00 LION NEWARK SHOPPING CNTR. 39055 CEDAR BOULEVARD 

34 092-0126-019-00 SMCTD SMCTD RAILROAD R-0-W LOCUST & ELM 

34.1 092-0125-017-00 SMCTD SMCTD RAILROAD R-0-W WALNUT & LOCUST 

34.2 092-0124-022-00 SMCTD SMCTD RAILROAD R-0-W SPRUCE & WALNUT 

34.3 092-0119-099-00 SMCTD SMCTD RAILROAD R-0-W SPRUCE 

34.4 092-0100-008-02 SMCTD SMCTD RAILROAD R-0-W WILLOW 

34.5 092-0100-008-01 SMCTD SMCTD RAILROAD R-0-W WEST OF WILLOW 

35 537-0852-001-02 FMC CORPORATION 8787 ENTERPRISE DR. 

36 092-0115-011-00 FMC CORPORATION 37445 WILLOW STREET 

36.1 092-0100-004-02 FMC CORPORATION WILLOW STREET NORTH OF ENTERPRISE 

37 92A-0465-045-04 RONALD MILLER ETAL 7721 SUNSET AVENUE 

38 92A-0720-025-00 MAURICE LADRECH LIVING TRUST 35178 NEWARK BOULEVARD 

39 92A-2143-040-01 ARBUTUS & DAVID MILANI ROBERTSON AVENUE AND HONEYSUCKLE 

40.1 092-0116-059-00 NEWARK ENTERPRISE JOINT VENTURE L WILLOW STREET 



40.2 092-0116-058-00 NEWARK ENTERPRISE JOINT VENTURE LI 8400 ENTERPRISE DRIV E 

41 92A-2143-039-00 AMELIA SILVEY 6139 ROBERTSON AVENUE 

43 537-0850-003-00 NEWARK PARTNERS LLC MOWRY AVENUE WEST OF TRACKS 

43.1 537-0850-004-00 NEWARK PARTNERS LLC MOWRY AVENUE WEST OF TRACKS 

44 092-0124-014-00 TOMAS & CONCEPCION M. SIERRA RAILROAD AVENUE SPRUCE & WALNUT 

45 092-0125-010-00 STANLEY R. CHERRY TRS 7843 RAILROAD AVE BETWEEN LOCUST & WALNUT 

46 901-011 1-004-00 SYUFY ENTERPRISES BALENTINE DRIVE 

47 92A-1036-029-02 ASHIT JAIN 6214 THORNTON AVENUE 

48 092-0134-002-00 LOUIE FAY TR RAILROAD AVE BETWEEN LOCUST & ELM 

49 092-0135-023-00 SEAMONKEY LLC WALNUT STREET CORNER LOT 

51 092-0119-015-00 CAROL A. DAVIS 8084 THORNTON AVE. 

53 92A-1036-031-02 JOHN JR & SHIRLEY ELIZARREY TRS 6152 THORNTON AVENUE 

54 092A-1036-041 -00 JOSEPH & LILY AU TRS NEWARK BOULEVARD AND CIVIC TERR 

55 092-0252-001-00 NORDSTROM, INC. 37599 FILBERT STREET 

56 092A-2141 -032-00 LEI CHEN 37802 LOBELIA DRIVE 

57 092-0030-016-02 CLARENCE & DOROTHY MARTIN TRS 6749 THORNTON AVENUE 

58 092-0041-002-01 SIMON TANIOS 36964 ASH STREET 

61 92A-2586-076-00 YU-JEH L. WANG BI RCH STREET ON CEDAR 

62 092-0100-007-05 CITY & CO SF WATER DEPT W ILLOW STREET 

62 092-0100-007-05 CITY & CO SF WATER DEPT WILLOW STREET 

62.1 092-0140-003-02 CITY & CO SF WATER DEPT WILLOW STREET 

62.10 92A-2357-031-00 CITY & CO SF WATER DEPT WILLOW STREET 

62.11 92A-2416-015-00 CITY & CO SF WATER DEPT W ILLOW STREET 

62.12 92A-2416-013-00 CITY & CO SF WATER DEPT WILLOW STREET 



62.13 92A-2585-002-00 CITY & CO SF WATER DEPT WILLOW STREET 

62.14 92A-2585-027-00 CITY & CO SF WATER DEPT WILLOW STREET 

62.15 92A-2588-002-01 CITY & CO SF WATER DEPT WILLOW STREET 

62.2 092-0116-004-00 CITY & CO SF WATER DEPT WILLOW STREET 

62.3 092-0145-010-01 CITY & CO SF WATER DEPT WILLOW STREET 

62.4 092-0146-023-00 CITY & CO SF WATER DEPT WILLOW STREET 

62.5 092-0068-001-00 CITY & CO SF WATER DEPT WILLOW STREET 

62.6 092-0074-002-00 CITY & CO SF WATER DEPT WILLOW STREET 

62.7 092-0074-002-00 CITY & CO SF WATER DEPT WILLOW STREET 

62.8 092-0075-007-00 CITY & CO SF WATER DEPT WILLOW STREET 

62.9 92A-2141-002-00 CITY & CO SF WATER DEPT WILLOW STREET 

63 92A-0623-043-00 STEPHEN SCHIRLE 36569 NEWARK BLVD 

65 092-012701-300 PKA PHARMACEUTICAL INC. 37079 ASH ST. 

66 537-085201-100 DUMBARTON AREA 2LLC ENTERPRISE DR. AT HICKORY 

67 92011500500 ASHLAND 8610 ENTERPRISE DR. 

68 092 014000600 ENTERPRISE DR. LLC 8333 ENTERPRISE DR. 

69 092 003001300 36951 MULBERRY ST. 36951 MULBERRY ST. 

70 092A258800704 COUNTY OF ALAMEDA TIMBER ST. AT CEDAR CT. 

71 092 010001103 UNITED STATES OF AMERICA THORNTON AVE 



F.5 Authorization for the Mayor to sign an Amendment to extend the Auditing 
Services Agreement with Badawi & Associates - from Administrative Services 
Director Woodstock. (RESOLUTION) 

Background/Discussion - Various financing covenants and government grants require an 
annual audit by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA), of the financial transactions 
and records of the City. 

In 2009, the City awarded the contract for independent auditing services to the firm of Caporicci 
and Larson. This company was acquired by a larger accounting firm and subsequently divided. 
Since the award of this contract, three (3) different firms have prepared the City's annual audit. 
The last assignment of the contract was in 2012 to Badawi & Associates. They have 
satisfactorily prepared four ( 4) annual audits for the City. 

The existing contract expires with the completion of the Fiscal Year 2015 audit. The attached 
amendment will extend the contract up to two (2) additional years, in one year increments. The 
City Manager will be authorized to exercise the option for the 2016-17 Fiscal Year. 

Attachment 

Action - It is recommended that the City Council, by resolution, approve the Amendment to the 
Agreement between the City of Newark and Badawi & Associates to authorize a two (2) year 
extension, in one year increments. 

Report 
City Council Meeting 

Thursday 
February 25, 216 

F.5 



RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
NEW ARK APRROVING THE AMENDMENT TO THE 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF NEW ARK AND 
BADAWI & ASSOCIATES TO AUTHORIZE A TWO YEAR 
EXTENSION, IN ONE YEAR INCREMENTS 

WHEREAS, the City and Caporicci & Larson ("Consultant") entered into a certain 
Agreement between City and Consultant for Auditing Services effective May 14, 2009 
(Agreement); and 

WHEREAS, Caporicci & Larson merged with Marcum LLP in 2010 and began doing 
business as Caporicci & Larson, A Subsidiary of Marcum LLP ("Marcum"); and 

WHEREAS, the contract was assigned to Badawi & Associates May 25, 2012 and 
extended in 2014; and 

WHEREAS, Badawi & Associates have satisfactorily prepared four ( 4) audits for the 
City; and 

WHEREAS, the City intends, upon mutual written agreement by both parties to allow the 
Agreement to be extended up to two (2) additional years, in one year increments. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Newark 
authorizes the Mayor to sign an Amendment to the Agreement between the City of Newark and 
Badawi & Associates to authorize a two (2) year extension, in one year increments. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Manager, or his designee, will be 
authorized to exercise the option for the 2016-2017 Fiscal Year. 

04262012 swrl 



SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF NEW ARK AND BADAWI & ASSOCIATES FOR 
AUDITING SERVICE TO AUTHORIZE A TWO YEAR 
EXTENSION 

This Amendment to the Agreement for Auditing Services is effective as of February 25, 
2016, by and between the City of Newark and Badawi & Associates. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the City and Caporicci & Larson ("Consultant") entered into a certain 
Agreement between City and Consultant for Auditing Services effective May 14, 2009 
(Agreement); and 

WHEREAS, Caporicci & Larson merged with Marcum LLP in 2010 and began doing 
business as Caporicci & Larson, A Subsidiary of Marcum LLP ("Marcum"); and 

WHEREAS, the staff from Marcum that handles the account for the City of Newark has 
established a new firm called Badawi & Associates; and 

WHEREAS, the contract was assigned to Badawi & Associates May 25, 2012; and 

WHEREAS, an amendment to the assigned contract was approved February 13, 2014 to 
extend the contract up to two (2) years; and 

WHEREAS, Badawi & Associates have satisfactorily prepared four (4) annual audits for 
the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City intends, upon mutual written agreement by both parties to allow the 
Agreement to be extended up to two (2) additional years, in one year increments. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, inconsideration of the foregoing recitals and other good and 
valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties 
agree as follows: 

(I) Notwithstanding Section 16 of the Agreement and it's Amendment that allows the Pmties 
to agree to a two (2) year extension in one year increments, the parties hereby agree to 
extend the term of the Agreement by one year so as to include audit services more 
particularly described in the "Scope of Work" (Exhibit A of the original Agreement) for 
Fiscal Year 2015-2016. 

(2) The parties additionally agree to a one year option for audit services for Fiscal Year 2016-
2017, to be exercised at the City's sole discretion. 

Contracts/Badawi & Associates/2012 Assignment 



( 

( 

(3) The cost data sheet contained in Exhibit Bin the 2014 Amendment to the Agreement is 
hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the cost data sheet attached hereto. 

The Second Amendment of the Agreement for Auditing Services has been executed by the 
parties as of the date first set forth above. 

CITY OF NEW ARK 
a municipal c01poration 

Date 

Alan Nagy 
Mayor 

-------

Attest: 
City Clerk 

Date 
-------

Approved as to fmm: 

City Attorney 

Date: 

Contracts/Badawl & Associales/2012 Assignment 

BAD A WI & ASSOCIATES 
a California professional corporation 

By_~'--,--~~~~ 
Name: .,Al,w-e cl D c.1d. ~ ui i 
Title: I:''{ q S: 1 J t --\ 

Date: 9-/ If!./ 2 ol 6 ----~ 



Audit Scope 
and 

Provisions 

- Caporicci & Larson, CP As 

City of Newark 

Exhibit A 

Audit Proposal 

Understanding of Requested Services 

The City desires an audit and an expression of an opinion in accordance with generally accepted 
auditing standards on the fairness of presentation of financial· statements for the City, 
Redevelopment Agency, Appropriation Lim.it Report, Transportation Development Act, Measure B 
and Single Audit for the fiscal years ending June 2009, 2010, and 2011, with the option to extend 
for two subsequent years. · 

The audit of these financial statements shall be conducted in accordance with generally accepted 
auditing standards as set forth by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the 
standards for financial audits set forth in the U.S. Government Accountability Office's Government 
Auditing Standards, and standards established by other authoritative bodies. 

The City receives levels of federal financial assistance which require an audit to be conducted in 
accordance with the Single Audit Act of 1984, as amended, and 0MB Circular A-133, as amended, 
relating to compliance with various laws and regulations and proper Internal control. 

The preparation of any financial reports will be consistent with requirements of the CSMFO and 
GFOA certification procedures and guidelines. 

Should any conditions be discovered req',liring corrective action, the Firm will provide a detailed 
description of the findings and recom·mended actions as to their resolution. 

The Firm will submit a letter to the City Council and management detailing any significant 
deficiencies or material weaknesses found during the audit Non-material Instances of 
noncompliance will be reported In a separate management letter, if appropriate, along with any 
other observations or recommendations determined to be informative to the City's management 

The Firm will be available to provide advice and counsel regarding significant matters during the 
year. 

The Firm's Partners and Staff welcome the opportunity to make presentations to the City Council 
and will be ready to respond to questions from the Council and the management of the City. 

The specific audit approach has been designed to efficiently and effectively address the audit 
requirements of the City, to perform the audit of the City's financial records in a timely manner with 
minimal disruptions to office operations, and to meet the City's timellne. 

We will conduct the necessary audit steps to perform: 

• Planning of the engagement. 
• Evaluation of the existing internal control environment to determine degree of risk 

of material misstatement: 
• Determination of degree of compliance with laws, regulations, grant provisions, and 

City approved policies. · 
• Assessment of potential fraudulent issues. 
• Validation of account balances. 
• Verification of.reasonableness of management estimates. 

Obiectlves of Our Services 

The basic objective of our audit of the City is to conduct an examination of the financial statements 
In accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and to express our opinion on the 
fairness of presentation· of such financial statements In conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles. 

21 



Caporicci & Larson, CP As 

City of Newark Audit Proposal 

Additionally, we believe that another real value of our audit lies In meeting other objectives at no 
additional cost. The following are other objectives of our services that have important benefits to 
the City: 

• To offer substantive observations and recommendations relating to accounting and 
operating control policies and procedures. 

• To identify opportunities for operating efficiencies and Isolate candidate activities 
for cost reduction opportunities. 

• To perform a professional audit in an efficient and effective way to minimize 
disruption to the office operations. 

• To offer ongoing advisory services to assist In the running of the operation and 
implementation of Improved operating procedures. 

The engagement will be conducted within the framework of the Firm's quality control program 
which Includes the use of audit programs, careful planning, use of computerized audit software and 
Internal control evaluation & documentation software, and objective review procedures. On-site 
staff will use Firm supplied portable computers and printers. 

Technical Approach 

We use an industry-specific audit approach tailored to governmental entities. Our governmental 
audit approach addresses the special risks and circumstances of local governments. As a resul~ 
the audit is conducted efficiently and effectively with minimal disruption to your staff. 

The core of our governmental technical audit approach can be summarized as follows: 

1. Planning. Understanding, and Communication: 
Based on our previous audit experience, using the budget, organizational charts, manuaii 
and other financial Information systems .and our knowledge of how governments work, we 
will obtain an insight Into the specific concerns and sensitivities of the City. Ou1 
understanding Is updated continuously through our year-round contact and communicatlor 
efforts. We will agree on common audit objectives and expectations with managemen 
before audit work begins and, throughout the audit, will meet regularly with management tc 
discuss audit Issues and to gather feedback. 

2. In-Depth Review of Systems and Controls: 
We have developed diagnostic reviews which enable us to evaluate your systems am 
controls, and to provide management with constructive feedback. Combined with ou 
knowledge of the City and understanding and experience with the City's accounting software 
our control review will form the basis of our audit risk assessment We will utilize the COSC 
approach In our evaluation of the City's internal processes to identify potential contrc 
deficiencies. In future years, we will update our understanding through similar procedures. 

3. Risk-Based Customized Testing Program: 
Our audit approach is tailored to governmental applications. We will use audit program 
specifically designed to address the operational environment of governmental entities. Ou 
approach will Identify potential control risks and the opportunities for risk of materi~ 
misstatements and fraud. We will evaluate the various risk assessments and identify th, 
potential risks on the 13 assertions relating to the: 

• Balance Sheets I Statement of Net Assets 
• Statement of Revenues and Expenditures I Statement of Activities 
• Presentation 
• Disclosure 

Our .audit procedures villl then be developed to address these risk areas. 

22 



,) 

Caporlcci & Larson, CP As 

City of Newark Audit Proposal 

4. Expanded Interim Fleldwork: 
Timeliness and audit efficiency are enhanced by performing extensive Interim work. 
Partners, managers, and senior staff work with City staff to Identify and resolve potential 
audit issues early. Accordingly, the amount of audit work to perform at year end is 
minimized. Because our audit staff is familiar with the operations before year-end fieldwork 
begins, disruption of accounting staff is minimized. 

5. Smooth Transition: . 
Our testing program focuses. on audit risks Identified by our understanding of the City's 
operations. We will work with the accounting staff to identify the most effective ways to 
address our objectives. Communication between the members of the audit engagement 
team and City staff will be fluid and continuous. 

6. Sample Size and Sampling Techniques; 
Our audit approach will include statistical sampling activities. Population size and the level of 
assurance to be derived from a particular test will dictate the sample size. We use sampling 
In. our audit approach to compliment skilled judgment and knowledge of the particular 
situation. 

1. Automated Systems: 
We will evaluate controls over the IT functions to assess control risk. We Intend· to test 
controls for purposes of reliance. Our review procedures will evaluate controls over: 

• . Security Management 
• Logical and Physical Access 
• Configuration Management 
• Segregation of Duties 
• Contingency Planning 

In addition, we will review controls over: 
• Input, processing, output, master data 
• Application interface · 
• Data management system Interface 

s. Analytical Procedures: 
We use analytical procedures in several aspects of our audit. Extensive knowledge and 
industry background are required for effective analysis, and our staff possesses the 
appropriate experience and knowledge for the City to benefit from these procedures. 

9. Approach to be Taken In Detennlnlna Laws and ReaulaUons SubJect to Audit Test 
Work: · 
We continuously refer to specific regulations, compliance supplements, state guidelines, and 
contracts currently In force. We perform the procedures required related to laws and 
regulations, using inquiries, observations, and sampling techniques. 

10. Report Fonnat; 
We will meet with City Management to review report formats. Any report format changes will 
be made in conjunction with approval from the City's management. 

11. Work Plans: 
The detailed work plans will be designed to efficiently and effectively address the audit 
requirements of the City In accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, to 
perform the audit of the City's financial records i.n a timely manner with minimal disruptions to 
office operations, and to meet the City's timellne. 

12. conctuslon: 
The City needs a team that can respond quickly and on schedule in order to meet Its needs. 
We can do just that. Because of our extensive government and compliance audit 
background, our planning efforts, and the involvement of our partners, we will minimize the 
City's staff time and produce the end result within the time frames required. 

23 



Caporicci & Larson, CP As 

City of Newark Audit Proposal 

Proposed Segmentation of the Engagement 

April, 2009 Award of Contract 

June, 2009 lnttrlm Audtt Proctdurto: 

• Planning ,nd Admlnlsltation · Partner 
Manager 

• Review end oblaln copies or key work papers of prior audtt firm. 
• Entrance Conference wllh !he City's management to discuss audit approach, 

timing, asalslance, and Issues. 
• Review and evaluate !he City's accounllng and financial reporting. Prepare an 

overall memo of recommendaUons, potential Issues, and suggestions for 
Improvements. 

• Prepare overall memo to City confirming audit procedures, timing, and assistance. 

• Prepare detailed audit WOik plan and audit programs, audit budget and staffing 
schedule, list of schedules to be prepared by City staff, and provide to !he City's 
management 

• lllflm,1 Control Evaluotion 

• Meeting wllh key Finance DMslon personnel. 
• Oblaln end document understanding or key lntamal conlrol systems lhrough walk

lhroughs, Interviews or sta~. and review of supporting documentaflon: 
, General ledgar systam. 

• Budgeting system. 

• Revenue, utility billing, eccounta receivable, end cash collscUons. 

, Purohaslng, expenditures, eccounts payable, end cash dlsburaements. 
, Payroll. 

, Federel Flnenclal Assistance. 

, Olher systama 

• Identity control risks. 
• Evaluate IT conlrol environment 

• Pe~orm tasting or !he Internal conlrol systam end evaluate !he effecUveness ol 
the City's systems. Select large dollar end random samples of transecUons In key 
operating systems. Sample size to meet required level for delermlned degree of 
risk. Review supporting documentallon or selecled transactions, evaluate 
adequacy of support and approval~ end conclude on degree of adherence to 
accuracy and oompllance with City pollclea. 

" Conduct fraud assessment procedures. 
• Asseas degree of risk for matertel misstatement 
• Provide to !he City's management a memo concerning management letter points 

and Identify Issues, W any. 

Partner 
Manager 
Senior 
Staff 

3 
3 

10 
23 
24 
48 



Caporlcci &: Larson, CP As 

City of Newark 

June, 2009 Compl/1nce 

• Single Audit (W Required/ 

• Entrance conference with Iha City's marnigemanl. 
• Obtain Federal Financial Assistance Schedule. 
• Determine grants to ba considered as major programs Including clustera . 
• 

Audit Proposal 

Partner 2 
Manager 4 
Senior 6 
Staff 12 

Pelform audit tests of major grant programs and compliance with Federal Lsw and· 
Regulations. 

• Identify sub-recipients and develop appropriate audit procedures consistent with 
0MB A-133 requirements. 

• Review grant documents, selecl sufficient number of transactions to test for 
compliance of Federal Requirements. 

• Coordinate Single Audit efforts with the Financial Audit efforts. 
• Communicate findings to the City's management. 
• Review drafts of Single Audit Report 
• Present draft of Single Audit Report to the City's management. 

• Redevelopment Agency 

• Perform compliance requirements as required. 

• Other Audit Tasks 

• Ravlew minutes of City Council meetings and other key committees. 
• Coordinate with City staff and prepare of all appropnata confirmation requests 

Including: 
·o Bank accounts. 
• Investment pool accounts. 
• Accounts rocalvable. 
• Federal grants. 

. , Revenue from governmental agencies. 
• Bond and other debts. 
• Pension plan. 
• Attorney letteni. 
• Otheni, as required. 

• Provide City with audit plan and ist of year end audit schedules. 
• Hold progress conference with the City's management. 
• Hold exit conference with the City's management. 

Partner 5 
Manager 
Senior 
Staff 

Partner 
Manager 
Senior 
Staff 

12 
12 
24 

1 
2 
2 
4 

25 



Caporlcci &: Larson, CP As 

City of Newark Audit Proposal 

Partner 36 

September, • Year-End Audit Procadures Manager 72 
Senior 72 2009 
Staff 144 

• Entrance conference wllh the City's management. 
• Follow-up on all outstanding confinnallons. 
• Verity and valldale account balances by reviewing supporting documenlallon 

Including Invoices, vouchers, board resolutlons, minutes, and other documents, as 
required. 

• Pertorm analytical review oi revenue and expenditures. Delennlne reason for 
malarial differences between budge! and eclual. 

• Pertorm a searoh for unrecorded llabllllles by reviewing dlabursemenla subsequent 

Oclober/ 
November, 2009 

to June 30, teallng terms of conlractua.1 obllgallons, and lnte<vlewlng City staff. 
• Pertorm review of subsequent events by discussions with Iha City's management 

and review of all minutes of County Council and key committees. 
• Hold extt conference with the City's management. 

• Audit Reports · 

• Review drafts of City financial statements, and prasent audit reports. 
• Prepara drafts of Redevelopment Agency's financial statements. 
• Prepare drafts of Measure B Fund financial statements. 
• Prepara drafts of Single Audit Reports concerning Internal control structure, 

compliance with laws and regulallons, and administering of federal financial 
assistance programs (II necessa,y}. 

• Prepare.draft of Proposition 111 Appropriallon Limit agreed-upon procedures 
opinion. · 

• Prepare draft of management letter points. 
• Present above draft reports to the City council. 

Within 6 worlclng Final Audit Reports, Financial Statamonta, M1n1g1mant Lollar daltvered, 
days after 
approval. 

Partner 3 
Manager 4 
Senior 4 
Staff 8 
Adm In 20 

Summary of Professional Audit Hours and Administrative Staff support for the Year Ending Jun, 
30, 2009: 

Partner 
Manager 

Senior 
Professional Staff 
Administrative Staff 

Total Hours · H 

60 
120 

120 
240 

20 

26 



Exhibit B 

City of 
Newark 

PRICING PROPOSAL 

For Professional Auditing Services 
for the City of Newark 
For fiscal year ending June 30, 2016 with the option to 
renew for one subsequent fiscal year 

January 26, 2016 

Contact Person: 

Ahmed Badawi, CPA 
Badawi & Associates 
Certified Public Accountants 
180 Grand Avenue, Suite 1500 
Oakland, CA 94612 
Phone: (510) 768-8244 
Fax: (510) 768-8249 
E-mail: abadawi@b-acpa.com 

..... 4~J~j~ BADAWl&ASSOCIATES 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNT ANTS .... 



City of Newark Pricing Proposal 

Name of Firm and Certification 

Name of Firm: Badawi & Associates 

Address: 180 Grand Avenue, Suite 1500 

City, State, Zip: Oakland, CA 94612 

Contact Name: Ahmed Badawi 

Contact Telephone Number(s): 510-768-8244 

Contact E-mail Address: abadawi@b-acpa.com 

I, the undersigned, certify I am duly authorized to represent the above named firm and am 
empowered to submit this bid. In addition, I certify I am authorized to contract with the City 
of Newark on behalf of the above named firm. 

Signature 

Ahmed M. Badawi 

Name (print) 

President 
Title 

1/26/2016 
Date 

Audit Work Cost Proposal Form 

Service 

City Audit and Related Reports 

Single Audit and Re lated Reports 

Successor Agency and related disclosure (SA} 

Transportation and Development Act (TDA} 

Measure B 

Measure BB 

Management Letter (Mgmt Ltr} 

Utilities Users' Tax Audit (UUT} 

Vehicle Registration Fee (VRF} Audit 

Newark Betterment Corporation (NBC} 

GANN Limit Review Report 

Print All Reports 

Gross Charges 

Less Discount 
Total for Fiscal Year 

(Not-to Exceed) 

... ~t~tii~ BADAWI &ASSOClATES 
CLR 111 1LL1 P.JIJL C ACCOUN AM IS ,,,. 

2015/16 2016/17 
$51,992 $53,552 

2,837 2,922 

2,575 2,652 

1,545 1,591 

1,545 1,591 

2,500 2,575 

1,545 1,591 

2,652 2,732 

2,652 2,732 

4,243 4,370 

515 530 

1,545 1,591 

76,146 78,430 

(13,450} (13,853} 

$62,696 $64,577 

1 



City of Newark Pricing Proposal 

Schedule of Rates and Estimated Hours of Each Labor Class 
For Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Professional Audit Services 

• • " • 
Hourly Hourly Total 

Labor Class Rate Rates Hours Total 

Partner-in-Charge 250 231 56 $ 12,936 

Technical Reviewer 250 220 11 2,310 

Engagement Manager 200 160 111 17,760 

Supervising Senior Auditor 150 135 144 19,440 

Staff Auditors 125 100 224 22,400 

Administrative 90 90 10 900 

I.T Specialist 150 100 4 400 

Discount (13,450) 

Total 560 $ 62,696 

Schedule of Estimated Hours of Each Labor Class 

Single Meas Meas Mgmt 

Labor Class City Audit GANN TOA B BB UUT VRF SA Ltr NBC Print 

Partner-in-Charge 44 3 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Techni ca I Reviewer 5 1 0 0.5 1 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 1 

Engagement Manager 95 6 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 

Supervising Senior Audit 90 20 1 3 4 4 4 4 2 2 10 

Staff Auditors 168 20 2 4 4 4 4 4 4 0 10 

Administrative 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

I.T Specia li st 4 
Total Estimated Hours 408 50 5 9.5 11 10.5 10.S 10.5 8.5 4.5 24 

Our fees are firm fixed prices that are based on an estimate of 560 hours to perform procedures 
necessary to provide the requested services. In determining our fees, we understand that the 
Authority's records will be in condition to be audited ; that is, transactions will be properly recorded in 
the general ledger and subsidiary records, these accounting records and the original source 
documents will be readily available to use, we will be furnished with copies of bank reconciliations, 
and other reconciliations and analyses prepared by the City and The City personnel will be 
reasonably available to explain procedures, prepare audit correspondence and obtain files and 
records. 

Circumstances may arise during the engagement that may significantly affect the targeted completion 
dates and our fee estimate. As a result, additional fees may be necessary, which we will 
communicate and discuss with the City. Such circumstances include but are not limited to the 
following: 

1. Changes to the timing of the engagement at your request. Changes to the timing of the 
engagement usually require reassignment of personnel used by Badawi & Associates ("the 

2 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 

8 

8 

Total 
Hours 

56 
11 

111 

144 
224 

10 
4 

560 



City of Newark Pricing Proposal 

Firm") in the performance of services hereunder. However, because it is often difficult to 
reassign individuals to other engagements, the Firm may incur significant unanticipated costs 

2. All requested schedules are not (a) provided by the accounting personnel on the date 
requested, (b) completed in a format acceptable to the Firm (c) mathematically correct, or (d) in 
agreement with the appropriate underlying records (e.g., general ledger accounts). The Firm 
will provide the accounting personnel with a separate listing of required schedules and 
deadlines. 

3. Weaknesses in the internal control structure. 

4. Significant new issues or unforeseen circumstances as follows: 
a. New accounting issues that require an unusual amount of time to resolve. 
b. Changes or transactions that occur prior to the issuance of our report. 
c. Changes in the City's accounting personnel, their responsibilities, or their availability. 
d. Changes in auditing requirements set by regulators . 

5. Significant delays in the accounting personnel's assistance in the engagement or delays by 
them in reconciling variances as requested by the Firm. All invoices, contracts and other 
documents which we will identify for the City, are not located by the accounting personnel or 
made ready for our easy access. 

6. A significant level of proposed audit adjustments is identified during our audit. 

7. Changes in audit scope caused by events that are beyond our control. 

8. Untimely payment of our invoices as they are rendered. 

Rates for Additional Professional Services: 

Any services outside the scope of our engagement will be promptly identified before the services are 
rendered. Upon mutual agreement, the out-of-scope services wil l be separately bi lled at our standard 
hourly rates. While it can be difficult to simply state hourly rates, as often times the needs of the 
client and the specific tasks directly impact the billing rates for our services, we want to provide the 
following information regarding our published billing rates : 

Position Hourl;t Rate 

Partner $ 250 
EQR 250 
Manager 200 
Senior 150 
Staff 125 
IT 150 
Admin . 90 

3 



City of Newark Pricing Proposal 

A client relationship with the City will be of great value to our Firm and we welcome the opportunity to 
develop a long-term relationship with the City. We are committed to: 

• Rendering the highest standard of service. 

• Developing a long-term working relationship dedicated to meeting the needs of the City. 

• Assisting the City in operational issues. 

• Producing a quality end-product. 

We have the technical qualifications and experience to provide the level of service desired and 
expected by the City and stand ready to provide our knowledge and experience for the benefit of your 
organization . 

We would like to express our appreciation to the City and to its Staff for allowing us the opportunity to 
submit a proposal to perform professional auditing services. We are available, at your convenience, 
to discuss any aspects of our proposal. 

Thank you for allowing us to present our Firm to you. 

***************** 

.... 

•(~f ~ 1 ~ ~[~R~~J~~~~~)~~~~ 
4 



F.6 Status Report on emergency expenditure for replacement of heater for Lazy River 
at Silliman Activity and Family Aquatic Center - from Maintenance Supervisor 
Connolly. (INFORMATIONAL) 

Backgroundroiscussion -At the January 14, 2016 City Council meeting, the City Council made 
a finding and adopted a resolution declaring an emergency existed as a result of heater failure for 
the Lazy River at Silliman Activity and Family Aquatic Center and the public interest and 
necessity demanded the immediate expenditure of public money to safeguard life, health or 
property. The heater failure impacted the ability to control the temperature of the Lazy River, 
creating a public safety concern. 

The California Public Contract Code Section 22050 requires that a report be provided to the City 
Council after the emergency declaration reporting on the status of the actions related to the 
expenditure. Fallowing is a cmTent status report for the heater replacement. 

Installation of the new heater began on Tuesday, February 16, 2016 and was completed on 
Thursday, February 18, 2016. 

Action - Informational only. 

Report 
City Council Meeting 

Thursday 
February 25, 2016 

F.6 



L. Appropriations 

City of Newark MEMO 

DATE: February 17, 2016 

FROM: 

City Council 

Sheila Harrington, City Clerk D i 
TO: 

SUBJECT: Approval of Audited Demands for the City Council Meeting of 
February 25, 2016. 

REGISTER OF AUDITED DEMANDS 

Bank of America General Checking Account 

Check Date Check Numbers 

February 05, 2016 Page 1-2 106998 to 107057 Inclusive 

February 12, 2016 Page 1-2 107058 to 107114 Inclusive 



DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

City of Newark MEMO 

February 17, 2016 

Sheila Harrington, City Clerk 

Susie Woodstock, Administrative Services Director:,\t- u) 
Approval of Audited Demands for the City Council Meeting of 
February 25, 2016. 

The attached list of Audited Demands is accurate and there are sufficient funds for 
payment. 



Feb OS, 2016 03:49pm Page 
1 

Final Dis·bursement List. Check Date 02/05/16, Due Date 02/15/16, Discount Date 02/15/16. Computer Checks. 
Bank 10~i' BANK OF AMERICA 
----~ ------------------------------- ----

MICR 
Check# 

106998 
106999 
107000 
107001 
107002 
107003 
107004 
107005 
107006 
107007 
107008 
107009 
107010 
107011 
107012 
107013 
107014 
107015 
107016 
107017 
107018 
107019 
107020 
107021 
107022 
107023 
107024 
107025 
107026 
107027 
107028 
107029 
107030 
107031 
107032 
107033 
107034 
107035 
107036 
107037 
107038 
107039 
107040 
107041 
107042 
107043 
107044 
107045 
107046 
107047 
107048 

vendor 
Number 

7922 
10 

10449 
1396 

287 
11270 

147 
9680 
9888 

161 
10261 

7439 
10060 
10650 
10649 
10793 
10793 
10793 
10793 

63 
10794 

7631 
7641 

184 
7663 

522 
1733 
1120 
5137 

234 
5106 

550 
10707 

167 
1457 
1762 

187 
11200 

7964 
3210 
7697 

80 
7618 

11089 
2027 

11330 
7816 
4176 
7885 

112 
5164 

Payee 

AARP ATTN ANNETTE PAREDES 
ABC FIRE PROTECTION INC 
AFLAC ATTN: REMITTANCE PROCESSING SERVIC 
ALAMEDA COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT ATTN: ACC 
ALAMEDA COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE GREGORY 
ARBORWELL 
AT&T MOBILITY 
BAY CENTRAL PRINTING 
BUREAU VERITAS NORTH AMERICA INC 
CAPE ACCOUNTING 
CARBONIC SERVICE 
CENTERVILLE LOCKSMITH 
COMCAST 
BOSCO VEGA BV PRODUCTIONS-NICARAGUAN FES 
AECOM ATTN: THERESE MCCARTHY-WATSON 
JOVITA MANUCAL 
MARY BURGESS 
JIM WIND 
YVONNE ALLEN 
THE GOODYEAR TIRE & RUBBER CO 
DUKE DE LEON 
DELTA DENTAL 
DELTA DENTAL INSURANCE COMPANY ATTN: ACC 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION CASHIER HQ 
FIDELITY SECURITY LIFE INSURANCE/EYEMED 
FED EX 
FIRST BAPTIST CHURCH 
FORENSIC ANALYTICAL SCIENCES, INC 
FOUR SEASONS POOL SERVICE 
FREMONT ALARM C/0 JOE TRIMBLE 
CITY OF FREMONT FINANCIAL SERVICES OFFIC 
FREMONT RUBBER STAMP CO INC 
GYM DOCTORS 
HARRIS COMPUTER SYSTEMS 
HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES DEPT 32-25409 
IACP 
INDUSTRIAL SAFETY SUPPLY 
YESENIA JIMENEZ 
KN"ORR SYSTEMS INC 
LA COUNTY SHERIFF'S DEPT 
THE LIFEGUARD STORE INC 
LYNN PEAVEY COMPANY 
METLIFE SBC 
NEWPARK AUTO SERVICE 
PACHECO BROTHERS GARDENING, INC. 
POLICE TECHJ:,JICAL 661 
PRECISION CONCRETE CUTTING 
MICHAEL QUEBEC 
RENNE SLOAN HOLTZMAN SAKAI PUBLIC LAW GR 
WILLE ELECTRICAL SUPPLY CO INC 
SAN MATEO REGIONAL NETWORK INC SMRN.COM 

CCS.AP Accounts Payable Release 8.3.0 R*APZCKREG*FDL 

check 
Date 

02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 
02/05/16 

Check 
Amount 

165.00 
170.00 

1,726.90 
603,860.00 

319.35 
2,368.00 
1,979.11 

70.23 
59,287.22 

45.00 
263.52 
120.00 

75.94 
500.00 

1,000.00 
30.00 
33.00 
60.00 

123.00 
2,881.22 

60.00 
7,238.45 

454.63 
502.82 
623.90 
63.85 
80.00 

584.00 
7,105.87 
4,280.00 
8,466.70 

25.61 
150.00 

1,018.71 
349.11 
150.00 
103.13 
100.00 
456.00 
485.00 
641.85 
296.99 

1,939.81 
105.00 
395.00 
375.00 

1,849.69 
798.00 

5,639.50 
217.97 
170.00 

Description 

AA.RP MATURE DRIVING COURSE 
SERVICE CALL/HOOD FIRE SUPPRESSION 
PAYROLL - SHORT TERM DISABILITY PREM 
FIRE SERVICES 
LATENT PRINTS 
DECORATIVE LIGHTING 
CELL SVC FOR MDT'S 
BUSINESS CARDS FOR BRIAN LEWIS 
PLAN REVIEW SERVICES MPV2015-0002 
CAPE MEMBERSHIP 
POOL CHEMICALS 
MAINT OF EQUIP 
CABLE SVCS 
DANCE PERMIT REFUND 
PERFORMANCE BOND RTN# 2016-0005 
CANCELED TRIP REFUND 
CANCELED TRIP REFUND 
CANCELED TRIP REFUND 
CANCELED TRIP REFUNDS 
TIRE PURCHASES 
VIDEO RECORDING SERVICES 
PAYROLL - DENTAL PREMIUM 
PAYROLL - DENTAL PREMIUM 
FY15-16 SHARED COSTS FOR TRAFFIC SIGNALS 
VISION PREMIUM 
DECEMBER FEDEX CHARGES 
DONATION 
LAB TESTS 
FY15-16 POOL SERVICE/REPAIRS 
FY15-16 ALARM SERVICE 
SHELTER OPERATING EXPS 
STAMPERS 
FITNESS EQUIPMENT MAINT 
ANNUAL WINTEGRATE LICENSING & SUPPORT 
FYlS-16 MIS SUPPLIES 
IACP MEMB 
FYlS-16 SAFETY GEAR 
HEALTH CARE EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT 01/16 
Mtc. Repairs 
PATROL POST TRAINING 
STAFF UNIFORMS AND POOL EQUIPMENT 
EVIDENCE SUPPLIES 
PAYROLL - LONG TERM DISABILITY PREM 
VEHICLE SMOGS 
REPAIRED MAINLINE AT CIVIC CENTER 
NON-POST INV TRAINING 
CITYWIDE CONCRETE REPAIR 
RECREATION CONTRACT 
CONSULTING, LITIGATION, INVESTIGATION 
PARTS 
WEB HOSTING, SPAM FILTERING & SECURITY S 

By BRETT OEVERNDIEK {BRETTO) 



Feb 05, 2016 03:49pm Page 2 
Final Di~~ursement List. Check Date 02/05/16, Due Date 02/15/16, Discount Date 02/15/16. Computer Checks. 
Bank 10_01 BANK OF AMERICA 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- - ---

MICR 
Check# 

Vendor 
Number Payee 

check 
Date 

Check 
Amount Description 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ - -
107049 197 STATE BOARD OF EQUALIZATION FUEL TAXES D 02/05/16 1,299.40 UST MAINTENANCE FEE RETURN 

107050 2778 STATE OF CALIFORNIA FRANCHISE TAX BOARD 02/05/16 347.46 PAYROLL DEDUCTION GARNISHMENT 

107051 2778 STATE OF CALIFORNIA FRANCHISE TAX BOARD 02/05/16 150.00 PAYROLL DEDUCTION - GARNISHMENT 

107052 2778 STATE OF CALIFORNIA FRANCHISE TAX BOARD 02/05/16 440.00 PAYROLL DEDUCTION - GARNISHMENT 

107053 11352 TICKLE ME PARTIES 02/05/16 695.00 PETTING ZOO FOR FAMILY DAY 

107054 8751 PROVIDENT LIFE & ACCIDENT INSURANCE COMP 02/05/16 312.04 PAYROLL PREMIUMS E0246926 

107055 10968 UTILITY TELEPHONE 02/05/16 20,620.58 ANNUAL TELECOM FY2015-16 

107056 5623 AMERICAN MESSAGING 02/05/16 17.13 PAGER SVC 

107057 143 WILCO SUPPLY PO BOX 3047 02/05/16 48.57 FYlS-16 KEYS/LOCKS 

--------------
Total 743,734.26 

CCS.AP Accounts Payable Release 8.3.0 R*APZCKREG*FDL By BRETT OEVERNDIEK (BRETTO) 



1 
Feb 11, 2016 01:18pm Page 

Final Disbursement List. Check Date 02/12/16, Due Date 02/22/16, Discount Date 02/22/16. Computer Checks. 
Bank 1001 BANK OF AMERICA 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
MICR 

Check# 
Vendor 
Number Payee 

Check 
Date 

Check 
Amount Description 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
107058 
107059 
107060 
107061 
107062 
107063 
107064 
107065 
107066 
107067 
107068 
107069 
107070 
107071 
107072 
107073 
107074 
107075 
107076 
107077 
107078 
107079 
107080 
107081 
107082 
107083 
107084 
107085 
107086 
107087 
107088 
107089 
107090 
107091 
107092 
107093 
107094 
107095 
107096 
107097 
107098 
107099 
107100 
107101 
107102 
107103 
107104 
107105 
107106 
107107 
107108 

876 
413 

1129 
1396 
5821 

12 
411 
348 

4534 
9680 
3046 
9888 
9150 

33 
806 

10060 
1109 
3664 

10793 
3728 

10114 
1352 

11343 
10642 
11314 

5106 
11224 

2215 
10655 

9246 
10777 

6009 
190 

3644 
11353 

9117 
10298 
11309 
11205 
11357 

7335 
349 
224 

11062 
78 

10891 
3674 

11234 
7885 

654 
112 

ABLE SEPTIC TANK SERVICE 
AIR EXCHANGE INC 
ALAMEDA COUNTY CLERK RECORDER 1 S OFFICE 
ALAMEDA COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT ATTN: ACC 
ALL CITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC 
ALLIED AUTO STORES INC 
AIG BENEFIT SOLUTIONS 
AT&T 
BAY AREA BARRICADE SERVICE INC 
BAY CENTRAL PRINTING 
BEELINE GLASS CO INC 
BUREAU VERITAS NORTH AMERICA INC 
CAL-WEST LIGHTING & SIGNAL MAINTENANCE I 
CENTRAL TOWING & TRANSPORT LLC 
CLASSIC SIGNS 
COMCAST 
CAPITAL ONE COMl'1ERCIAL 
CALIFORNIA SOCIETY OF MUNICIPAL FINANCE 
KRIS KEDIR 
DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE ACCOUNTING OFFICE 
DI PIETRO & ASSOCIATES, INC 
DRIVERS LICENSE GUIDE COMPANY 
ENVIRONMENTAL LOGISTICS, INC. 
FASTENAL COMPANY 
FH DAILEY CHEVROLET 
CITY OF FREMONT FINANCIAL SERVICES OFFIC 
FREMONT RECYCLING & TRANBFER STATION 
FREMONT WHEEL & BRAKE 
GRANITEROCK 
DAVID HIGBEE 
RYAN JOHNSON 
JT2 INTEGRATED RESOURCES CORPORATE ACCOU 
LC ACTION POLICE SUPPLY LTD 
LEXISNEXIS 
LFTM, INC. 
RICHARD LOPEZ 
MANAGED HEALTH NETWORK BANK OF AMERICA 
MANUEL FERNANDEZ CONSTRUCTION 
MARINA ZEPEDA TRI COUNTY BLDG MAINT 
MISSION UNIFORM SERVICE 
MUNICIPAL MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT INC 
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 
DAVID R PARKS 
PCD 
PERFORMAN"CE PEST MANAGEMENT LPC SERVICES 
ADONA! PERAZIM INC. dba PRINTS CHARLES R 
PRIORITY 1 PUBLIC SAFETY EQUIPMENT INSTA 
RAY MORGAN COMPANY 
RENNE SLOAN HOLTZMAN SAKAI PUBLIC LAW GR 
SFPUC-WATER DEPARTMENT CUSTOMER SERVICE 
WILLE ELECTRICAL SUPPLY CO INC 

CCS.AP Accounts Payable Release 8.3.0 R*APZCKREG*FDL 

02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 

675.00 
915.41 
50.00 

1,442.25 
3,446.51 

215.10 
662.40 
284.36 
768.46 
194.26 

1,841.92 
600.00 

4,035.75 
146.25 
12.06 
13.94 

986.21 
110.00 

79.00 
622.00 

1,878.44 
68.50 

5,346.00 
6 .36 

72.48 
2,500.00 

13,004.35 
80.00 

1,635.00 
516.00 
930.46 

3,435.61 
72.16 

176.00 
9,723.34 

842.06 
369.52 
990.00 

21,279.80 
2,099.04 

59.14 
48.13 

101.74 
367.64 
185.00 
151.31 

3,206.63 
6,599.50 

189.00 
2,947.13 
3,133.97 

PUMP OUT PUivIP STATION 
INSPECTION OF PLYMOVENT VEHICLE EXHAUST 
EXEMPTION FILING (ALAMEDA COUNTY CLERK H 
FYlS-16 FIRE ENGINE REPAIRS 
CROSSING GUARD SVCS 
AUTO PARTS 
ANNUAL PO FOR LIFE INSURANCE PREMIUM:S 
ANNUAL TELECOM FY2015-16 
FYlS-16 STEEL POSTS AND SIGNS 
BUSINESS CARDS FOR SOREN FAJEAU {PUBLIC 
GLASS/ LABOR 
BLDG PLAN REVIEW 
FYlS-16 TRAFFIC SIGNAL AND STREETLIGHT M 
TOWING SVCS 
NAMETAG FOR VICE MAYOR L. FREITAS 
FY15-16 CABLE AT SERVICE CENTER 
SUPPLIES 
MEMBERSHIP DUES 
CLASS REFUND 
ANNUAL PO FOR FINGERPRINTING FEES 
UB CHILD AED PADS 
BOOKS & BULLETINS 
HAZMAT PU AT YARD AN"D FIRE ST #28 
FY15-16 MISC BLDG SUPPLIES 
AUTO PARTS 
NEWARK CASE MGMT 
GARBAGE SERVICES 
FY15-16 ALIGNEMENTS 
GRANITEPATCH 50 
SLI SESSION #4 
POST TRAINING CONCORD 
ANNUAL PO FOR WORKER'S COMP ADMINISTRATI 
FLASHLIGHTS & SUPPLIES 
ONLINE LEGAL RESEARCH SUBSCRIPTION 
OFFICE SPACE REMODEL (PHASE 1) 
PATROL VEST REPLACEMENT 
ANNUAL PO FOR CITY EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE P 
BREIFING ROOM CARPET CLEANING 
FYlS-16 JANITORIAL SERVICES 
UNIFORMS/MATS/TOWELS 
PARTS - SPRING 2 X 12 X 3/8 
FYlS-16 STREET/TRAFFIC LIGHT ENERGY COST 
POST TRAINING - BODEGA BAY 
SERVICE DANCE STEREO 
FY15-16 PEST MANAGEMENT 
CARBON COPIES OF STORMWATER INSPECTION L 
REPAIR/REFURBISH TM4 SIREN CONTROLLERS 
COPIER LEASE AGREEMENT FYlS/16 
ANNUAL PO FOR LEGAL ADVICE 
FY15-16 HETCH HETCHY RENT 
PARTS 

By BRETT OEVERNDIEK (BRETTO) 



Feb 11, 2016 Ol:18pm Page 2 
Final Disbursement List. Check Date 02/12/16, Due Date 02/22/16, Discount Date 02/22/16. Computer Checks. 
B:3,nk: 1001 BANK OF AMERICA 

MICR 
Check# 

107109 
107110 
107111 
107112 
107113 
107114 

Vendor 
Number 

40 
10804 
11142 
10998 

5623 
5050 

Payee 

STAPLES ADVANTAGE DEPT LA 
STONERIDGE CJD 
SUN RIDGE SYSTEMS INC 
GARY M SHELDON VBS SERVICES 
VERIZON WIRELESS 
WEST COAST ARBORISTS INC 

Total 

CCS.AP Accounts Payable Release 8.3.0 R*APZCKREG*FDL 

Check 
Date 

02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 
02/12/16 

Check 
Amount 

1,954.49 
57.25 

3,540.00 
900.00 

3,170.11 
5,481.50 

--------------
114,218.54 

Description 

SUPPLIES 
SEAT BELT 
TECH MAINTENANCE 
BLOOD WITHDRAWAL SVC 
GPS TRACKER/IPHqNE SVC 
FY15-16 TREE WORK 

By BRETT OEVERNDIEK (BRETTO) 




